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I . Report to Shareholders



Dear Shareholders,

First of all, I would like to thank you for sparing the time to attend the
Company’s annual shareholders’ meeting. It provides us, the management team,
with an opportunity to present the operational achievements and future prospects of
the company. On behalf of the management team and all employees, I sincerely
welcome and invite your valuable feedback and suggestions.

Over the past three years, the global spread of the COVID-19 pandemic has
caused significant turbulence in major economies worldwide. Taiwan's economy,
however, has been relatively stable due to effective pandemic control measures. As
we enter the post-pandemic recovery era, uncertain risk and changing factors persist.
Factors such as the hawkish stance of the US Federal Reserve leading to interest rate
hikes, the energy crisis triggered by the Russia-Ukraine conflict, and the economic
slowdown resulting from the US-China rivalry have created a challenging global
economic environment characterized by "high prices," "high inflation," and "low
growth." However, as a leading healthcare integrated provider in Taiwan, our
business is relatively less affected compared to other industries, representing steady
growth. We will leverage this advantageous position to maintain our competitive
edge and capitalize on future opportunities.

The Company’s 2022 operating results and 2023 business plan are reported as follows:
I. Report on the 2022 operating results
1. 2022 operating results

(1) Individual statement of comprehensive income
Unit: NT dollars in thousands

Increase
Item 2022 2021 (decrease)
percentage

Operating revenue 4,654,419 4,373,194 6.43%
Gross profit 785,948 719,410 9.25%
Net operating 377,167 344,234 9.57%
income
Non-operating
income and 409,616 371,835 10.16%
expenses
Profit before tax 786,783 716,069 9.88%
Profit after tax 667,453 607,149 9.93%
Other
comprehensive 289,185 (28,494) 1,114.90%
income (loss)
Total comprehensive
. 956,638 578,655 65.32%
income

i. The increase in operating revenue, gross profit, and net operating income
compared to the previous year were mainly due to the increase in sales
of hemodialysis, surgery products and home appliances, and the increase



in gross profit was due to the depreciation of import foreign exchange
rate and the growth in sales of high-margin products.

ii. The increase in non-operating income and expenses compared to the
previous year was mainly due to the influence of “Share of profit of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity
method”.

iii. The increase in other comprehensive income compared to the previous
year was mainly attributable to the influence of “Exchange differences
on translation” and “Share of other comprehensive income of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity
method”.

(2) Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Unit: NT dollars in thousands

Increase
Item 2022 2021 (decrease)
percentage

Operating revenue 7,186,828 6,573,152 9.34%
Gross profit 1,513,112 1,372,619 10.24%
Net ti
.o OPerating 606,612 595,026 1.95%
income
Non-operating
income and 357,088 278,710 28.12%
expenses
Profit before tax 963,700 873,736 10.30%
Profit after tax 785,301 722,289 8.72%
Other
comprehensive 364,266 (35,162) 1,135.97%
income (loss)
Total comprehensive
. 1,149,567 687,127 67.30%
income

i. The increase in operating revenue compared to the previous year were
mainly due to the increase in sales of hemodialysis, surgery, aesthetic
medical products and services; the gross profit increased due to the
depreciation of import foreign exchange rate and the growth in sales of
high-margin aesthetic medical products and services, resulting in an
increase in gross profit rate.

ii. The increase in non-operating income and expenses compared to the
previous year was mainly attributable to the influence of “Share of profit
of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method”.

iii. The increase in other comprehensive income compared to the previous
year was mainly attributable to the influence of “Exchange differences
on translation” and “Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in
equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income”.



2. Status of budget implementation: this is not applicable since the Company did

not prepare any financial forecast.

3. Status of cash flows

(1) Individual statement of cash flows

Unit: NT dollars in thousands

Item 2022 Description
Beginni h
cginning cas 507,977 | The balance of the 2021 final account.
balance
Mainl Iting f h
Net cash flows from a1r_1 y resulting .rorn the curr.ent year
. o 204,101 | profit from operations, and the increase
operating activities L.
in inventory.
Mainly resulting from the increase in
proceeds from disposal of financial
Net cash fl f
. etcas OWS, r.o.m 289,326 | asset at fair value through other
investment activities . -
comprehensive income and dividends
received.
Net cash used in from Mainly resulting from the cash
. ) . (498,086) | .. . .
financing activities dividends paid.
Cash bal t th
ash balance at the 503,318 | The balance of the 2022 final account.
end of the year

(2) Consolidated statement of cash flows

Unit: NT dollars in thousands

Item 2022 Description
Beginning cash 3,072,264 | The balance of the 2021 final account.
balance
Net cash flows from 637126 Mainly resulting from the current year
operating activities ! profit from operations.
Net cash used in from Me}mly resulting from the acqu1.51t10n
. . (690,005) | of investments accounted for using
investment activities .
equity method.

Net cash used in from Mainly resulting from the cash

. . I, (633,889) | .. . =
financing activities dividends distribution.
Impact of changes in 121,499 | Effect of Exchange rate changes.
exchange rates
Cash bal t th

ash balance at the 2,506,995 | The balance of the 2022 final account.
end of the year




4. Analysis and comparison of profitability

(1) Analysis of individual profitability

Item 2022 2021 Description

The increase in profit after tax in
2022 mainly resulting from the
increase in operating revenue and
71 69 the increase in “Share of profit of
subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures accounted for using equity
method”.

Return on
assets (%)

The increase in profit after tax in
2022 mainly resulting from the
increase in operating revenue and

5;311:;( (f/f)‘ 84 79 the increase in “Share of profit of
subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures accounted for using equity
method”.

The increase in profit before tax in

Ratio of 2022 mainly resulting from the

before-tax increase in operating revenue and

profit to the 531 50.7 the increase in “Share of profit of
paid-in subsidiaries, associates and joint

capital(%) . .
ventures accounted for using equity
method”.

The increase in profit after tax in
2022 mainly resulting from the
Net profit increase in operating revenue and

o 14.3 139 the increase in “Share of profit of
margin (%) e . .
subsidiaries, associates and joint

ventures accounted for using equity

method”.

The increase in profit after tax in

. 2022 mainly resulting from the
Basic after-tax

earnings per
share (NT$)
(note)

increase in operating revenue and
450 410 the increase in “Share of profit of
subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures accounted for using equity
method”.

Note: According to the net profit after tax with weighted-average shares outstanding.



(2) Analysis of consolidated profitability

Item 2022 2021 Description
Return on The return on assets in these two
N 5.0 5.0
assets (%) years was nearly the same.
The increase in profit after tax in
2022 mainly resulting from the
Return on . C :
o 7.8 75 increase in “Share of profit of
equity(%) . .
associates and joint ventures
accounted for using equity method”.
Ratio of The increase in profit before tax in
before-tax 2022 mainly resulting from the
profit to the 65.0 619 increase in “Share of profit of
paid-in associates and joint ventures
capital(%) accounted for using equity method”.
Net profit The return on assets in these two
o 109 11.0
margin (%) years was nearly the same.

) The increase in profit after tax in
Ba51§ after-tax 2022 mainly resulting from the
:ﬁ;rl}én(%\?ﬁ;e)r 450 410 increase in “Share of profit of
(note) associates and joint ventures

accounted for using equity method”.

Note: According to the net profit after tax with weighted-average shares outstanding.

5. R&D status

As the Company is not in the manufacturing industry, it has not set up a

dedicated R&D division. Instead, we rely on our various business departments to
expand our business scope in the field of medical-related specialties through
agency and distribution.

II. The 2023 business plan

(1) Strengthening investment deployment: We will focus on the Taiwanese

2

healthcare market and actively seek strategic partners in the medical industry.
Through reinvestment, we will continue to integrate upstream and
downstream medical resources, develop a competitive value chain service,
and expand our medical distribution channels. Additionally, we aim to
replicate the success of our experiences in Taiwan and extend our presence
in overseas healthcare markets. For instance, we have entered the
manufacturing sector by establishing a dialysis solution factory in Malaysia,
thereby extending our sources of profitability.

Promoting brand management strategy: We will promote our own brand,
“Ultra Clean” which offers healthy home appliances such as air
purifiers "Cubic Air,". In addition, we will collaborate with CAREGEN CO.,
LTD., a renowned biotechnology company from South Korea, to promote the

DR CY]J brand of hair peptide products for hair health.

~




(3) Deepening community long-term care services: In alignment with the
government's ten-year plan for long-term care, we will actively establish
long-term care associations, expand community-based long-term care
facilities, and develop a collaborative network between long-term care and
medical services. We will also enhance the classification of care service
functions and provide an integrated healthcare and caregiving model to meet
the needs of individuals requiring care.

(4) Developing medical real estate leasing business: Leveraging the expertise of
our asset management company, we will continue to develop the medical real
estate leasing business. We will collaborate with affiliated companies to
expand our medical distribution channels and seek stable, secure, and
reasonable real estate targets. Our goal is to maximize comprehensive
benefits through this approach.

III. Future corporate development strategies

In response to changes in the market environment, our company aims to
increase market share in the field of hemodialysis and surgical products. We will
also continue to introduce medical equipment and consumables, deepen our
presence in the healthcare market channels, and integrate resources from
affiliated companies. By diversifying and extending our partnerships
strategically, we aim to strengthen our competitiveness and build an integrated
healthcare industry group. With the values of dedication, discipline, innovation,
and proactive, we are committed to providing comprehensive health services in
the healthcare industry.

Looking ahead to the year 2023, our company and its affiliated investments
will continue to strive for diversified development. This includes introducing
new-generation medical products and services, as well as healthy home
appliances (both large and small appliances, including air purifiers).
Additionally, we will promote various aesthetic medical products and expand
their sales channels, such as Picoway Picosecond Laser, Animers, Hyadermis
hyaluronic acid dermal fillers, AestheFill collagen-stimulating subdermal fillers,
Prima advanced dye laser, and DR CY]J hair care brand. The successful launch of
Neuronox "Ultimate Soft" botulinum toxin injectables from Medytox Inc., a
leading biotech company in South Korea, has also boosted the sales of their
brand's "Yumeishi" hyaluronic acid dermal implants. In terms of pharmaceutical
logistics, we are committed to deepening our partnerships with international
pharmaceutical companies, actively seeking product and vaccine sales directly
from manufacturers. We are also pursuing GMP and GDP certifications for
medical devices, aiming to expand our presence in the medical field and enhance
our comprehensive pharmaceutical logistics services. As for long-term care
systems, we will continue to respond to the government's ten-year Long-term
Care 2.0 plan, integrating medical, nursing, and home-based services in
accordance with the Long-term Care Services Act. We aim to establish an
integrated care model that combines long-term care and medical services,
expanding our business in this sector. Additionally, we will closely monitor the



government's New Southbound Policy and expand our presence in the
international healthcare market by investing in a dialysis solution factory in
Malaysia, in line with the group's policies.

IV. The influences of the external competitive environment, regulatory environment

and overall business environment

According to a research report by the Industrial Technology Research
Institute (ITRI) IEK, the global population aged 65 and above is expected to reach
its peak between 2011 and 2029. Population aging has become an irreversible
global trend. The National Development Council has also announced that
Taiwan is estimated to enter the "super-aged society" by international standards
by 2025. By 2050, the elderly population is projected to reach 7.66 million,
accounting for approximately 37.5% of the total population. According to data
published by the Ministry of the Interior, as of the end of 2022, the elderly
population (aged 65 and above) in Taiwan has reached 4,085,793, an increase of
146,760 compared to the end of 2021, accounting for 17.56% of the total
population of 23,264,640. The rapid growth of the elderly population necessitates
middle-aged individuals to address their own retirement life and care for their
elders, proactively planning for elderly medical care to meet future market needs.
Therefore, in line with the government's initiatives, such as the "Ten-year Long-
term Care Plan," "Long-term Care Service Network Plan," and "Enhancement
Plan for Long-term Care Capacity," a comprehensive long-term care system is
being gradually established in stages.

In recent years, as the economy has grown, the per capita income in our
country has been steadily increasing. With this economic growth, there has been
an increasing emphasis on health. Additionally, the aging population and the
rise in chronic diseases such as obesity, diabetes, and hypertension have led to a
significant increase in demand for healthcare and related products. In light of
these factors, our company can capitalize on the dynamic adjustments and
growth trends in the healthcare supply and demand structure, thereby creating
better development opportunities for the healthcare industry.

Fu Hui-Tung, Chairman
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1. Date of Incorporation

March 15, 1988
2. Company History

1988

1989
1992
1996

1997

1998

1999
2000

2001

2003

2004

Enfield Medical Supply Ltd. was established and elected
Hui-Tung Fu as the first chairman. The Company
engaged in the sale of hemodialysis medical products.

In responding to business expansion, Enfield Medical

Supply Ltd. was changed to Enfield Medical Co., Ltd.

Established Taichung office to expand the sales channels,

and built a maintenance team in central Taiwan.

Established Kaohsiung office to expand the sales channels,

and built a maintenance team in southern Taiwan.

Completed intranet structure, and the management of

operation entered into e-commerce. The IT department

completed Internet structure and integrated the Internet
and the Intranet.

1. The Company entered globalization era, joint venture with
RTS Worldwide Holding Inc, a subsidiary company of
Baxter International, and planed to establish “Jiate
Excesior Co., Ltd.” to expand and manage hemodialysis
related business.

2. The Company was approved as a public company by
Securities and Futures Commission, Ministry of Finance to
improve management performance.

Built internal resources to integrate, JDE information

management system.

Invested in Bestchain Online Business Co., Ltd., and

entered into the medical health e-commerce field.

1. The company was approved as “biotechnology stock” by
Taipei Exchange, stock code is 4104 which officially
qualified to list stock.

2. Public trading could commence on June 8, 2001 pursuant
to authorization from Taipei Exchange.

1. Invested in Excelsior Healthcare Co., Limited, an overseas
holding company in the British Virgin Islands, engaged in
the investment and operation of the medical industry in
Asia and overseas. The company established EG
Healthcare, Inc. to develop medical-related industries in
the Philippines.

2. Puchased Zhonghe Office to establish the Group
headquarter.

Invested in Dynamic Medical Technologies Inc., and

entered into the aesthetic medical field.

12



2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

Purchased all shares of Jiate Excesior Co., Ltd. invested by

RTS Worldwide Holding Inc., which is the subsidiary of

Baxter International, and obtained the entire hemodialysis

channels of that company.

1. Upgraded internal resource to integrate ERP system.

2. To streamline the affiliates, Bestchain Healthtaiwan Co.,
Ltd. and Chiayi Applied Technology Co., Ltd. merged, and
the former is the surviving company.

1. The Company sold 51% shares of its subsidiary Jiate
Excesior Co., Ltd. to Fresenius Medical Care Hong Kong
Co., Ltd. joint venture to expand hemodialysis business.

2. The subsidiary, Dynamic Medical Technologies Inc.,
invested in Great China Technology Development Limited
into the international aesthetic medical field.

3. The Company’s stock terminated the trading of its shares
on Taipei Exchange and listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange on December 31, 2007.

1. Invested in Asia Best Healthcare Co., Ltd. to expand the
long-term care business in Greater China Area.

2. Issued new shares due to acquisition of 51% shares of
Arich Enterprise Co., Ltd. held by Jiuyu Investment Co.,
Ltd.

The Company's name was formally changed from

“Enfield Medical Co., Ltd.” to “Excelsior Medical Co.,

Ltd.”

The subsidiary, Dynamic Medical Technologies Inc.,

terminated the trading of its shares on TPEx emerging

stock market and listed on Taipei Exchange on December

29, 2010.

1. Established the subsidiary, Excelsior Medical (HK) Co.,
Limited, and Yujia Medical Service Co., Ltd. was
established through Excelsior Medical (HK) Co., Limited,
as a joint venture to develop medical industry in China
region.

2. Established Remuneration Committee to implement
corporate governance and integrity codes.

13



2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

1. The Company originally invested in Asia Best Healthcare
Co., Ltd. through Excelsior Healthcare Co., Limited. Due
to expansion of business in Greater China Area, the
investment framework was restructured and shares of Asia
Best Healthcare Co., Ltd. were transferred from Excelsior
Healthcare Co., Limited to Excelsior Medical (HK) Co.,
Limited.

2. Excelsior Medical (HK) Co., Limited carried out capital
injection, and the shares were purchased by Excelsior
Healthcare Co., Limited. After the capital injection of
Excelsior Medical (HK) Co., Limited, the Company and
Excelsior Healthcare Co., Limited hold its shares
respectively.

The subsidiary, Arich Enterprise Co., Ltd., terminated the

trading of its shares on TPEx emerging stock market and

listed on Taipei Exchange on October 31, 2013.

The Company and the subsidiary Dynamic Medical

Technologies Inc. invested Caregen Co., Ltd. shares to

develop proprietary, patented peptide technology for hair

growth, hair care treatment and to promote products from

DR.CY]J brand.

The Company established Shinkong Excelsior Asset

Management Co., Ltd. as a joint venture. The parties

combined their respective advantageous resources to

develop medical real estate leasing business.

Established Audit Committee to strengthen the corporate

governance system.

1. The Company merged with its subsidiary Animation
Medical Technologies Ltd. to integrate group resource. The
Company was the surviving company, and to further
develop the field of agency and maintenance of water
treatment equipment.

2. The Company acquired partial shares of SinoExcelsior
Investment Inc.(Its original name is Yujia Medical Service
Co., Ltd.)) from Sinopharm Group Co.,Ltd. through
Excelsior Medical (HK) Co., Limited, increasing the
shareholding ratio to 100% after the completion of this
transation, which aimed to expand madical industries in
China region.

1. The Subsidiary, SinoExcelsior Investment Inc., adjusted its
operation strategy to reduce capital and change its
company name and business content. It was approved to
change its registered Chinese name.

14



2019

2020

2021

2022

The Subsidiary, Excelsior Healthcare Co., Limited
established Excelsior Investment (Malatsia) Co., Ltd. to
develop the Southeast Asia market.

Acquired 70% shares in Renal Laboratories Sdn. Bhd. and
Medi Chem Systems Sdn. Bhd. through the subsidiary,
Excelsior Investment (Malatsia) Co., Ltd., By investing in
dialysate manufacturer in Malaysia, the Company looks to
expand into the hemodialysis market and enter into
dialysis-related products manufacturing in Southeast Asia.
The Company acquired partial shares of Shinkong
Excelsior Medical Asset Management Co., Ltd., increasing
the shareholding ratio to 100%, and the name of the
subsidiary was changed to Excelsior Asset Management
Co., Ltd.

SinoExcelsior Investment Inc. adjusted management
strategies and disposed its entire shares in Beijing
Sinoexcelsior Investment Management Co., Ltd. and
Shanghai Wanli Medical Cosmetology Clinic Co., Ltd., a
100% owned subsidiary of Beijing Sinoexcelsior.

The Company acquired normal saline permit license and
outsourced manufacturing to Astar Chemical & Phar Co.,
Ltd.

The Company acquired import certificate of Nikkiso’s new
model DBB-EXA ES hemodialysis machine approved by
Ministry of Health and Welfare. The new model DBB-
EXA ES hemodialysis machine added new functions,
including online hemodialysis powder infusion and data
output communication interface. In addition to meeting
current medical requirements, also enhance the product’s
sales strength by adding various functions.

The Subsidiaries, Dynamic Medical Technologies Inc. and
Arich Enterprise Co., Ltd. moved to the same building in
favor of the Group overall planning.

1.

Acquired 49% shares in NephroCare Limited and Cardinal
Medical Services Ltd. through the subsidiary, Excelsior
Medical (HK) Co., Limited. The joint venture between
the two parties further expanded the operation of
hemodialysis-related business.

Elections for the 13™ board of directors (including
independent directors) in the shareholders’ meeting.
Established a Corporate Governance Officer to assist
directors in executing business operations, enhance the
effective functioning of the board of directors, and ensure
compliance with regulations.

15



2022

2023

Established a Corporate Sustainable Development
Committee responsible for addressing environmental,
social, and corporate governance issues related to
operations and promoting corporate sustainability.

In 2022, there was a capital increase by earnings through
the issuance of 7,057,449 stock shares. After the capital
increase, the total share capital changed to
NT$1,482,064,190.

Established a Chief Information Security Officer to
strengthen the company's information  security
management mechanisms.

The subsidiary, Excelsior Asset Management Co., Ltd.
acquired real estate in Daya District, Taichung City,
expanding the scale of medical real estate operations.

The company obtained ISO 9001 certification for quality
management systems and ISO 13485 certification for
medical device quality management systems.

Our company obtained approval and registration from the
Ministry of Health and Welfare for the Good Distribution
Practice (GDP) of medical devices, ensuring that the
quality of medical devices meets the requirements
specified in the product license.
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(2) Department operations

Department

Responsibilities

Board of Directors

Decision-making over business strategies, reviewing
legally stipulated regulations, laws and bylaws,
reviewing budgets and other functional authorities
pursuant to laws and the Shareholders” Meeting.

Remuneration committee

Evaluate the remuneration policies of directors,
supervisors, and managers, and to propose
recommendations to the Board of Directors for
references.

Audit committee

Composed of all independent directors, the Audit
Committee assists the Board of Directors in
supervising the quality and integrity in respect of
implementation of relevant accounting, auditing,
and financial reporting procedures and control over
the Company’s finance.

Corporate Governance Officer

Perform legal procedures related to board of
directors and shareholders' meetings, assist directors
in their appointments and professional development,
provide necessary information for the execution of
directors’ duties, and assist directors in compliance
with regulations.

In charge of investigating and evaluating the
implementation of the Company’s internal control

Auditing office system and to assess operational efficiency, and to
provide recommendations for improvement.
Convene Board of Directors and supervise the
Chairman General Manager to execute resolutions from the

Board meetings.

Corporate Sustainable
Development Committee

Enhancing the management principles of ESG for
sustainable corporate development by formulating
measures and strategies to address environmental
(E), social (S), and governance (G) issues.

General manager

Implements policies and decisions from the Board of
Directors and operational strategies; in charge of
integrating the Company’s departments to expand
businesses and to establish internal management
system.

Public
Relations
Office

Acts as the Company’s spokesperson and channel of
communications with external entities.

General
Manager’s
Office

Strategic
Planning
Office

In charge of promoting corporate image and market
planning.

Legal Office

In charge of reviewing and signing contracts and
other relevant matters.
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Department Responsibilities
In charge of receiving visitors, handle matters and
Secretariat |agenda related to various inter-departmental
Office meetings, and tasks assigned by the Chairman and
General Manager.
Human In charge of human resources management matters
Resources related to employee recruitment, employee
Human Divisi development, compensation management, employee
ivision - .
Resources benefits and employee relations.
Department Responsible for the planning and architecture of the

IT Division

information system, as well as the management of
cyber security and related equipment.

Accounting |Responsible of accounting, tax, and supervision of
Division  |subsidiaries.
Finance
. L Cashier, finance planning and stock affair.
Finance & Division P &
Admin Sales service . .
o Responsible for procurement and customer service.
Department Division
Administration Responsible for document managen‘len‘t, stamp the
Division document, general procurement, building and
equipment maintenance.
Product
In charge of new product development and
Development | .
o introduction.
Division
Dialysis  |In charge of planning, market research, and sales
Business  |and purchase planning related to dialysis, Medtronic,
Division  |and medical products.
Sales & Medical .
. In charge of promoting blood bag and wound and
Marketing Product ostomy products
Department Division yP )
Technical
Service After-sale repair and maintenance of medical devices.
Division
Home Planning, market research, and sales and purchase
Appliance [planning related to healthcare home appliances and
Division  |other consumer products.
Philippines
Business
Division
Overseas p . . .
Business Malaysia |In charge of planning and investments in overseas
Business  |markets.
Department L
Division
Project
Division

20
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Major shareholders of the institutional shareholders

April 23, 2023

Name of Institutional

Shareholders Major Shareholders %

Fu Hui-Tung 35.74%

Liao Mei-Hui 16.75%

Excelsior Investment Co., Ltd. 16.41%

EXCELSIOR GROUP HOLDINGS LTD. 12.89%

Excelsior Group Holdings |Xuan Hui Investment Co., Ltd. 10.89%
Co., Ltd. Wei Xiang Investment Co., Ltd. 1.31%
Chou Wen-Lan 1.10%

Li Ming-Chuan 1.06%

Yen Kun-Piao 0.94%

Fu Pi-Yun 0.75%

C. Major shareholders of the Company’s major institutional shareholders

April 23, 2023

Name of Institutional

Shareholders Major Shareholders %
Excelsior Group Holdings Co., 31.20%
Ltd.
Xuan Hui Investment Co., Ltd. 22.86%
Wang Wei-Pin 21.90%
Long Bon International o
Indfstrial Co., Ltd. 8.00%
Excelsior Investment Co., Ltd. Wei Xiang Investment Co., Ltd. 6.73%
REIJU Construction Co Ltd. 2.00%
Hsueh Fu-Chuan 1.63%
Tsai Wen-Ching 1.06%
Liang Ming-Shu 1.06%
Wu Sheng-Zhong 1.06%
Fu Hui-Tun, 60.00%
EXCELSIOR GROUP HOLDINGS LTD. Wang Wei—I?in 20.00%
Fu Hui-Tung 69.20%
Xuan Hui Investment Co., Ltd. s\llla]r(l)g_lf/lsil;?ﬁng 38(7)2 Z/Z
Liao Mei-Hui 0.02%
Wang Wei-Pin 55.00%
Wei Xiang Investment Co., Ltd. Wang Chun-Hsiang 30.00%
Not Available (Note) 15.00%

Note: Only provide the partial shareholders because of non-public company.
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C.General Manager and Deputy General Manager

Unit: NT$ thousands

Ratio of Total
Title Name Stock | Cash | Total | Amount to Net
Income (%)
General Manager Chang Ming-Cheng
Manager |Deputy General Manager ~ |Wang Ming-Ting 0 5,850 | 5,850 0.88%
CFO Chou Cheng-Hsiao

Note : The latest amount of the manager’s employee remuneration as passed by the board of directors
(including shares and cash) in the latest year. Net profit after tax refers to the net after-tax profit for the
latest year. If the International Financial Reporting Standards have been adopted, then it is the net after-
tax profit of the individual company or the respective financial statement.

(5) Performance assessment and remuneration policy of directors and managers

The remuneration package provided by the company, as determined by the
Remuneration Committee's organizational regulations, includes cash compensation, stock
options, bonus shares, retirement benefits or severance payments, various allowances, and
other substantial incentive measures. The scope of these provisions aligns with the
guidelines on the disclosure of directors and managers remuneration outlined in the
annual report for publicly traded companies.

The performance evaluation of managers is based on the "Performance Assessment
and Remuneration Standards for Managers." The results of the performance assessment
serve as a reference for determining executive bonuses. The Remuneration Committee and
the Board of Directors conduct regular evaluations and reviews on an annual basis. In
addition to individual performance and contributions to the company, factors such as
overall operational performance, actual business conditions, level of involvement in
company operations, decision-making quality, job responsibilities, internal control
systems, and compliance with relevant laws and regulations are considered. The
remuneration policy is periodically reviewed to ensure that managers receive fair
compensation, striking a balance between sustainable business operations and risk
management.

The payment principles for remuneration are as follows:

According to Article 22 of our company's Articles of Incorporation, the remuneration
for directors' performance of their duties is authorized by the Board of Directors. The
remuneration is determined based on their level of involvement and contribution to the
company's operations, taking into consideration industry standards. Additionally, in
accordance with Article 25 of our company's Articles of Incorporation, if the company
generates profits in a given fiscal year, remuneration is allocated as stipulated. The Board
of Directors may allocate up to a maximum of 5% of the profits as remuneration for
directors.

The remuneration for our company's managers is determined based on
the "Performance Assessment and Remuneration Standards for Managers," taking into
account industry salary benchmarks. The remuneration reflects the managerial
responsibilities and aims to attract and retain outstanding professional management
talents. Additionally, if the company generates profits in a given fiscal year, as stipulated
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in Article 25 of our company's Articles of Incorporation, a minimum of 1% of the profits is
allocated for employee compensation.

The determination of remuneration in our company takes into consideration the
overall business risks, long-term profitability, and shareholder interests, using effective
indicators to assess the individual contributions of directors and managers. The actual
amount of remuneration paid to directors and managers for the year 2022 was reviewed
by the Remuneration Committee and submitted to the Board of Directors for approval.

3. Implementation of Corporate Governance
(1) Board of directors
A total of 7 meetings (A) of the Board of Directors were held in the previous period.
The attendance of directors were as follows:

Titl N Attendance By Proxy Attendance Rate Remarks
itle ame
in Person (B) (%) [B/A]
. . o Re-elected on
Chairman Fu Hui-Tung 7 0 100% June 21, 2022
Excelsior Group
. Holdings Co., Ltd. o Re-elected on
Director Representative: 7 0 100% June 21, 2022
Chen Tun-Ling
Excelsior Group
. Holdings Co., Ltd. o Re-elected on
Director Representative: 7 0 100% June 21, 2022
Chang Hsien-Cheng
. . . From the
- 0y
Director Wang Ming-Ting 2 0 100% previous term
. . o Re-elected on
Director Chang Ming-Cheng 5 0 100% June 21, 2022
. . o Re-elected on
Director Hsieh Yen-Sheng 6 1 86% June 21, 2022
. o Re-elected on
Director Fu Jo-Hsuan 7 0 100% June 21, 2022
Independent o Re-elected on
director Chang Wu-I 7 0 100% June 21, 2022
Independent . o Re-elected on
director Kuo Yu-Chia 7 0 100% June 21, 2022
Independent o From the
director Chan Tzu-Sheng 2 0 100% previous term
Independent . o Re-elected on
director Chan Chien-Lung 5 0 100% June 21, 2022
Other mentionable items:
1.If any of the following circumstances occur, the dates of the meetings, sessions, contents of
motion, all independent directors” opinions and the company’s response should be specified:
(1)Matters referred to in Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act: The Article 14-3 of the
Securities and Exchange Act is not be applicable because the Company has established the
Audit Committee. Please refer to the “Audit Committee” on page 38 of the Annual Report.
(2)Except for the matters listed in the preceding paragraph, other resolutions from the Board of]
Directors in which an Independent Director has a dissenting or qualified opinion that has
been recorded or documented: None.Please see page 86 for important resolutions from the
Board of Directors in the most recent year as well as the current year up to the date of
publication of the Annual Report.
2.If there are directors’ avoidance of motions in conflict of interest, the directors’ names, contents
of motion, causes for avoidance and voting should be specified:
(1) The 21th Meeting of the 12th term on March 11, 2022
i. Releasing the prohibition on managers from participation in competitive businesses.
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After the stakeholders (Director Wang Ming-Ting, General Manager Chang Ming-
Cheng and Chief Financial Officer Chou Cheng-Hsiao) left the meeting, the resolution
was approved by the chairman and all other Directors in attendance.

ii. The Company to provide contract performance guarantee for transacting
counterparty Bestchain Healthtaiwan Co., Ltd. The chairman authorized Director
Wang Ming-Ting to be the acting chairman. After the stakeholders (Directors Fu Hui-
Tung, Chang Hsien-Cheng and Fu Jo-Hsuan) left the meeting, the resolution was
approved by the acting chairman and all other Directors in attendance.

iii. The Company cancel to provide endorsements/guarantees for financing credit
extension of NT$100 million from Nanjing East Road Branch of Hua Nan Commercial
Bank on behalf of Bestchain Healthtaiwan Co., Ltd. The chairman authorized Director
Wang Ming-Ting to be the acting chairman. After the stakeholders (Directors Fu Hui-
Tung, Chang Hsien-Cheng and Fu Jo-Hsuan) left the meeting, the resolution was
approved by the acting chairman and all other Directors in attendance.

The 22th Meeting of the 12th term on May 6, 2022

i. The nomination of the candidate list for the 13th Board of Directors (including
independent directors) of the company was proposed. After the directors with
conflicting interests (Directors Fu Hui-Tung, Fu Jo-Hsuan, Chen Tun-Ling, Hsieh Yen-
Sheng, Chang Hsien-Cheng, Chang Wu-I, Kuo Yu-Chia, and General Manager Chang
Ming-Cheng) excused themselves from the relevant parts of the discussion, the
resolution was approved by the acting chairman and all other Directors in attendance.
(In the absence of the Chairman, Director Wang Ming-Ting was designated as the
acting Chairman)

ii. Reviewing the eligibility of the nominees for the 13th Board of Directors (including

independent directors). After the directors with conflicting interests (Directors Fu

Hui-Tung, Fu Jo-Hsuan, Chen Tun-Ling, Hsieh Yen-Sheng, Chang Hsien-Cheng,

Chang Wu-I, Kuo Yu-Chia, and General Manager Chang Ming-Cheng) excused

themselves from the relevant parts of the discussion, the resolution was approved by

the acting chairman and all other Directors in attendance. (In the absence of the

Chairman, Director Wang Ming-Ting was designated as the acting Chairman)

Releasing the prohibition on directors from participation in competitive businesses.

After the directors with conflicting interests (Directors Fu Hui-Tung, Fu Jo-Hsuan,

Chen Tun-Ling, Hsieh Yen-Sheng, Chang Hsien-Cheng, Chang Wu-I, Kuo Yu-Chia,

and General Manager Chang Ming-Cheng) excused themselves from the relevant

parts of the discussion, the resolution was approved by the acting chairman and all
other Directors in attendance. (In the absence of the Chairman, Director Wang Ming

Ting was designated as the acting Chairman)

iv. The proposal for the appointment and dismissal of the spokesperson and deputy
spokesperson. After the stakeholders (Director Wang Ming-Ting, General Manager
Chang Ming-Cheng and Chief Financial Officer Chou Cheng-Hsiao) left the meeting,
the resolution was approved by the chairman and all other Directors in attendance.

v. The proposal for the submission of the audit report and the authorization of daily
administrative management, including the remuneration and attendance of audit
personnel, to be presented to the board of directors for approval. After the
stakeholders (Directors Chang Hsien-Cheng, Wang Ming-Ting) left the meeting, the
resolution was approved by the chairman and all other Directors in attendance.

. The Company to revoke endorsements/guarantees for financing credit extension of
NT$100 million from Citibank Taiwan on behalf of Bestchain Healthtaiwan Co., Ltd.
The chairman authorized Director Wang Ming-Ting to be the acting chairman. After
the stakeholders (Directors Fu Hui-Tung, Chang Hsien-Cheng and Fu Jo-Hsuan) left
the meeting, the resolution was approved by the acting chairman and all other
Directors in attendance.

vii. Revising "Manager Performance Evaluation and Compensation Determination
Guidelines". After the stakeholders (Director Wang Ming-Ting) left the meeting, the
resolution was approved by the chairman and all other Directors in attendance.

The 2th Meeting of the 13th term on July 14, 2022

i. Appointment of members to the Remuneration Committee of the company. After the
directors with conflicting interests (Directors Chang Wu-I, Kuo Yu-Chia, and Chan
Chien-Lung) excused themselves from the relevant parts of the discussion, the

iii.

=

=

Vv
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ii.

resolution was approved by the chairman and all other Directors in attendance.

ii. The Company to provide contract performance guarantee for transacting

counterparty Bestchain Healthtaiwan Co., Ltd. and Excelsior Renal Service Co., Ltd.
The chairman authorized Director Chang Ming-Cheng to be the acting chairman.
After the stakeholders (Directors Fu Hui-Tung, Chang Hsien-Cheng and Fu Jo-Hsuan)
left the meeting, the resolution was approved by the acting chairman and all other
Directors in attendance.

The Company to provide endorsements/guarantees for financing credit extension of
NT$100 million from Cathay United Bank Industrial Finance Division, Region 2
Center on behalf of Bestchain Healthtaiwan Co., Ltd. The chairman authorized
Director Chang Ming-Cheng to be the acting chairman. After the stakeholders
(Directors Fu Hui-Tung, Chang Hsien-Cheng and Fu Jo-Hsuan) left the meeting, the
resolution was approved by the acting chairman and all other Directors in attendance.

iv. The proposal for the submission of the audit report and the authorization of daily

administrative management, including the remuneration and attendance of audit
personnel, to be presented to the board of directors for approval. After the
stakeholders (Director Chang Hsien-Cheng) left the meeting, the resolution was
approved by the chairman and all other Directors in attendance.

The 3th Meeting of the 13th term on August 4, 2022

i.

ii.

iii.

The Company to provide endorsements/guarantees for financing credit extension of
US$2.5 million from Citibank Taiwan on behalf of Renal Laboratories Sdn. Bhd. The
chairman authorized Director Chang Hsien-Cheng to be the acting chairman. After
the stakeholders (Directors Fu Hui-Tung, Chang Ming-Cheng and Fu Jo-Hsuan) left
the meeting, the resolution was approved by the acting chairman and all other
Directors in attendance.

The Company to provide endorsements/guarantees for financing credit extension of
US$0.5 million from Citibank Taiwan on behalf of Medi-Chem Systems Sdn. Bhd. The
chairman authorized Director Chang Hsien-Cheng to be the acting chairman. After
the stakeholders (Directors Fu Hui-Tung, Chang Ming-Cheng and Fu Jo-Hsuan) left
the meeting, the resolution was approved by the acting chairman and all other
Directors in attendance.

Reviewing and approving of the director’s remuneration in 2021. After the directors
with conflicting interests (Directors Fu Hui-Tung, Chang Hsien-Cheng, Chang Ming-
Cheng, Fu Jo-Hsuan, Chen Tun-Ling, Hsieh Yen-Sheng, Chang Wu-I, Kuo Yu-Chia
and Chan Chien-Lung ) excused themselves from the relevant parts of the discussion,
the resolution was approved by the acting chairman and all other Directors in
attendance. (In the absence of the Chairman, Director Wang Ming-Ting was
designated as the acting Chairman)

The 4th Meeting of the 13th term on November 4, 2022

i.

The Company to provide contract performance guarantee for transacting
counterparty Bestchain Healthtaiwan Co., Ltd. The chairman authorized Director
Chang Ming-Cheng to be the acting chairman. After the stakeholders (Directors Fu
Hui-Tung, Chang Hsien-Cheng and Fu Jo-Hsuan) left the meeting, the resolution was
approved by the acting chairman and all other Directors in attendance.

. The Company to provide endorsements/guarantees for financing credit extension of

NT$200 million from Taipei Branch of Taiwan Cooperative Bank on behalf of
Bestchain Healthtaiwan Co., Ltd. The chairman authorized Director Chang Ming-
Cheng to be the acting chairman. After the stakeholders (Directors Fu Hui-Tung,
Chang Hsien-Cheng and Fu Jo-Hsuan) left the meeting, the resolution was approved
by the acting chairman and all other Directors in attendance.

The 5th Meeting of the 13th term on December 22, 2022

i.

Reviewing and approving of the employees’ compensations for managers in 2021.
After the stakeholders (Director Chang Ming-Cheng) left the meeting, the resolution
was approved by the chairman and all other Directors in attendance.

. Reviewing and approving of year-end bonus for managers in 2022. After the

stakeholders (Director Chang Ming-Cheng) left the meeting, the resolution was
approved by the chairman and all other Directors in attendance.

Except for the preceding resolutions, no other motions in conflict of interest.

3. Implementation of the Board of Directors
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Evaluat Evaluation Scope of Method of

C;ZTGS Periods Evaluation | Evaluation Evaluation Content
Oncea | 2022/1/1- | Coverthe | Includingthe | (1)Evaluating the performance of the
year. | 2022/12/31 evaluation | overall board of directors:
of the operation of Including participation in the
boardasa | the board of operation of the company, the
whole, directors, quality of the board of directors’
individual | individual decision making, composition and
directors directors and structure of the board of directors,
and functional election and continuing education
functional | committees, of the directors and internal
committees.| and the control.
participation, | (2)Evaluating the performance of
awareness of individual directors:
the dutiesand|  Including alignment of the goals
continuing and missions of the company,
education of awareness of the duties of a
directorstobe|  director, participation in the
evaluated. operation of the company,

management of internal
relationship and communication,
the director’s professionalism and
continuing education and internal
control.

(3) Evaluating the performance of
functional committees:
Including participation in the
operation of the company,
awareness of the duties of the
functional committee,
improvement of quality of
decisions made by the fnctional
committee, makeup of the
functional committee and election
of its members and internal control.

The company completed the performance evaluations of the Board of Directors, individual

board members, the Remuneration Committee, and the Audit Committee in January of Year

2023. The evaluation results were reported during the Board meeting held on March 16th, Year

2023. The overall self-assessment score for the Board of Directors was 4.97, while the average

self-assessment score for individual board members was 4.96. All directors received positive

evaluations, indicating the effective functioning of the Board as a whole. The self-assessment
score for the Audit Committee was 5, indicating its excellent performance, and the self-
assessment score for the Remuneration Committee was 4.95, indicating its satisfactory

operation and ability to fulfill its duties. (The maximum score for all evaluations was 5.)

4. Measures taken to strengthen the functionality of the Board of Directors in the current year
and most recent year

(1) The Company has provided directors with relevant regulations periodically and has
reported the company's operational status during board meetings. On September 1, 2022,
Chief Financial Officer Chou Cheng-Hsiao, was appointed as the Corporate Governance
Officer to provide the Board with information related to consultation cases.

(2) The Company has completed the performance evaluation of the Board of Directors and
functional committees, and the self-evaluation of the Board of Directors for 2022, and
results of which have been submitted to the Board of Directors on March 16, 2023.

(3) The Company has amended the “Election Procedures for Board Directors” on March 11,
2022 to specify the criteria for the selection and appointment of directors are clearly
defined, and the overall configuration of the board of directors is considered.

(4) The Company has amended the “Regulations Governing the Evaluation of the Performance
of the Board of Directors,” “Rules Governing the Scope of Powers of Independent Directors,”
“ Audit Committee Charter” and “Remuneration Committee Charter” on March 12, 2021 to
specify the performance evaluation content of the Board of Directors and members.
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(2) Audit committee
The Audit Committee of the company consists of three independent directors. The purpose
of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilities regarding the quality and integrity of the company's accounting, auditing,
financial reporting processes, and financial controls.
The matters reviewed by the Audit Committee primarily include:

@ O PN U A WN -

. Internal control systems and related policies and procedures.

. Financial statement audits and accounting policies and procedures.

. Significant acquisitions or disposals of assets.

. Significant endorsements or guarantees.

. Fundraising or issuance of securities.

. Qualifications, independence, and suitability of auditors.

. Appointment or compensation of auditors.

. Performance of duties by the Audit Committee.

. Self-assessment questionnaire for evaluating the performance of the Audit Committee.

Reviewing financial reports

The Board of Directors has prepared the annual business report, financial statements,
and profit distribution proposal for 2022. The financial statements have been audited by
the appointed accounting firm, KPMG, and an audit report has been issued. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the aforementioned business report, financial statements, and
profit distribution proposal and determined that there are no significant discrepancies.
Assessing the effectiveness of the internal control system

The Audit Committee has evaluated the effectiveness of the company's internal control
system, including policies and procedures related to financial, operational, risk
management, information security, outsourcing, compliance with laws and regulations,
and other control measures. The committee has reviewed the audit department,
auditors, and management's regular reports, including risk management and
compliance with laws and regulations. The Audit Committee considers the company's
risk management and internal control system to be effective. The company has
implemented necessary control mechanisms to monitor and rectify any non-compliant
behavior.

Appointment of the external auditors

The Audit Committee is entrusted with the responsibility of overseeing the
independence of the external auditing firm to ensure the fairness of the financial
statements. Generally, except for tax-related services or specifically approved
engagements, the auditing firm is not permitted to provide any other services to our
company. All services provided by the auditing firm require approval from the Audit
Committee.

To ensure the independence of the auditing firm, the Audit Committee has developed an
independence assessment form based on Article 47 of the Accountants Act and Bulletin
No. 10 of the Code of Professional Ethics for Accountants, which addresses "Integrity,
Objectivity, Fairness, and Independence." The assessment evaluates the independence,

professionalism, and suitability of the auditors, considering factors such as whether they

have any relationships, business interests, or financial interests with the company. On May

6,

2022, during the 19th meeting of the 2nd term of the Audit Committee and the 22th
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meeting of the 12th term of the Board of Directors, it was determined that both Wu Tsao-
Jen and Lin Wan-Wan from KPMG met the criteria of the independence assessment and
are qualified to serve as the financial auditors for our company.

A total of 6 Audit Committee meetings (A) were held in the previous period. The
attendance of the independent directors was as follows :

Attendance
Attendance R K
Title Name By Proxy Rate (%) emarks
in Person (B)
[B/A]
Independent . o Re-elected on
director Chang Wu-Yi 6 0 100% June 21, 2022
Independent . o Re-elected on
director Kuo Yu-Chia 6 0 100% | june 21, 2022
Inde_pendent Chan Tzu-Sheng 2 0 100% From the
director previous term
Independent . o Re-elected on
director Chan Chien-Lung 4 0 100% June 21, 2022

Other mentionable items:
1. 1f any of the following circumstances, the dates of the meetings, sessions, contents of motion, Audit
Committee’s resolutions and the Company’s response to the Audit Committee’s opinion should be specified:
(1) For items listed in Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act: Please see the below table.
(2)Except the items in the preceding issues, other resolutions which was not approved by the Audit Committee
but approved by two-thirds of all Board of Directors members: None.

For items listed in Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act

The Company’s

Audit committee
Session and Date

Content

Resolution of
the Audit
Committee

Response to the
Opinions of the
Audit
Committee

18th
meeting
of the
2nd
term

2022.03.11

1.Preparation 2021 Internal Control System Statement of
the Company.

2.The Company’s 2021 Financial Statements.

3.The Company’s 2021 earnings distribution proposal.

4.The Company to issue new shares for capital increase
by earnings recapitalization.

5.Proposal of amendment of “The Company’s Articles of
Incorporation.”

6.Proposal of amendment of “Assets Acquisition or
Disposition Procedures.”

7.Proposal of amendment of “Endorsement and
Guarantee Procedures”

8.Proposal of amendment of “Corporate Governance Best

Internal major information

"o

Practices Principles”,
processing operational procedures” and “Internal
Control System.”

9.Proposal of amendment of “Procedures for Election of
Directors”

10.Proposal of amendment of the Company’s “approved

authority hierarchy.”

11.The Company to provide endorsements/guarantees
for new financing credit of USD $1 million from Manila
Branch of First Commercial Bank on behalf of EG
Healthcare, Inc.

12.The Company to provide contract performance
guarantee for transacting counterparty Bestchain

Healthtaiwan Co., Ltd.

Approved by
the Audit
Committee and
submitted to the
Board of
Directors for
approval.

All motions were
unanimously
approved by all
attending
Directors without
dissidence.

39



13.The Company cancel to provide
endorsements/ guarantees for financing credit extension
of NT$100 million from Nanjing East Road Branch of
Hua Nan Commercial Bank. on behalf of Bestchain
Healthtaiwan Co., Ltd.

1.Proposal of the evaluation results for the independence
and suitability of the Company’s CPA.

2.The 2022 Q1 consolidated financial report.

3.Proposal of amendment of “Rules of Procedure for

The Shareholders’ Meetings.” Approved by All motions were
19%h 4.Proposal of amendment of “Corporate Governance Best |the Audit unanimously
meeting Practices Principles.” Committee and approved by all
of the 2022.05.06(5.The Company to provide endorsements/ guarantees for |submitted to the attending
ond financing credit extension of NT$100 million from Board of Directors without
term CitiBank Taiwan on behalf of Bestchain Healthtaiwan  |Directors for dissidence
Co., Ltd. approval. '
6. The Company cancel to provide
endorsements/ guarantees for financing credit extension
of NT$10 million from Taipei Branch of Taiwan
Cooperative Bank on behalf of Bestsmile Co., Ltd.
1.The Company to provide contract performance
uarantee for transacting counterparty Bestchain Approved b .
The I%Iealthtaiwan Co., Ltd. fnd Excels},)ior ﬁenal Service thzl:/)%udit Y Al mononslwere
melestting Co., Ltd. Committee and :;‘::;I\?e?;;]all
of the 2022.07.14{2.The Company to provide endorsements/ guarantees for |submitted to the attending
3rd new financing credit of NT$100 million from Corporate |Board of Directors without
term Banking Division of Industrial Finance II Regional Directors for dissidence
Center of Cathay United Bank on behalf of Bestchain  |approval. '
Healthtaiwan Co., Ltd.
1.Routine review of the 2022 CPA audit fee.
2.The 2022 Q2 consolidated financial report.
3.The Company to provide endorsements/guarantees for
new financing credit of NT$150 million from Corporate
Banking Division of Industrial Finance II Regional
Center of Cathay United Bank on behalf of Excelsior
The Asset Management Co., Ltd. Approved by All motions were
2nde 4.The Company to provide endorsements/guarantees for |the Audit unanimously
meeting new financing credit of US$2.5million from Citibank on |Committee and approved by all
of the 2022.08.04| behalf of Renal Laboratories Sdn. Bhd.. submitted to the attending
3rd 5.The Company to provide endorsements/guarantees for |Board of Directors without
term new financing credit of US$0.5million from Citibank on [Directors for dissidence
behalf of Medi-Chem Systems Sdn. Bhd.. approval. '
6.The Company to provide endorsements/ guarantees for
new financing credit of peso $50 million from Manila
Branch of Cathay United Bank on behalf of EG
Healthcare, Inc.
7 Proposal of amendment of the Company’s “approved
authority hierarchy.”
1.The 2022 Q3 consolidated financial report.
2.To establish the Company’s 2023 audit plan.
3.The Company to provide contract performance Approved by .
g‘; guarantee for transacting counterparty Bestchain the Audit in]larnn;t:g:;;vere
meeting Healthtaiwan Co., Ltd.. Committee and approved by all
of the 2022.11.044.The Company to provide endorsements/guarantees for |submitted to the attending
3rd financing credit extension of NT$200 million from Board of Directors without
term Taipei Branch of Taiwan Cooperative Bank on behalf of |Directors for dissidence
Bestchain Healthtaiwan Co., Ltd. approval. ’

5.The Company to provide endorsements/ guarantees for
new financing credit of NT$50 million from Nanjing
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East Road Branch of Hua Nan Bank on behalf of
Excelsior Asset Management Co., Ltd.

6. The company intends to upgrade the JDE ERP system
in order to accommodate the growth of operations and
optimize business efficiency.

1.Proposed change of the company's CPA.
2.The Company’s 2023 budget report.

The 3.The Company to provide endorsements/ guarantees for Approve'zd by All motions were
. . . s . the Audit .
4th new financing credit of NT$370 million from Taipei Committee and unanimously
meeting Branch of Taiwan Cooperative Bank on behalf of ommitieea approved by all
20221222 . submitted to the .

of the Excelsior Asset Management Co., Ltd. attending

3rd Board of . .

T 4. Proposed development of the company's "Pre-approval Directors for Directors without
term of Non-Assurance Services Policy". dissidence.
approval.

5.Proposal of amendment of “Internal Control System,
“Internal Audit System” and management regulations.

2. If there are independent directors” avoidance of motions in conflict of interest, the directors’ names, contents

of motion, causes for avoidance and voting should be specified: None.

3. Communications between the independent directors, the Company’s chief internal auditor and CPAs (e.g. the

items, methods and results of audits of corporate finance or operations, etc.):

Communication matters between independent directors, chief internal auditor, and CPAs in the year 2022.

Principles of communication between the independent directors, chief internal auditor and CPAs:

1. Hold separate meetings with chief internal auditor and CPAs at least twice a year to discuss the findings of
internal audit reports and external audit opinions, as well as to address any deficiencies identified during
the audits. The current communication situation is satisfactory.

2. Inaddition to regular updates on audit status and follow-up reports, the independent directors also receive
important audit reports on the company and its subsidiaries directly from chief internal auditor. Adequate
communication has taken place regarding the execution and effectiveness of audits.

3. CPAsarrange separate meetings with the independent directors to report on the audit of financial statements,
compliance with corporate governance practices, and updates on relevant regulations.

Communication matters with chief internal auditor

C icati
Meeting date Attendees Communication matters ommunication
outcome
Independent Director: Chan Tzu-Sheng
2022.03.11 Independent Director:Chang Wu-I Audit status of overseas No further
o Independent Director: Kuo Yu-Chia subsidiaries comments
Chief Internal Auditor : LIUHSIN-YEN
Independent Director :Chang Wu-I L iiii;?;i::: of overseas
Ind dent Director: Kuo Yu-Chi No furth
2022.07.14 neepencent recior: o Tum-ia 2. Report and discussion O further
Independent Director: Chan Chien-Lung on audit content for the comments
Chief Internal Auditor : LIUHSIN-YEN
second half of the year
Communication matters with CPAs
Meeting date Attendees Communication matters Communication
outcome
Independent dlfector:Chan Tzu-Sheng 1Key audit matters
Independent Director :Chang Wu-I . o No further
2022.03.11 R X 2.Audit quality indicators
Independent Director: Kuo Yu-Chia AQI) comments
CPA : WU,CHAO-JEN (
1.Ind d f
Independent Director :Chang Wu-I n eliez encrev?
Independent Director: Kuo Yu-Chia 2 ]; SST : tcieze ¢ ﬁcisn ial No further
2022.08.04 Independent Director: Chan Chien-Lung ’ :pta 4 f N " ta i o f
CPA @ LINWAN-WAN 3 Z a;:n enal'ct0 nirfgicators .
CPA : WU,CHAO-JEN : (XQ‘I)q“ e
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Communication

Meeting date Attendees Communication matters
outcome
Independent Director :Chang Wu-I L Iq::jie;ie;iii;
2022.11.04 Independent D%rector: Kuo Yu-('lhla Key audit matters No further
Independent Director: Chan Chien-Lung comments

CPA : WU,CHAO-JEN

3. Regulation update
report
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Note 1
Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd.

Evaluation of the Independence and Competence of CPAs

Evaluation Indicators ‘ Yes ‘ No

Effect on independence from self-interest
(refers to acquiring financial interests from an audit client or has a conflict of interest with audit
client through other interests or relationships with the client)

The certified public accountant (CPA) doesn’t hold securities from the Company or
its related companies.

The Company doesn’t have a direct or indirect material financial interest with the CPA. v

The Company doesn’t have a material and intimate business relationship with the CPA.

<

The Company doesn’t have a potential employment relationship with the CPA.

Effect on independence from self-review

(Refers to reports or judgments submitted by the CPA for non-auditing services which constitute
important basis in the audit or review process of financial information; or if a member of the
audit service team had once served as the Company's director, supervisor, or a position in the
Company with significant influence over the audited case)

The original data isn’t prepared by the CPA used toward material or significant
items for assurance engagement.

The CPA audit service team members haven’t served or had served within the past
two years as the Company's directors, supervisors, managers, or other positions \4
that could seriously impact the audit.

The non-audit services performed by the CPA or its firm directly don’t affect a
material item of the audit.

Effect of advocacy on independence
(refers to when a member of the audit team acts as an advocate in support of the audit client's
position or opinion, resulting in the CPA's objectivity being challenged)

The CPA hasn’t advocated or mediated shares or other securities issued by the
Company.

Except for legally authorized business, the CPA hasn’t made defense on behalf of
the Company for legal cases or other disputes with any other third party.

Effect of familiarity on independence

(refers to a close relationship with either the director, supervisor, or manager of the audit client,
influencing a CPA or a member of the audit service team to be excessively concerned or
sympathize with the audit client's interest)

A member of the audit service team isn’t a family member or relative of the
Company's director, supervisor, or manager, or any other person in a position that | v
could materially impact the audit.

The CPA, who is a former partner from the firm, hasn’t joined the Company as a
director, supervisor, manager, or in a key position to exert material influence over \4
the audit within one year of disassociating from the firm.

The CPA hasn’t accepted gifts of material value or preferential treatment from the
Company's director, supervisors, managers, or substantial shareholders.

Effect on independence from threat.

(refers to actual or perceived pressures, including attempts to exercise undue influence over
members of the audit team and causing the members to be deterred from acting objectively or to
clarify professional doubt)

The CPA and its firm hasn’t been threatened with litigation by the Company. v

The CPA hasn’t provided audit assurance for the same company for seven
consecutive years.

The CPA hasn’t been threatened with dismissal from a client engagement. v

The Company hasn’t put pressure of reducing fees on any CPA to inappropriately

contract the extent of the audit work performed. v

The CPA has issued a Statement of Independence? v

Evaluation |[All of the aforementioned evaluation indicators comply with independence
results and competence.
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(4) Composition, responsibilities, and operation of the Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee assists the Board in discharging its responsibilities

relating to the Company’s compensation and benefits policies, plans and programs,
and the evaluation of the directors’ and executives’ compensation.

A. Members of the Remuneration Committee

Condition Number of
Professional Companies
Qualifications and Independence Analysis | Concurrently Serve
Name and Experiences as an Remuneration
identity (Note 1) Committee Member
Independent Inlcompliance with t}}e
. ~ relevant provisions o
Director Chang Wu-I Please refer to Article 6 of None
Convener “2.(1).A Director” in |the " Regulations
the annual report for | Governing the
Independent Kuo Yu-Chi professional Appointment and Exercise
Director U0 YUu-LMA o yalifications and of Powers by the None
experiences of Remuneration Committee
Independent of a Company Whose Stock
Independent | Chan Chien- |Director. (Page 23) |is Listed on the Taiwan
Director Lung Stock Exchange or the None
Taipei Exchange "

Note 1: None of the Board members is under any of the circumstances in Article 30 of the Company Act.
Note 2: During the two years before being elected and during the term of office, meet any of the following situations:

(1) Not an employee of the Company or any of its affiliates.

(2) Not a director or supervisor of the Company or any of its affiliates. Not applicable in cases where the person is an
independent director appointed in accordance with the laws and regulations of the local country by, and
concurrently serving as such at, a company and its parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent.

(3) Not a natural-person shareholder who holds shares, together with those held by the person’s spouse, minor
children, or held by the person under others’ names, in an aggregate of 1% or more of the total number of
outstanding shares of the Company or ranking in the top 10 in holdings.

(4) A spouse, relative within the second degree of kinship, or lineal relative within the third degree of kinship, of a
managerial officer under subparagraph 1 or any of the persons in the preceding two subparagraphs.

(5) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of a corporate shareholder that directly holds 5% or more of the total
number of issued shares of the company, or that ranks among the top five in shareholdings, or that designates its
representative to serve as a director or supervisor of the company under Article 27, paragraph 1 or 2 of the
Company Act. But not applicable in cases where the person is an independent director appointed in accordance
with the laws and regulations of the local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, a company and its
parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent.

(6) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of that other company that the company’s director seats or voting shares
and those of any other company are controlled by the same person. But not applicable in cases where the person
is an independent director appointed in accordance with the laws and regulations of the local country by, and
concurrently serving as such at, a company and its parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent.

(7) Not a director (or governor), supervisor, or employee of that other company or institution that a chairperson,
general manager, or person holding an equivalent position of the company and a person in any of those positions
at another company or institution are the same person or are spouses. But not applicable in cases where the person
is an independent director appointed in accordance with the laws and regulations of the local country by, and
concurrently serving as such at, a company and its parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent.

(8) Not a director, supervisor, officer, or shareholder holding 5% or more of the shares, of a specified company or
institution which has a financial or business relationship with the Company. But not applicable in cases where the
person holds 20 percent or more and no more than 50 percent of the total number of issued shares of the Company
or is an independent director appointed in accordance with the laws and regulations of the local country by, and
concurrently serving as such at, a company and its parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent.

(9) Not a professional individual who, or an owner, partner, director, supervisor, or officer of a sole proprietorship,
partnership, company, or institution that, provides auditing services to the company or any affiliate of the
company, or that provides commercial, legal, financial, accounting or related services to the company or any
affiliate of the company for which the provider in the past 2 years has received cumulative compensation
exceeding NT$500,000, or a spouse thereof; provided, this restriction does not apply to a member of the
remuneration committee, public tender offer review committee, or special committee for merger/consolidation
and acquisition, who exercises powers pursuant to the Act or to the Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act or
related laws or regulations.
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B. Members of the Remuneration Committee
a. There are three members in the Remuneration Committee
b. The term of office for current members runs from 14 July 2022 through 20 June
2025 As of publication of the Annual Report, there had been a total of four
meetings (A) of the RemunerationCommittee over the past fiscal year. Member
attendance is detailed as below:

. Attendance Attendance
Title Name in Person(B) By Proxy Rate (B/A) Remark
Re-elected
Convener Chang Wu-I 4 0 100% on July 14,
2022
Chan Tzu- Frorr} the
Convener 2 0 100% previous
Sheng
term
Committee Re-elected
Kuo Yu-Chia 2 0 100% on July 14,
Member
2022
C it From the
OMIMILEE | ghih Mei-Hui 2 0 100% previous
Member
term
. . Re-elected
Committee Chan Chien- 2 0 100% on July 14,
Member Lung 2022

Other mentionable items:

(a) If the board of directors declines to adopt or modifies a recommendation of the
remuneration committee, it should specify the date of the meeting, session,
content of the motion, resolution by the board of directors, and the Company’s
response to the remuneration committee’s opinion (eg., the remuneration passed
by the Board of Directors exceeds the recommendation of the remuneration
committee, the circumstances and cause for the difference shall be specified):
None.

(b) Resolutions of the remuneration committee objected to by members or expressed
reservations and recorded or declared in writing, the date of the meeting, session,
content of the motion, all members’ opinions and the response to members’
opinion should be specified: None.

¢) Operations of the Remuneration Committee in the most recent year:

The Company’s
Remuneration handling of the
Committee Session Content Resolution opinion of the
and Date remuneration
committee members
All motions were
The 1.Oth The distribution of employees’ Approved by unanimously
Meeting . . , |the
. 2022.03.11 | compensations and Directors . |approved by all
in the 4th . Remuneration . :
remuneration for 2021. . attending directors
term Committee. . -
without dissidence.
The 11th " Approved by All m.otlons were
Meetin The amendment “Performance the unanimously
. 8 | 2022.05.06 | Evaluation and Compensation . approved by all
in the 4th . L Remuneration . K
Guidelines for Managers”. . attending directors
term Committee. . o
without dissidence.
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1. The distribution of directors’
remuneration in 2021.
2. The amendment

All motions were

E};:;t “Performance Evaluation and ;Eproved by unanimously
. S | 2022.08.04 Compensation Guidelines for . approved by all
in the 5th W Remuneration . ?
term Managers”. Committee attending directors
3. The appointment proposal for : without dissidence.
the Corporate Governance
Officer
1.The distribution of employees’
The 2nd compensations for managers in Approved by All motions were
Meetin 2021. the unanimously
. 8 | 2022.12.22 [2. The distribution of year-end . approved by all
in the 5th . Remuneration . :
bonus for managers in 2022. . attending directors
term Committee.

3. The compensation adjustment
proposal for CFO

without dissidence.
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(9) Internal control systems
A. Statement of internal control system

Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd.
Statement of Internal Control System

Date: March 16, 2023

Based on the findings of self-assessment, the Company states the following with regard to its internal

control system during the year 2022:

I

VL

The Company fully understands that the establishment, implementation, and maintenance of
Internal Control System (ICS) are the responsibilities of the Company's Board of Directors and
managers, and have established the said system accordingly. The internal control system is
designed to provide reasonable assurance for the effectiveness and efficiency of the operations
(including profitability, performance and protection of assets), reliability, timeliness, and
transparency of reporting, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

AL ICS are bound by natural limitations and regardless of the robustness of designs, effective
ICS can only provide reasonable assurance for the three objectives listed above.Efficacy of the
ICS will also change with the changing environment or context. However, the ICS of the
Company has self-monitoring mechanisms in place, and the Company will take corrective
action against any defects identified.

The Company will refer to the Regulations Governing Establishment of Internal Control
Systems by Public Companies (hereinafter referred to as “ICS Regulations” ) to identify
assessment items for determining the effectiveness of ICS as well as the performance of design
and implementation of the system. Based on the process of control, the assessment items
specified in the Regulations divide the internal control system into five constituent elements:
1.control environment; 2. risk assessment; 3. control activities; 4. information and
communications; and 5. monitoring activities. Each constituent element includes a certain
number of items. For more information on such items, refer to the Regulations.

The Company has evaluated the design and operating effectiveness of its internal control system
according to the aforesaid Regulations.

Based on the findings of the evaluation mentioned in the preceding paragraph, the Company
believes that as of December 31, 2022 its internal control system (including its supervision and
management of subsidiaries), encompassing internal controls for knowledge of the degree of
achievement of operational effectiveness and efficiency objectives, reliability of reporting, and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, is effectively designed and operating, and
reasonably assures the achievement of the above-stated objectives.

This statement will constitute the main content of the Company's Annual Report and the
Prospectus and will be disclosed to the public. Any falsehood or concealment with regard to the
above contents will entail legal liability under Articles 20, 32, 171 and 174 of the Securities and
Exchange Act.

This statement has been approved on March 16, 2023, by the Board and out of the nine (9) Board
members in attendance, none had objected to the statement and all consented to the content

expressed herein.

EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD.
Chairman : Fu Hui-Tung

General Manager : Chang Ming-Cheng
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B. If CPA has been hired to carry out a special audit of the internal control system, the
company shall furnish the CPA audit report: None.

(10)Conviction of corporate or employees’ wrongdoings, Company’s punishmenton
employee for violation of internal control, major faults and improve mentsduring from
last year up to the time of report publication: None.

(11)Major resolutions of the shareholders meeting and board of directors meeting from last
year up to the time of report publication:

A. Major resolutions of the shareholders meeting

exceeded two-thirds of all voting rights, and the
motion is passed without amendment.

Classifi Major . . Implementation
. Date jo Resolution of the Shareholders Meeting P
cation Resolutions Status
Voting results: 88,899,949 ballots in favor; 96.11%
(including 8,395,445 ballots submitted through e-
1.Adoption of the ;f;té;z%b); 3/7:37 bsllqﬁ zgtaﬁnst; h0»01 %t‘(mc}gd;gfm Approved by
Company’s 2021 | allots submitte Tough €-vo mg)ﬁ o resolution of the
N . ballots forfeit/did not vote; 3.88% (including ,
financial 3,584,332 ballots submitted through e-voting); 0 | Shareholders
statements. void ballots; 0%. Ballots in favor have exceeded Meeting.
one-half of all voting rights, and the motion is
passed without amendment.
. : The
Voting results: 89,022,663 ballots in favor; 96.25% 3
(including 8,518,159 ballots submitted through e- ihal;i};oelgeﬂx;se’Meehng
2.Adoption of the ;(;tér;gb), 3[787 bzllqts zzigaﬁ?st; h0.0l% '(mql;ilgigmg d}ijspfzribution of
roposal for ! allots submitted through e-vo tlng),' T INT$494,021,395 of
p‘ o ballots forfeit/did not vote; 3.74% (including cash diV’idel’,ldS or
distribution of 3,461,618 ballots submitted through e-voting); 0 ’
. & 8 NT$3.5 per share.
2021 profits. void ballots; 0%. Ballots in favor have exceeded The distribution was
one-half of all voting rights, and the motion is completed on August
passed without amendment. 4, 2052‘ g
The
Voting results: 89,001,886 ballots in favor; 96.23% Shareholders' Meeting
. (including 8,497,382 ballots submitted through e- approved the
Sharehol 3. Issuing new voting); 30,559 ballots against; 0.03% (including | gistribution of
areol] »opp. |  shares for capital | 30,559 ballots submitted through e-voting); NT$70574.490 of
der§ 0621 | increase by 3,461,624 ballots forfeit/did not vote; 3.74% o
Meeting carnings (including 3,461,623 ballots submitted through e- | Stock dividends, or
recapitalization. voting); 0 void ballots; 0%. Ballots in favor have NTS$0.5 per share.

The distribution was
completed on

October 20, 2022.
Voting results: 89,018,771 ballots in favor; 96.24% A db
(including 8,514,267 ballots submitted through e- pproved by
4. Amending part | voting); 14,306 ballots against; 0.02% (including resolution of the
of the articles of | 14,306 ballots submitted through e-voting); Shareholders’
the Company's 3,460,992 ballots forfeit/did not vote; 3.74% Meeting and the

“ Articles of
Incorporation”.

(including 3,460,991 ballots submitted through -
voting); 0 void ballots; 0%. Ballots in favor have
exceeded two-thirds of all voting rights, and the
motion is passed without amendment.

registration was
completed on July
11, 2022.

5. Amending part
of the articles of
the Company's
“Procedures for
Election of
Directors”.

Voting results: 89,016,569 ballots in favor; 96.24%
(including 8,512,065ballots submitted through e-
voting); 14,508 ballots against; 0.02% (including
14,508 ballots submitted through e-voting);
3,462,992 ballots forfeit/did not vote; 3.74%
(including 3,462,991 ballots submitted through -
voting); 0 void ballots; 0%. Ballots in favor have
exceeded one-half of all voting rights, and the
motion is passed without amendment.

Approved by
resolution of the
Shareholders
Meeting.
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Classifi Major . . Implementation
. Date jo Resolution of the Shareholders Meeting P
cation Resolutions Status
6. Amending part | Voting results: 89,017,726 ballots in favor; 96.24%
of the articles of | (including 8,513,222 ballots submitted through e-
the Company's voting); 14,350 ballqts against; 0.02% (ipcluding Approved by
“Operational 14,350 ballots submitted through e-voting); resolution of the
P 3,461,993 ballots forfeit/did not vote; 3.74% ,
PrOCe'dT,lFeS for (including 3,461,992 ballots submitted through e- Shargholders
Acquisition and voting); 0 void ballots; 0%. Ballots in favor have Meeting.
Disposal of exceeded one-half of all voting rights, and the
Assets”. motion is passed without amendment.
7. Amending part | Voting results: 89,019,525 ballots in favor; 96.24%
of the articles of | (including 8,515,021 ballots submitted through e-
the Company's voting); 13,551 ballqts against; 0.02% (ipcluding Approved by
“Operational 13,551 ballots submitted through e-voting); resolution of the
P 3,460,993 ballots forfeit/did not vote; 3.74% ,
Procedures for | (including 3,460,992 ballots submitted through e- | Shareholders
Endorsements voting); 0 void ballots; 0%. Ballots in favor have Meeting.
and exceeded one-half of all voting rights, and the
Guarantees”. motion is passed without amendment.
8. A di ¢ Voting results: 89,017,490 ballots in favor; 96.24%
- Amen m'g par (including 8,512,986 ballots submitted through e-
of the articles of | yoting); 14,587 ballots against; 0.02% (including Approved by
the Company's | 14,587 ballots submitted through e-voting); resolution of the
“Rules of 3,461,992 ballots forfeit/did not vote; 3.74% Hareh ,
Procedure for (including 3,461,991 ballots submitted through e- i’/{are_ olders
Sharehol hareholders’ voting); 0 void ballots; 0%. Ballots in favor have eeting.
/ 202, | S areho c/i/ers exceeded one-half of all voting rights, and the
ders’ Meetings”. o i
. 06.21 motion is passed without amendment.
Mecting The appointment of
9.Flect the 13th- e app
term directors nine directors,
) . The appointment of nine directors, including three |including three
(including . . .
) independent directors. independent
independent N
. directors, was
directors).
completed.
Voting results: 85,367,606 ballots in favor; 92.30%
10. Release the (including 4,863,102 ballots submitted through e-
prohibition on voting); 3,598,780 ballo_'ts against; 3.89% (il_ncluding Approved by
directors from 3,598,780 ballots submitted through e-voting); resolution of the
T 3,527,683 ballots forfeit/did not vote; 3.81% ,
parthlRaFan 1 (including 3,527,682 ballots submitted through e- Share%holders
competition voting); 0 void ballots; 0%. Ballots in favor have Meeting.
businesses. exceeded two-thirds of all voting rights, and the

motion is passed without amendment.
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(12)Where, during the most recent fiscal year or during the current fiscal year up to the date
of publication of the annual report, a director or supervisor has expressed a dissenting
opinion with respect to a resolution approved by the board of directors, and said
dissenting opinion has been recorded or prepared as a written declaration, disclose the
principal content thereof: None.

(13)A summary of resignations and dismissals, during the most recent fiscal year or during
the current fiscal year up to the date of publication of the annual report, of the
Company’s chairman, general manager, principal accounting officer, principal financial
officer, chief internal auditor, and principal research and development officer: None.

4. Information on Fees to CPA

Unit: NT$ thousands

Name of
. Name of Audit . Non-audit fee
Accogntmg CPA Period Audit fee (Note ) Total Remarks
Firm

Wu Tsao- | 2022.01.01-

Jen 2022.12.31
KPMG Lin Wan- | 2022.01.01-

Internationall Wan | 2022.0930 | >80 1,974 3,334 None

Chen Jun- | 2022.10.01-

Guang 2022.12.31

Note: Non-audit fees were NT$1974 in thousands, and included the following items:
(1) Review of transfer pricing; (2) salary information checklist; (3) verification of direct tax deductions
for business tax for concurrent businesspersons; (4) litigation representation in import goods

taxation disputes; (5) CPA’s opinion for issuing new shares for capital increase by earnings
recapitalization.

5. Replacement of CPA: the company changed its accountant in the fourth
quarter 2022 due to an internal organizational
restructuring within the accounting firm.

6. The Company’s Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
and managers in charge of its finance and accounting operations did not

hold any positions in the Company’s independent auditing firm or its
affiliates in the past year: None.
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7. Any Transfer of Equity Interests and/or Pledge of or Change in Equity
Interests by a Director, Supervisor, Managerial Officer; or Shareholder with
a Stake of More than 10 Percent during the Most Recent Fiscal Year or
during the Current Fiscal Year up to the Date of Publication of the Annual
Report:
(1) Changes in Shareholding of directors, supervisors, managers, and major shareholders

Unit: shares

2022 As of May 4, 2023
. Pledged . Pledged
Title Name Eziig;% Holding ﬁiﬁgg Holding
(Decrease) Increase (Decrease) Increase
(Decrease) (Decrease)
Chairman Fu Hui-Tung 23,499 0 0 0
e | Excelsior Group 749,843 0 0 0
shareholder Holdings Co., Ltd.
- Excelsior Group
T ireor " | Holdings Co, Lid. 27,325 0 0 0
representative Representative: 4
P Chen Tun-Ling
Juristic-person PP’i;"?ISiorCGrOE%
: oldings Co., Ltd.
dlrECttO 1; Representative: 15,750 0 0 0
representative Chang Hsien-Cheng
Director and . X
vice gerenal Wangi}\/l tnzg'ng 3,171 0 0 0|
manager (Note2)
Director and Chang Ming-Cheng
gerenal manager (Note3) 7,751 0 0 0
Director Hsieh Yen-Sheng 32,060 0 0
Director Fu Jo-Hsuan 5,000 0 0 0|
Indepent
Director Chang Wu-I 0 0 0 0
Indepent Kuo Yu-Chia 0 0 0 0
Director
Indepent Chan Tzu-Sheng
Director (Note2) 0 0 0 0
Indepent Chan Chien-Lung 0 0 0 0
Director (Note3)
CFO and CGO | Chou Cheng-Hsiao 2,395 0 0 0
Major Excelsior Investment
shareholder Co., Ltd. 788,672 0 0 0

Note 1: Shareholders with more than 10% of the Company’s shares shall be listed as major shareholders.
Note 2: A director on previous term on June 21, 2022. The calculation period for shareholding is from
January 1, 2022, to June 21, 2022.
Note 3: A director on new term on June 21, 2022. The calculation period for shareholding is from June
21, 2022, to May 4, 2023.

(2) Information on equity transfer or equity pledge: None.
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8. Information on Relationship between any of the Top Ten Shareholders
As of April 23,2023(Last Record Date)

Spouse’s/minor Shareholdin: Name and Relationship Between the | R
Current pouse cmng Company’s Top Ten Shareholders, or | ¢
Shareholdin; S by Nominee Spouses or Relatives Within Two

& Shareholding Arra t P m|

d Degrees a

Name N
Shares % Shares % Shares % Name Relation k

s

1. Excelsior 1. Investment

Group company to

Holdings Excelsior Investment

Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. accounted

And Xuan for using equity

. Hui method.
Excelsior Investment
Investment Co., 16,562,126 | 11.18% 0 0 0 0| Co.,Ltd.
Ltd 2. Bestchain 2. Investee of

Healthtaiw Bestchain

an Co., Ltd Healthtaiwan Co.,
Ltd. accounted for
using equity
method.

1.Excelsior 1. Serves as a Director
Group of Excelsior Group
Holdings Holdings Co., Ltd.
Chairman : 105000 | 0.07% 0 0 0 0 |oBescam | 2 Serves asa Director
FUJO-HSUAN Healthtaiwa|  of Bestchain

n Co., Ltd Healthtaiwan Co.,

Ltd.
1.Excelsior 1. Investee of Excelsior

Investment Investment Co. ,

Co., Ltd Ltd. accounted for
using equity
method.

2.Bestchain 2. Investee of
Isi Healthtaiw Bestchain
Excelsior Group 15,664,676 | 10.57% 0 0 0 0| anCo,Ltd| Healthtaiwan Co.,
Holdings Co., Ltd Ltd. accounted for
using equity
method.
3.Xuan Hui 3. The same chairman

Investment as that of Xuan Hui

Co., Ltd. Investment Co., Ltd.

1.Bestchain 1. Serves as a Director

Healthtaiwa|  of Bestchain

n Co., Ltd Healthtaiwan Co.,

Chairman : FU o o o Ltd.
HULTUNG 493,492 0.33% 1,727 | 0.00% 4,010,409 2,71 /:.-4 2 Xuan Hui 2. Serves as the
(Note4) | (Note ) Investment Chairman of Xuan

Co., Ltd. Hui Investment Co.,
Ltd.

1. Excelsior 1. Investment

Group company to

Holdings Bestchain

Co., Ltd. Healthtaiwan Co.,

And Ltd. accounted for

ptier || wingety
Healthtaiwan Co., 14,558,507 9.82% 0 0 0 0 Co., Ltd .
Lt 2.Xuan Hui 2. Investment

Investment company to

Co., Ltd. Bestchain
Healthtaiwan Co.,
Ltd. accounted for
using cost method.

Chairman :

CHANG HSIEN- 15,750 0.01% 0 0 0 0 None None

CHENG

Arich Ivestment 4410000 | 2.98% 0 0 0 0| None None
0., Ltd.

Chairman :

CHANG CHUN- 559 0.00% 0 0 0 0 None None

JEN
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Spouse’s/minor Shareholdin: Name and Relationship Between the | R
Current P Y amng Company’s Top Ten Shareholders, or | ¢
Shareholding by Nominee Spouses or Relatives Within Two
Shareholding Arra t P m|
hd Degrees a
Name N
Shares % Shares % Shares % Name Relation k
s
1.Excelsior 1. The same chairman
Group as that of Excelsior
Holdings Group Holdings
Co., Ltd. Co.,, Ltd.
2.Excelsior 2. Investee of Excelsior
. Investment Investment Co. ,
Xuan Hui Co., Ltd. Ltd. accounted for
Investment Co., 4,010,409 2.71% 0 0 0 0 using equity
Ltd. method.
3.Bestchain 3. Investee of
Healthtaiwa| ~ Bestchain
n Co., Ltd. Healthtaiwan Co.,
Ltd. accounted for
using cost method.
1.Excelsior 1. Serves as the
Group Chairman of
Holdings Excelsior Group
Chairman : Co., Ltd Holdings Co., Ltd.
FU HUL-TUNG 493,492 0.33% 1,727 | 0.00% | 4,010,409 | 2.71% . .
(Note4) | (Note 4) |2.Bestchain 2. Serves as a Director
Healthtaiwa|  of Bestchain
n Co., Ltd Healthtaiwan Co.,
Ltd.
LIN CHUN-YAO 1,575,000 1.06% 0 0 0 0 None None
City Bank
trusteeship of DFA 965,691 0.65% 0 0 0 0 None None
securities account
BANK SINOPAC
COMPANY 913,500 0.62% 0 0 0 0 None None
LIMITED
Citibank (Taiwan)
Ltd. in custody for 842,950 0.57% 0 0 0 0 None None
Elos Ritter
G RONG- 811,000 | 0.55% 0 0 0 0| None None

Note 1: List out the top ten shareholders. For institutional shareholders, list out the names of the
institutional shareholders and also the names of the representatives separately.

Note 2: The calculation of the proportion of shares in holding is based on the holding of shares by the
person, spouse, children who are minors, or in the name of a third party.

Note 3: List out the shareholders who are institutions and natural persons, and disclose their relation in
accordance with the Criteria for the Compilation of Financial statements by Securities Issuers.

Note 4: Xuan Hui Investment Co., Ltd. holds 4,010,409 shares, with a shareholding ratio of 2.71%.
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9. The number of shares of the same invested company held by the
Company, the Company's directors, supervisors, and executive officers,
and the businesses controlled directly or indirectly by the Company, and
the consolidated shareholding ratio.

Ownership of Shares in Affiliated Enterprises
March 31, 2023 / Unit: shares, %

Direct or Indirect
Affiliated Ownership by the O}/vnershlp by . Total Ownership
Enterprises Company Directors/Supervisors/Ma
(Note 1) nagers
Shares % Shares % Shares %
Bestchain Healthtaiwan Co., Ltd 50,674,854 44.7% 26,737,361 23.6% 77,412,215 68.3%
Arich Enterprise Co., Ltd. 29,829,742 40.0% 37,000 0.1% 29,866,742 40.1%
Elycnam‘c Medical Technologies |5 55 495 385% 0 0.0%| 11,550,425 385%
Excelsior Healthcare Co., Limited 39,411,623 100.0% 0 0.0% 39,411,623 100.0%
Sunrise Health Care Company 2,085,547 24.0% 0 0.0% 2,085,547 24.0%
Excelsior Medical (HK) Co., Ltd. 53,154,741 64.4% 29,439,829 35.6% 82,594,570 100.0%
Excelsior Beauty Co., Ltd. 11,534,804 41.0% 15,154,496 53.9% 26,689,300 94.9%
E;‘;el“"r Asset Management Co, | g3 916 300 100.0% 0 0.0% 83916300,  100.0%
Medifly Co., Ltd. 3,615,976 28.7% 0 0.0% 3,615,976 28.7%
z;‘:g‘lfoi/;dﬁgl Technologies 0 0.0%| 79,021,783 100.0%| 79,021,783  100.0%
Guangzhou Dynamic Inc. Note 2 0.0% Note 2 100.0% Note 2 100.0%
gé&/{;i{ﬁﬁﬁﬁ”f;@g AL 0 0.0% 2,150,000 50% 2,150,000 50%
Medytox Taiwan Inc. 0 0.0% 1,800,000 40.0% 1,800,000 40.0%
TOUCE BIOTECH CO., LTD 0 0.0% 420,000 35.0% 420,000 35.0%
CY]J International Taiwan Inc. 0 0.0% 11,016,020 90.0% 11,016,020 90.0%
EG Healthcare Inc. 0 0.0% 9,427,489 99.9% 9,427,489 99.9%
fﬁi‘gr Renal Service Co., 0 0.0%| 73,375,728 49.0%| 73,375,728 49.0%
NephroCare Limited 0 0.0%| 151,801,188 49.0%| 151,801,188 49.0%
g:r’;‘i‘c’:lﬁd‘“al 0 0.0% 9,800 49.0% 9,800 49.0%
f:zcei‘gr Tnvestment (Malaysia) 0 00%| 7341416  1000%| 7341416  100.0%
Renal Laboratories Sdn. Bhd. 0 0.0% 16,773,586 70.0% 16,773,586 70.0%
Medi-Chem Systems Sdn. Bhd. 0 0.0% 350,000 70.0% 350,000 70.0%
Renal Management Sdn. Bhd 0 0.0% 200,000 100.0% 200,000 100.0%
Is;rc‘sri’;‘:g;‘;f Investment Note 2 0.0% Note2|  100.0% Note2|  100.0%
Asia Best Healthcare Co., Ltd. 0 0.0% 406,946 59.3% 406,946 59.3%

Note 1: This table is based on the Company's investments accounted for using equity method.
Note 2: The invested company has not issued shares, so there are no shares held.
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IV. Capital Overview
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1. Source of Capital

(1) Source of capital

Authorized capital stock Paid-in capital Remarks
/ I\Y/leoanrth ;S;:: Amou_nt Amoupt Inccrzzlst:[by
Shares (NT$ in Shares (NT$ in Source of Capital Other
thousands) thousands) Assets Other
than Cash

1988.01 | 10 500,000 5,000 500,000 5,000(Capital at establishment None

1990.04 | 10 2,500,000 25,000 2,500,000 25,000(Capital increase by cash None

1991.06 | 10 6,500,000 65,000 6,500,000 65,000|Capital increase by cash None

1993.11 | 10 11,500,000, 115,000{ 11,500,000{ 115,000|Capital increase by cash None

199311 | 10 12,000,000, 120,000{ 12,000,000] 120,000|Capital increase by None
learnings

1997.02 | 10 16,000,000{ 160,000, 16,000,000 160,000(Capital increase by cash None

1997.05 | 35 19,990,000, 199,900 19,990,000{ 199,900|Capital increase by cash None

1998.07 | 10 60,000,000,  600,000{ 30,000,000[ 300,000|Capital increase by cash None

2001.06 | 10 | 60,000,000{ 600,000 36,000,000 360,000(Capital increase by None  [1998.07.17(87),TCZ(1)
learnings and employees’ INo. 59134
share compensation

2002.07 | 10 70,000,000, 700,000 43,058,057| 430,580|Capital increase by None |Convertible bonds of
learnings , employees’ INTD 4,000,000 were
share compensation and converted into 64,834
conversion of convertible ordinary shares.
[bonds

2003.01 | 10 70,000,000] 700,000| 43,073,660| 430,737|Conversion of convertible None [Convertible bonds of
lbonds INTD 900,000 were

converted into 15,603
ordinary shares.

2003.01 | 50 70,000,000, 700,000 53,073,660| 530,737|Capital increase by cash None  [2002.11.29,TCZ(1)

INo. 0910162126

2003.02 | 10 70,000,000{ 700,000| 53,074,050| 530,741|Conversion price None |Convertible bonds were
ladjustment and issuance adjusted and issued into
lof additional shares imore 390 ordinary

shares.

2003.06 | 10 |100,000,000| 1,000,000, 62,316,544| 623,165[Capital increase by None  [2003.04.17,TCZ(1)
learnings and employees’ No. 0920113020
share compensation

2004.05 | 10 |100,000,000( 1,000,000 62,470,676| 624,707 Conversion of convertible None [Convertible bonds of
lbonds IUSD 200,000 were

converted into 154,132
ordinary shares.

2004.09 | 10 |103,000,000f 1,030,000 68,047,942| 680,479 (Capital increase by None  2004.07.15,JGZYZ
learnings and employees’ IN0.0930131436
share compensation

2005.04 | 10 | 103,000,000 1,030,000, 68,257,948 682,579|Conversion of convertible None  |Convertible bonds of
lbonds IUSD 200,000 were

converted into 210,006
ordinary shares.

2005.09 | 10 | 112,650,000| 1,126,500 70,671,307 706,713|Capital increase by None  2005.07.26, JIGZYZ
learnings and employees’ INo. 0940128764
share compensation

2006.04 | 10 |112,650,000( 1,126,500, 72,161,419| 721,614|Conversion of convertible None |Convertible bonds of
lbonds USD 1,370,000 were

converted into 1,490,112
ordinary shares.
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Authorized capital stock Paid-in capital Remarks
Capital
/Iz(/li:th ;i: Amount Amouﬁt Incre};se by
Shares (NT$ in Shares (NT$ in Source of Capital Other
thousands) thousands) Assets Other
than Cash
2006.07 | 10 | 112,650,000 1,126,500 72,324,569| 723,246|Conversion of convertible None |Convertible bonds of
[bonds 'USD 150,000 were
converted into 163,150
ordinary shares.
2006.08 | 10 | 112,650,000f 1,126,500 77,993,569 779,936|Capital increase by None  2006.06.30, JGZYZ
learnings and employees’ No. 0950127700
share compensation
2006.10 | 10 | 112,650,000 1,126,500 78,047,952| 780,479(Conversion of convertible None |Convertible bonds of
lbonds IUSD 50,000 were
converted into
54,383 ordinary shares.
2007.01 | 10 |112,650,000| 1,126,500 91,987,264| 919,873|Conversion of convertible None |Convertible bonds of
[bonds IUSD 11,880,000 were
converted into
13,939,3120rdinary
shares.
2007.04 | 10 | 112,650,000( 1,126,500| 100,141,997| 1,001,420|Conversion of convertible None |Convertible bonds of
[bonds USD 6,950,000 were
converted into
8,154,733 ordinary
shares.
2007.10 | 10 | 112,650,000| 1,126,500 80,113,597 801,136|Capital reduction by cash None  [2007.10.29, JGZYZ
INo. 0960052676
2009.01 | 10 |112,650,000] 1,126,500| 84,866,099 848,661 ssue new shares to acquire [Stocks of  [2008.12.22, JIGZYZ
lordinary shares of Arich lother INo. 0970067548
companies
2009.10 | 10 | 200,000,000( 2,000,000, 89,108,471 891,085|Conversion of convertible None |Convertible bonds of
Ibonds INTD 207,200,000 were
converted into 4,242,372
ordinary shares.
2010.01 | 10 | 200,000,000( 2,000,000 92,991,295/ 929,913|Conversion of convertible None |Convertible bonds of
Ibonds INTD 185,600,000 were
converted into 3,882,824
ordinary shares.
2010.04 | 10 |200,000,000( 2,000,000 94,618,899 946,189|Conversion of convertible None |Convertible bonds of
Ibonds INTD 77,800,000 were
converted into 1,627,604
ordinary shares.
2010.08 | 10 | 200,000,000( 2,000,000 95,026,841 950,268|Conversion of convertible None |Convertible bonds of
lbonds INTD 19,500,000 were
converted into 407,942
ordinary shares.
2010.10 | 10 |200,000,000( 2,000,000 95,233,952 952,340|Conversion of convertible None |Convertible bonds of
lbonds INTD 9,900,000 were
converted into 207,111
ordinary shares.
2010.11 | 78 | 200,000,000/ 2,000,000{ 102,983,952| 1,029,840|Capital increase by cash None  [2010.10.19, JGZFZ
INo. 0990055485
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Authorized capital stock Paid-in capital Remarks
Capital
/ I:[iat:th I’S:c]: Amou}'\ t Amouﬁ t Incre};se by
Shares (NT$ in Shares (NT$ in Source of Capital Other
thousands) thousands) Assets Other
than Cash
2012.10 | 10 | 200,000,000 2,000,000{ 113,252,348 1,132,523|Capital increase by None  [2012.08.20, JGZFZ
learnings No. 1010036655
2014.10 | 10 | 200,000,000| 2,000,000( 112,952,348| 1,129,523|Cancelation of treasury None  2014.10.03, JSSZ
shares INo. 10301207220
2015.09 | 10 | 200,000,000| 2,000,000| 120,452,348| 1,204,523 [Capital increase by cash None [2015.06.16, JGZFZ
No. 1040021860
2016.01 | 10 | 200,000,000 2,000,000| 121,780,560| 1,217,806|Conversion of convertible None |Convertible bonds of
bonds INTD 52,200,000 were
converted into 1,328,212
ordinary shares.
2016.05 | 10 | 200,000,000| 2,000,000( 125,569,358| 1,255,694 |Conversion of convertible None [Convertible bonds of
lbonds INTD 148,900,000 were
converted into 3,788,798
ordinary shares.
2016.08 | 10 | 200,000,000| 2,000,000( 127,205,487| 1,272,055(Conversion of convertible None [Convertible bonds of
bonds INTD 64,300,000 were
converted into 1,636,129
ordinary shares.
2016.11 | 10 |200,000,000| 2,000,000| 127,581,485| 1,275,815|Conversion of convertible None |Convertible bonds of
lbonds INTD 14,100,000 were
converted into 375,998
ordinary shares.
2017.03 | 10 |200,000,000( 2,000,000| 127,626,817 1,276,268|Conversion of convertible None |Convertible bonds of
lbonds INTD 1,700,000 were
converted into 45,332
ordinary shares.
2017.08 | 10 | 200,000,000| 2,000,000| 127,765,483| 1,277,655|Conversion of convertible None |Convertible bonds of
Ibonds INTD 5,200,000 were
converted into 138,666
ordinary shares.
Convertible bonds of
2018.02 | 10 | 200,000,000 2,000,000| 127,827,385 1,278,274 IConversion of convertible None  NTD 2,200,000 were
lbonds converted into 61,902
ordinary shares.
2018.05 | 10 | 200,000,000( 2,000,000| 127,990,578| 1,279,906|Conversion of convertible None |Convertible bonds of
lbonds INTD 5,800,000 were
converted into 163,193
ordinary shares.
2018.07 | 10 | 200,000,000( 2,000,000| 128,134,077 1,281,341|Conversion of convertible None |Convertible bonds of
lbonds INTD 5,100,000 were
converted into 143,499
ordinary shares.
2018.11 | 10 | 200,000,000( 2,000,000| 128,148,970| 1,281,490|Conversion of convertible None |Convertible bonds of
Ibonds INTD 500,000 were
converted into 14,893
ordinary shares.
2020.01 | 10 | 200,000,000/ 2,000,000{141,148,970 | 1,411,490 |Capital increase by cash None  [2019.12.11, JGZFZ
INo. 1080339288
2022.10 | 10 | 200,000,000 2,000,000{148,206,419 | 1,482,064 |Capital increase by None  |Approved by Securities
learnings land Futures Bureau on
Aug.4.2022.
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(2) Type of stock

April 23, 2023

Authorized Capital
Type of ; Remarks
Stock Outstanding shares Unissued Shares Total Shares
(Note)
Common 148,206,419 51,793,581 200,000,000
Stock

Note: Outstanding shares issued by the Company are publicly traded on TWSE.

(3) Shelf-registration : None.
2. Shareholder Structure

As of April 23,2023 Unit: shares.

Item D " Foreign
Government| Financial Other OMESUC | 1 etitutions
. o . Natural Total
Agencies | Institutions | Institutions P and Natural
ersons
Amount Persons
Number of
Shareholders 4 239 34,395 113 34,751
Shareholding
(shares) — 1,205,050|  62,439,254| 74,078,765| 10,483,350 148,206,419

Percentage (%) -

0.81 42.13

49.99 7.07 100.00

3. Distribution of Shares Ownership

Common Stock

As of April 23,2023 Unit: shares.

Chsorharoldng | gt [Ni cishre] Shaoldng
1 ~ 999 19,081 1,624,934 1.10]
1,000 ~ 5,000 12,506 22,898,472 15.45
5,001 ~ 10,000 1,698 11,368,280 7.67|
10,001 ~ 15,000 642 7,491,991 5.06|
15,001 ~ 20,000 220 3,832,867 2.59
20,001 ~ 30,000 243 5,801,467 3.91
30,001 ~ 40,000 97 3,364,160 2.27
40,001 ~ 50,000 60 2,668,080 1.80]
50,001 ~ 100,000 113 7,609,884 5.13
100,001 ~ 200,000 38 5,254,565 3.55
200,001 ~ 400,000 27 7,246,676 4.89
400,001 ~ 600,000 13 6,600,573 4.45
600,001 ~ 800,000 3 2,130,611 1.44]
800,001 ~ 1,000,000 4 3,533,141 2.38
Over 1,000,001 6 56,780,718 38.31
Total 34,751 148,206,419 100.00;

Note: Preferred Shares: None.
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4. List of Major Shareholders
List all shareholders with a stake of 5 percent or greater, and all shareholders who rank
in the top 10 in shareholding percentage, and specify the number of shares and stake

held by each shareholder on the list.
As of April 23,2023 Unit: shares.

Shares | Number of shares Shareholding
Name held percentage(%)
Excelsior Investment Co., Ltd. 16,562,126 11.18%
Excelsior Group Holdings Co., Ltd. 15,664,676 10.57%
Bestchain Healthtaiwan Co., Ltd. 14,558,507, 9.82%
Arich Investment Co., Ltd. 4,410,000 2.98%
Xuan Hui Investment Co., Ltd. 4,010,409 2.71%
Lin,Jun-Yao 1,575,000 1.06%
City Bank trusteeship of DFA securities account 965,691 0.65%
BANK SINOPAC COMPANY LIMITED 913,500 0.62%
Citibank (Taiwan) Ltd. in custody for Elos Ritter 842,950 0.57%
HUANG,RONG-SONG 811,000 0.55%

5. Market Prices, Net Worth, Earnings and Dividends Per Share

Unit: NT$
Year As of May 4,
Item 2021 2022 2023(Note 6)
Market Highest 59.60 71.20 97.10
Price per Lowest 54.10 56.80 67.20
Share Average 56.70 64.34 80.60
Net Worth Before Distribution 54.82 55.33 53.47|
per Share After Distribution 48.88 (Note 1) (Note 2)
Weighted Average Shares 141,149 148,206 148,206
Earnings (thousand shares)
per Share Earnings Per Before Adjustment 4.30 4.50 1.36)
Share After Adjustment 4.10 (Note 1) (Note 2)
Cash Dividends 3.5 3.65 (Note 2)
. Dividends from 05 (Note 1) (Note 2)
Dividends . Retained Earnings
Stock dividends —
per Share Dividends from 0 0 (Note 2)
Capital Surplus
Accumulated Undistributed Dividends 0 0 0
Return on Price / Earning Ratio (Note 3) 13.19 14.30 (Note 2)
Investment Price / Dividend Ratio (Note 4) 16.20 17.63 (Note 2)
i ash Dividend yield rate (7 )(Note . . ote
Analysis | Cash Divid d yield %)(Note 5) 6.17, 5.67 Note 2

Note 1 : The cash dividend of per share is proposed to be distributed NT$3.65 by the Board of
Diretors on March 16, 2023. The stock dividend of per share is proposed to be distributed
NT$0.5, it will take effect after the resolution of the 2023 Annual Shareholders’” General
meeting is passed.

Note 2 : The earnings had not yet been finalized.

Note 3 : Price / Earning Ratio = Average closing price per price / Earnings per Share

Note 4 : Price / Dividend Ratio = Average closing price per price / Cash dividend per Share

Note 5 : Cash Dividend yield rate = Cash dividends per share / Average closing price per price
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Note 6 : Listed net worth per share and earnings per share are according to the report review
by CPA in the lastest quarter of the date of the publication of this annual report. Other
columns show information for the current year as of the date publication of the annual
report.

6. Dividend Policy and Implementation Status
(1) Dividend policy

According to Article 26 of the company’s Articles of Incorporation, The dividend
policy as follows:

The Company sets up its dividend policy in conjunction with its current and
future development plan and by taking the investment environment, capital
requirements and local and foreign competition status into account, whereas the
Company also concurrently considers shareholders” interests. The annual dividend
payable to shareholders from the cumulative distributable earnings shall be not less
than 20% of current year after-tax profit. The shareholder dividend can be distributed
by either cash or stock, in which the cash dividend shall be no less than 20% of the total
dividend amount.

(2) Proposed distribution of dividend

ear ftem Cash dividends Stock dividends
2018 3.0000 None
2019 3.3000 None
2020 3.5000 None
2021 3.5000 0.050000003 shares
2022(Note) 3.6500 0.05 shares

Note: The cash dividend of per share is proposed to be distributed NT$3.65 by the Board of
Diretors on March 16, 2023. The stock dividend of per share is proposed to be distributed
NT$0.5, it will take effect after the resolution of the 2023 Annual Shareholders’General
meeting is passed.

(3) The material change in the expected dividend policy: None.
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7. Impact of the Proposed Stock Dividends in Shareholders Meeting on
Business Performances and EPS
Not applicable.

8. Employee Compensation and Directors’” Remuneration

(O]

@

3)

Scope of employee compensation and directors’ remuneration referred to in the
Articles of Incorporation:

The Company should contribute no less than 1% of the profit as employee
compensation and no higher than 5% as directors' remuneration when there is profit
for the year. However, if the Company has accumulated deficits, the profit should be
reserved to offset the deficits.

The preceding employee compensation shall be distributed by stock or cash, and
the recipients shall cover the employees of subordinate companies the terms set up
by the Board of Diretors. The preceding directors” remuneration shall be paid in cash
only.

Both the employee compensation and directors’ remuneration should be
approved by the Board of Directors and reported during the shareholders' meeting.
The basis for estimating the remuneration to employees and directors for calculating
the number of shares to be distributed as remuneration to employees, and the
accounting treatment of the discrepancy, if any, between the actual distributed
amount and the estimated figure, for the current period:

As adopted by the Company’s Board of Directors on March 16, 2023, 5% of the
Company’s 2022 profits in an amount of NT$42,528,778 shall be distributed to
employees as their compensation, whereas 2.5% of the profits in an amount of
NT$21,264,389 shall be distributed to directors as their remuneration. The preceding
amounts shall be distributed in cash.

If the amount of the annual individual financial report is still changed after the
date of publication, there is a difference between the actual amount and the estimated
amount, it is classified as the profit and loss of the following year.

Distribution of compensation approved by the Board of Directors

The 2022 Distribution report of employees’ compensations and directors
remuneration approved by the Company’s Board of Directors on March 16, 2023.
Approved appropriations were as follows:

A.The compensations to employees and remuneration to Directors

Item Amount(NT$ in thousands)
Directors” Remuneration 21,264
Employee Compensation in Cash 42,529
Employee Compensation in Stock None

The aforementioned amounts of employees compensations and directors’
remuneration approved by the Company’s Board of Directors are totally the same
with that accured expenses in the 2022 financial Statements.

B. Ratio of recommended employee stock bonus to capitalization of earnings:
Not applicable.
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(4) Information for employee compensation and directors’ remuneration in previous
fiscal year:

On March 11, 2022, the Board of Directors of Company approved of
employees’compensations and Directors’ remuneration in 2021 of NT$38,706 in
thousands and NT$19,353 in thousands respectively. There is no difference between
the amounts recognized in the 2021 individual financial statements.

9. Buyback of Treasury Stocks:
None.

10. Issuance of Corporate Bonds:

None.

11.Issuance of preferred shares, global depositary receipts (GDR), employee
stock option and employee restricted stock:

None.

12.Issuance of New Shares Acquisition or Exchange of other Companys’
Shares

None.

13. Status of Capital Utilization Plan
(1) Finance plans:

For the period as of the quarter perceding the date of publication of the annual
report, with respect to each uncompleted public issue or private placement of
securities, and to such issues and placements that were completed in the most recent
3 years but have not yet fully yieded the planned benefits, the annual report shall
provide a detailed description of the plan for each such public issue and private
placement: Not applicable.

(2) Implementation Plans: Not applicable.
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V . Business Overview
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1. Business Scope
(1) Major business scope
A.The Group’s primary business content

The Group operates in the following businesses:

a. Sales, maintenance, lease of medical devices and medical management
consultancy.

b. Sales, lease and maintenance of laser medical devices for aesthetic medical, sales
of dermal fillers, cosmetic neurotoxins, beauty and skincare products, hair care
products, and services of body shaping.

c. Sales, promotions, distribution and logistics services of medicine.

B.Percentage of sales revenue of the Group
Unit: NT$ thousands

Major Product Categories 2022 Percentage of
Sales Revenue
Surgical consumables 1,711,717 23.82%
Dialyzers, blood tubing set and o
A.V. fistula needles 1,130,544 15.73%
Erythropoietin (EPO), o
concentrated solution and powders 850,676 11.84%
Medicine 767,924 10.69%
Aesthetic medical consumables 760,279 10.58%
and spare parts
Blood bags ,wound and ostomy 234,458 3.26%
products
Aesthetic medical devices 232,907 3.24%
Home appliances 202,742 2.82%
Lifestyle beauty proFlucts and 168,315 2349
treatment services
Medical devices 75,143 1.05%
Others 1,052,123 14.63%
Total 7,186,828 100.00%

C.The Group’s Current products and services
. Dialyzers
. Blood tubing set and A.V. fistula needles
. Hemodialysis concentrated solution and powders and normal saline
. Disinfectant for hemodjialysis machine
. Hemodialysis machine and RO central system
Erythropoietin (EPO) and anticoagulant etc.
. Healthcare home appliances including air purifiers
. Blood bags and related products
Wound and ostomy products
Agency sales of surgical devices and consumables

T oS Mo N T
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k. Self-pay medicine related to hemodialysis patients

1. Aesthetic medical devices

m. Aesthetic medical consumables

n. Aesthetic medical dermal fillers

. Cosmetic neurotoxins

. Body shaping devices

. Maintenance of aesthetic medical devices

Hair care and body shaping services

. Lifestyle beauty products and treatment services

Sales and promotions of medicine related to OB/GYN, family medicine, urology,

dermatology, ophthalmology, and psychiatry

u. Sales and promotions of medicine related to hair growth, digestive system, quit
smoking

v. Sales and promotions of oral hygiene, daily consumer products and beauty
products

w.Comprehensive integrated distribution and logistics services including customer
service, tender/bidding, information flow, cash flow and logistics

-~ » 3,079 O

D. The Group’s New products (services) to be developed

. Medical consumables and devices related to wound caring

. Medical consumables and devices related to blood banks

. New home appliances products of own brand “ULTRACLEAN"

. Agency and distribution of products from foreign renowned home appliances

an oy

brands
. New hemodialysis consumables products of own brand “FASFLO”
Sales of products and services related to hair growth and hair care products
. Develop home beauty products
. Develop in-house licensed prescription/non-prescription drugs
R&D of daily health consumer products
Develop new pharmaceutical distribution and logistics business
. Agency and distribution of medical products from foreign renowned brands

o= R

1. Develop hemodialysis concentrated powders.

(2) Industry overview
A.Current status and development of the industry

[® Medical device sector |

The Company is a comprehensive medical devices provider. Our major
businesses include trading of medical products used in hemodialysis treatment,
surgeries and diagnosis, air purifiers, blood bags, and wound and ostomy products.
Below is a summary of the domestic medical device industry and the hemodialysis
industry that is the Company’s major products:

a. Overview and development in the medical device industry
Medical devices can broadly mean various products, and in the boundaries
defined by Industrial Technology Research Institute’s Industrial Economics &
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Knowledge Center (IEK), could encompass diagnostic and monitoring devices,
assistive and repair devices, surgical and treatment devices, in vitro diagnostic
devices (IVD), and other relevant medical products. Technologies involved in
manufacturing medical devices include electronics, electrical engineering,
biotechnology, biochemistry, medical engineering, measurement and chemical
engineering. In addition, research and development (R&D) require extensive
time, and product assurance and clinical testing are also required, creating high
barrier to entry. In terms of the market, the medical device industry is
significantly influenced by government policies; and in particular, policies on
health insurance benefits will directly impact the market demand. Hence, the
demand for medical devices mostly comes from regions with developed
countries such as North America, Europe, and Japan. Additionally, since safety
specification requirements and medical insurance benefit systems also vary from
country to country, market penetration is very difficult. Nevertheless, after a
product has been introduced to the market, thanks to patent and certification
protection and the longer product life cycle, profits can be higher compared to
other industries.

b. Overview and development in the hemodialysis industry

Hemodialysis, or more commonly known as kidney dialysis in Taiwan, is a
critical life-supporting treatment for patients with chronic kidney disease. When
a terminally ill kidney disease patient fails to filter wastes and water from his/her
body due to gradual or complete loss of kidney functions, the patient would have
to rely on hemodialysis machine to pump blood out to expose the wastes and
excess to the dialysate through the hemodialysis machine. This process cleanses
the blood and removes water to reduce symptoms of toxin overload. It is
common for patients to receive three times of hemodialysis treatment in every
week. According to statistics from the National Kidney Foundation R.O.C., as of
the fourth quarter (Q4) in 2022, the cumulative number of patients receiving
hemodialysis and peritoneal dialysis in Taiwan had reached more than 93,000
persons, and the demand for the hemodialysis market continues to grow.
Benefiting from the gradual introduction of social insurance schemes including
public employee insurance, labor insurance, and the National Health Insurance
system that commenced in 1995, the medical expenses associated with
hemodialysis for end-stage renal failure patients were greatly reduced, allowing
them to receive long-term hemodialysis treatment. Taiwan’s hemodialysis
market is gradually prospering; as the technology and quality of hemodialysis
both become more mature, the survival rates of patients are also increasing
accordingly. In addition, entities in hemodialysis treatment as well as the number
of hemodialysis machines are also continuing to grow. The hemodialysis
industry in Taiwan began to learn the operations and management model over
hemodialysis centers from developed nations. In order to enhance operational
effectiveness and patient satisfaction for treatment, in addition to supplying the
hardware facilities of hemodialysis centers, comprehensive medical devices
providers also began to provide softwares including personnel training, cost
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analysis, and medical quality analysis and more. Additionally, in recent years,
certain end-stage renal failure patients are also opting for peritoneal dialysis
treatment. Nevertheless, after a few years of receiving peritoneal dialysis
treatment, most peritoneal dialysis patients still need to switch over to
hemodialysis treatment to extend their lives.

|® Aesthetic medical sector |

With the advancement of technology, an increasing number of highly effective
aesthetic medical devices with shorter postoperative recovery periods are being
introduced to the market. Additionally, the exposure of various age groups to the
internet and social media has increased, leading to the widespread dissemination
and transparency of information related to aesthetics medical. As a result, more and
more people are accepting and undergoing aesthetic medical treatments.

In the Taiwanese aesthetics medical market, there is a demand for the latest
technological advancements and non-invasive treatments. With the widespread
availability of information and the marketing efforts of various companies,
consumers not only prioritize the effectiveness, safety, and cost-performance of
aesthetic medical treatments but also pay attention to advertising and marketing
strategies that capture their attention. However, the COVID-19 epidemic in 2020
had a great impact on the global aesthetic medical supply chain, including upstream
suppliers and downstream end-consumers. Currently, the global aesthetics medical
market is predominantly led by manufacturers from Europe and the United States.
However, these regions have been heavily impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic,
resulting in disruptions in the manufacturing, export, and supply of aesthetic
medical devices and their maintenance components. The delivery lead time has
been extended as a result. Furthermore, end-consumers have become more
conservative in their demand for aesthetic medical treatments due to the impact of
the pandemic. Consequently, aesthetic medical clinics have also become more
cautious in their procurement of devices and products. However, as the COVID-19
situation gradually improves worldwide, the Taiwanese government has been
easing various regulatory measures and opening up borders, facilitating the
integration of domestic suppliers with international aesthetics medical information.
Additionally, in the post-pandemic era, retaliatory consumption by consumers has
driven overall growth in the aesthetics medical market.

|® Pharmaceutical sales promotion and distribution logistics sector |

The Group is a pharmaceutical channel provider and most of our businesses
concern the sales promotions, and distribution logistics services of pharmaceutical
products in Taiwan. In terms of pharmaceutical sales and promotions, we mostly
sell pharmaceutical products to medical institutions, clinics, pharmacies, chain
drugstores and hypermarkets based on the individual needs of such institutions. In
terms of distribution and logistics, besides providing warehousing and shipping of
medicine that comply with applicable pharmaceutical regulations, we also provide
well-rounded services including customer services, acting for pharmaceutical

109



principals to tender hospital offers, information flow, cash flow, and logistics
services. The following is a description of the market overview of the industry:

a. Pharmaceutical sales promotion and distribution logistics

As the coverage of national health insurance (NHI) in Taiwan has nearly
reached 100% and approximately a quarter of NHI's total expenditures covers
medicine, the National Health Insurance Administration has in effect become the
biggest buyer of prescription drugs in Taiwan. Statistics from IQVIA indicated
that, most of the revenues from Taiwan’s pharmaceutical market came from
hospitals, clinics, and pharmacies. In recent years, the National Health Insurance
Administration (NHIA) has been actively launching the “2nd Generation NHI”,
by encouraging hospitals to transfer patients to clinics and to release chronic
illness prescription refill slip. In addition, due to pressures from financial loss,
the NHIA has also been encouraging the public to practice self-pay for minor
ailments. In 2019, the hierarchy of medical care will be implemented, in which
2% of the patients will be transferred to clinics so that clinics could acquire more
patients. Nevertheless, the clinics could potentially lose the patients, if patients
are switched from brand-name drugs at hospitals to locally-produced generic
drugs at the clinics. Since clinics do not have restrictions on the number of
medicine, doctors could be asked to prescribe both brand and generic drugs of
the same ingredients, so that the market shares of both clinics and pharmacies
could both grow in the future.

Though Taiwan’s pharmaceutical market continues to grow, but as the
prices of NHI medicine continue to be reduced in each year, major global
pharmaceutical principals have continued to outsource their sales promotions
and distribution logistics in consideration of costs and maintaining profit
margins. To target the increasingly active global pharmaceutical market, and
seeing that the international market has extended the quality management of
medicine from manufacturing processes to logistics and distribution, the
Ministry of Health and Welfare in Taiwan has also emphasized on the reinforced
control over medicine distribution and logistics. A phased GDP compliance
inspection has commenced since July 1, 2016, and subjects of which include local
medicine manufacturers in Taiwan, logistics service providers that label and
package medicine, and pharmaceutical suppliers that hold medicine licenses. In
particular, inspections for those with elevated risks, such as businesses with
licenses for cold-chain and restricted medicine will be prioritized.

b. Industry development

Data from The Industrial Economics & Knowledge Center (IEK) from the
Industrial Technology Research Institute (ITRI) indicated that due to new
medicine launch and market needs, the market will grow steadily at a compound
annual growth rate (CAGR) of 7.2% from 2021 to 2026, and is expected to reach
US$1.8 trillion by 2025. In 2019, the top 10 pharmaceutical markets account for
70% of the market share, and the ranking of such markets have largely remain
unchanged. The largest five continue to be the US, China, Japan, Germany, and
UK. In terms of CAGR over the next five years, the US market is expected to be
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3.2%, China approximately 9.3%, Japan 2.6%, and UK dominating over the other
five nations in Western Europe at 4.4% and the others between 2.1% to 2.8%.
Brazil is expected to reach 4% and Canada at around 2.6%. In terms of treatment
field, the market is still headed by cancer treatment, followed by diabetes and
respiratory diseases. Rapidly growing fields from 2019 to 2023 are diabetes and
anticoagulants, followed by cancer, autoimmunity, and immune diseases. From
the field of clinical trial products, cancer, central nervous system, and
cardiovascular are the top three respectively.

B.Correlations throughout the industry chain

|® Medical device sector |

As a medical product system integration provider, the Company’s primary
operational model is to integrate resources and provide services except medical
treatment. They also take on the role of healthcare management consultants for
healthcare institutions. Using a "healthcare management" approach, they construct
healthcare-related channel systems. The correlations throughout this channel system is
shown in the following diagram:

Health-Care Health-Care
Manufacturers W Providers

MarkatAnaiysieigy
Operations
Strategic
b g Distribution M"";‘:;"‘“ and Clinical
Promotion + Services Improvement
\ B Sales Services i p b
Product

Management

|® Aesthetic medical sector |

Most of the energy-based devices and dermal fillers in the aesthetic medical
industry are developed by European and American principals. However, in recent
years, Korean companies have begun to produce similar aesthetic medical products by
imitating European and American companies, and won market shares through
offering lower prices. The aesthetic medical market has therefore been divided into
high-priced and low-priced market segmentations. As more and more competitive
products enter the market, strong brand marketing has also become mainstream in
recent years to increase the popularity of products or treatments, and drive product
sales by increasing consumer demand. In addition, brand marketing is also a
differentiated model for distinguishing high-priced and low-priced products.

The relationship between the upper, middle and lower reaches of aesthetic devices
and dermal fillers
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[® Pharmaceutical sales promotion and distribution logistics sector |

The industry structure of Taiwan’s pharmaceutical market can be divided into
upstream suppliers (medicine permit holders) such as local or foreign
pharmaceutical pricipals or agents, midstream distributors or logistics providers,
and downstream medical institutions. The Group is a pharmaceutical sales
promotion and distribution logistics provider, which is in the midstream of the
industry.

In terms of pharmaceutical sales and promotions, the pharmaceutical channel
provider will directly sell various medicine products based on the demand from
medical institutions. Key operations include raising the image of medicine products,
providing professional education related to treatment, disseminating the clinical
use, effects, side effects and other clinical matters related to the medicine,
organizing medical conferences and other promotional activities, and effectively
and efficiently delivering various medicine from thousands of suppliers to
distribution points located throughout Taiwan.

From the pharmaceutical channel providers’ standpoint, there may be the
demands that provide distribution and logistics services, but since medical
institutions ranging from hospitals, clinics, to pharmacies, have very diverse
demands (for instance, mid to large-scale hospitals usually procure medicine
through tender, demand from clinics vary from department to department, while
pharmacies usually have sparse medicine needs), these services are usually
provided to areas close to their sites of operation. Since pharmaceutical principals
need to focus on R&D, manufacturing, and marketing of medicine products, they
cannot cater to individual demands from all medical institutions. Therefore,
pharmaceutical channel providers provide comprehensively-planned services
ranging from inventory management, value-added processing, logistics and
delivery, customer complaint, and transportation and shipping within Taiwan.
Pharmaceutical channel providers are critical in supporting pharmaceutical
principals in selling their medicine to various medical institutions.

For the pharmaceutical principals, collaborating with pharmaceutical channel
provider can enhance the supply chain’s efficiency, thereby allowing them to focus
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on the R&D, manufacturing, and marketing of medicine products. Alternatively, by
having medical institutions dealing with channel provider and setting them as
suppliers, the pharmaceutical supply can be more stabilized and helps medical
institutions to save more on costs. This industry structure helps to integrate various
channels, and links the resources throughout the supply chain, thereby helping each
end of the industry to achieve optimized cost management.

The relationship between the upper, middle and lower reaches of pharmaceutical
market
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C. Products development trends

|® Medical device sector |

a. Hemodialysis Products
The soaring material prices around the world have led to significant cost
increase in imported medical consumables. With the exception of hemodialysis
machines and dialyzers, most of the medical consumables can be made in Taiwan
without relying on imports. However, medical institutions still favor imported
products. Therefore, we have opted for OEM from overseas suppliers for our
own brand, and collaborated with locally produced products in sales package in
marketing our products to achieve a competitive edge.
b. Surgical consumables and devices
With the global trend towards minimally invasive surgical procedures,
aimed at reducing surgical incisions and decreasing patient recovery time,
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Medtronic surgical robotic-assisted surgical systems and related products,
including the Hugo robotic-assisted surgical system, sutures, auto suture,
endoscopic surgical instruments, energy-based devices, radiofrequency ablation
therapeutic devices, bipolar electrosurgical devices (Ligasure), to cordless
ultrasonic dissection devices (Sonicision)., is expected to contribute to sustained
business growth.

c. Healthcare home appliances products

With the deteriorating air quality and the increasing presence of various
pollutants in our daily lives, which can contribute to allergies, respiratory issues,
and related diseases, the company has introduced our own brand, the "Ultra
Clean" series of products. We are dedicated to promoting the use of air purifiers
in combination with circulating fans. Additionally, we have launched stylish
home appliances that blend with the home aesthetics, incorporating the concept
of health and lifestyle quality.

Aesthetic medical sector |

a. Aesthetic medical devices

According to the analysis report by Medical Insight, a US-based company,
the total sales of aesthetic medical products in the Asia-Pacific region exceeded
US$4.4 billion in 2022. The forecast for the next five years predicts an annual
growth rate of 9.3% in the Asia-Pacific aesthetics medical market. Compared to
other regions, the development of the aesthetics medical market in the Asia-
Pacific region is characterized as rapid and robust.

The most popular aesthetic medical treatments in the Asia-Pacific market are
dermatological treatments, including facial and body rejuvenation,
pigmentations and vein treatments, and skin tightening treatments. Among all
treatment options, non-invasive aesthetic medical treatments remain the top
choice for consumers.

b. Dermal fillers

As the public’s demand and acceptance for minimally-invasive treatments
grow, dermal fillers have become the fastest growing area in aesthetic medical
treatments. According to the analysis report by Medical Insight, the total sales of
dermal fillers in the Asia-Pacific region exceeded US$2.2 billion in 2022. The
forecast for the next five years predicts an annual growth rate of 9.2% for dermal
fillers in the Asia-Pacific region.

Pharmaceutical sales promotion and distribution logistics sector |

a. Pharmaceutical sales and promotions

With the emphasis on national health education and access to medical
information, the public has become more aware of self-medication. The non-
prescription drugs market (e.g. comprehensive cold medicine, pain relief, hair
growth products, quit smoking, deep scalp treatment, stomach medicine and
antacids, skin creams, eye drops etc.) has shown high levels of growth in each
year. In the future, as the NHI's budget narrows and the government encourages
the public to practice self-medication, the ratio of non-prescription drugs will
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continue to show significant growth.
b. Pharmaceutical distribution and logistics

To ensure the public’s safety and quality in medicine use, the pharmaceutical
distribution and logistics industry is highly professional and concentrated. On
top of building vast and complex pharmaceutical logistics supply chain system
to understand the demands from downstream domestic medical institutions and
changes in upstream pharmaceutical suppliers, all distribution and logistics
provider also need to receive permits, including the PIC/S GMP GDP from
Ministry of Health and Welfare, international ISO certification, and pass rigorous
audits from pharmaceutical principals.

D. Product market competition

|® Medical device sector |

a. Hemodialysis Products
As the hemodialysis is a mature industry, competition is intense both at
home and abroad. The Company has achieved a competitive edge since we have
acquired sales channels and adopted diversified agency or distributor strategies.

Major products are separately described in the following;:

(a) Dialyzers: the Company is an agent distributor for mostly AsahiKasei and
FMC. In addition to promoting our own brand, Fasflo, which is a artificial
kidney manufactured by AsahiKasei, we have also obtained the medical
device import license from the Ministry of Health and Welfare to import and
sell the Scientillence artificial kidney from Malaysia. Furthermore, we also sell
numerous other brands in the market.

(b) Hemodialysis machine: we focus on Japanese-based Nikkiso brand, and we
have also strengthened our market competitiveness by acquiring the FMC
brand machine from our partner Fresenius.

(c) Blood tubing set and A.V. fistula needles: focused on supplying the market
and creating market segmentation by outsourcing the own brand Fasflo
manufactured by JMS in Japan and Sunder Biomedical in Taiwan.

(d) Dialysates, powders and normal saline: created own brand Renabio and
outsourced (OEM) to a renowned pharmaceutical manufacturer in Taiwan to
expand the market, and achieve more effectiveness.

(e) Erythropoietin (EPO): competition is divided between long-term and short-
term EPO, and the Company is presently an agent for Kyowa Kirin long-term
product. The comprehensive product line makes it more competitive than the
others.

b. Surgical consumables and devices

(a) Outstanding cooperation with Medtronic has prompted us to scale the market,
and Medtronic provides a comprehensive range of surgical products ranging
from surgical suture, auto suture, energy-based devices, radiofrequency
ablation therapeutic devices, bipolar electrosurgical devices (Ligasure), to
cordless ultrasonic dissection devices (Sonicision).

(b) Blood bags: the company sell Japan’s JMS brand and supply blood bags to
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blood centers throughout Taiwan and biotech companies for storing cord
blood, approximately 40% of the market share.

(c) Wound and ostomy: the company sell Hollister brand and supply wound and
ostomy medical products to patients in various hospitals around Taiwan.

c. Healthcare home appliances products

Launched a new line of ULTRACLEAN “Cubic Air” air purifiers, as well as
own-brand products. To strengthen the competitive strength from product
diversification, we also sell Japan’s Doshisa ,Recolte, Toffy, and Sweden’s
Electrolux.

Aesthetic medical sector |

a. Aesthetic medical devices

In the field of aesthetics medical in Taiwan, the majority devices are
imported through foreign principals from leading global aesthetic medical
brands in Europe and America. In recent years, machines manufactured in South
Korea have entered the Taiwanese market, targeting the mid-to-low price
segment and gradually gaining market share. This has led to a significant
difference in treatment prices in the Taiwanese aesthetics medical market. It is
necessary to enhance consumer awareness of brands, quality, authenticity, and
safety to maintain the high-end quality of aesthetics medical in Taiwan. However,
there is also a need to reassess and cater to the demands of the high, medium,
and low-price segments when it comes to product line configuration.

As the COVID-19 pandemic gradually is easing, consumers are starting to
accept aesthetic medical treatments again, leading to a significant growth in the
overall aesthetics medical market in the Asia-Pacific region. The widespread
dissemination and transparency of aesthetic medical information have also
resulted in consumers becoming more conscious of their choices. Therefore, the
latest technology products that meet market demand and ensure safety are
highly favored by Taiwanese consumers. The Group continues to uphold its core
values and insists on internationally competitive and high-standard aesthetic
medical products that prioritize safety.

b. Dermal fillers

Major players in the global dermal filler industry include Allergan,
Galderma, and MerzAesthetics. In Taiwan, the Group sells the hyaluronic acid
dermal fillers developed and produced by SciVision Biotech Inc, which include
the brands "Hyadermis" and "Animers." Additionally, the Group also sells the
hyaluronic acid fillers "Neuramis" from Medytox, a South Korean company. The
availability of different brands and formulations of hyaluronic acid fillers
provides customers with a diverse range of choices; in recent years, the
Taiwanese market has seen the introduction of many low-priced Korean
hyaluronic acid products, leading to increased competition based on price. The
overall market sales situation is still being closely observed. In addition, since
collagen regeneration stimulators (commonly known as “baby face shots” in
Taiwan) are more naturalistic anti-aging treatments, they have come to be much
preferred by end-users in recent years. Products in this category currently

116



launched in the Taiwanese market include Sculptra , Ellanse and AestheFill
(distributed by the Group). Currently, the aesthetic medical dermal filler market
is still growing. The Group adopts an integrated marketing strategy for dermal
fillers and aesthetic medical devices, thereby expanding the overall market
demand and provides more choices for the aesthetic medical market.

|[® Pharmaceutical sales promotion and distribution and logistics sector |

a. Industry competitors
(a)Pharmaceutical sales and promotions
Since there are many different types of medicine, each requiring different
sales knowledge and vastly different channels, industry competitors have each
sought for different niches. The similarities between different competitors are
low, and likelihood of complete substitution is also low. Nevertheless, there
are over 10,000 types of NHI-benefit medicine and over 1,000 industry
competitors in Taiwan. Competitors are many with distinct selling points.
There is no market monopoly or oligopoly; therefore, the in-depth knowledge
and professionalism in a single department has become a key factor to stand
out among competition.
(b)Pharmaceutical distribution and logistics
Since the pharmaceutical logistics and warehousing environment and
channels experience require extremely high entry barriers, operating an
international pharmaceutical management and channel service requires
significant capital investments in order to build top-notch information
technology facilities and automated equipment, to recruit and train
professional personnel, and to continuously provide on-the-job employee
training concerning local and foreign laws and quality management. As such,
currently, the pharmaceutical logistics channel industry in Taiwan is
concentrated in the market. In addition, to respond to demands from different
medicine suppliers, diverse service systems and characteristics have been
devised by different distributors. Substitution is low, and distribution and
logistics companies need to form tight partnerships with pharmaceutical
principals to be able to provide quality supply chain services.
b. Potential market entrants
(a)Pharmaceutical sales and promotions
Since the targets of medicine sales are doctors/physicians at hospitals or
clinics and pharmacists, the level of professionalism required and the hours of
training for its sales reps are much higher than that of general industries. This
is because medicine have patents, professionalism, and exclusive channels.
Because of long-term, stable professional training program, our employees are
highly qualified and cohesive, we have a relatively high competitive edge. In
case other companies wish to expand to this industry, besides acquiring
distribution/agency from pharmaceutical principals, they will also need to
recruit talented and experienced personnel and team. Therefore, this industry
is relatively difficult to enter.
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(b)Pharmaceutical distribution and logistics

To comply applicable permits, including the PIC/S GMP GDP from
Ministry of Health and Welfare, international ISO certification, and pass
rigorous audits from pharmaceutical principals, a pharmaceutical distribution
and logistics center needs to build adequate warehousing space for medicine
storage and to flexibly adjust in line with market sales. This will allow them to
make timely deliveries to the patients in medical institutions, clinics, and
pharmacies. Furthermore, pharmaceutical distribution and logistics services
also include integrations of participation in tendering processes at hospitals,
price negotiation, low-temperature control, clinical and experimental
medicine management, restricted medicine management, information flow,
cash flow, logistics, and intelligence process flows. Therefore, it is difficult for
the general provider to cross over to this industry without sufficient related
experiences and economies of scale.

(3) Technology and R&D overview

|® Medical device sector |

Though the Company is not a manufacturer, we separately plan R&D strategies
based on products with National Health Insurance (NHI) coverage benefits and those
without. Fields and businesses that are covered by NHI will plan and adjust future
products based on the conditions and status of National Health Insurance
Administration’s insurance benefit policy. In terms of the self-pay medical market,
we maintain positive interactions with international principals and actively
introduce and market the latest medical devices.

[® Aesthetic medical sector |

Though the Group is not a manufacturer, we do have several educators and
product specialists who are dedicated to developing product strategies and
providing technical guidance. In addition, operational assistants are also available to
help clients to increase the use of consumables.

[® Pharmaceutical sales promotion and distribution logistics sector |

The major businesses that the Group is focused on sales promotions of medicine
and professional pharmaceutical supply chain management services. We are focused
on acquiring more agency to new products from principals and achieving
innovations in distribution, logistics and warehousing management services and
supply chain delivery services. The Group has set up product and business
development departments that focus on new medicine developments from
pharmaceutical principals, and actively evaluate and compete for distribution as well
as the creation of new businesses.

In terms of pharmaceutical logistics management, on top of sending employees
to participate in professional courses organized by the government and associations,
we also receive on-site audits from international quality management experts and
professional consulting advice from principals for multiple times in a year. We are
aligned with international pharmaceutical management standards and maintain
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world-class quality standards. Moreover, we also continuously reform and enhance
the service quality and benefits we provide to the principals and medical institutions
through new systems, new equipment and new processes devised by inter-
departmental service R&D programs.

(4) Short-term and long-term business plans

|® Medical device sector |

A. Short-term business development
In 2022, the company acquired 49% equity of NephroCare Limited and
Cardinal Medical Services Ltd. in the field of hemodialysis, expanding its network
in the hemodialysis channels. Additionally, we will actively pursue for agency of
medical products required by various medical specialties, aiming to develop a
diversified product sales business.
B. Long -term business development
Externally, the Company will integrate medical resources, introduce
competitive new products related to medical and healthcare, increase number of
strategic partners, continue to expand medical channels, and to expand to the rest
of Asia from our base in Taiwan to solidify a long-term, profitable basis. Internally,
we will simplify the organizational structure to reduce various administrative and
marketing costs and increase operation performance.

|® Aesthetic medical sector |

A. Short-term business development

a. AestheFill brand operation
The flagship product of the Group, AestheFill (commonly known as "EIf
Needle") achieved impressive sales performance in 2022. AestheFill is a
attractive product of Regen Biotech, Inc. from Korea. It is a dermal filler with a
new form of stimulation to proliferate from body collagen, which can safely and
naturally stimulate the regeneration and newborn of body collagen. The Group
will continue to promote it to sustain the market momentum and enhance brand
visibility.
b. Brands under Medytox operation
The Group serves as a agent for "Neuronox" botulinum toxin,
manufactured by Medytox Inc., a leading biopharmaceutical company listed on
the KOSDAQ (086900) in South Korea. "Neuronox" was successfully launched
in the market in 2022 and achieved impressive sales performance. In 2023, the
company aims to continue this wave of success by further driving sales
of "Neuronox" and also promoting the sales of "Neuramis Volume Lidocaine," a
hyaluronic acid dermal filler under the same brand.
c. Lifestyle beauty brand channels operation
The Group, in collaboration with Caregen Co., Ltd. (KOSDAQ: 214370),
has made a joint venture in the reinvestment of CYJ international Taiwan inc.
Through e-commerce and 25 physical channels, the Group successfully sells the
revolutionary hair care product "DR CY] " and provides scalp beauty therapy
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services, establishing a strong presence in the hair care market.To offer
consumers multiple options for beauty solutions, the Group is gradually
extending its courses and products to include facial skincare and hair care
products. In the physical channels, it has also introduced lifestyle beauty
treatments. In order to expand its beauty and wellness services, the Group
continues to introduce the 10th generation beauty device from
France, "LPG," and plans to introduce advanced facial beauty device, such
as "Hydrogen Water Shuttle", in various physical channels. This aims to provide
consumers with high-end and comprehensive beauty and wellness services.

In summary, the Group’s short-term goals are focused on expanding sales from
product portfolio, and will be dedicated to trending aesthetic medical products with
high growth and high margin in order to increase our profit margin. In addition, the
Group will stabilize revenues with business development by actively expanding
from aesthetic medical and other non-aesthetic medical products. By utilizing our
strengths in repairs and maintenance teams, we will also strengthen customer service.

B. Long-term business development

a. Market leader in aesthetic medical products
As a market pioneer, the Group will continue to develop and introduce
products that meet the latest and safest aesthetic medical trends to provide a
comprehensive range of skin and slimming aesthetic medical products. We will
expand our product range and contents to achieve the goal of becoming a leader
in aesthetic medical market in Taiwan.

b. Establish a comprehensive medical aesthetics consumables product line

The Group establishes the four major star products in the aesthetics
medical industry “Energy-based Aesthetic Devices”,” Body Shaping/Skin
Tightening”,” Cosmetic Neurotoxin” and “Facial Injectables”. With stable growth
in the fields of “Energy-based Aesthetic Devices”,” Body Shaping/Skin
Tightening” and “Facial Injectables” in the aesthetics medical sector, the Group is
actively expanding its product in the field of " Cosmetic Neurotoxin". This strategic
expansion aims to meet the diverse beauty needs of consumers. By providing a
wide range of products, the Group aims to cater to the evolving demands of its
customers and enhance customer loyalty.

c. One-stop aesthetic treatment provider
The Group is actively developing e-commerce channels. Scalp and skin
beauty products are sold through lively and diverse marketing strategies that
meet customer needs. In addition, to provide head-to-toe “beauty services” for
customers, the Group will actively integrate resources for beauty treatment
services from Excelsior Beauty Clinics and DR CYJ channels and provide one-
stop “beauty” experiences to customers.

In summary, the Group’s long-term development plan is focused on continuing
to introduce competitive aesthetic medical consumables and products with new
technologies and trends. The Group will develop and expand the channels for hair
growth treatment and enhance the overall competitiveness and professional image
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in the Asian aesthetic medical market.

|[® Pharmaceutical sales promotion and distribution logistics sector

A. Short-term business development

Pharmaceutical sales and promotions

a. Prescription drugs
Consolidate existing medicine for internal medicine, family medicine,
dermatology, and ophthalmology, such as high blood pressure, anti-infection,
anti-allergic, and gastrointestinal medications. Continue to promote psychiatric,
central nervous system drugs and hepatitis B drugs, such as the promotion of
antidepressant, antibipolar and schizophrenia treatments. Expand the self-pay
market for influenza antiviral treatment.

b. Non-prescription drugs
Refine operation of non- prescription drugs by expanding product lines at
existing channels for hair growth products, scalp care, quit smoking, oral care,
analgesics, cold medicine, stomach and antacids, dermatological treatment and
more.

Pharmaceutical distribution and logistics

a. Reinforce the Group own national cold chain and temperature-regulated
delivery fleet. To ensure the quality and safety of temperature-sensitive
products, temperature control and inspection will be conducted from
purchasing, storage, packaging, tallying, to delivery to the medical institutions.

b. Besides serving the existing pharmaceutical principals and CDC, the Group will
also adopt differentiated strategies to segment the market. Needs from various
major hospitals will be aligned with the pharmaceutical principals in order to
develop more competitive value chain services. The Group will strive to acquire
distribution and logistics services from domestic and foreign pharmaceutical
principals and clinical medicine companies.

B. Long-term business development

Pharmaceutical sales and promotions

Besides expanding the product lines to become more well-rounded, we will
actively seek for strategic partners and plan to horizontally expand into other
related specialist fields. Concurrently, by relying on the long-term development
with the Excelsior Group, we will seek agency and investment, and channel sales
and promotions of related pharmaceutical products. The Group will introduce
international high-quality medicine to local niche markets to achieve special
synergistic, competitive strengths.

Pharmaceutical distribution and logistics

a. Build and expand high-quality, high-efficiency, and high-satisfaction
international-scale temperature-controlled logistics center; sign long-term
contracts with pharmaceutical principals and develop more partners; connect
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the medical service systems with major hospitals throughout Taiwan to expand
the value chain and to provide even more quality services.

. Continue to invest toward developing automated IT and warehousing
management system; maintain leading strengths and service standards by
providing customized information and effective delivery; and provide even
better information and more satisfying logistics services for pharmaceutical and
medical device suppliers.

. Form strategic cooperation with local transportation companies to build an
integrated logistics service with professional division of work and synergies in
business. The Group will mutually expand and optimize the efficiency and
quality of distribution and logistics services in Taiwan in order to enhance
operational performance.

2. Market and Sales Overview

(1) Market analysis

A. Major products and service regions

Unit: NTD$ thousands

2020 2021
Year
Region Sales 9, Sales %
amount ° amount °

Domestic Sales | 6,351,482 95%| 6,273,083 95%

Export Sales 324,012 5%| 300,069 5%

Total 6,675494| 100%| 6,573,152  100%

B. Market share

[® Medical device sector |

a. Below are separate descriptions of the product market shares for sales and
marketing of hemodialysis products that the Company sells, which are
distributed to hemodialysis centers, hospitals and clinics throughout Taiwan:

Product Category Product Brands Market Share
Dialyzer Asahikasei, FMC, Nikkiso,
Scientillence
Blood tubing set FASFLO, Sunder
A.V. fistula needle FASFLO, Sunder .
. d approximatrly
Dialysate CHI SHENG, E-STRONG 30%
Transducer
Protector Sunder
Hemodialysis Nikkiso, FMC
machine
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b. Below are the sales ratio for the Company’s operating sites, including department
stores and hypermarkets throughout Taiwan and online shopping:

Product Category Product Brands Sales Ratio
. e Fasflo ULTRACLEAN and o
Home air purifiers 5%
agency brand
DOSHISHA Agency brand 25%
Electrolux Distribution brand 50%

c. Pursuant to request from Taiwan Blood Services Foundation, blood bags are in
special specification with JMS brand, in the following market share:

Product Category Product Brands Market Share
approximatrly
Blood bags JMS 40°%

d. The major products from the range of surgical consumables that the Company
sells on behalf of Medtronic are auto suture and energy-based devices. Currently,
nearly all medical institutions with operating rooms in Taiwan are our customers:

Product Category Product Brands Market Share
Auto suture and imatrl
energy-based Medtronic appr(z)él;n ary
devices °

[® Aesthetic medical sector |

The Group aims to establish a complete aesthetics medical industry chain by
providing customers with aesthetics medical and lifestyle beauty devices,
consumables, maintenance services, as well as lifestyle beauty treatments and
services. Currently, there is no similar industry data or sales statistics available in
the domestic market. However, based on the Group's revenue in 2022, its market
share is estimated to be approximately 1% of the Asian market.

|® Pharmaceutical sales promotion and distribution logistics sector |

Currently, we serve customers throughout Taiwan and the outlying islands
including Penghu, Kinmen, and Mazu. Our customers include medical centers,
regional hospitals, local hospitals, clinics, pharmacies, and hypermarkets. Based on
data from IQVIA, in terms of promotions for specialized areas, the Group owns the
No. 1 market share in marketing and promotions for specialized divisions such as
erectile dysfunction, while our hair growth and quit smoking products have also
achieved market leadership positions.

C. Future supply and demand of the market and its potential

|® Medical device sector |

a. Medical device market
In perspective of supply, major production regions for medical devices
worldwide include America, Europe, and East Asia. In terms of country, the
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United States, Japan, and Germany are the key players in global medical devices
industry. Since the aforementioned three countries have been developing this
industry for many years and both scaled their businesses as well as continue to
invest in R&D in each year to innovate products to satisfy the latest medical
needs, as well as having achieved various product patents and certifications
around the world, they can maintain their market leader positions in terms of
supply in the precision medical devices market.

As for demand, most of the need for medical devices come from developed
countries, and there is a high positive correlation between the medical and
healthcare needs and income. As the economy grows, gross domestic product
(GDP) increases and social medical insurance becomes more comprehensive,
the percentage of medical expense on the national income also increases
accordingly. Therefore, developed countries would have the highest need for
healthcare.

The Industrial Economics & Knowledge Center (IEK) from the Industrial
Technology Research Institute (ITRI) has also indicated in its research report on
healthcare industry development that, as we approach an aging society, the
need to care for patients with chronic illnesses and related medical expenses
will increase year-by-year. The global populations aged 65+ will reach a peak
between 2011 to 2029, and this will rapidly change the structure of the
population pyramid, leading the percentage of overall medical and healthcare
expenditure on the GDP to grow in each year.

As the baby boom population, born after the World War II, begin to face
the loss of physiological functions and require caring in the form of medical
resources, and human lifespan is prolonged from the advancement of modern
technology, thereby leading to substantial needs for medical devices and related
healthcare products, the medical device industry is expected to show robust
growth in line with aging societies and the gradual awareness for health around
the world.

b. Taiwan’'s hemodialysis market

In terms of supply, according to the Total hemodialysis Out-Patient
Professional Medical Service Quality Report from the National Health
Insurance Administration and Taiwan Society of Nephrology, in the fourth
quarter of 2022, there were 759 medical institutions that provided hemodialysis
treatment, in which 341 were located in northern Taiwan, 213 in southern
Taiwan, and 205 in central Taiwan. In terms of the scale of medical institutions,
22 of which were medical centers, 68 were regional hospitals, 171were district
hospitals, and 498 were primary clinics. As a whole, hemodialysis treatment at
medical institutions in Taiwan shows a steady upward trend.

In terms of demand, Taiwan has a high proportion of the population
requiring renal dialysis, and the number continues to increase each year.
Additionally, with the aging population trend, it is projected that the renal
dialysis population in Taiwan will maintain an annual growth rate of 2-3% in
the coming years. Thanks to the implementation of the National Health
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Insurance system, medical expenses for hemodialysis treatment for end-stage
renal failure patients have largely decreased, and such patients can have access
to long-term treatment. As the technology and quality of hemodialysis both
continue to mature and the patients’ survival rates continue to grow
accordingly; combined with the understanding and emphasis of the public for
end-stage renal failure and how patients’ lives can be extended through
hemodialysis technology, the number of patients have also grown in each year.
Statistical data from the National Kidney Foundation R.O.C. indicates that, as
the fourth quarter of 2022, there are as many as 93,000 hemodialysis patients in
Taiwan. The annual growth rate of hemodialysis patients in the past five years
has been approximately 2%, showing that the number of hemodialysis patients
in Taiwan continues to show steady growth trend.

|® Aesthetic medical sector |

As for supply, most of the aesthetic medical devices and dermal fillers in
Taiwan are mostly imported from Europe and the United States. In terms of
demand, the market demand for aesthetic laser is highly positively correlated with
income. The aforementioned demand can be classified as aesthetic medical
treatments primed for anti-ageing from a more senior population, and those in
pursuit of facial contour. As the COVID-19 pandemic gradually eases, consumers
are starting to regain confidence and are more open to receiving aesthetic medical
treatments. The Asia-Pacific region's aesthetic medical market is experiencing a
revival and showing a significant leap in growth.

|® Pharmaceutical sales promotion and distribution logistics sector |

a. Pharmaceutical sales and promotions

(a)Estimates based on data from IQVIA have indicated that, the CAGR of
pharmaceutical market in Taiwan can be maintained at steady 3-5%.
Moreover, since Taiwan has reached an aging society and citizens” average
life expectancy is over 80 years old, medicine use for chronic illnesses will
gradually increase, making the pharmaceutical market in Taiwan a steadily
growing market.

(b)Since the approval and launch of new medicine from major international
pharmaceutical principals are often slow, coupled with patents from
numerous best-selling medicine expiring, it has become necessary for many
international principals to cut down on HR costs and operating expenses to
effectively control costs in dealing with price competitions from generic
drugs. Furthermore, as the expenditure of NHI medicine are reduced, many
of the international pharmaceutical principals that operate in Taiwan are
choosing to outsource their sales and promotions in the future. The
possibility of collaborating with specialized channel with high coverage is
also increasing accordingly. In other words, having a specialized, long-term
operated professional team is the critical factor to achieving specialized
treatment fields. Besides creating the maximum value and benefits in the
industry, it also makes the Group the most competitive, unique, and difficult
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to imitate or replace.

b. Pharmaceutical distribution and logistics
(a)Drastic changes in business models of pharmaceutical principals;
increasingly reliant on outsourcing
Since the approval and launch of new medicine from major international
pharmaceutical principals are often slow, coupled with patents from
numerous best-selling medicine expiring, it has become necessary for many
international principals to cut down on costs in dealing with price
competitions from generic drugs. In addition, under Taiwan’s National
Health Insurance system, the National Health Insurance Administration has
come to dramatically reduce medicine expenditure every other year, leading
major foreign pharmaceutical principals to continuously dispose of their
production facilities and warehouse in Taiwan. The principals have come to
utilize external resources and strengths by outsourcing both pharmaceutical
storage and management and delivery to large-scale professional logistics
distributors to significantly reduce their own operating costs and to enjoy
quality services under a professional division of work system. Having
established a trend of outsourcing distribution and logistics management,
the multinational pharmaceutical principals can better focus on their core
competences. Their reliance on distribution and logistics companies capable
of accepting and integrating logistics and distribution services and have
mapped out comprehensive, high-coverage channels, will only continue to
grow. Providers capable of meeting compliant standards will also become
more concentrated.

(b) Sustainable development of the National Health Insurance system

To promote the sustainable development of the NHI system, besides
amending relevant benefits system, the National Health Insurance
Administration has also reduced the expenditure of NHI medicine and
materials/supplies. This has already impacted the revenues of medical
institutions, and to reduce operating costs and enhance service quality, more
and more hospitals have opted to outsource non-core businesses. Following
this trend, hospitals will have even higher demands and form more
partnerships with providers capable of integrating the pharmaceutical
supply chain.

D. Competitive niches, favorable and unfavorable factors for future development and
countermeasures
a.Competitive niche

[® Medical device sector |

Through establishing a comprehensive channel system using healthcare
management model and building positive, symbiotic relations with both domestic
and foreign medical manufacturers, the Company can solidify its position between
the demand side and the supply chain and is in a better position to acquire quality
products at lower price. As a whole, the Company has a more competitive niche
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over the industry competitors.

[® Aesthetic medical sector |

Having built mutual-beneficial relations with both domestic and foreign
aesthetic medical suppliers for many years, the Group has a firm presence in the
supply and demand chains. Since we provide many products and services,
including “Energy-based Aesthetic Devices”, “Body Shaping/Skin Tightening”,
“Cosmetic Neurotoxin” and “Facial Injectables”, we can provide more diverse and
competitive products and services to customers.

All engineers in our excellent repair and maintenance team have received
equipment repairs and maintenance training from both principals and the Group.
In addition, the Group has a complete range of parts and components, and all
service calls can be completed within 48 hours. On top of positive reviews from
customers regarding our quality and speed of repair/maintenance, we have also
gained many accolades from the principals.

Equipped with a marketing and education/training team, most of our training
concerns specifications and operation, advertising and promotions. We also
organize various education and training courses for beauty consultants and nurses,
and collaborate with the principals to instruct doctors to use aesthetic medical
devices. In addition, we also cooperate with major medical centers throughout
Taiwan to train doctors’ professional skills in laser treatment.

All in all, the Group’s core abilities lie in leading market trends, enhancing
marketing services, providing quick repair/maintenance services, and sparing no
effort in operational consultation. We provide continuous service to support
customers’ market competitiveness, and have a better competitive edge over our
industry competitors.

[® Pharmaceutical sales promotion and distribution logistics sector |

(a)Strong pharmaceutical sales network

The Group’s pharmaceutical sales network is extensive in both breadth and
depth. Our customers include medical institutions of varying hierarchy, clinics,
chain drugstores, single-store pharmacies, and hypermarkets (currently, we
have nearly 10,000 customers and cover almost 12,000 sites), enabling us to
provide strong channel coverage and specialized promotional teams of
international service standards for principals.

To maintain competitive strength and quality customer service, all
members of the sales team use the latest technological tools (e.g. tablet
computers and cloud-based sales management system). Besides
comprehensively providing real-time marketing information, the customer
relations management (CRM) system also provides real-time updates on
professional knowledge including international medical conferences, clinical
reports, product information, and new medical knowledge to doctors and
pharmacists, thereby enhancing our service speed and efficiency.

(b)High barriers to entry in professional fields
The Group has been deeply involved in the treatment of erectile
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dysfunction in family medicine and urology for many years. Due to the
professional and experienced sales capabilities of the management team, this
core expertise is not easy for competitors to copy, and we have maintained a
leading edge for many years. Coupled with the reinforcement of peripheral
products, the products are more complete and competitive.

(c)The Group’s highly integrated medical channel operations help to create
synergies
Having years of experience in marketing and sales, our Marketing and
Sales team works closely with various departments, including New Product
Development, verification and Registration, Customer Service, Tender,
Channel Development, Legal Compliance, and IT. We also actively participate
in medical conferences in each year to understand the latest pharmaceutical
development and seize new trends and opportunities in product development.
In addition, by utilizing the Excelsior Group’s strong resources in Taiwan’s
medical market, our expansions into various medical channels in Taiwan have
been very competitive.

(d)High customer satisfaction
Having achieved high customer satisfaction over the years, our market
shares have often trumped products in the same categories, which helped us to
win positive recognition from the pharmaceutical principals. In addition, to
give back to the community, we also strove to provide healthcare education to
communities as well as continuing education for medical professionals,
winning many praises from National Pharmacist Pharmacy.

(e)Service quality meets international standards

Partners of the Group are all renowned major international pharmaceutical
principals. Due to their rigorous requirements for pharmaceutical storage and
delivery, audits from international quality management experts would be
carried out by the pharmaceutical principals in each year. Relevant evaluation
on service performance is also conducted. Our service performance and audit
results have both satisfied our partners, indicating that besides meeting local
service requirements, our service quality are also on a par with international
standards.

b.Favorable factors affecting the Group’s development prospects

(a) Government actively supporting biotech industry, and medical industry has a
favorable prospect
The “Three-Year Spring Plan of the Economy Development Vision 2015,”
approved by the Executive Yuan in 2006, has listed the biotechnology industry
as a “key development manufacturing industry”. The “Biotech and New
Pharmaceutical Development Act,” announced in 2007, encourages private
investment in an effort to focus on developing the biotech industry. It is
expected to drive economic transformation in the future. Fundamentally
speaking, the government’s proactive attitude will help to develop industries
related to medical and healthcare.
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(b) Increases in GDP, changes in lifestyle, and the aging society

In recent years, the national GDP in Taiwan has continuously increased in
line with economic growth. The public is increasingly focused on healthcare,
leading to significant increase in the demand for medical devices and products
from related healthcare businesses. Statistical data from the Ministry of the
Interior, Executive Yuan has indicated that, as of December 2022, 4.08 million of
Taiwan’s population was aged 65 or more. This new historical record accounts
for 17% of the total population. It can be anticipated that the increasing severity
of the aging population issue in Taiwan will expand the demand for domestic
and foreign medical products, leading to even better development
opportunities for healthcare related industries.

(c) Sound financial structure helps business expansion
After going through public issuance processes, the Company and the
Group are now aligned with the capital market and our shares are now either
listed on the TWSE or the TPEx. These efforts indicate our operation efforts are
obvious, and that our shareholding structure is robust. With sound
management and indications of industry value, we can further cultivate the
medical business in the future.

(d) Effective resource integration

The company's management philosophy is to bulid a comprehensive
medical and healthcare holding enterprise. In essence, the company operates as
a system integration channels distributor. Hence, the Company has adopted
diverse agency means to acquire distribution rights of quality products through
investments, and in line with diverse marketing and management and
consulting services provided to medical institutions, we have extended our core
business and cultivated the market channels, allowing us to effectively provide
comprehensive services to our customers. In the future, we will guide high-
quality medical services around the world to enter multinational markets.

(e) Talent employee development, better benefits system, and building strong
employee cohesion
On top of continuously building our market competitiveness, we also strive
toward developing talent employee. Through diverse training methods
including new employee training, professional skills training, management
skills training, and team-building, we have developed employees” professional
skills, leadership skills, innovative thinking, and management capabilities.
Furthermore, to reward employees and to build teamwork, we also regularly
organize activities such as annual employee travels and Excelsior Family Day
to show teamwork among employees and to foster employee cohesion

c.Unfavorable factors affecting the Group’s development prospects

(a) Risk of exchange rate fluctuations
The foreign exchange market experienced dramatic fluctuations in line
with global economic changes in 2022. The Company is in an industry with
foreign exchange needs, and holds different currencies due to different
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procurement sources. Therefore, we hold an appropriate portfolio of foreign

exchange to seek for the greatest hedging possibility. Relevant countermeasures

are as follows:

i. Purchase forward foreign exchange based on business needs.

ii. Building consensus with suppliers to mutually share foreign exchange risks;
in case the fluctuation in foreign exchange increases, we will renegotiate
product prices with suppliers, or to transact with the contracted, fixed
exchange rate.

iii. Adding price differentials due to foreign exchange into the price quotation
system to protect the Company’s interest.

iv.The finance department will adjust foreign exchange positions based on
fluctuations in foreign exchange.

v. The hedging of foreign currencies are alternatives to one another, and can be
procured using Euros, USD, and JPY, the Company will adjust our
procurement portfolio based on their relations to NTD.

(b) High product concentration and reliance
Currently, the medical market in Taiwan mostly relies on imports, and we
sign distribution contracts with overseas suppliers. In case changes to
distribution rights occur, the Company’s operations will be affected.

Countermeasures to which are as follow:

i. Win over overseas quality suppliers through our sales performance, and to
form a buyer’s market through our solid channel strengths, so that overseas
suppliers will not easily consider changing distributors from a revenue
perspective.

ii. Form cooperation with upstream suppliers to jointly operate and expand the
market through profit-sharing.

iii.Co-host academic courses with foreign manufacturers, conduct clinical
research with medical centers, and establish an Asia-Pacific Teaching Center
so that manufacturers will be more reliant on the Company and would need
to assist us to develop regional markets.

(c) NHI adopts global budget payment system and shrinks profitability from the
medical industry
Though financial challenges for the National Health Insurance

Administration were somewhat alleviated due to supplementary premium, but

the medical institutions are still faced with pressures related to point values for

NHI benefits, leading to unstable revenues in each specialization. This practice

will impact the medical industries in Taiwan, and relevant countermeasures are

listed as follows:

i. Reduce the ratio of NHI benefit products and introduce self-pay products
such as healthcare home appliances and long-term care.

ii. Practice market segmentation through providing more delicate and
professional self-pay aesthetic medical services, and to expand the market to
other overseas Chinese markets.

iii.In response to expected patent expiration of pharmaceutical products, on top
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of searching for new items to strengthen our product portfolio, by relying on
our unique specialization marketing, we can also effectively, vertically
integrate the resources from specialized products from upstream
pharmaceutical principals with the demand from downstream end-users.
This will also help the Group to practice effective cost control.

(2) Important uses of the main products and the production process

A. Major products in the medical industry include hemodialysis, healthcare home
appliances, medical devices, blood bags, wound and ostomy and surgical
consumables. Below are descriptions of their important uses:

a. Hemodialysis products: a kidney disease patient cannot filter water and
unwanted nitrogen, creatinine, and uric acide from the human body. By using
the hemodialysis machine and dialyzer to filter blood, the patient can regain
short-term physical functions.

b. Healthcare home appliances: used to improve the air quality in the day-to-day
lives.

c. Blood bags: used to store blood.

d. Wound and Ostomy: after gastrectomy, patients use ostomy in place of the anus
or urethra in excrement.

e. Surgical consumables: medical devices and consumables used on patients in
surgeries.

B. Major products from aesthetic medical industry are energy-based devices and
consumables, which can convey beauty to the users once operated by professional
doctors, so that users can achieve physical and mental well-being.

C. Major products from pharmaceutical sales promotion and distribution logistics
industry are sales and promotions of prescription drugs, non-prescription drugs,
and healthcare consumer products, which are coordinated with customer service,
tender processes, information, cash flow, and warehousing and inventory logistics,
thereby constructing a well-rounded supply chain integration service.

D. The Company and the Group are not manufacturers, and do not have production
line processes.

(3) Supply of key material

Neither the company nor the group is a manufacturer, so it is not applicable.
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(5) Production volume and value in the last two years: Not applicable.

(6) Sales volume and value in the last two years
Unit: NT$ thousands

Year 2021 2022
Sales Volume| Domestic Sales Export Sales Domestic Sales Export Sales
and Value
Major Volume | Value | Volume | Value | Volume | Value | Volume | Value
Products
Surgical 2,337,274{ 1,612,322 0 0| 2,273,633|1,711,717 0 0
consumables

Dialyzers, blood
tubing set and A.V. (11,135,391| 1,151,041 374,151| 23,325|11,874,250|1,117,855| 1,674,237| 12,689
fistula needles

Erythropoietin
(EPO), concentrated
solution and
powders

3,972,094 737,849 941,533(109,466| 3,850,072 741,360| 1,129,605| 109,316

Medicine 2,587,512 719,332 6,953 886| 3,178,596| 767,069 9,958 855

Aesthetic medical
consumables and 570,910 42,524 744,235 16,044
spare parts

Blood bags wound | 590 565 50 373 0 0| 653,038 234,458 0 0
and ostomy product
Aesthetic medical 161| 173,194 4| 4272 176 232,907, 0 0
devices
Home appliances 41,962 160,457 0 0 41,747| 202,742 0 0
lifestyle beauty
products and 0 84,680 0 0 0| 168,315 0 0
treatment services
Medical devices 845| 78,872 119| 28,100, 278 61,629 61 13,514
Others 0| 778,053 0| 91,496 0| 961,431 0 90,692
Total 20,673,801| 6,273,083 1,322,760(300,069( 21,871,790| 6,943,718| 2,813,861| 243,110
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3. Employees

(1)The following table summarizes the company’s workforce as of the printing date of
the annual report

As of

Year 2021 2022 March 31, 2023

Number of Zl)acl)r‘lla;ger level and 105 102 103
emplOyees gt level 659 766 781
Total 764 868 884
Average age 34.96 35.08 35.16]
Average years of service 7.20 7.08 7.00
Ph.D 0.13% 0.12% 0.11%

Master 5.50% 5.88% 5.77%

Education  |Bachelor 77.22% 71.20% 72.96%
background g, ;o High School 11.78% 19.70% 17.99%
SBCe}II(;\:;IISemor High 5.37% 3.11% 3.17%

(2)Certification of employees whose jobs are related to the release of the company’s
financial information
Certified Internal Auditor (CIA) : 1 person.

4. Disbursements for Environmental Protection
Total losses (including damage awards) and fines for environmental pollution
during the most recent years and up to the date of publication of the Annual Report, and
the measures (including corrective measures) and possible expenditures to be made in
the future: None.
Relevant information in response to the EU Restriction of Hazardous Substances
(RoHS): Not applicable.

5. Labor Relations
(1)Employees’ welfare policies, continuing education, training, retirement system and
its implementation, as well as employment negotiations, and employees’ rights and
interests

A. Company benefits and measures

a. Labor insurance: carried out in accordance with regulations from the Labor
Standards Act.

b. National health insurance (NHI): carried out in accordance with regulations from
the National health Insurance Act.

c. Group insurance: The Company covers full group insurance, which includes
employees' regular life insurance, accident insurance, hospital medical insurance
and occupational injury insurance.

d. Employee health examination: To ensure the health and safety of our employees,
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the Company regularly organizes free health checkup in every year to assist

employees to understand the subtle changes in their bodies.

e. Employee compensations: Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation,
in case profits are made in a year, the Board of Directors will propose no less than
1 percent of the profits as compensations for employees. The compensations will
be approved by the Board of Directors meeting and submitted to the
Shareholders' Meeting.

f. Year-end bonus: To be appropriated based on the Company’s operational
performance of the year. The bonus will be appropriated before Lunar New Year
and calculated based on the period of an employee's employment with the
Company. Targets of bonus will be current employees at the time of distribution.

g. Employee benefits system and status (using the Company as an example)

(a)1% was appropriated from the Company's total capital when it was founded.

(b)0.075% is appropriated from the Company's total monthly operating revenue.

(c)0.5% is appropriated from the monthly pay of each employee.

(d)Benefits are used toward: benefits and subsidies (marriage, childbirth,
employee’s birthday, funeral/disease subsidies, and emergency relief and
more), activities (employee travels, birthday parties, club activities, and arts
and cultural activities etc.), other benefits such as Dragon Boat Festival, Mid-
Autumn Festival, and year-end party and more.

B. Continuous education and training

a. New recruits

(a)The HR Office will walk the new recruits through work rules, provide a
company overview, and introduce them to the office environment and
acquaint them with coworkers on their first day at the Company.

(b)New employee training courses are regularly held by the HR Office, and the
courses include: an introduction to the Company's organization and
departments/responsibilities, various internal management procedures,
Employee Welfare Committee, IT system, network environment, and NOTES
system.

b. On-the-job training: annual training budget is prepared for all employees, and on-
the-job training is coordinated by the HR Office on a
quarterly basis.

c. Professional training: 1 or 2 sessions of professional training for Company

products are provided by product supplier in each year.

d. The Group organizes “teaching by experience” internal training via the HR Office

on a monthly basis. In addition, the Group also provides additional continuous

studies courses to employees based on business needs

C. Retirement system and measures
Retirement system and measures: pursuant to regulations from the Labor
Standards Act, 2% is appropriated from the total wage of employees applicable for
the pension scheme on a monthly basis, and deposited at dedicated accounts at
CTC pursuant to legal regulations. Starting from July 1, 2005, retirement system is
implemented in compliance with applicable regulations from the Labor Pension
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Act.

D. Employment negotiations

We have always persisted in a mission to care for our employees. We adopt bi-
lateral communications for policy advocacy, employee opinion and employee
coaching, and we also regularly organize employment meeting as a channel of
bilateral communications. This helps the Company to achieve mutual cooperation,
quality improvements, employee competency enhancements, employment
conditions improvements, as well as to protect employees’ rights and interests,
enhance employees’ benefits, to look after their daily lives, and to assist the
government to implement policies.

E. Measures for protecting employees’ rights
On top of establishing the legally stipulated Employee Welfare Committee and
Supervisory Committee of Labor Retirement Reserve to coordinate employee
benefits and the planning, appropriations, safekeeping, usage, and related legal
standards related to pension reserve as well as to serve as channels of
communication with the Company, all measures to protect and implement
employees' rights and benefits are carried out pursuant to legal standards.

F. Employee code of conduct or ethics
The Company has formulated Employee Work Rules and Information

Technology Security Policy as the basis for compliance during employees' day-to-

day work and conduct. Employees shall abide by the following Ethical Corporate

Management Best Practice Principles:

a. When engaging in commercial activities, employees shall not directly or
indirectly offer, promise to offer, request or accept any improper benefits,
including rebates, commissions, facilitation fees, or otherwise offer or accept
improper benefits to or from customers, agents, contractors, suppliers, public
servants, or other stakeholders. However, this is not limited to actions that
comply with local regulations.

b. When making or offering donations and sponsorship, employees shall comply
with relevant laws and regulations and internal operational procedures and
shall not surreptitiously engage in bribery.

c. When directly or indirectly offering a donation to political parties or
organizations or individuals participating in political activities, employees shall
comply with the Political Donations Act and the Company's own relevant
internal operational procedures, and shall not make such donations in exchange
for commercial gains or business advantages.

d. Employees shall not directly or indirectly offer or accept any unreasonable
presents, hospitality or other improper benefits to establish business
relationship or influence commercial transactions.

G. Protective measures of employees” work environment and employee safety, and
implementations

To fulfill corporate social responsibility and to protect the safety of our

employees, and seeking the provision of a safe, healthy, and comfortable work
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environment as our goal, the Company is fully committed to advocating for

occupational safety and health policy to foster a positive awareness in our

employees and to maintain their physical and mental health.

The following relevant measures have been implemented:

a. Strengthen occupational training to reduce potential workplace hazards and
decrease occurrences of occupational hazards.

b. File labor insurance, national health insurance, and group insurance for
employees and to establish an Employee Welfare Committee. Organize
employee health checkup in every year

c. Conducts fire safety campaigns twice a year to implement various disaster
prevention and contingency responses.

d. Impose strict access control to ensure the personal safety of employee.

e. According to § 22 of the Occupational Safety and Health Law, employers provide
working workers with the most basic health checkup protection. Since 2022, the
company has entrusted the nursing personnel of Xin Tai General Hospital to
provide on-site services, such as post-health checkup report evaluation
interview, Health consultations and lectures, etc., are for physicians to visit
twice a year for 2 hours each time, and for nursing personnel twice a month for
2 hours each time.

(2) Losses arising from labor disputes in the most recent year up to the publication date
of this Annual Report and disclosure of potential current and future losses and
countermeasures therefrom: None.
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6. Cyber Security Management
(1).Cyber security policies framework
In 2022, the company established the cyber security management section and
appointed senior executives to oversee the implementation of existing cyber security
management measures. The department is responsible for strengthening the
development of the company's cyber security management policies and organizing the
overall planning. We regularly formulate comprehensive policies and conduct
awareness campaigns to promote a strong understanding of cyber security among
employees. The department also provides training to enhance employees' awareness of
their responsibilities and concepts related to cyber security. These efforts aim to ensure
the secure and stable operation of the company's core business information systems.
(2).Specific cyber security management
All employee and information systems operators are required to adhere to the
guidelines for executing computer processing cycles, and cyber security management
measures include:
(a).Personnel account and authority management procedures
(b).System development procedures
(c).Data input and output control
(d).Data backup procedures
(e).Data transmission security control procedures
(f).System recovery plan
(g).Procedures for computer network crime and crisis prevention
(h).Procedures for computer network system security control
(i).Cyber security policies
The cyber security management section periodically publishes and promotes cyber
security messages to enhance the awareness of cyber security risks among employees.
Regular cyber security audits are conducted semi-annually among employees,
accompanied by education and training on basic cyber security measures and awareness.
The company's host servers and other terminal devices are equipped with antivirus
software, and the deployment of antivirus codes and policies is centrally managed by
dedicated server administrators. This ensures real-time protection against any potential
threats, effectively reducing the risk of operational disruptions. In addition, the
company has established a backup environment for core business information systems,
including daily tape backups and a backup system located in the Kaohsiung office,
which operates in sync 24/7. This setup prevents operational disruptions in case of any
issues with the core information systems. The company places great importance on data
security. Data is backed up daily through network-attached storage (NAS) servers and
also backed up on tape drives. The tapes are stored offsite on a weekly basis, with
rotational backups performed in batches. Regular offsite backups of data from different
regions are conducted weekly to prevent any unknown forms of cyber security risks
and ensure the integrity and security of important data. The company conducts offsite
backup recovery drills for core information systems every six months and offsite system
restoration drills every two years to ensure the normal operation of the backup and
recovery information system environment.
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(3).Notification of cyber security incident
In recent years, up until the printing of the annual report, the company has
consistently strengthened internal and external cyber security awareness. We have
progressively developed an incident reporting and response mechanism for cyber
security incidents to ensure proper response, control, and handling of such events.
Thanks to the efforts of all employees, we have had no significant cyber security
incidents or any financial and operational losses caused by security incidents in 2022.
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7. Important Contracts
All important contracts that could affect shareholder rights as of the date of printing
of the annual report, including supply and sales contracts, technical cooperation

contracts, engineering contracts, long-term loan contracts and others.

(1) The Company
Nature of - |Counterp| o6 of contract Content Restrictive clauses
contract arty
Procurement and
agency / AA - N .
distribution Company 2023/01/01~2023/12/31 Hemodialysis machine None
contract
Procurement and
agency / AB - Hemodialysis disinfectant . . .
distribution Company 2019/11/01~2023/10/31 solution Restricted to sales in Taiwan
contract
Procurement and
agency / AC N Licensed distribution of . . .
distribution Company 2020/04/01~2025/03/31 dialyzers Restricted to sales in Taiwan
contract
Procurement and Restricted to sales in channels
agency / AD N Agency for long-lasting  [from hemodialysis clinics (with
distribution Company 2022/10/01~2024/09/30 Erythropoietin (EPO) exception of package sales in
contract hospitals)
Procurement and Restricted to sales in channels
agency / AE N . from hemodialysis clinics (with
distribution Company 2022/10/01~2024/09/30 | Cinacalcet exception of package sales in
contract hospitals)
Procurement and AF Hemodialysis blood
agency / 2020/01/01~2023/12/31  |tubing set and A.V. fistula |Restricted to sales in Taiwan
distribution Company
contract needles
Procurement and
agency / AG N Exclusive distribution in
e Company [2020/01/01~2023/12/31  |Blood bags aiwan
contract
Procurement and
agenc; AH X
di trig’u{m Company 2022/05/01~2023/04/30  |Surgical consumables None
contract
Procurement and
agency /|AI N Licensed distribution of . . .
distribution Company 2023/01/01~2025/12/31 dialyzers Restricted to hospitals/ clinics
contract
Agency . .
/Distribution Al 2023/01/01~2027/12/31 | Flemeodialysis blood Exclusive sales in Taiwan
contract Company tubing set
Commissioned AK Production of Including warehousing and
manufacturing C 2015/01/01~2024/12/31  |hemodialysis concentrated logisti g s
Contract ompany solution ogistics
Supply AL _ Blood bag distribution
Agreements Company 2023/01/01~2023/12/31 contract None
Supply AM _ Long-lasting
Agreements Company 2021/07/01~2023/12/31 Erythropoietin (EPO) None
Supply AN Hemodialysis
Agreements Company 2023/08/01~2026/07/30 consumables and devices None
AO Hemodialysis
Pack tract ~
ackage contrac Company 2020/12/01~2025/11/30 consumables and devices None
AP N Hemodialysis
Package contract Company 2017/01/01~2022/12/31 consumables and devices None
Package contract |AQ N Hemodialysis
Company 2019/03/01~2025/02/28 consumables and devices None
Package contract (AR Hemodialysis
Company 2020/12/01~2023/11/30 consumables and devices None
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Nature of  |Counterp Terms of contract Content Restrictive clauses
contract arty
AS Hemodialysis
2022/04/11~2027/04/1
Package contract Company 022/04/ 027/04/10 consumables and devices None
Lease contract AT 2023/01/01~2027/12/31 Leage for hemodialysis None
Company devices
. Th company nominates
A
Joint venture U 2022/04 two directors and general |None
agreement Company manager
S AV Dialyzers, hemodialysis Dlstrlbgtloq channel h“?“?d to
upply agreement 2022/04 - hemodialysis centers within
Company machine and consumables |. .
joint venture companies
Purchase and sale |AW Sale of real estate in
agreement Company 2023/01 Taichung None
(2) Dynamic
Nature of |Counterp .
contract arty Terms of contract Content Restrictive clauses
June 19, 2018; contract
Procurement shall continue in effect
and agency /  |BA unless breach of contract . . . . . .
distribution Company [or the contract has been Aesthetic medical devices Restricted to sales in Taiwan
contract terminated by either one
of the parties.
P March 27, 2020; contract
rocurement g !
and agency /  |BB shau continue in effect ) ) ) ) ) )
O until it has been Aesthetic medical devices Restricted to sales in Taiwan
distribution Company . .
terminated by either one
contract N
of the parties.
Procurement
a1_1d agency /|BC 2023/01/01~2025/12/31 |Aesthetic medical devices Restricted to sales in Taiwan
distribution Company
contract
January 4, 2007; contract
Procurement shall continue in effect
and agency /  |BD unless breach of contract . . . . . .
distribution Company [or the contract has been Aesthetic medical devices Restricted to sales in Taiwan
contract terminated by either one
of the parties.
Procurement
ar}d agency / |BE 2022/01/01~2023/12/31 |Aesthetic medical devices Restricted to sales in Taiwan
distribution Company
contract
Procurement
and agency /  |BF N . . . .
distribution Company 2016/12/12~2026/12/11 |Skin care products Restricted to sales in Taiwan
contract
Procurement
and agency /- |1BG 2017/04/10~2023/12/31 |Aesthetic medical devices  |Restricted to sales in Taiwan
distribution Company
contract
Procurement
al}d agency /  |BH 2018/01/03~2023/12/31 [Aesthetic medical devices Restricted to sales in Taiwan
distribution Company
contract
March 1, 2018; contract
Procurement shall continue in effect
a1'1d asency /B unless breach of contract Aesthetic medical devices Restricted to sales in Taiwan
distribution Company |or the contract has been
contract terminated by either one
of the parties.
Procurement
and agency /  [B] N I X . . e
distribation Company 2020/08/01~2025/07/24 |Distribution of dermal fillers  |Restricted to sales in Philippines
contract
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Nature of |Counterp Terms of contract Content Restrictive clauses
contract arty
Procurement
and agency /  |BK " . . . .
Sistribution Company 2022/04/15~2025/04/14 |Skin care products Restricted to sales in Taiwan
contract
Pr(élcurement BL Aesthetic medical devices, skin
and agency / 2022/07/01~2026/06/30 |care products and distribution [Restricted to sales in Taiwan
distribution Company of dermal fillers
contract
Procurement
ar}d asency / |BM 2022/06/01~2028/05/31 |Aesthetic medical devices Restricted to sales in Taiwan
distribution Company
contract
Procurement
and agency /  [SciVision N o X . . .
distribution Biotech Inc. 2022/01/01~2024/12/31 |Distribution of dermal fillers |Restricted to sales in Taiwan
contract
Procurement
and agency /  |[BN _ e . . . .
distribuation Company 2019/09/16~2024/09/15 |Distribution of dermal fillers |Restricted to sales in Taiwan
contract
(3) Arich
Nature of “|Counterp| ro.q of contract Content Restrictive clauses
contract arty
Distribution cA Distribution and logistics
and Logistis Compan 2020/12~2023/11 services of pharmaceutical Restricted to sales in Taiwan
lagreement pany [products
Distribution B [Distribution and logistics
and Logistis Compan: 2020/12~2023/11 services of pharmaceutical Restricted to sales in Taiwan
agreement pany products
Distribution cc Distribution and logistics
and Logistis Compan 2020/12~2023/11 services of pharmaceutical Restricted to sales in Taiwan
lagreement pany [products
Distribution D [Distribution and logistics
and Logistis Compan 2021/01~2023/12 services of pharmaceutical Restricted to sales in Taiwan
agreement pany products
Distribution CE Distribution and logistics
and Logistis Compan 2021/07~2024/06 services of medical equipment  [Restricted to sales in Taiwan
agreement pany land consumables
Distribution CF [Distribution and logistics
and Logistis Compan 2021/08~2026/07 services of pharmaceutical Restricted to sales in Taiwan
agreement pany [products
Distribution cG Distribution and logistics
land Logistis Compan 2021/09~2023/11 services of pharmaceutical Restricted to sales in Taiwan
lagreement pany [products
Distribution CH [Distribution and logistics
and Logistis Compan: 2022/05~2027 /04 services of pharmaceutical Restricted to sales in Taiwan
agreement pany products
Distribution L -
and Logistis CI 2023/01~2024/12 Dlsn.‘lbutlon ant?l IOgIStl?S Restricted to sales in Taiwan
[Company services of medical devices
lagreement
Distribution o [Distribution and logistics
and Logistis Compan 2023/02~2026/07 services of pharmaceutical Restricted to sales in Taiwan
agreement pany [products
Sales and . .
[Promotion CK 2022/01~2023/12 pales and p r'omotlon services of Restricted to sales in Taiwan
[Company [pharmaceutical products
agreement
Sales and . .
[Promotion (CL 2022/01~2023/12 Sales and pr-o motion services of Restricted to sales in Taiwan
ICompany [pharmaceutical products
agreement
Sales and ICM 2022/04~2023/03 Sales and promotion services of [Restricted to sales in Taiwan
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Nature of ‘|Counterp| ro.;q of contract Content Restrictive clauses
contract arty
[Promotion [Company [pharmaceutical products
lagreement
Sales and ICN [Sales and promotion services of
[Promotion c 2023/01~2023/12 p . Restricted to sales in Taiwan
ompany [pharmaceutical products
agreement
Sankyu-
Lease and Jvan An Warehousing lease at logistics
commissioned [Internation [2023/01~2023/12 lcenter and commissioned None

services contractal Logistics

ICo.,Ltd.

logistics services
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VI. Financial Information
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1. Five-Year Financial Summary
(1)Condensed balance sheet - IFRS

A. Condensed consolidated balance sheet

Unit: NT$ thousands

Year Financial Information for The Last Five Years As of
March
Item 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 | 31,2023
Current assets 9,939,278 8,614,685 8,501,800 9,307,543| 9,528,417| 9,626,762
Property, plant and 286,345|  560,863| 534,339 636,488 760,310| 733,508
equipment
Intangible assets 39,585 31,967 32,653 33,004 31,622, 31,347
Other assets 3,715,662 4,557,469 4,935840| 5,127,965| 6,162,157 6,334,731
Total assets 13,980,870 13,764,984 14,004,632| 15,105,000| 16,482,506 16,726,348
Before 5,105,976 4,829,102 4,019,932 4,955,029| 5,752,045 6,301,540
Current |distribution
liabilities [After 6,292,998| 6,301,540
distuibution | 5490423| 5,294,894/ 4,513,953 5,449,050 (Note )| (Note2)

Non-current liabilities 532,491 303,970 404,996 404,259 433,152 418,418

Before 5,638,467| 5133,072| 4,424,928 5,359,288| 6,185,197 6,719,958
Total distribution
liabilities [ After 6,726,150| 6,719,958
distribution| ©022914] 5598864 4918949 5853309 "y 0 Pl
Equity attributable to | o0 0111 ¢ 946 341| 7,500,897 7,738,389| 8,200,432 7,923,907,
owners of parent
Share capital 1,281,490 1,281,490 1,411,490 1,411,490 1,482,064 1,482,064
Capital surplus 2,812,704 2,816,807| 3,276,107| 3,276,107| 3,276,440 3,276,372
_|Before s ong 076 2,004,393 3,017,380 3,192,892| 3,344438| 3,006,940
Retained |distribution
earnings |After 2,803,485| 3,006,940
distribution| >3545%9| 2438601 2523859 26988711 "0 L St

Other equity (26,629)|  (56,349)| (114,080)| (142,100) 97,490 158,531

Treasury stock - - - - _ i

Non-controlling 1,535,562 1,685,571 1,988,807 2,007,323| 2,096,877 2,082,483

interests
Before
. 8,342,403| 8,631,912| 9,579,704 9,745,712| 10,297,309| 10,006,390,
Total distribution
equity After 9,756,356| 10,006,390
distribution 7,957,956| 8,166,120 9,085,683| 9,251,691 (Note 2)| (Note 2)

Note 1: The financial statements of the last five fiscal years have been audited by CPA, but the
financial statements of 2023 Q1 have been reviewed by CPA.

Note 2: The cash dividend of per share is proposed to be distributed NT$3.65 by the Board of Diretors on
March 16, 2023. The stock dividend of per share is proposed to be distributed NT$0.50, it will
take effect after the resolution of the 2023 Annual Shareholders” General meeting is passed.
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B. Condensed parent company-only balance sheet

Unit: NT$ thousands

Year Financial Information for The Last Five Years
Item 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Current assets 2,536,134 2,319,603 2,057,785 2,299,359| 2,503,350

Property, plant and 185825 180,050  177,053|  183,703| 188,257

equipment

Intangible assets 1,325 697 1,203 3,755 2,434

Other assets 5517,184| 5944251 6,333,372 6,585453| 6,959,435

Total assets 8,240,468 8444601 8569413 9,072,270 9,653,476
Before 044,271\ 1,381,462] 833551 1,148,531 1,229,027

Current |distribution

liabilities | After 1,769,980
disteibution | VA2B718| 1847254 1327572 1642552 i

Non-current liabilities 489356  116,798| 144,965 185350 224,017
Before 1,433,627] 1,498,260 978,516 1,333,881| 1,453,044

Total distribution

liabilities |After 1,993,997,
distribution | VS18074 1964052 1472587 1827902

Share capital 1,281,490 1,281,490| 1,411,490 1,411,490| 1,482,064

Capital surplus 2,812,704] 2,816,807| 3,276,107| 3,276,107| 3,276,440
Before

etained |distibation | 2739276 2904393 3,017,380/ 3,192,892 3,344,438

earnings |After 2,803,485
disteibution | 2054829 2438601 2523359 2608871 T [

Other equity (26,629)  (56,349)|  (114,080)|  (142,100) 97,490

Treasury stock - - - - -
Before 6,806,841 6,946,341 7,590,897| 7,738,389| 8,200,432

Total distribution

equity  |After 7,659,479
Hitibution | 6422391 6480549 7,096,876 7,244,368 (Note 2

Note 1: The financial statements for 2018-2022 have been audited by CPA.

Note 2: The cash dividend of per share is proposed to be distributed NT$3.65 by the Board of Diretors
on March 16, 2023. The stock dividend of per share is proposed to be distributed NT$0.50, it
will take effect after the resolution of the 2023 Annual Shareholders” General meeting is passed.
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(2)Condensed statement of comprehensive income - IFRS
A. Condensed consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Unit: NT$ thousands

Year Financial Information for The Last Five Years 1\z’/}s 0{1
arc
Ttem 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 | 31,2023
Operating

oo 6,345,031| 6,457,362| 6,675,494 6,573,152 7,186,828| 2,006,405
Gross profit 1,199,165| 1,236,055 1,306,574 1,372,619| 1,513,112| 405,283
Net operating 438,119 464,039 529,070 595,026| 606,612 172,726
mcome

Non-operating
income and 210,381| 282,786| 300,313 278,710 357,088| 128912
expenses
Profit before tax | 648500 746,825 829,383 873,736| 963,700 301,638

Profit from
continuing 548,423|  622,274| 669,086 722,289 785,301 246,976
operations
Loss from
discontinuing — - - - — —
operations
Profit 548,423|  622,274| 669,086 722,289 785,301 246,976
Other
comprehensive (48,389) 23,915 (28,296)| (35,162)| 364,266 90,344
income, net
Total
comprehensive 500,034| 646,189| 640,790 687,127 1,149,567 337,320
income
Profit
attributable to
owners of
parent
Profit
attributable
to non- 96,861 107,519 97,416 115,140, 117,848 45,150
controlling
interests
Comprehensive
income
attributable to 417,581| 523,062 513,296| 578,655 956,638 264,514
owners of
parent
Comprehensive
income
attributable to 82,453 123,127| 127,494| 108,472 192,929 72,806
non-controlling
interests
Basic earnings
per share
Note : The financial statements of the last five fiscal years have been audited by CPA, but the
financial statements of 2023 Q1 have been reviewed by CPA.

451,562| 514,755 571,670 607,149| 667,453 201,826

3.53 4.02 4.06 410 4.50 1.36]
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B. Condensed parent company-only statement of comprehensive income

Unit: NT$ thousands

Year Financial Information for The Last Five Years

Item 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Operating
revenue

3,733,339 3,964,690 4,199,740 4,373,194 4,654,419,

Gross profit 603,321 631,739 685,656 719,410 785,948

Net operating

. 279,606 263,303 319,114 344,234 377,167
income

Non-operating
income and 253,773 335,459 353,895 371,835 409,616
expenses

Profit before tax 533,379 598,762 673,009 716,069 786,783

Profit from
continuing 451,562 514,755 571,670 607,149 667,453
operations

Loss from
discontinuing — — — — _
operations

Profit 451,562 514,755 571,670 607,149 667,453

Other
comprehensive (33,981) 8,307 (58,374) (28,494) 289,185
income, net

Total
comprehensive 417,581 523,062 513,296 578,655 956,638|
income

Basic earnings

per share 3.53 4.02 4.06 410 4.50]

Note : The financial statements for 2018-2022 have been audited by CPA.

(3) Auditors’ opinions from 2018 to 2022

Year Accounting Firm CPA Audit Opinion
2022 KPMG Wu Tsao-Jen and Unqualified opinion with
Chen Jun-Guang other matter paragraph
2001 KPMG Wlf Tsao-Jen and Unqualified opinion with
Lin Wan-Wan other matter paragraph
2020 KPMG Wl{ Tsao-Jen and Ungqualified opinion with
Lin Wan-Wan other matter paragraph
2019 KPMG Wu Tsao-Jen and Unqualified opinion with
Lin Wan-Wan other matter paragraph
Wu Tsao-Jen and Unqualified opinion with
2018 KPMG .
Lin Wan-Wan other matter paragraph
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2. Five-Year Financial Analysis

(1)Financial analysis - IFRS

A. Financial analysis on consolidated financial statements

Year As of
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 March
Item 31,2023
2 Debt ratio 40.3 37.3 31.6 35.5 37.5 40.2
& 5 |Ratio of long-term
5 2 [capitaltoproperty, | 500041 15032 18686 15047 14113 14212
3 & |plantand
~ equipment
@ Current ratio 194.7 178.4 2115 187.8 165.7 152.8
= g Quick ratio 172.2 158.7 186.4 166.4 143.6 131.3
8w p
g [Times interest 304 324 7800 1007 93.2 94.0
earned
Accounts
receivable turnover 3.7 41 44 43 43 4.6
(times)
o [Average collection 98.1 89.7 824 85.1 847 78.7
= period
i quentory turnover 48 5.6 6.3 5.9 55 5.6
5 |(times)
@
wg  [Accounts payables 5.0 5.0 55 5.7 58 63
g, [turnover (times)
3 -
5 [Averagedaysin 756 65.2 57.9 61.9 66.7 652
5 |[sales
5 Property, plant and
equipment 228 15.2 12.1 11.2 10.3 10.7
turnover (times)
Total assets
; 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5
turnover (times)
Return on total 39 46 49 5.0 5.0 6.0
assets (%)
5? Return on equity (%) 6.7 7.3 7.3 7.5 7.8 9.7
2 |Pre-tax income to
% paid-in capital (%) 50.6 58.3 58.8 61.9 65.0 81.4
& |Net margin (%) 8.6 9.6 10.0 11.0 10.9 12.3]
Earnings per share
3.53 4.02 4.06 410 4.50 1.36
(NTS$)
Cash flow ratio (%) 3.8 24.7, 21.6 19.1 11.1 9.2
= A [Cash flow
g &:; adequacy ratio (%) 59.7 67.9 67.7 72.6 74.8 65.2]
@ Cash reinvestment
ratio (%) (2.6) 77 3.0 34 05 (5.3)
g |Operating 27 27 25 23 25 23
S |leverage
2 Fi al
I i 11 11 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
everage
Analysis of deviation for the last two years over 20%:
Cash flow ratio and Cash reinvestment ratio decreased mainly due to the decrease in net cash
inflow from operating activities in 2022.
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B. Financial analysis on parent company-only financial statements

Year
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Item
2 - Debt ratio 17.4 17.7 11.4 14.7 15.1
& 5 [Ratio of long-term
£ 5 i
5 £ [capital to property, 36630 38580 42874  42124] 43560
= & plant and
—  |equipment
o Current ratio 268.6 167.9 246.9 200.2, 203.7]
—~ % Quick ratio 202.6 127.9 175.9 145.3 141.1
=
& [Times interest 97.8 110.6 12028 12529 566.2)
earned
Accounts
receivable turnover 3.7] 4.0 41 4.0 3.9
(times)
o [Average collection 98.6 922 88.6 913 93.1
-5 |period
(e}
5 In'ventoryturnover 51 538 63 61 5.7
g |(times)
&
b Accounts Payables 40 46 50 54 50
2 [turnover (times)
o B
5 |Averagedaysin 71.9 62.6 58.0 60.0 64.4
5 |sales
5 Property, plant and
equipment 20.8 21.7 23.5 242 25.0
turnover (times)
Total assets 05 05 05 05 05
turnover (times)
Return ;m total 57 62 67 6.9 71
assets (%)
6’? Return on equity (%) 6.8 7.5 7.9 7.9 8.4
= |Pre-tax income to
2. |paid-in capital (%) 41.6 46.7) 47.7 50.7] 53.1
5 [Net margin (%) 121 13.0 13.6 13.9 143
Earnings per share
3.53] 4.02 4.06) 4.10 4.50
(NT$)
A |Cash flow ratio (%) 29.6 17.2] 15.6) 24.2) 16.6
%, |Cash flow
= N 48.7| 39.8 33.7 30.0, 34.8
= adequacy ratio (%)
s |Cash reinvestment
& | tio %) 11 (21) (4.3) 2.7) (3.4)
E Operating leverage 2.2 24 2.1 2.1 2.1
[}
=
0% Financial leverage 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0

Analysis of deviation for the last two years over 20%:
1. Times interest earned decreased mainly due to the rising interest rates in 2022, resulting in
higher interest expenses.
2. Cash flow ratio and cash reinvestment ratio decreased mainly due to the decrease in net
cash inflow from operating activities in 2022.
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Formula:
a. Financial structure
(a) Debt ratio = total liabilities / total assets
(b) Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant and equipment = (total equity +non-current liabilities) /
net property, plant and equipment
b. Solvency
(a) Current ratio = current assets / current liabilities
(b) Quick ratio = (current assets - inventories - prepaid expenses) / current liabilities
(c) Times interest earned = net income before income tax and interest expenses / current interest expenses
c. Operating performance
(a) Accounts receivable (including accounts receivable and notes receivable from operation) turnover =
net sales / average trade receivables (including accounts receivable and notes receivable from
operation) balance
(b) Average collection period =365 / accounts receivable turnover
(c) Inventory turnover = cost of goods sold / average inventory
(d) Accounts payables (including accounts payable and notes payable from operation) turnover = cost of
goods sold / average trade payables (including accounts payable and notes payable from operation)
balance
(e) Average days in sales = 365 / inventory turnover
(f) Property, plant and equipment turnover = net sales / average net property, plant and equipment
(g) Total assets turnover = net sales / average total assets
d. Profitability
(a) Return on total assets = (net income + interest expenses x (1-effective tax rate)) / average total assets
(b) Return on equity = net income / average total equity
(c) Pre-tax income to paid-in capital = Pre-tax net income / Paid-in capital.
(d) Net margin = net income / net sales
(e) Earnings per share = (profit attributable to owners of parents - preferred stock dividend) / weighted
average number of shares outstanding
e. Cash flows
(a) Cash flow ratio = net cash flows from operating activities / current liabilities
(b) Cash flow adequacy ratio = five-year sum of net cash flows from operating activities/ five-year sum of
(capital expenditures + inventory additions + cash dividends)
(c) Cash reinvestment ratio = (net cash flows from operating activities —cash dividends) / (gross property,
plant and equipment + long-term investments + other non-current assets + working capital)
f. Leverage
(a) Operating leverage = (net operating revenue - variable operating costs and expenses) / net operating
income
(b) Financial leverage = net operating income / (net operating income - interest expenses)
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3. Audit Committee’s Review Report

Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd.

Audit Committee’s Review Report

The Board of Directors has prepared the Company’s 2022 Business
Report, Financial Statements, and proposal for earning distribution. The
CPA firm of KPMG has audit Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd. Financial
Statements and has issued an audit report relating to the Financial
Statements.

The Business Report, Financial Statements, and earning distribution
proposal have been reviewed and determined to be correct and accurate
by the Audit Comrnittee members of Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd..
According to Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act and Article
219 of the Company Act, we hereby submit this report.

For your adoption.
To
The 2023 Annual Shareholders” Meeting

Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd.

Chairman of the Audit Committee: Chang Wu-I

March 16, 2023
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Representation Letter

The entities that are required to be included in the combined financial statements of Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd.
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022 under the Criteria Governing the Preparation of Affiliation
Reports, Consolidated Business Reports, and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises are the
same as those included in the consolidated financial statements prepared in conformity with International Financial
Reporting Standards No. 10, "Consolidated Financial Statements."endorsed by the Financial Supervisory
Commission. In Addition, the information required to be disclosed in the combined financial statements is included
in the consolidated financial statements. Consequently, Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries do not
prepare a separate set of combined financial statements.

Company name: Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd.
Chairman: Fu Hui-Tung
Date: March 16, 2023
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd.:
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries ( “the
Group” ), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2022 and 2021,
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of other auditors (please refer to Other Matter paragraph), the
accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and with the International Financial Reporting Standards ( “IFRSs” ),
International Accounting Standards ( “IASs” ), Interpretations developed by the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee ( “IFRIC” ) or the former Standing Interpretations Committee ( “SIC” )
endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’  Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Account of Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirement. Based on our audits and the reports of other auditors,
we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. Based on our judgment, the key audit matter that should be disclosed
in this report is as follows:

1. Impairment Assessment on Receivables

Please refer to Note (4)(g) for accounting policies of account receivable allowance provision.
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Description of key audit matter:

The management of the Group performed its assessment based on the default risk of accounts receivable and
the rate of expected loss. Because the assessment of impairment loss of receivables involves critical accounting
estimates, which are subject to the judgment of the management, the assessment of the impairment loss of
receivables is deemed to be a key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Our main audit procedures in response to the assessment of the impairment of receivables were assessing the
reasonableness of the methodology and assumptions used by the management for the impairment assessment
of receivables and whether the methodology was adopted consistently, testing the reasonableness of the
information used by the management for assessing the impairment of receivables, reviewing the accuracy of
the calculation of the allowance for receivables, and evaluating the adequacy of the Group’ s disclosure for
impairment of receivables.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements of certain subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements
of the Group. Those statements were audited by other auditors, whose reports have been furnished to us, and our
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for such subsidiaries, is based solely on the report of other
auditors. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the total assets of these subsidiaries were NT$329,131 thousand and
NT$446,627 thousand, constituting 2% and 3% of consolidated total assets, respectively. The total operating
revenues of these subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 were NT$252,360 thousand and
NT$253,352 thousand, constituting both 4% of consolidated total operating revenues, respectively. We also did
not audit the financial statements of certain associates and joint ventures, which represented investment in other
entities accounted for using the equity method of the Group. Those statements were audited by other auditors,
whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for such
entities, is based solely on the reports of other auditors. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the carrying amounts
of these investments were NT$1,340,727 thousand and NT$550,602 thousand, constituting 8% and 4% of
consolidated total assets, respectively. The share of comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures
accounted for using the equity method for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, amounted to NT$101,011
thousand and NT$100,402 thousand, were constituting 9% and 15% of consolidated total comprehensive income,
respectively.

Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd. has prepared its parent-company-only financial statements as of and for the years
ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, on which we have issued an unmodified opinion with an Other Matter
paragraph.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and with
the IFRSs, IASs, IFRC, SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the
Republic of China, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group” s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including the Audit Committee) are responsible for overseeing the Group’ s
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’ s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’ s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise professional
judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’ s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’ s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’ s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’  report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’ s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’  report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Tsao-Jen Wu and
Jun-Guang Chen.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
March 16, 2023

Notes to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated statement of financial position, financial
performance and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not
those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are those generally
accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The independent auditors’  report and the accompanying consolidated financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese

version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the English
and Chinese language independent auditors’ report and consolidated financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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4000
5000

5910
5920

6100
6200
6450

8310
8311
8316

8320

8349

8360
8361
8370

8399

8500
8610

8620

8710
8720

9750
9850

(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN CHINESE)

EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, EXCEPT EARNINGS PER SHARE)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Amount Yo Amount %
Operating revenue (Notes (y) and (7)) $ 7,186,828 100 6,573,152 100
Operating costs (Notes (6)(f) and (7)) 5.672.791 79 5,199.126 79
Gross profit from operations 1,514,037 21 1,374,026 21
Less: Unrealized profit from sales 118,433 2 121,722 2
Add: Realized profit from sales 117.508 2 120.315 2
1.513.112 21 1.372.619 21
Operating expenses:
Selling expenses (Note (7)) 585,199 8 509,139 3
Administrative expenses (Note (7)) 308,085 4 261,402 4
Expected credit loss (Note (6)(e)) 13,216 - 7.052 -
906,500 12 771.593 12
Net operating income 606.612 9 595.026 9
Non-operating income and expenses:
Interest income (Note (6)(aa)) 24,903 - 10,692 -
Other income (Notes (6)(aa) and (7)) 25325 - 24,940 -
Other gains and losses (Notes (6)(aa) and (7)) 27,069 - 18,406 -
Finance costs (Notes (6)(aa) and (7)) (10,449) - (8,761) -
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method
(Note (6)(g)) 290.240 4 233.433 4
357.088 4 278.710 4
Profit before tax 963,700 13 873,736 13
Less: Tax expense (Note (6)(V)) 178.399 2 151.447 2
Profit 785,301 11 722,289 11
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Items that may not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Gains (losses) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 15,892 - 5,401 -
Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income 109,455 2 6,516 -
Share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity
method, components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss 83,770 1 22,735 -
Less: Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss 18,573 - (761) -
Total items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss 190,544 3 35.413 -
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation 370,824 5 (118,494) 2)
Share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity
method, components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss (154,738) 2) 31,647 1
Less: Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to
profit or loss 42,364 1 (16.272) -
Total items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss 173,722 2 (70.575) a
Other comprehensive income, net 364,266 5 (35.162) [4)]
Total comprehensive income s 1,149,567 16 687,127 10
Profit attributable to:
Owners of parent $ 667,453 9 607,149 9
Non-controlling interests 117.848 2 115.140 2
$ 785,301 11 722,289 11
Comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of parent $ 956,638 13 578,655 9
Non-controlling interests 192,929 3 108,472 1
$ 1,149,567 16 687,127 10
Earnings per share (Note (6)(x))
Basic earnings per share (NT dollars) s 4.50 4.10
Diluted earnings per share (NT dollars) s 4.48 4.07
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(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN CHINESE)
EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit before tax
Adjustments:
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss):
Depreciation expense
Amortization expense
Expected credit loss
Net loss (gain) on financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Interest expense
Interest income
Dividend income
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method
Gain on disposal of property, plan and equipment
Gain on disposal of other assets
Loss on disposal of control of subsidiaries
Impairment loss on non-financial assets
Unrealized profit from sales
Realized profit from sales
Others
Total adjustments to reconcile profit
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Changes in operating assets:
Notes receivable
Accounts receivable
Other receivables and notes
Inventories
Net defined benefit asset
Other current assets
Other operating assets
Total changes in operating assets
Changes in operating liabilities:
Contract liabilities
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Other payables
Other current liabilities
Net defined benefit liability
Other operating liabilities
Total changes in operating liabilities
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities
Total adjustments
Cash inflow generated from operations
Interest received
Income taxes paid
Net cash flows from operating activities
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For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
963,700 873,736
218,774 198,633

3,664 4,321
13,216 7,052
1,759 6,640
10,449 8,761
(24,903) (10,692)
(20,082) (19,320)
(290,240) (233,433)
(214) 5)

(40) -

43 -

2,180 -
118,433 121,722
(117,508) (120,315)
(2.068) (1.804)
(86.537) (38.440)
(45,389) (36,676)
(62,832) (138,477)
(436,495) (363,772)
(312,958) (121,871)
(893) (804)
29,791 6,037
(14,693) (5.073)
(843,469) (660,636)
105,717 67,246

5 -
52,857 65,264
493,741 719,867
36,913 17,009
1,334 (1,976)
1113 (2.884)
691,680 864,526
(151.789) 203,890
(238.326) 165.450
725,374 1,039,186
21,063 8,917
(109.311) (103.054)
637,126 945,049




(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN CHINESE)
EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Acquisition of financial assets at amortized cost
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at amortized cost
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Acquisition of investments accounted for using equity method
Net cash flow from disposal of control of subsidiary
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Increase in refundable deposits
Decrease in refundable deposits
Acquisition of intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets
Acquisition of investment properties
Proceeds from disposal of investment property
Decrease in other financial assets
Decrease (increase) in other non-current assets
Dividends received
Net cash flows (used in) from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Increase in short-term borrowings
Repayments of long-term borrowings
Increase in guarantee deposits received
Decrease in guarantee deposits received
Payment of lease liabilities
Cash dividends paid
Acquisition of ownership interests in subsidiaries
Interest paid
Change in non-controlling interests
Net cash flows used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
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For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
130,914 39,818
(441,456) (680,170)
409,267 764,031
- (11,694)
- 5,847
(839,876) -
2,755 -
(171,596) (164,690)
2,603 94
(11,016) (79,406)
57,344 3,016
(909) (4,064)
58 -
(99,177) (21,695)
2,525 609
1,031 138,281
4,775 (24,504)
262,753 178,652
(690,005) 144,125
55,168 75,468
- (4,055)
972 2,876
- (15)
(82.581) (75.635)
(494,021) (494,021)
(11,294) -
(10,066) (8,570)
(92.067) (89.956)
(633.889) (593.908)

121,499 (41,466)
(565.269) 453,800
3,072,264 2,618,464
2,506,995 3,072,264
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(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUDED IN CHINESE)
EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED)

Company History

Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd. (the Company) was incorporated on March 15, 1988 as a company limited by
shares and registered under the Ministry of Economic Affairs, R.O.C. The address of the Company's
registered office is 17F., No.880, Zhongzheng Rd., Zhonghe Dist., New Taipei City 235, Taiwan, R.O.C..
The Company and its subsidiaries (the Group) engaged primarily in the sale of medical supplies and
equipment, medicines and home medical devices.

The Company’ s shares were traded on the Taipei Exchange (formerly the GreTai Securities Market) from
June 8, 2001 to December 30, 2007 and have been traded on the Taiwan Stock Exchange since December
31, 2007.

Financial Statements Authorization Date and Authorization Process

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors on March 16,
2023.

New Standards, Amendments and Interpretations Adopted:

(a) The impact of the International Financial Reporting Standards ( “IFRSs” ) endorsed by the Financial
Supervisory Commission, R.O.C. which have already been adopted.

The Group has initially adopted the following new amendments, which do not have a significant impact
on its consolidated financial statements, from January 1, 2022:

@ Amendments to IAS 16  “Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use”
@ Amendments to I[AS 37 “Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract”
@ Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018 - 2020
@ Amendments to IFRS 3 “Reference to the Conceptual Framework”
(b) The impact of IFRS issued by the FSC but not yet effective
The Group assesses that the adoption of the following new amendments, effective for annual period
beginning on January 1, 2023, would not have a significant impact on its consolidated financial
statements:
@ Amendments to [AS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”

@ Amendments to [AS 8 “Definition of Accounting Estimates”

@ Amendments to IAS 12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction”
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(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUDED IN CHINESE)

EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED)

(©

The impact of IFRS issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC

The Group does not expect the following new and amended standards, which have yet to be endorsed
by the FSC, to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements:

@ Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28  “Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor
and Its Associate or Joint Venture”

@ IFRS 17 “ Insurance Contracts” and amendments to IFRS 17 “ Insurance Contracts”

@ Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current”

@ Amendments to IAS 1 “Non-current Liabilities with Covenants”

@ [FRS16 “Requirements for Sale and Leaseback Transactions”

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies presented in the consolidated financial statements are summarized below.
The following accounting policies were applied consistently throughout the periods presented in the
consolidated financial statements.

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers (hereinafter referred to the
Regulations) and International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards,
IFRIC Interpretations and SIC Interpretations endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial
Supervisory Commission, R.O.C. (hereinafter referred to the IFRSs endorsed by FSC).

(b) Basis of preparation

1.Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for the
following material items in the balance sheet:

1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value;
2) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at fair value;

3) The defined benefit liabilities (or assets) are measured at fair value of plan assets, net of
aggregation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation, with a limit based on a defined
benefit asset.

2.Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of each Group entity is determined based on the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in
New Taiwan Dollars, which is the Company’ s functional currency. All financial information
presented in New Taiwan Dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand.
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(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUDED IN CHINESE)
EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED)

(c) Basis of consolidation
1.Principle of preparation of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are
entities controlled by the Group. The Group ‘controls’ an entity when it is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from
the date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases. Intragroup balances
and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from Intragroup transactions are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. The Group attributes the profit or loss
and each component of other comprehensive income to the owners of the parent and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

The Group prepares consolidated financial statements using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. Changes in the Group” s ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received will be recognized directly in equity, and the Group will
attribute it to the owners of the parent.

2.List of subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements :

Name of Name of Principal Shareholding
Investor Subsidiary Activity 2022.12.31 2021.12.31 Note
The Company Dynamic Medical Technologies Sale, maintenance and 38.50% 38.50% Note 1
Inc. ( “Dynamic” ) lease of laser medical

equipment for beauty
treatment, and sale of
consumables of beauty
treatment and cosmetic

products
” Bestsmile Co., Ltd. Sale of medical - % 98.02% Note 2
( “Bestsmile” ) equipment, and medical
management consultancy
service
7 Excelsior Healthcare Co., Limited Investment business 100.00% 100.00%
(Excelsior Healthcare)
” Arich Enterprise Co., Ltd. Sale of medicines, and 40.00% 40.00% Note 1
(Arich) logistics service
4 Excelsior Asset Management Co., Sales of medical 100.00%  100.00%
Ltd. ( “Excelsior Asset” ) equipment, precision

instrument and real estate

166
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EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED)

Name of Name of Principal Shareholding
Investor Subsidiary Activity 2022.12.31 2021.12.31 Note
The Company Excelsior Medical (HK) Co., Investment business 100.00%  100.00%
and Excelsior Limited ( “Hong Kong
Healthcare  Excelsior” )
Dynamic Dynamic Medical Technologies Retail and wholesale of 100.00%  100.00%
(Hong Kong) Ltd. ( “Hong Kong medical equipment,
Dynamic” ) cosmetic health-care
products and medical
herbs and academic
training
4 CY]J International Taiwan Inc. Sales and treatment of 10.00% - % Note 3
(CYJ Taiwan) hair protecting and
conditioning
The Company Excelsior Beauty Co., Ltd. Sale of aesthetic medical 94.91% 94.91%
and Dynamic ( “Excelsior Beauty” ) and cosmetic health-care
products
Hong Kong  Guangzhou Dynamic Inc. Sale and maintenance of 100.00%  100.00%
Dynamic ( “Guangzhou Dynamic” ) medical equipment
Excelsior CY] International Taiwan Inc. Sales and treatment of 80.00% 80.00%
Beauty (CYJ Taiwan) hair protecting and
conditioning
Excelsior EG Healthcare, Inc. Sale and lease of medical 99.99% 99.99%
Healthcare equipment, and medical
management consultancy
service
4 Excelsior Investment (Malaysia)  Investment business 100.00%  100.00%
Co., Ltd.
Hong Kong  SinoExcelsior Investment Inc. Medical management 100.00%  100.00%
Excelsior ("SinoExcesior Investment') consultancy service
Excelsior Renal Laboratories Sdn. Bhd. Manufacture of medical 70.00% 70.00%
Investment equipment
(Malaysia)
Co., Ltd.
” Medi-Chem Systems Sdn. Bhd. Sale of medical 70.00% 70.00%
equipment
Medi-Chem Renal Management Sdn. Bhd. Lease business 100.00%  100.00%
Systems Sdn.
Bhd.
Note 1: Although the Company holds less than 50% of the shares of Dynamic and Arich, these

companies’ other equity shares are highly separated. Therefore, the Company still
maintains control over Dynamic and Arich, and these companies are included in the
consolidated financial statements.
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EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED)

Name of Name of Principal Shareholding
Investor Subsidiary Activity 2022.12.31 2021.12.31 Note

Note 2: The Company disposed its entire shares in Bestmile Co., Ltd., on July 20, 2022 resulting
in a loss of control over it.

Note 3: Dynamic Medical Technologies Inc. acquired 10% equity of CYJ International Taiwan Inc.
from CYJ INTERNATIONAL COMPANY LIMITED, the associate, on November, 2022.
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EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED)

3.Subsidiaries excluded from the consolidated financial statements: None.
(d) Foreign Currencies
1.Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of Group
entities at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each subsequent reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currencies using the exchange rate at that date. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies that are measured at fair value are translated into the functional currencies using the
exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies that are measured based on historical cost are translated using the exchange rate
at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences are generally recognized in profit or loss, except for those differences relating
to the following, which are recognized in other comprehensive income:

1) an investment in equity securities designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income;

2) a financial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation to the extent
that the hedge is effective; or

3) qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are effective.
2.Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on acquisition, are translated into the presentation currency at the exchange rates at the reporting
date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated into the presentation currency at
the average exchange rate. Exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income.

When a foreign operation is disposed of such that control, significant influence, or joint control is
lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation is reclassified
to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of only part of its
interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation while retaining control, the relevant
proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to non controlling interests. When the Group
disposes of only part of its investment in an associate or joint venture that includes a foreign
operation while retaining significant influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the
cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

When the settlement of a monetary receivable from or payable to a foreign operation is neither
planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future, exchange differences arising from such a
monetary item that are considered to form part of the net investment in the foreign operation are
recognized in other comprehensive income.
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(e) Classification of Current and Non-Current Assets and Liabilities

®

(g

=

An asset is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other assets are classified
as non-current.

1.1t is expected to be realized, or intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle;
2.1t is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
3.1t is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

4.The asset is cash or a cash equivalent, unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

A liability is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other liabilities are
classified as non-current.

1.1t is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
2.1t is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
3.1t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

4.The Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty,
result in its settlement by issuing equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Time deposits which meet the above definition and are held for the purpose
of meeting short term cash commitments rather than for investment or other purposes should be
recognized as cash equivalents.

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’ s cash
management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows.

Financial instruments

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.
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1.Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade
date basis.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortized cost; Fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) - equity investment; or FVTPL. Financial assets
are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its business
model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on
the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

1) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

« it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

« its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost, which is the amount at which the
financial asset is measured at initial recognition, plus/minus, the cumulative amortization using
the effective interest method, adjusted for any loss allowance. Interest income, foreign exchange
gains and losses, as well as impairment, are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

2) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

A debt investment is measured at FVOCT if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

« it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

« its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Some trade receivables are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling by the Group; therefore, those receivables are
measured at FVOCL However, they are included in the  ‘trade receivables’ line item.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’ s fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Equity investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized
as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of
the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income and are
never reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss on the date on which the Group’ s right to receive
payment is established.
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3) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified as amortized cost or FVOCI described as above are measured at
FVTPL, including derivative financial assets. Trade receivables that the Group intends to sell
immediately or in the near term are measured at FVTPL; however, they are included in the

‘trade receivables’ line item. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset, which meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI, as
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest
or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

4) Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial assets
measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents, amortized costs, notes and trade
receivables, other receivable, leases receivable, guarantee deposit paid and other financial assets).

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following
which are measured as 12-month ECL:

+ debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

« other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring
over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial
recognition.

Loss allowance for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the Group’ s historical experience
and informed credit assessment as well as forward-looking information.

Lifetime ECL are the ECL that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument.

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events that are possible within the
12 month after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less
than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECL is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive). ECL are
discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.
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At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost and
debt securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial assetis  ‘credit-impaired’  when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial assets is credit-impaired includes the following
observable data:

« significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
+ a breach of contract such as a default or being past due;

+ the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’” s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the lender would not
otherwise consider;

« it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or
« the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charge to profit
or loss and is recognized in other comprehensive income instead of reducing the carrying amount
of the asset.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. For corporate
customers, the Group individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of
write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Group expects no
significant recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off
could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’ s procedures
for recovery of amounts due.

5) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its statement of
balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred
assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

2.Financial liabilities and equity instruments
1) Classification of debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as financial liabilities or equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.
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2) Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued are recognized as the amount of
consideration received, less the direct cost of issuing.

3) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability
is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated
as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net
gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

4) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire. The Group also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified
and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new
financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.

5) Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of balance sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set
off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

3.Derivative financial instruments

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate
exposures. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately
if the host contract is not a financial asset and certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognized in profit or loss.

(h) Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventories is
calculated using the weighted average method, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the
inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present

location and condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated

costs of completion and selling expenses.
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Investment in Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over their financial and operating policies.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method and are recognized initially at cost.
The cost of the investment includes transaction costs. The carrying amount of the investment in
associates includes goodwill arising from the acquisition less any accumulated impairment losses.

The consolidated financial statements include the Group’ s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of those associates, after adjustments to align their accounting policies with
those of the Group, from the date on which significant influence commences until the date on which
significant influence ceases. The Group recognizes any changes of its proportionate share in the
investee within capital surplus, when an associate’ s equity changes due to reasons other than profit
and loss or comprehensive income, which did not result in changes in actual proportionate share.

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and an associate are recognized only
to the extent of unrelated Group’ s interests in the associate.

When the Group’ s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interests in an associate, it
discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. After the recognized interest is reduced to zero,
additional losses are provided for, and a liability is recognized, only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Investment Property

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both,
but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes. Investment property is measured at cost on initial recognition, and
subsequently at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation
expense is calculated based on the depreciation method, useful life, and residual value which are the
same as those adopted for property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property (calculated as the difference between the net
proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount) is recognized in profit or loss.

Rental income from investment property is recognized as other revenue on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognized as an integral part of the total rental
income, over the term of the lease.

(k) Property, Plant, and Equipment

1.Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost (including capitalization of borrowing
cost) less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit or
loss.
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2.Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

3.Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the cost of an asset less its residual value and is recognized in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each component of an item of property,
plant and equipment.

Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for current and comparative periods are
as follows:

1) Buildings 5 years~55 years
2) Medical equipment 2 years~8 years
3) Other equipment 2 years~10 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

1. Asaleasee

The Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus
any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives
received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end
of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses,
if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be reliably determined, the Group’ s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
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Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
—  fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

—  variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when:

— there is a change in future lease payments arising from the change in an index or rate; or

—  there is a change in the Group” s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee; or

— there is a change in the lease term resulting from a change of its assessment on whether it
will exercise an option to purchase the underlying asset, or

— thereis achange of its assessment on whether it will exercise a extension or termination
option; or

— there is any lease modifications

When the lease liability is remeasured, other than lease modifications, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or in profit and loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

When the lease liability is remeasured to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease for
lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the Group accounts for the
remeasurement of the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease, and recognize in profit or loss any gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment and lease
liabilities as a separate line item respectively in the statement of financial position.

The Group has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term
leases of storage room, machinery and parking space that have a lease of low-value assets. The
Group recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

2. Asaleasor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease commencement whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment
of whether the lease transfers to the lessee substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a finance lease;
if not, then the lease is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Group considers certain
indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life of the asset.
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When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the
sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the
right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. If a head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating
lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Group applies IFRS15 to allocate
the consideration in the contract.

The Group recognizes lease payments received under operating lease as income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term as part of ~ ‘other income’

The Group recognizes a finance lease receivable at an amount equal to its net investment in the
lease. Initial direct costs, such as lessors to negotiate and arrange a lease, are included in the
measurement of the net investment. The interest income is recognized over the lease term based
on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment in the lease. The
Group recognizes lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term as part of ~ ‘other income’

(m) Intangible Assets

1.Recognition and measurement

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is measured at cost, less accumulated impairment
losses.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group and have finite useful lives are measured at
cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

2.Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied
in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands, is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

3.Amortization

Amortization is calculated over the cost of the asset, less its residual value, and is recognized in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets, other than
goodwill, from the date that they are available for use.

The estimated useful lives for current and comparative periods are as follows:
1) Computer software 1 years~3 years
2) Other intangible assets 2 years~5 years

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.
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Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than
inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
such indication exists, then the asset’ s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested annually
for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.
Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs
to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in
the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’ s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized.

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present obligation that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probably that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate
that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost.

Revenue
1.Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Group recognizes revenue when it
satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control of a good or a service to a customer. The
accounting policies for the Group” s main types of revenue are explained below.
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1) Sale of goods

The Group recognizes revenue when control of the products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to the customer, the customer has full discretion over the channel and price
to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’ s
acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer, and either the
customer has accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance
provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have
been satisfied.

The Group’ s obligation for the sales of goods components under the standard warranty terms is
recognized as a provision for warranty.

A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the Group
has a right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional.

2) Services

The Group provides maintenance and warranty services. Revenue from providing services is
recognized in the accounting period in which the services are rendered. Under the IFRS 15, the
total consideration in the service contracts will be allocated to all services based on their
stand-alone selling prices. The stand-alone selling prices will be determined based on the list
prices at which the Group sells the services in separate transactions.

3) Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the
promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a
consequence, the group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

(qQ) Income Taxes

Income taxes comprise current taxes and deferred taxes. Except for expenses related to business
combinations or recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, all current and deferred
taxes are recognized in profit or loss.

Current taxes comprise the expected tax payables or receivables on the taxable profits (losses) for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of
current tax payables or receivables are the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred taxes arise due to temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases. Deferred taxes are recognized except
for the following:

1.temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that is not a
business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profits (losses) at the time of
the transaction;
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2.temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the
extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it
is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

3.taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the carry forward of unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realized;
such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Deferred taxes are measured at tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when
they reserve, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if the following criteria are met:

1.the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities;
and

2.the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

1) the same taxable entity; or

2) different taxable entities which intend to settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis, or
to realize the assets and liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

(r) Employee Benefits
1.Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is
provided.

2.Defined benefit plans

The Group’ s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each the
plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior
periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Group, the
recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any
future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present
value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.
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Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest),
are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income, and accumulated in retained earnings.
The Group determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset)
for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset). Net interest expense
and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in profit or
loss. The Group recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the
settlement occurs.

3.0ther long-term employee benefits

The Group’ s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. That
benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Remeasurements are recognized in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

4.Termination benefits

Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognizes costs for a restructuring. If benefits are not expected
to be settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date, then they are discounted.

5.Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Earnings per Share

The Group discloses the Company’ s basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company. Basic earnings per share is calculated as the profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding.
Diluted earnings per share is calculated as the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding after adjustment for
the effects of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares.

Operating Segments

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with
other components of the Group). Operating results of the operating segment are regularly reviewed by
the Group’ s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the
segment and assess its performance. Each operating segment consists of standalone financial
information.
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Significant Accounting Assumptions and Judgments, and Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates, and
assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities,
income, and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The management continues to monitor the accounting estimates and assumptions. The management
recognizes any changes in accounting estimates during the period and the impact of those changes in
accounting estimates in the next period.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment within the next financial year is as follows:

The loss allowance of trade receivable

The Group has estimated the loss allowance of trade receivable that is based on the risk of a default occurring
and the rate of expected credit loss. The Group has considered historical experience, current economic
conditions and forward-looking information at the reporting date to determine the assumptions to be used in
calculating the impairments and the selected inputs. The relevant assumptions and input values, please refer
to Note (6)(e).

Explanation of Significant Accounts

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Cash on hand, demand deposits and checking accounts $ 1,981,834 2,030,451
Time deposits 525.161 1.041.813
Cash and cash equivalents in consolidated statement of cash ~ $ 2,506,995 3,072,264

flows

The Group interest risk and sensibility analysis of the financial assets and liabilities was disclosed in

Note (6)(ac).
(b) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Held-for-trading financial liabilities
Derivative instruments not used for hedging
Forward foreign exchange contracts s - 673
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(©

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge the certain foreign exchange and interest risk
the Group is exposed to, arising from its operating, financing and investing activities. The following
derivative instruments, without the application of hedge accounting, were classified as held-for-trading

financial instruments:

Forward foreign exchange contracts:

December 31, 2021
Amount
(in thousands) Currency Maturity period
Foreign exchange forward JPY 257,425  JPY against TWD 2022.01~2022.03
purchased
Foreign exchange forward USD 515 USD against TWD 2022.01
purchased

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

December 31,

December 31,

2022 2021

Equity investments at fair value through other

comprehensive income

Domestic listed shares $ 71,716 90,528

Foreign listed shares 135,785 152,234

Domestic unlisted shares 134,044 149,478

Foreign unlisted shares 344,893 309.301
Total $ 686,438 701,541

1.Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

The Group designated the investments shown above as equity securities at fair value through other
comprehensive income because these equity securities represent those investments that the Group

intends to hold for long term for strategic purposes.

The Group has sold its common stocks designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
because of operation strategies for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021. The shares sold
had a fair value of $132,823 thousand and $40,172 thousand, respectively. The Group realized a
gain of $36,606 thousand and a loss of $4,091 thousand, respectively, which was included in other
comprehensive income, and thereafter, was transferred to retained earnings from other equity.

2.For credit risk and market risk, please refer to Note (6)(ac).

3.As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the aforesaid financial assets were not pledged as collateral.
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(d) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

©

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Time deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months  § 704,439 682,603

The Group has assessed that these financial assets are held to maturity to collect contractual cash flows,
which consist solely of payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding. Therefore,
these investments have been classified as financial assets measured at amortized cost.

The market interest rates of the time deposits with original maturity of more than 3 moths were
0.76%~4.90% and  0.24%~1.76% per annum as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Notes receivable, accounts receivable, lease payment receivable and other receivables

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021

Notes receivable $ 304,201 261,529

Other notes receivable 317,598 290,515

Accounts receivable 1,476,175 1,415,805

Receivable installments 22 312

Trade receivables - fair value through other comprehensive 5,357 9,317
income

Lease payment receivable 37,612 18,095

Other receivables 3,005,670 2,572,458

Less: Loss allowance (85,342) (75,475)

Unrealized interests income (160) (240)

$ 5,061,133 4,492,316

The Group has assessed a portion of its trade receivables that was held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; therefore,
such trade receivables were measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Arich Enterprise Co., Ltd. ( “Arich” ) engages in medical logistics services, providing inventory
management services, logistics services, customer service and domestic transportation planning
services. Arich recognizes the medical logistics service revenue at a percentage of the net profit on its
sale of medicines. The inventories for medical logistics services do not belong to Arich. The receivables
from customers and the payables to medical companies are classified as other notes receivable, other
trade receivables, other notes payable, and other trade payables.
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The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for its expected credit losses, i.e. the use of
lifetime expected loss provision for all receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due, as well
as incorporated forward looking information, including macroeconomic and relevant industry
information. The loss allowance provision were determined as follows:

December 31, 2022
Gross carrying  Weighted-avera Loss allowance

amount ge loss rate provision
Current $ 4,975,580 0.39% (19,411)
1 to 90 days past due 83,118 12.35% (10,263)
91 to 180 days past due 8,304 31.77% (2,638)
181 to 365 days past due 4,512 41.80% (1,886)
More than 365 days past due 58,635 87.22% (51.144)
$§ _ S5.130,149 — (85347)
December 31, 2021

Gross carrying  Weighted-avera Loss allowance

amount ge loss rate provision
Current $ 4,448,614 0.60% (26,621)
1 to 90 days past due 41,494 10.80% (4,480)
91 to 180 days past due 8,290 21.79% (1,806)
181 to 365 days past due 18,746 18.47% (3,462)
More than 365 days past due 40,105 97.51% (39.106)
4 24 (75.475)
The Group’ s lease payment receivables were as follows:
Present value of
minimum lease
Gross investment Unearned payments
in the lease finance income receivable

December 31, 2022
Less than one year $ 10,581 (2,079) 8,502
Between one and five years 32,482 (3.372) 29.110

s 43,063 (5.451) 37,612
December 31, 2021
Less than one year $ 7,626 (947) 6,679
Between one and five years 12,767 (1.351) 11,416

s 20,393 (2,298) 18,095
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The Group entered into finance lease arrangements for certain vehicles and equipment. All leases were
denominated in New Taiwan dollars. The average term of finance leases entered into was 5 years.

The interest rate inherent in the leases was fixed at the contract date for the entire lease term. The
average effective interest rate contracted was approximately 3.00%~6.00% per annum as of December
31, 2022 and 2021.

The lease payment receivables as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 were neither past due nor impaired.
The movement in the allowance for notes and trade receivable was as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Balance as of January 1 $ 75,475 72,628
Impairment losses recognized 16,058 17,933
Impairment losses reversed (2,842) (10,881)
Amounts written off (4,527) (2,351)
Effect of movements in exchange rate 1.178 (1.854)
Balance as of December 31 $ 85,342 75,475

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the receivables from installment sales were $5,357 thousand and
$9,317 thousand, respectively, and the related unrealized interest income were $160 thousand and $229
thousand, respectively.

The Group signed the accounts receivable factoring agreements without recourse with financial
institutions. According to the agreements, the Group transfers almost all risks and rewards to debtors,
thus is eligible for derecognizing the financial assets. The relevant information of the unexpired
accounts receivable at the reporting date were as follows:

December 31, 2022

Amount
Amount Amount Recognized in Significant
Amount Advanced Advanced Other Range of Transferring
Purchaser  Derecognized Unpaid Paid Receivables Interest Rate Terms
Hotai Finance  § 3,500 - 3,500 - 4.27% None
Co., Ltd.
December 31, 2021
Amount
Amount Amount Recognized in Significant
Amount Advanced Advanced Other Range of Transferring
Purchaser  Derecognized Unpaid Paid Receivables Interest Rate Terms
Hotai Finance ~ § 10,500 - 10,500 - 4.27% None
Co., Ltd.
Chailease s 11,935 B 11,935 - 2.02%~2.22% None

Finance Co., Ltd.

187



(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUDED IN CHINESE)

EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED)

®

(®

Inventories
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Merchandise $ 1,090,606 825,120
Inventory in-transit 70.482 85,123
Total $ 1,161,088 910,243

The details of cost of goods sold were as follows :

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Cost of goods sold $ 5,002,306 4,641,684
Idle capacity loss 4,461 9,378
Loss on inventory scrapped 17,598 2,553
Repair and maintenance costs 300,926 224,804
Others operating costs 347.500 320.707
Total s 5,672,791 5,199,126

Inventory valuation and obsolescence due to write-down of inventory to net realizable value or
slow-moving inventory were recognized as cost of operations.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, none of the combined company's inventories had been provided
with pledge guarantees.

Investments accounted for using equity method

A summary of the Group’ s financial information for investments accounted for using the equity
method at the reporting date is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Associates $ 3,669,575 2,629.538
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1.Associates

The Group acquired 49% equity of NephroCare Limited and Cardinal Medical Services Ltd. for
paying $643,777 thousands and $127,326 thousands, respectively, on April 29,2022 ; therefore, the
Group have significant influence over these aforedsaid companies.

Associates which are material to the Group consisted of the followings:

Main operating Proportion of shareholding

Nature of location/ Registered and voting rights
Name of Relationship Country of December 31, December 31,
Associates with the Group the Company 2022 2021
Asia Best Long-term care ~ Cayman Islands 49.38% 49.38%
Healthcare and rehabilitation

services

1) Asia Best Healthcare:

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Current assets $ 733,639 1,327,188
Non-current assets 4,173,337 3,775,520
Current liabilities (151,462) (278,067)
Non-Current liabilities (1,754.375) (2,049.407)
Net assets $ 3,001,139 2,775,234
Net assets attributable to the Group $ 1,522,852 1,405,198

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Operating revenue $ 176,750 269,440
Profit $ 191,612 103,173
Other comprehensive income (206.547) 38,113
Total comprehensive income s (14,935) 141,286
Dividends received $ 30,223 28,205

The Group’ s financial information for investments accounted for using equity method that are
individually insignificant was as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Carrying amount of individually 3 2,146,723 1,224,340

insignificant associates’  equity
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For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Attributable to the Group:
Profit $ 195,622 182,486
Other comprehensive income 27,157 34,604
Total comprehensive income s 222,779 217,090

None of the combined company's investments using the equity method is provided as a pledge.

(h) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries

®

(O]

The Group did not proportionately subscribe the shares issued for cash by its subsidiary, Bestsmile Co.,
Ltd. in April 2022, resulting in its shareholding to decrease by $8 thousand, recognized as capital
surplus, for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Loss of control over subsidiaries

The Group sold to Bestchain Healthtaiwan Co., Ltd. its entire 99.67% equity in Bestsmile Co., Ltd. at
the amount of $6,634 thousand, resulting in a loss of control over it on July 20, 2022, and the loss on
disposal of $43 thousand was recognized as other gains and losses.

The details of assets and liabilities of aforesaid subsidiaries were as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,879
Other non-current financial asset 770
Other current assets, others 2,230
Other payables 180

Carrying amount of net asset of the former subsidiary $ 6.699

Material non-controlling interests of subsidiaries
The material non-controlling interests of subsidiaries were as follows:

Main operating

location/ Registered Proportion of shareholding
Country of and voting rights
December 31, December 31,
Subsidiaries the Company 2022 2021
Dynamic Taiwan 61.50% 61.50%
Arich Taiwan 60.00% 60.00%
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The summarized financial information below represents amounts before intragroup eliminations were
as follows:

1.Collective financial information of Dynamic and its subsidiaries:

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Current assets $ 1,735,980 1,642,277
Non-current assets 945,191 656,514
Current liabilities (875,919) (657,555)
Non-Current liabilities (251,251) (169,313)
Net assets s 1,554,001 1,471,923
Non-controlling interests s 857,564 794,105
For the Years Ended December 31,
2022 2021

Operating revenue M 1,291,692 1,028,183
Net income $ 139,861 141,689
Other comprehensive loss 77.477 (25.111)
Total comprehensive income s 217,338 116,578
Profit, attributable to non-controlling interests s 83,319 81,587
Comprehensive income, attributable to non-controlling s 35917 66,141

interests
Net cash flows from operating activities $ 276,929 277,645
Net cash flows from investing activities (251,283) (92,419)
Net cash flows from financing activities (186,862) (148,680)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash

equivalents 26,971 (8,076)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ (134,245) 28,470
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests s 69,695 64,888
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2.Collective financial information of Arich:

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Current assets $ 4,414,792 3,840,681
Non-current assets 528,313 648,080
Current liabilities (3,027,668) (2,531,376)
Non-Current liabilities (33.592) (139,397)
Net assets $ 1,881,845 1,817,988
Non-controlling interests $ 1,129,084 1,090,771
For the Years Ended December 31,
2022 2021

Operating revenue M 1,123,971 945,661
Net income $ 62,617 55,305
Other comprehensive income 38,527 23,758
Total comprehensive income M 101,144 79,063
Profit, attributable to non-controlling interests s 37,570 33,183
Comprehensive income, attributable to non-controlling $ 60,686 47,438
interests

Net cash flows from operating activities $ 139,226 336,065
Net cash flows from investing activities 48,759 30,415
Net cash flows from financing activities (77.,512) (197.,666)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents s 110,473 168,814
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests $ 22,372 25,068
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(k) Property, plant and equipment

E SPECIFIED)

The cost, depreciation, and impairment of the property, plant and equipment of the Group for the years

ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

Equipment to
be inspected
and
Medical Miscellaneous Leased construction in
Land Buildings equipment equipment _ _Improvement progress Total
Cost or deemed cost:
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 140,671 250,725 484,947 326,186 - 5,051 1,207,580
Additions - 934 31,556 56,180 - 82,926 171,59
Disposal and obsolescence - - (56.729) (45.530) - - (102,259)
Transfer from inventories - - 49,832 26,782 . . 76,614
Transfer to inventories - - (18.236) (13.211) - - (31,447)
Reclassification and others - (1.771) 8,811 57,605 1771 (56.401) 10,015
Effect of movements in exchange rates 3513 8.269 4274 2.569 - - 18,625
Balance as of December 31, 2022 s 144,184 258,157 504,455 410,581 L7171 31576 1,350,724
Balance as of January 1, 2021 s 145,109 262,343 337,238 295,089 - 286 1,040,065
Additions - 994 110,051 27,532 - 26,113 164,690
Disposal and obsolescence - (2.164) (16.649) (10,673) - - (29.486)
Transfer from inventories - - 51,800 14,167 - - 65,967
Transfer to inventories - - (6.014) (3.034) - - (9.048)
Reclassification and others - - 17,575 7,769 - (21,348) 3,996
Effect of movements in exchange rates (4.438) (10.448) (9.054) (4.664) - - (28.604)
Balance as of December 31, 2021 s 140,671 250,72 484,94 326,186 = 5,051 1,207,580
Depreciation and impairment losses:
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 4,000 76,192 251,462 239,438 - - 571,092
Depreciation for the period - 4732 74,363 46,927 247 - 126,269
Impairment loss recognized - - - 2,180 - - 2,180
Disposal and obsolescence - - (55.177) (44,693) - - (99.870)
Transfer to inventories - - (9.946) (7.000) - - (16,946)
Reclassification and others - (112) - - 112 - -
Effect of movements in exchange rates - 1.866 3,507 2316 - - 7,689
Balance as of December 31, 2022 s 4,000 82,678 264,209 239,168 359 - 590,414
Balance as of January 1, 2021 $ 4,000 75,596 207,673 218457 - - 505,726
Depreciation for the period - 4875 71,055 37465 . . 113,395
Disposal and obsolescence - (2.165) (16,649) (10,583) - - (29.397)
Transfer to inventories - - (4.104) (1,841 - - (5.945)
Effect of - movements in exchange rates - @114) (6513) (4.060) - - (12.687)
Balance as of December 31, 2021 s 4,000 16,192 251,462 239.438 - - 571,002
Carrying amount:
Balance as of December 31, 2022 s 140,184 175,479 240.246 171413 1412 31576 760.310
Balance as of January 1, 2021 s 141,109 186,747 129,565 76,632 - 286 534,339
Balance as of December 31, 2021 s 136,671 174,533 233,485 86,748 - 051 636,488
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(U]

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021 the property, plant and equipment of the Group had been pledged
as collateral for bank borrowings. Please refer to note(8).

Right-of-use assets

The Group leases many assets including buildings, machinery and other equipment. Information about
leases for which the Group as a lessee was presented below:

Machinery and Other
Build quip t quip Total
Cost:
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 468,859 324 - 469,183
Additions 173,560 2,145 - 175,705
Write-off (252,478) (324) - (252,802)
Reclassification 160 - - 160
Effect of movements in exchange rates 667 - - 667
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 390,768 2,145 - 392,913
Balance as of January 1, 2021 $ 451,785 1,065 1,440 454,290
Additions 73,608 - - 73,608
Write-off (55,124) (741) (1,440) (57,305)
Effect of movements in exchange rates (1.410) - - (1.410)
Balance as of December 31, 2021 M 468,859 324 B 469,183
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses:
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 191,231 279 - 191,510
Depreciation for the year 85,182 581 - 85,763
Write-off (152,060) (324) - (152,384)
Reclassification 160 - - 160
Effect of movements in exchange rates 403 - - 403
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 124,916 536 - 125,452
Balance as of January 1, 2021 $ 151,966 912 1,440 154,318
Depreciation for the year 78,056 108 - 78,164
Write-off (37,970) (741) (1,440) (40,151)
Effect of movements in exchange rates (821) - - (821)
Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ 191,231 279 - 191,510
Carrying amount:
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 265,852 1,609 - 267,461
Balance as of January 1, 2021 s 299,819 153 - 299,972
Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ 277,628 45 - 277,673
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The Group added and modified parts of the lease contracts, resulting in an increase in right-of-use
assets of $175,705 thousand and $73,608 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

The Group terminated and modified parts of the lease contracts, resulting in a decrease in right-of-use
assets of $100,418 thousand and $17,154 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Group leases storage room, machinery and
parking space under operating lease, please refer to Note (6)(t).

(m) Investment property

Investment properties are the assets hold by the Group. The period of rental investment properties that
cannot be terminated originally is 15 years.

Owned property
Land Buildings Total
Cost or deemed cost:
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 843,750 195,625 1,039,375
Addition 76,330 22,847 99,177
Reclassification - (2,525) (2,525)
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 920,080 215,947 1,136,027
Balance as of January 1, 2021 $ 843,750 174,673 1,018,423
Addition - 21,695 21,695
Disposal - (743) (743)
Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ 843,750 195,625 1,039,375
Depreciation and impairment losses:
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ - 20,273 20,273
Depreciation for the year - 6,742 6,742
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ - 27,015 27,015
Balance as of January 1, 2021 $ - 13,333 13,333
Depreciation for the year - 7,074 7,074
Disposal - (134) (134)
Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ - 20,273 20,273
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(m)

Owned property
Land Buildings Total
Book value:
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 920,080 188,932 1,109,012
Balance as of January 1, 2021 M 843,750 161,340 1,005,090
Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ 843,750 175,352 1,019,102
Fair Value:
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 1,206,380
Balance as of December 31, 2021 1,14

The fair value of investment properties was based on a valuation by a qualified independent appraiser.
Fair value was measured using comparison approach, income approach and cost approach.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the investment property of the Group had been pledged as
collateral for bank borrowings, please refer to Note (8).

Intangible assets

The costs, amortization and impairment of the intangible assets of the Group for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021, were as follows:

Other
intangible
Goodwill Software assets Total
Cost:
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 55,543 13,703 80,703 149,949
Additions - 909 - 909
Disposals - (1,735) (59,261) (60,996)
Effect of movements in exchange rates 735 30 - 765
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 56,278 12,907 21,442 90,627
Balance as of January 1, 2021 $ 56,197 15,323 77,703 149,223
Additions - 1,064 3,000 4,064
Disposals - (2,470) - (2,470)
Effect of movements in exchange rates (654) (214) - (868)
Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ 55,543 13,703 80,703 149,949
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Other
intangible
Goodwill Software assets Total
Amortization and impairment loss:
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 28,156 10,855 77,934 116,945
Amortization - 1,838 769 2,607
Disposals - (1,677) (59,261) (60,938)
Effect of movements in exchange rates 367 24 - 391
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 28,523 11,040 19,442 59,005
Balance as of January 1, 2021 $ 28,346 11,368 76,856 116,570
Amortization - 2,136 1,078 3,214
Disposals - (2,470) - (2,470)
Effect of movements in exchange rates (190) (179) - (369)
Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ 28,156 10,855 77,934 116,945
Book value:
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 27,755 1,867 2,000 31,622
Balance as of January 1, 2021 $ 27,851 3,955 847 32,653
Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ 27,387 2,848 2,769 33,004

1.Amortization

The amortization of intangible assets is included in the following statement of comprehensive
income items:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Operating costs $ 1,450 1,078
Operating expenses 1,157 2.136
Total s 2,607 3214
(o) Short-term borrowings
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Secured bank loans $ 300,000 245,000
Unsecured bank loans 235.134 234,996
Total $ 535,134 479,996
Unused short-term credit lines s 1,650,993 4,679,302
Range of interest rates 1.60%~6.00%  _0.70%~3.04%
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(p)

(@

®

Please refer to Note (8) for details of the Group” s assets pledged as collateral for bank borrowings.

The Group' s interest risk and sensitivity analysis of financial assets and liabilities were disclosed in
Note (6)(ac).

Other payables
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Logistics services payable $ 2,738,923 2,253,633
Others 476,152 467,592
M 3,215,075 2,721,225
Refund liabilities
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Refund liabilities $ 24,016 14,713

For the medicine selling contract, the Group reduces its revenue by the amount of sales discounts and
expected returns, and records it as refund liabilities.

Provisions
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Warranties M 13,886 11,022
Warranties

Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 11,022
Additions 15,149
Provisions reversed or used (12,285)
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 13,886
Balance as of January 1, 2021 $ 15,104
Additions 10,043
Provisions reversed or used (14,118)
Effect of exchange rate changes (@h]
Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ 11,022
Warranties

The provision for warranty claims represents the present value of management’ s best estimate of
the future outflow of economic benefits that will be required under the Group’ s obligations for
warranties under local sale of goods legislation. The estimate had been made on the basis of
historical warranty trends and may vary as a result of other events affecting product quality.

198



(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUDED IN CHINESE)

EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED)

(s) Lease liabilities

The carrying amounts of lease liabilities were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Current b 90,864 72,244
Non-current S 182,052 209,782

For the maturities analysis, please refer to Note (6)(ac).

The Group added and modified parts of the lease contract, resulting in an increase in lease liabilities of
$175,408 thousand and $73,608 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

The Group terminated and modified parts of the contract, resulting in a decrease in lease liabilities of
$101,791 thousand and $17,587 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

The amounts recognized in profit or loss were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Interest on lease liabilities $ 2,754 2,708
Income from sub-leasing right-of-use assets $ 69 4,927
Expenses relating to short-term leases s 9,900 8,981
COVID-19-related rent concessions $ 398 1,372

The amounts recognized in the statement of cash flows for the Group were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,
2022 2021
Total cash outflow for leases $ 95,235 87,324

1.Buildings leases

As of December 31, 2022, the Group leases buildings for its office space. The leases of office space
typically run for a period of 2 to 10 years. Some leases include an option to renew the lease for an
additional period of the same duration after the end of the contract term.

The Group sub-leases some of its right-of-use assets under operating leases; please refer to Note
(©6)().
2.0Other leases

The Group leases machinery and other equipment, with lease terms of 2 to 3 years. In some cases,
the Group has options to purchase the assets at the end of the contract term.
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The Group also leases storage room, machinery and parking space with contract terms of 1 to 3
years. These leases are short-term or leases of low-value items. The Group has elected not to
recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for these leases.

(t) Operating leases

Operating leases relate to leases and subleases of housing and leases of equipments with lease terms
between 1 to 10 years. The leasees does not have bargain purchase options to acquire the leased
housing and equipments at the expiration of the lease periods.

A maturity analysis of lease payments, showing the undiscounted lease payments to be received
after the reporting date are as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Within 1 year $ 26,180 25,056
1 to 5 years 44363 56,115
More than 5 years 14,482 19.309
s 85,025 100,480

(u) Employee benefits

1.Defined benefit plans

Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation at present value and plan asset at fair value were
as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Present value of defined benefit obligations $ 95,148 101,452
Fair value of plan assets (110.145) (100,999)
Net defined benefit liabilities s (14,997) 453

The Group makes defined benefit plan contributions to the pension fund account with Bank of
Taiwan that provides pensions for employees upon retirement. The plans (covered by the Labor
Standards Law) entitle a retired employee to receive retirement benefits based on years of service
and average salary for the six months prior to retirement.

1) Composition of plan assets

The Group allocates pension funds in accordance with the Regulations for Revenues,
Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilization of the Labor Retirement Fund, and such funds are
managed by the Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor. With regard to the utilization of the
funds, minimum earnings shall be no less than the earnings attainable from two-year time deposits
with interest rates offered by local banks.

The Group’ s Bank of Taiwan labor pension reserve account balance amounted to $109,488
thousand as of December 31, 2022. For information on the utilization of the labor pension fund
assets, including the asset allocation and yield of the fund, please refer to the website of the Bureau
of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor.
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2) Movements in present value of the defined benefit obligations
The movements in present value of defined benefit obligations for the Group were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Defined benefit obligations as of January 1 $ 101,452 106,766
Prior service costs and profit or loss of settle (1,109) -
Current service costs and interest 4,249 4,424
Remeasurements on the net defined benefit obligation
— Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience (2,846) (5,545)
adjustments
— Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in - 4,789
demographic assumptions
— Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in (5,411) (3,288)
financial assumptions
Exchange differences on foreign plans 15 (247)
Benefit paid (1,202) (2,567)
Other adjustments - (2.880)
Defined benefit obligations as of December 31 $ 95,148 101,452

3) Movements of defined benefit plan assets

The movements in the present value of the defined benefit plan assets for the Group were as

follows:
For the Years Ended December 31,
2022 2021

Fair value of plan assets as of January 1 $ 100,999 98,132
Prior service costs (110) -
Interest income 763 347
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit obilgation

—Return on plan assets (excluding current interest) 7,635 1,357
Contribution paid by the employer 2,062 3,738
Exchange differences on foreign plans 2) ®)
Benefits paid (1.202) (2.567)
Fair value of plan assets as of December 31 s 110,145 100,999
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4) Expenses recognized in profit or loss
The expenses recognized in profit or loss for the Group were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Current service costs $ 3,488 4,073
Net interest of net liabilities for defined benefit
obligations 2) 4
$ 3,486 4,077
Operating costs and expenses $ 3,486 4,077

5) Actuarial assumptions

The principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Discount rate 1.400%~7.220% 0.750%%
Future salary increasing rate 2.125%~3.750% 2.125%~3.750%

The expected allocation payment to be made by the Group to the defined benefit plans for the
one-year period after the reporting date is $1,514 thousand.

The weighted average lifetime of the defined benefits plans is 9~13 years.
6) Sensitivity analysis

If the actuarial assumptions had changed, the impact on the present value of the defined benefit
obligation shall be as follows:

Influences on defined benefit obligations

Increased 0.25% Decreased 0.25%
and EG Healthcare and EG Healthcare
Increased 1.00% Decreased 1.00%
December 31, 2022
Discount rate $ (1,933) 2,009
Future salary increasing rate 1,923 (1,897)
December 31, 2021
Discount rate $ (2,095) 2,163
Future salary increasing rate 2,067 (2,013)

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions,
holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the
amounts shown above. The method used in the sensitivity analysis is consistent with the
calculation of the pension liabilities in the balance sheets.
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There is no change in the method and assumptions used in the preparation of sensitivity analysis
for 2022 and 2021.

2.Defined contribution plans

The Company allocates 6% of each employee’ s monthly wages to the labor pension personal
account at the Bureau of Labor Insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Labor Pension
Act. Under these defined contribution plans, the Company allocates a fixed amount to the Bureau of
Labor Insurance without additional legal or constructive obligation.

The pension costs incurred from the contributions to the Bureau of the Labor Insurance amounted
to $24,334 thousand and $21,585 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

The foreign Company’ s pension costs under the local laws were $2,303 thousand and $2,245
thousand for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

(v) Income taxes
1.Income tax expense
The components of income tax in the years 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Current tax expense

Current period $ 142,200 101,070
Adjustment for prior periods 2.877 1,213
145,077 102,283

Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 38,627 52,088
Adjustment for prior periods (5,344) (2,630)
Change in unrecognized deductible temporary differences 39 (294)
33,322 49,164
Income tax expense from continuing operations $ 178,399 151,447

The amount of income tax recognized directly in equity for 2022 was as follows; and no income tax
was recognized directly in equity for 2021.

The amount of income tax recognized directly in equity for 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

For the Years
Ended December
31,2022

Gain on disposal of foreign listed shares $ 6,272
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The amount of income tax recognized in other comprehensive income for 2022 and 2021 were as
follows:
For the Years Ended December 31,
2022 2021
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss:
Remeasurement from defined benefit plans $ (2,996) (959)
Unrealized gains (losses) on equity instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income (15.577) 1,720
$ (18,573) 761
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation M (42,364) 16,272

Reconciliation of income tax and profit before tax for 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021

Profit before income tax $ 963.700 873,736
Income tax using the Group’ s domestic tax rate $ 210,195 197,510
Permanent differences (37,045) (39,847)
Tax-exempt income (669) (290)
Unrecognized deductible temporary differences 2,508 (721)
Unrecognized unused loss carryforwards 3,400 (3,788)
Adjustments for prior periods-current tax expense 2,877 1,213
Adjustments for prior periods-deferred tax expense (5,334) (2,630)
Effect of foreign income tax 1,244 -

Undistributed earnings additional tax 1,223 -

Income tax expense M 178,399 151,447

2.Deferred tax assets and liabilities
1) Unrecognized deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the following items:

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences $ 9,352 21,464
Tax losses 72,177 76,924
$ 81,529 98,388
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2) Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

Changes in the amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021 were as follows:

Deferred
sales Unrealized Unrealized Loss
returns and  losses on gains on  carry-forw
allowance  inventories investment ards Others Total

Deferred tax assets:
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 10,327 23,567 5,539 32,493 130,487 202,413
Recognized in profit or loss 837 2,617 (1,648) (15,701) 12,014 (1,881)
Recognized in other

comprehensive income - - - - (41,542) (41,542)
Effect of movements in exchange

rates - 62 - - (305) (243)
Balance as of December 31,2022 § 11,164 26,246 3,891 16,792 100,654 158,747
Balance as of January 1, 2021 N 11,273 22,745 23313 43,983 114,171 215,485
Recognized in profit or loss (946) 896 (17,774) (11,486) 1,568 (27,742)
Recognized in other

comprehensive income - - - - 15,317 15,317
Effect of movements in exchange

rates - (74) - 4) (569) (647)
Balance as of December 31,2021 $ 10,327 23,567 5,539 32,493 130,487 202,413
Deferred tax liabilities:
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ - - 172,417 - 4,278 176,695
Recognized in profit and loss - - 36,113 - (4,672) 31,441
Recognized in other

comprehensive income - - - - 19,395 19,395
Recognized directly in equity - - - - 6.272 6,272
Balance as of December 31,2022 § - - 208,530 - 25,273 233.803
Balance as of January 1, 2021 $ - - 139,085 - 17,875 156,960
Recognized in profit or loss - - 33,332 - (11,910) 21,422
Recognized in other

comprehensive income - - - - (1,716) (1,716)
Recognized in equity - - - - 223 223
Effect of movements in exchange

rates - - - - (194) (194)
Balance as of December 31, 2021 § - - 172.417 - 4,278 176,695
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3.As of December 31,

2022, the Group® s unused prior-years loss carryforwards and the expiry

years of the loss carryforwards were as follows:

Year of loss Unused tax loss Year of expiry
2015 $ 8,691 2025
2016 9,427 2021~2026
2017 14,924 2022~2027
2018 136,009 2023~2028
2019 177,562 2024~2029
2020 13,832 2025~2030
2022 23.949 2032

h 384,394

4.Assessment of tax

The Company’ s income tax returns for the years through 2020 were assessed by the Tax

Administration.

(w) Capital and other equity

1.Share capital

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Number of shares authorized (in thousands) M 200,000 200,000
Shares authorized s 2,000,000 2,000,000
Number of shares issued and fully paid (in thousands) 148,206 141,149
Shares issued s 1,482,064 1,411,490

The Company issued 7,057 thousand common shares amounting to $70,574 thousand, with the date
of capital increase set on September 5, 2022, based on the resolution decided during the shareholder’
s meeting held on June 21, 2022, and the approval of the Financial Supervisory Commission, R.O.C.
on August 4, 2022. All relevant statutory registration procedures had been completed as of the

reporting date.

A total of 10,000 thousand shares of the Company’ s authorized shares are reserved for the issuance
of employee share options, convertible bonds with warrants and preferred shares with warrants.
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2.

3

Capital surplus
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Additional paid-in capital arising from ordinary share $ 1,822,584 1,822,584
Additional paid-in capital arising from bond conversion 1,072,079 1,072,079
Difference between consideration and carrying amount of 98,181 98,181
subsidiaries acquired or disposed
Changes in ownership interest in subsidiaries 238,938 238,946
Changes in equity of associates accounted for using equity 798 457
method
Others 43.860 43,860
M 3,276,440 3,276,107
.Retained earnings

The Company’ s article of incorporation stipulates that Company’ s profit after tax should first be
used to offset the prior years”  deficits, including adjustment of unappropriated retained earnings.
Of the remaining balance, 10% is to be appropriated as legal reserve, then the special surplus reserve
shall be distributed or reversed according to the Laws acts and regulations approved by the
Competent authority. The remainder, together with any undistributed retained earnings, including
amount of adjusted retained earnings, shall be distributed by the Board of Directors and submitted
to the stockholders’  meeting for approval. The distribution of dividends, bonus, legal reserve and
capital surplus, distributed by way of cash, shall be decided during the Board meeting, approved by
more than half of the directors, with two thirds of directors in attendance; thereafter, to be submitted
in the shareholders’ meeting of the Company.

The Company’ s Articles also stipulate a dividend policy which is as follows: According to the
present and future development plans, the investment environment, capital requirements, domestic
and overseas competition, and the benefit of shareholders, the Company should distribute dividends
and bonuses to shareholders at no less than 20% of the remaining profit (which is the current net
profit less losses of previous years, less the adjustment to retained earnings, and less the
appropriation of earnings to the legal reserve). Dividends could be distributed in cash or shares,
where cash dividends should not be less than 20% of the total dividends distributed.

According to the amendment of the R.O.C. Company Act in January 2012, the Company must retain
10% of its after-tax annual earnings as legal reserve until such retention equals the amount of total
capital. When a company incurs no loss, it may, pursuant to a resolution by a shareholders’
meeting, distribute its legal reserve by issuing new shares or by distributing cash, and only the
portion of legal reserve which exceeds 25% of capital may be distributed.

207



(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUDED IN CHINESE)
EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED)

The distribution of the 2021 and 2020 earnings had been approved during the meetings of the
shareholders and the board held on June 21, 2022 and March 12, 2021, respectively, as follows:

2021 2020
Dividend Dividend
per share ($) Amount per share ($) Amount

Dividends distributed to common
shareholders

Cash $ 3.50 494,021 3.50 494,021

Share 0.50 70.574 - -
Total $ 564,595 494,021

The amount of cash dividends on the appropriations of earnings for 2022, and the amount of shares
dividends of appropriation of earnings for 2022, had been approved and proprosed, respectively
during the Board meeting on March 16, 2023, as follows:

2022
Dividend
per share ($) Amount
Dividends distributed to common shareholders:
Cash $ 3.65 540,953
Share 0.50 74,103
Total 615,056

4.0Other equity interest after tax

Unrealized gains
(losses) from
financial assets

Exchange measured at fair
differences on value through
translation of other
foreign financial comprehensive
income Total
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ (260,442) 118,342 (142,100)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statement 311,023 - 311,023
Exchange differences on associates accounted for using equity method (154,738) - (154,738)
Unrealized gains (losses) from financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income - 38,806 38.806
Unrealized gains (losses) from financial assets measured at fair value through other
p ive income, i d for using equity method - 81,105 81,105
Disposal of investments in equity instrunents designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income - (36.606) (36.606)
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ (104,157) 201,647 97,490
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Unrealized gains
(losses) from
financial assets

Exchange measured at fair
differences on value through
translation of other
foreign financial comprehensive
income Total
Balance as of January 1, 2021 $ (199,369) 85,289 (114,080)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statement (92,720) - (92,720)
Exchange differences on associates accounted for using equity method 31,647 - 31,647
Unrealized gains (losses) from financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income - 6,761 6,761
Unrealized gains (losses) from financial assets measured at fair value through other
p ive income, i for using equity method - 22,201 22,201
Disposal of investments in equity instruments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income - 4,091 4.091
Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ (260,442) 118,342 (142,100)

5.Non-controlling interests after tax
For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Balance, beginning of year $ 2,007,323 1,988,807
Shares attributed to non-controlling interests
Net income 117,848 115,140
Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial
statements 17,438 (9,502)
Unrealized gains or losses from financial assets measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income 55,072 1,476
Gains or losses on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 2,571 1,358
Cash dividends of subsidiaries distributed to non-controlling
interests (92,067) (89,956)
Acquired the non-controlling interests from the acquisition of
subsidiaries (11,286) -
Loss on non-controlling interests from the disposal of subsidiaries (22) -
Balance, end of year $ 2,096,877 2,007,323

(x) Earnings per share

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the basic and diluted earnings per share were
calculated as follows:

1.Basic earnings per share

For the Years Ended December 31,
2022 2021
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company s 667,453 607,149

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic)(retroactive 148,206 148,206
adjustments)
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2.Diluted earnings per share

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company s 667,453 607,149
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic)(retroactive 148,206 148,206
adjustments)
Effect of employee stock compensation 752 796
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)(retroactive 148,958 149,002
adjustments)

(y) Revenue from contracts with customers

1.Disaggregation of revenue

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Primary geographical markets:
Taiwan $ 6,943,718 6,273,083
Hong Kong 16,044 46,695
Philippines 135,453 148,917
Malaysia 91,613 104.457
Total $ 7,186,828 6,573,152
Major products:
Product revenue
Medical equipment and Supplies $ 4,196,269 3,947,348
Medicines 767,924 720,218
Aesthetic medical equipment and Supplies 993,186 790,900
Household appliances 202,742 160,457
Other 69,724 74,440
Repair and maintenance revenue 437,491 380,318
Other operating revenue 519.492 499.471
Total $ 7,186,828 6,573,152

2.Contract balances

December 31, December 31, January 1, 2021

2022 2021
Trade receivables $ 5,146,475 4,567,791 4,024,373
Less: allowance for impairment (85.342) (75.475) (72.628)
Total s 5,061,133 4,492,316 3,951,745
Contract liabilities M 484,941 379,224 311,978
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For details on trade receivables and allowance for impairment, please refer to note (6)(e).

The amount of revenue recognized for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 that was
included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the period were $239,822 thousand and
$229,005 thousand, respectively.

(z) Employee compensation and directors’  remuneration

In accordance with the Articles of Incorporation, the Company should contribute no less than 1% of
the profit as employee compensation and no higher than 5% as directors’ remuneration when there
is profit for the year. However, if the Company has accumulated deficits, the profit should be reserved
to offset the deficits. The amount of compensation for employees may be paid by shares or cash, and
the recipients may include the employees of the Company’ s affiliated companies. The amount of
remuneration to directors may only be paid in cash. Both the employee compensation and directors’
remuneration should be approved by the Board of Directors and reported during the shareholders’
meeting.

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company estimated its employee compensation
amounting to $45,529 thousand and $38,706 thousand, and directors’ remuneration amounting to
$21,264 thousand and $19,353 thousand, respectively. The estimated amounts mentioned above are
calculated based on the net profit before tax, excluding the compensation to employees and
remuneration to directors of each period, multiplied by the percentage specified in the Company’ s
articles. These remunerations were expensed under operating costs or operating expenses during
2022 and 2021. Related information would be available at the Market Observation Post System website.
The aforesaid amounts are identical to those stated in parent-company-only financial statements.

(aa) Non-operating income and expenses

1.Interest Income
The details of other income were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Interest income from bank deposits $ 21,901 8,777
Interest income from lease payment receivable 2,238 1,421
Other interest income 764 494
$ 24,903 10,692

2.0ther income
The details of other income were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Dividend income $ 20,083 19,320
Other income 5,242 5,620
$ 25,325 24,940
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3.Financial costs
The details of financial costs were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Interest expenses
Bank borrowings $ 5,927 3,651
Others 4,522 5.110
s 10,449 8,761

4.0Other gains and losses
The details of other gains and losses were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
(Losses) gains on disposal of property, plant, and equipment $ 157 5)
Foreign exchange (losses) gains 7,778 (948)
Net gains or losses on  financial assets (liabilities) measured at
fair value through profit or loss (1,759) (6,640)
Others 20,893 25,999
$ 27,069 18,406

(ab) Reclassification adjustments of components of other comprehensive income
The details of reclassification of other comprehensive income were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
Net changes in fair value $ 146,061 10,607
Net changes of fair value reclassified to retained earnings (36.606) (4.091)
Net gains or losses recognized in other comprehensive income s 109.455 6,516

(ac) Financial instruments
1.Credit risks
1) Credit risk exposure

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum amount exposed to credit risk.
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2) Concentration of credit risk

To minimize credit risks of receivables, the Group periodically evaluates the customers’
financial positions and the possibility of collecting trade receivables. And, the impairment losses
are always within the management’ s expectation. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, 43% and
45%, respectively, of notes receivable and accounts receivable were two customers. Thus, credit
risk is significantly centralized.

2.Liquidity risks

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities of the Group, excluding the
impact of netting arrangements:

On Demand
Carrying  Contractual or Less than 1-3 3-6 6-12 More than
amount cash flow 1 month months months months 1-2 years 2 years
December 31, 2022
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Long-term and short-term $ 535,134 545,134 9,784 535,350 - - - -
borrowings
Deposits received 339 339 - - - - - 339
Payables 4,215,467 4,215,467 813,153 3,269,839 73,513 58,952 - 10
Lease liabilities 272916 272916 7.808 15.386 23.161 44.509 49.866 132.186
$ 5,023,856 5,033,856 830,745 3,820,575 96,674 103,461 49,866 132,535
December 31, 2021
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Long-term and short-term $ 479,966 479,966 9,616 435,350 35,000 - - -
borrowings
Payables 3,668,755 3,668,755 3,305,175 270,169 38,980 54,421 - 10
Lease liabilities 282,026 282,026 6,494 12,214 18,369 35,166 65,194 144,589
Derivative financial liabilities
Foreign exchange forward
contract
Outflows 76,813 76,813 45,716 31,097 - - - -
Inflows (76.140) (76,140) (45,187) (30.953) - - - =
$ 4,431,420 4,431,420 3,321,814 717,877 92,349 89,587 65,194 144,599

The Group is not expecting that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur
significantly earlier or at significantly different amounts.
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3.Market risks
1) Currency risks

The Group™ s significant exposure to foreign currency risk of financial assets and liabilities were

as follows:
December 31, 2022
Foreign
Functional Exchange currency Carrying amount
currency rate Currency (in thousands) (TWD)
Financial assets
Monetary items
TWD 30.710 USD $ 6,748 207,241
TWD 0.232 JPY 218,030 50,670
TWD 32.720 EUR 660 21,591
HKD 7.798 USD 8,907 273,521
Non-Monetary items
TWD 0.025 KRW 4,729,950 116,215
USD 0.033 TWD 112,176 112,176
USD 0.144 CNY 31,132 137,195
USD 0.128 HKD 281,381 1,107,804
USD 0.218 MYR 29,002 194,254
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
TWD 0.232 JPY 386,569 89,839
TWD 30.710 USD 1,750 53,741
TWD 32.720 EUR 1,894 61,972
PHP 56.421 USD 667 20,484
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December 31, 2021
Foreign
Functional Exchange currency Carrying amount
currency rate Currency (in thousands) (TWD)

Financial assets

Monetary items

TWD 27.680 USD $ 4,086 113,101

TWD 31.320 EUR 1,816 56,877

HKD 7.799 USD 8,420 233,066

Non-Monetary items

TWD 0.024 KRW 4,931,441 115,889

USD 0.157 CNY 30,650 133,115

USD 0.128 HKD 116,273 412,602

USD 0.230 MYR 25,902 164,614
Financial liabilities

Monetary items

TWD 0.241 JRY 285,780 68,730

TWD 31.320 EUR 295 9,239

TWD 27.680 USD 1,769 48,966

Since the Group has many kinds of currency, the information on foreign exchange gains or losses
on monetary items is disclosed by total amount. For the years ended December 31, 2022 and
2021, foreign exchange gains or losses amounted to gains of $7,778 thousand and losses of $948
thousand, respectively.

2) Sensitivity analysis

The Group’ s foreign exchange exposure to foreign currency risk arises from foreign currency
exchange fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivables and accounts payables.
Assuming other variables remain the same, a 1% depreciation or appreciation of the TWD against
foreign currency for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 would have increased or
decreased the net profit after tax by $2,670 thousand and $2,331 thousand, respectively. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for both periods.

3) Interest rate risk

The Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities with interest rate exposure risk were noted
in the liquidity risk section.

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the exposure to the interest rate risk of derivative
and non-derivative financial instruments on the reporting date. Regarding liabilities with variable
interest rates, the analysis is based on the assumption that the amount of liabilities outstanding at
the reporting date was outstanding throughout the year.
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If the interest rate increases or decreases by 1%, assuming that all other variables remain constant,
the Group’ s profit will decrease or increase by $10,966 thousand and $20,310 thousand for the
years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The changes are mainly due to floating
rate bank deposits and borrowings of the Group.

4) Other price risks

Assuming that the analysis is performed on the same basis for both periods, if equity prices had
been 1% higher/lower, pre-tax other comprehensive income for the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021 would have increased/decreased by $6,864 thousand and $7,015 thousand,
respectively, as a result of the changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

4.Fair value information
1) The categories and fair values of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income is measured on a recurring basis. The carrying amount
and fair value of the Group’ s financial assets and liabilities, including the information on fair
value hierarchy were as follows; however, except as described in the following paragraphs, for
financial instruments not measured at fair value whose carrying amount is reasonably close to the
fair value, and lease liabilities, disclosure of fair value information is not required:

December 31, 2022
Fair value
Book value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value

through other comprehensive
income
Domestic listed shares $ 71,716 71,716 - - 71,716
Foreign listed shares 135,785 135,785 - - 135,785
Domestic unlisted shares 134,044 - - 134,044 134,044
Foreign unlisted shares 344,893 - - 344,893 344,893

Sub-total 686.438 207.501 - 478.937 686.438

Financial assets at amortized

cost
Cash and cash equivalents 2,506,995 - - - -
Time deposits with original

maturity of more than 3

months 704,439 - - - -
Receivables 5,061,133 - - - -
Other financial assets 196,548 - - - -

Sub-total 8.469.115 - - - -
Total $ 9,155,553 207,501 - 478,937 686,438
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December 31, 2022
Fair value
Book value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial liabilities at
amortized cost
Short-term and long-term
borrowings $ 535,134 - - - -
Payables 4,215,467 - - - -
Lease liabilities 272916 - - - -
Total $ 5,023,517 - - - -
December 31, 2021
Fair value
Book value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income
Domestic listed shares $ 90,528 90,528 - - 90,528
Foreign listed shares 152,234 152,234 - - 152,234
Domestic unlisted shares 149,478 - - 149,478 149,478
Foreign unlisted shares 309,301 - - 309,301 309,301
Sub-total 701,541 242.762 - 458.779 701,541
Financial assets at amortized
cost
Cash and cash equivalents 3,072,264 - - - -
Time deposits with original
maturity of more than 3
months 682,603 - - - -
Receivables 4,492,316 - - - -
Other financial assets 243.907 - - - -
Sub-total 8.491.090 - - - -
Total $ 9,192,631 242,762 - 458,779 701,541
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December 31, 2021
Fair value
Book value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial liabilities $ 673 - 673 - 673

Financial liabilities at
amortized cost

Short-term and long-term

borrowings 479,966 - - - -
Payables 3,668,755 - - - -
Lease liabilities 282,026 - - - _
Sub-total 4,430,747 - - R R
Total $ 4,431,420 - 673 - 673

2) Valuation techniques for financial instruments not measured at fair value

The Group' s valuation techniques and assumptions used for financial instruments not measured
at fair value are as follows:

A.Financial assets measured at amortized cost

If the quoted prices in active markets are available, the market price is established as the fair
value. However, if quoted prices in active markets are not available, the estimated valuation or
prices used by competitors are adopted.

B.Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

If there is quoted price generated by transactions, the recent transaction price and quoted price
data is used as the basis for fair value measurement. However, if no quoted prices are available,
the discounted cash flows are used to estimated fair values.

3) Valuation techniques for financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group considers the financial status, operating analysis, most recent transaction price,
non-active market quoted price of related equity instrument, and active-market quoted price of
similar instrument, and other information, in determining the input value of its investee companies.
Periodically updates of information and input value for the valuation model and any necessary
adjustments of fair value are required to ensure that the results of estimation are reasonable.

A Non-derivative financial instruments

If quoted prices in active markets are available, the prices are established as fair values, such
as public quoted company stock.

For the Group® s financial instruments that have no active markets, the measurement of fair
values is listed as follows:
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Equity instrument that has no quoted price: The method of comparable Listed Company
approach is used to estimate the fair value.The main assumption for the method is to determine
the fair value by using the transaction price paid for an identical or a similar instrument of an
investee.

B.Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are measured by using the common valuation models such as
discounted cash flow model and Black-Scholes model.

4) Changes in level 3 of the fair value

Fair value through
other comprehensive

income
unquoted equity
instruments
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 458,779
Total gains and losses recognized
In other comprehensive income 32,961
Disposal (13,684)
Reclassification and effect of movements in exchange rates 881
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 478,937
Balance as of January 1, 2021 $ 437,440
Total gains and losses recognized
In other comprehensive income 40,716
Disposal (18,781)
Reclassification and effect of movements in exchange rates 596
Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ 458,779

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, total gains and losses included in ~ “other
gains and losses” ,and  “unrealized gains and losses from financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income”  were as follows:

Total gains and losses recognized

In other comprehensive income, and presented in
“unrealized gains and losses from financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income”

measurement

For the Years Ended December 31,

2021

40,345 40,716

5) Quantified information for significant unobservable inputs (level 3) used in fair value

The Group’ s financial instruments that use Level 3 inputs to measure fair value include

“financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income — equity investments without

active market” .
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Quantified information of significant unobservable inputs was as follows:

The relationship
Significant between significant
non-observable Non-observable
Item Valuation techniques inputs inputs and fair value

Financial assets at fair Comparable Listed . EV/EBITOA - The estimated
value through other Companies Method Value Multiple (8 on  fair value would

comprehensive December 31,2021) increase (decrease) if
income - equity EV/Revenue Value  the value multiple is
instruments investments Multiple (3.13 and higher (lower) and
without an active 2.22 on December the marketability
market 31,2022 and 2021)  discount is lower

. P/B Value (higher)

Multiple (0.98~3.54
and 1.14~4.74 on
December 31, 2022
and 2021)

. Discount due
to Lack of Market
liquidity
(16.40%~30.00%
and 15.36%~30.00%
on December 31,
2022 and 2021)

6) Sensitivity analysis for fair values of financial instruments using Level 3 Inputs

The Group’ s fair value measurement on financial instruments is reasonable. However, the
measurement would differ if different valuation models or valuation parameters are used. For
financial instruments using level 3 inputs, if the valuation parameters are changed, the impact on
net income or loss and other comprehensive income or loss will be as follows:

Impact on Fair Value Change

on Other Comprehensive
income or loss

Favorable Unfavorable
Input Variation Change Change
December 31, 2022
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Equity instruments without an Value Multiple 5% $ 14,388 (14,388)
active
market
Equity instruments without an active ~ Discount due to 5% 32,901 (32,901)
market Lack of Market
liquidity
$ 47,289 (47,289)
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Impact on Fair Value Change
on Other Comprehensive
income or loss

Favorable Unfavorable
Input Variation Change Change

December 31, 2021
Financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income

Equity instruments without an active ~ Value Multiple 5% $ 24,204 (24,204)
market

Equity instruments without an active  Discount due to 5% 32,288 (32,288)
market Lack of Market

liquidity
$ 56,492 (56,492)

(ad) Financial risk management
1.Overview
The Group has exposures to the following risks from its financial instruments:
1) credit risk
2) liquidity risk
3) market risk

The following likewise discusses the Group’ s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and
managing the above mentioned risks. For more disclosures about the quantitative effects of these
risks exposures, please refer to the respective notes in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

2.Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’

s risk management framework. The general manager, which reports to the Board of Directors, is
responsible for the development of the Group-Wide risk management policy and related systems
and reports regularly to the Board of Directors.

The Group’ s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by
the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and changes in operation of the Group. The Group, through its training and
management standards and procedures, aim to develop a disciplined and constructive control
environment, in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Group’ s Board of Directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’
s risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Group’ s Board of Directors is assisted
in its oversight role by internal audit. The internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews
of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Board of
Directors.
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3.Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty would default on its contractual obligations resulting
in financial loss to the Group. As at the end of the reporting period, the Group’ s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure of counterparties to
discharge an obligation and financial guarantees provided by the Group could arise from:

1) The carrying amount of the respective recognized financial assets as stated in the consolidated
balance sheets; and

2) The amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantee issued by the Group.

In order to minimize credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

Please refer to Note (13)(a) for the information of guarantees and endorsements for subsidiaries as
of December 31, 2022.

4.Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated
with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’
s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it always has sufficient liquidity

to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’ s reputation.

5.Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices, and credit spreads will affect the Group’ s income or the value of its holdings of

financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market
risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return on risk.

The Group buys and sells derivatives, and also incurs financial liabilities, in order to manage market
risks. All such transactions are carried out within the guidelines set by the Board of Directors and
shareholder’ s meeting with the supervision of the internal audit department. Information
concerning all market risks of the Group was as follows:

1) Currency risk

The Group had foreign currency sales and purchases, which exposed the Group to foreign
currency risk. Exchange rate exposures were managed within approved policy parameters
utilizing forward foreign exchange contracts.

2) Interest rate risk

The Group was exposed to interest rate risk because entities in the Group borrowed funds at both
fixed and floating interest rates. The Group pays attention to changes in market interest rates in
order to make plans to manage interest rate risk.
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3) Other price risk

The Group was exposed to price risk through its investments in listed securities. The Group has
appointed a special team to monitor and evaluate the price risk.

(ae) Capital Management

The Group’ s objectives for managing capital to safeguard the capacity to continue to operate, to
continue to provide a return on shareholders, to maintain the interest of other related parties, and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to the
shareholders, reduce the capital for redistribution to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to
settle any liabilities.

The Group use the debt-to-equity ratio to manage capital. This ratio is the total net debt divided by the
total capital. The net debt from the balance sheet is derived from the total liabilities less cash and cash
equivalents. The total capital and equity include share capital, capital surplus, retained earnings, and
other equity plus net debt.

(af) Investing and financing activities not affecting current cash flow

The Group’ s investing and financing activities which did not affect the current cash flow in the year
ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, were as follows:

1.For acquisitions of right-of-use assets by leasing, please refer to note 6(1).
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities were as follows:

Non-cash ch

Foreign
exchange December 31,
January 1, 2022 Cash flows Acquisition movement Others 2022
Short-term and long-term $ 479,966 55,168 - - - 535,134
borrowings
Lease liabilities 282.026 (82.581) 175,408 252 (102.189) 272916
Total liabilities from $ 761,992 (27,413) 175,408 252 (102,189) 808,050

financing activities

Non-cash changes

Foreign
January 1, exchange December 31,
2021 Cash flows Acquisition movement Others 2021
Short-term borrowings $ 408,749 71,413 - (196) - 479,966
Lease liabilities 303.826 (75.635) 73.608 (815) (18.958) 282,026
Total liabilities from $ 712,575 (4,222) 73,608 (1,011) (18,958) 761,992

financing activities
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(7) Related Party Transactions
(a) Names and relationship with related parties

The followings are entities that have had transactions with related party during the periods covered in

the consolidated financial statements.

Name of related party

Relationship with the Group

Excelsior Investment Co., Ltd.

Excelsior Group Holdings Co., Ltd.

Jiate Excesior Co., Ltd. (Jiate)

Bestchain Healthtaiwan Co., Ltd. (Bestchain)
Visionfront Corporation

Excelsior Renal Service Co., Limited (ERS)
Asia Best Healthcare Co., Limited (ABH)
Medifly Co., Ltd.

Asia Best Life Care Co., Ltd. (Former
name: Asia Best Life Care Technology Co.,
Ltd.)

Excelsior Long Term Care Corporation Entity

CYJ INTERNATIONAL COMPANY
LIMITED (CYJ)

Medytox Taiwan Inc.

Touce Biotech Co., Ltd.

Arich Best Chain Co., Ltd.(Arich Best Chain)
Bestsmile Co., Ltd.

SciVision Biotech Inc.

Excelsior Health Foundation

Caregen Co., Ltd.

RENAL HEALTHCARE SDN. BHD.
Hung Shun Chen Investment Co., Ltd.
Anxin Nice Care Co., Ltd.
NephroCare Limited

Cardinal Medical Services Ltd.

Entities with significant influence over the Group

”

Associate (Note 1)

Associate

Associate (Note 2)

Associate

Associate(Subsidiary before July 20, 2022)
Other related parties

”

Other related parties before May 31, 2021
Associate
Associate after April 29, 2022

”

Note 1: The dissolution of Jiate Excelsior Co., Ltd. had been approved during the shareholders’

meeting held on October 24, 2022.

Note 2: The Group acquired 35% equity of Touce Biotech Co., Ltd..
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(b) Significant transactions with related parties

1.BOperating revenue
1) Sales revenue

The amounts of significant sales by the Group to related parties were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Associates - Bestchain $ 2,064,230 1,948,018
Associates - ERS 765,441 777,052
Associates - Others 107,063 24,830
Other related parties 8 -
3 2,936,742 2,749,900

The aforementioned transactions, except the sales to Bestchain and ERS that were priced on a

cost-plus basis, were conducted on normal commercial terms.

2) Repair and maintenance revenue

The amounts of significant repair and maintenance revenue by the Group to related parties were

as follows:
For the Years Ended December 31,
2022 2021
Associates - ERS $ 93,880 89,352
Associates - Bestchain 1.146 1.539
$ 95,026 90,891

3) Other operating revenue-rental revenue

The amounts of significant other operating revenue-rental revenue by the Group to related parties

were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Entities with significant influence over the Group $ 72 72
Associates - ABH 14,799 13,003
Associates - ERS 4,661 4,526
Associates - Others 1,565 1,102
Other related parties 16 40
$ 21,113 18,743
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4) Other operating revenue-service revenue

The amounts of significant other operating revenue-service revenue by the Group to related

parties were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Associates $ 18,285 12,801
Other related parties 286 132
$ 18,571 12,933

2.Purchases from related parties

The amounts of significant purchases by the Group from related parties were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Associates $ 57,947 33,580
Other related parties 84,380 86.990
$ 142,327 120,570

There is no significant difference in terms and conditions of the purchases from associates between

those provided to the third parties.
3.Receivables from related parties

Receivables from related parties were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
Accounted for as Category of related party 2022 2021

Notes receivable Associates $ 11 51
Other notes receivable Associates 980 793
Accounts receivable Associates - Bestchain 594,028 562,895
Accounts receivable Associates - ERS 156,865 161,552
Accounts receivable Associates - Others 40,632 9,030
Accounts receivable Other related parties 2 -
Other receivables Associates 2,358 2,566
Other receivables Other related parties - 2

$ 794.876 736.889
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4 Payables to related parties
Payables to related parties were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

Accounted for as Category of related party 2022 2021
Accounts payable Associates $ 3,043 20,904
Accounts payable Other related parties 8,500 81
Other payables Associates 14,208 12,643

$ 25,751 33,628

5.Property transactions
1) Disposals of property, plant and equipment
The disposals of property, plant and equipment to related parties were summarized as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Gains Gains
(losses) (losses)
Disposal from Disposal from
Category of related party price disposal price disposal
Associates $ - - 95 95

2) Disposals of financial assets

The disposals of financial assets to related parties are summarized as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Gain Gain
Number Disposal (loss) on Number Disposal (loss) on
Relationship Account of shares Purpose price disposal of shares Purpose price disposal
Associates — Bestchain Investments 1,194,526 Ordinary  $ 6,634 (43) B .
accounted for shares of
using equity Bestsmile
method

6.Guarantee

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Group provided associates guarantees for loans. The credit
limit of the guarantees were $600,000 thousand and $800,000 thousand, respectively, and the
amount utilized were both $0 thousand.
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7.Lease

1) In 2018, the Group rent the office with Excelsior Renal Service Co., Limited. A four-year lease
contract was signed, in which the rental fee is determined based on nearby office rental rates. The
total value of the contract was $480 thousand. For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,
the Group recognized the amount of $0 thousand and $1 thousand as interest expense. As of
December 31, 2022 and 2021, the balance of lease liabilities amounted to $0 thousand and $20

thousand, respectively.

2) In 2019, the Group rent the staff dormitory with RENAL HEALTHCARE SDN. BHD. A
three-year lease contract was signed, in which the rental fee is determined based on nearby office
rental rates. The total value of the contract was $484 thousand. For the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021 the Group recognized the amount of $0 thousands and $4 thousand as interest
expense. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the balance of lease liabilities amounted to $0

thousand.
8.0thers
For the Years Ended December 31,
2022 2021
Associates and Other related parties
Other revenue-rental revenue $ - 54
Other revenue 2,308 3,394
Cost of goods sold (3,925) (288)
Repair and maintenance costs (3,174) (3,392)
Fright and warehousing expense (41,797) (49,182)
Rent expense (2,572) (830)
Other expense (30,041) (25.761)
$ (79,201) (76,005)

The aforementioned rentals collected or paid quarterly or monthly were based on prevailing market

rates.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Group had received collections in advance from associates

for $165 thousand and $220 thousand, respectively.

The outstanding receivables from related parties are unsecured. For the years ended December 31,

2022 and 2021, no impairment loss was recognized for receivables from related parties.

The outstanding payables to related parties are unsecured.
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(c) Key management personnel compensation
Key management personnel compensation comprised:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Short-term employee benefits $ 77,492 74,255
Post-employment benefit 1,698 1,425
$ 79,190 75,680
Pledged Assets
The carrying amount of pledged assets were as follows:
December 31, December 31,
Pledged assets Object 2022 2021
Current deposits and time deposits ~ Bank loans, bank guarantee $ 53,863 53,702
and credit card document
receiving service guarantee
Notes receivable and other notes Guarantee of short-term 194,349 200,171
receivable loan or strengthening credit
Property, plant and equipment Bank loans 92,969 89,859
Investment property i 995.066 1,002,235
$ 1,336,247 1,345,967

Significant Commitments and Contingencies
(a) Unrecognized contractual commitments

1.As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the unused letters of credit were $81,151 thousand and $94,110
thousand, respectively. The guarantee letters issued by banks for sales contract guarantee and
purchase bid of hospital were $350,275 thousand and $568,088 thousand, respectively.

2.In April 2022, the Company entered into a supply agreement with the Hong Kong-based company.
Pursuant to the agreement, the Company shall purchase certain products from the Hong Kong-based
company in agreed quantities at agreed prices annually.

Losses due to major disasters : None.
Subsequent events

The subsidiary which name is Excelsior Asset Management Co., Ltd.(Excelsior Asset) was in contract of
sale and purchase of real estate with Ho Xin Development Co., Ltd on March 1, 2023. The transaction
amount was 520,000 thousand. The amount has yet to be paid as of reporting date.
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(12) Other

(a) The employee benefits, depreciation, depletion and amortization expenses categorized by function

were as follows:

By function| For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 For the Years Ended December 31, 2021
By item Operating Operating Operating Operating
cost expense Total cost expense Total

[Employee benefits

Salary 221,159 418,569 639,728 184,320 352,519 536,839

Labor and health 19,438 32,517 51,955 17,246 29,296 46,542

insurance

Pension 10,650 19,473 30,123 9,579 18,328 27,907

Others 11,769 15,805 27,574 11,380 17,992 29,372
IDepreciation 166,747 52,027 218,774 144,881 53,752 198,633
IAmortization 1,525 2,139 3,664 1,178 3,143 4,321

(13) Other disclosures

(a) Information on significant transactions

The following is the information on significant transactions required by the

the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers”

December 31, 2022:

1. Fund financing to other parties:

(Expressed in thousands of N¢

[Highest balanc

Purposes of

[Transaction

“Regulations Governing
for the Group for the year ended

w Taiwan dollars)

Co., Limitedfelated parties

of financing to Range of amount for | Reasons Maximum
other party Actual usage | interest |financing for| business | for short |Allowance Individual | limitation on
Num-| Nameof | Nameof | Account |Related | duringthe Ending | amount during | rates during [the borrower| between | -term | forbad | _Collateral funding fund
ber lender borrower | _name | party period balance the period | the period | (Note2) |two parties| financing | debt [ Name| Value | loanlimits | financing
T [SinoExcelsior [Excelsior  [Other Yes 2163 2,116 - T.00% 2 ~ [Operating B None B 54878 54878
lInvestment Inc. [Healthcare ~ freceivables-R (Capital

Note 1: The numbers denote the following:

1. 0 is issuer.

2. Investees are listed by names and numbered starting with 1.

Note 2: Purpose of fund financing for the borrower:

1. For those companies with business contact, please fill in 1.
2. For those companies with short-term financing needs, please fill in 2.
Note 3: Maximum limitation on fund financing:
1. The lender's each and total fund financial amount cannot exceed 40% of its net asset value that from the most recent reviewed report.
i imi in the i

Note 4: The aforementioned inter-company

have been

financial
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2. Guarantees and endorsements for other parties:

E SPECIFIED)

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Counter-party Thmitation on Amountof Masimum
endorsement endorsement/ | Ratio of accumulated | endorsement Guarantee
Endorsement/ Naturcof | Jguarantee amount guarantee amount|  Guarantee provided to
puarantee relationship | provided o éach ~[Maximum balanee o net equity pe allowance provided by subsidiaries in
No. | provider Name (Note2) for the year drawn properties i by a subsidiary i
0 [The Company 2 1640086 770250 - - % 3200432 ¥ N N
HK) Co, Limited
(Note 4)
0 . [Excelsior nvestment 2 1640086 202 9848 012% 8200432 v N N
Malaysia) Co. Lid
(Note 4)
o . [Excelsior Asset 2 1640086 990000 990,000 75350 o7 8200432 ¥ N N
[Management CO.,
Jtd. (Note 4)
o . [EG Healtheare, . 2 1640086 59,600 57925 9797 071 8200432 ¥ N N
o " [Medi-Chem System 2 1640086 16,108 15355 0.19% 8200432 v N N
JSan. Bhd. (Note 4)
o . [Renal Laboratories 2 1640086 80537 76,775 094 8200432 ¥ N N
JSan. Bhd. (Note 4)
o . [Excelsior Renal 1 765.409 % 5200432 N N N
[Service Co., Limited
Note 3)
o . [Bestchain 2061533 800000 600,000 730% 8200432 N N N
JHealthtaivan Co, Lia
1 fExcelsior Beauty [Dynamic Medical 3 67469 100 100 003 168,673 N ¥ N
o Lt Technologis Inc
2 [arich Enterprise [Faivan Shionogi Inc. 1 155,126 % 940922 N N N
0. L. Note 5)

Note 1: the description of number column:

1. 0 is issuer.

2. Investees are listed by name and numbered starting with 1.
Note 2: Relationship with the Company

Lk LN =

Companies in the same type of business and p

The companies with which it has business relations.
Subsidiaries in which the Company directly or indirectly holds more than 50% of its total outstanding common shares.
The parent company which directly or indirectly holds more than 50% of its voting rights.

Subsidiaries in which the Company directly or indirectly holds more than 90% of its voting rights.

mutual endorsement;

obligations in order to fulfill the needs of the construction project.

and/or

making

S

Note 3:For and

parties for the current year.

to those

for their mutually invested company in proportion to their shareholding percentage.
. Companies in the same type of business providing guarantees of pre-sale contracts according to the regulation.

in favor of each other in accordance with the contractual

with business contact, the maximum amount cannot exceed the trading amount between two

Note 4:The total amount of guarantee and endorsement cannot exceed 20% of the Company” s net asset value from the most recent audited or reviewed

report.

Note 5:For guarantee and endorsement from Arich to the Company with business contact, the maximum amount cannot exceed the trading amount between
two parties for the most recent 24 months.
Note 6: The total amount of guarantee and endorsement cannot exceed 20% of Excelsior Beauty Co., Ltd." s net asset value from the most recent audited or

reviewed report.

Note 7: The total amount of guarantee and endorsement cannot exceed the Company’ s net asset value from the most recent audited or review report:
Dynamic, Excelsior Beauty and Arich cannot exceed 50% of their net asset value from the most recent audited or reviewed report.

Note 8: The aforementioned inter-company transactions have been

d in the

d financial
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3. Information regarding securities held at balance sheet date (excluding investment in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures):

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Relationship Ending balance
Name of holder |~ Category and name | with the Company|  Account title Number of | Book value | Percentage | Market value | Peak Holding | Notes
of security shares of shares Percentage
IStock
[The Company ~ [SciVision Biotech Inc. - [Fair value through other 32,525 1,763 0.05% 1,763 0.81%
lcomprehensive income
. 5-D Matrix, Ltd. - - 273,400 19,570 0.46% 19,570 0.66%
” (Gie Cheng Co., Ltd. - - 3,795,000 35,635 17.25% 35,635 17.25%
- [Rui Guang Healthcare Co., - - 2423951 31.802 7.15% 31,802 7.15%
[Ltd.
- [Sunder Biomedical Tech. - - 2,279,578 53,684 3.80% 53,684 3.80%
0., Ltd.
. [Linkon International Golf & - - 1 10,300 0.10% 10,300 0.10%
Country Club
IStock
[Excelsior [Chai Tai Bo Ai Investment - - 10,000 8,536 8.00% 8,536 8.00%
lealth ILimited
(Co.Limited
[EG Healtheare,  [The Orchard Golf & Country - - 1 760 - % 760 %
nc. “lub
[Dynamic Medical[SciVision Biotech Inc. ther related parties| - 1,290,649 69,953 1.95% 69,953 1.95%
[Technologies Inc|
. [Caregen Co., Ltd. - - 34,500 116,215 0.32% 116,215 032%
[Stock Warrant
[Dynamic MedicallViveve Medical Inc. - [Financial assets at fair 250 - % %
[Technologies Ivalue through profit or
Hong Kong) loss
Ltd.
Stock
[Excelsior Beauty [Join Fun Co., Ltd. - [Fair value through other 263,340 2,623 19.00% 2,623 19.00%
¥ lcomprehensive income
|Arich Enterprise [National Pharmaceutical ~ [Board director of - 335,597 17.65% 335,597 17.65%| Note
“o., Ltd. ILogistics Corp., Ltd. finvestee

Note : Act as limited company, no outstanding share.

4. Accumulated buying/selling of the same marketable securities for which the amount reaches $300

million or 20% or more of paid-in capital:

(Expressed in thousands of N

'w Taiwan dollars)

[Limited

[Excelsior Medical
) Co.,

imited

laccounted for
Jusing equity
Imethod

Beginning balance Purchases Sales Ending balance
Category and| Name of donshi Disposal
Name of Account  [counter-p|  with the Shares/ Shares/ Shares/ gain Shares/
Company security name arty | Company Units Amount Units Amount Units Price Cost (loss) Units Amount
NephroCare _[investments 151,801,588 688,755 151,801,588 688,755

5. Acquisition of real estate for which the amount reaches $300 million or 20% or more of paid-in

capital

: None.

6. Disposition of real estate for which the amount reaches $300 million or 20% or more of paid-in

capital:

None.
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7. Buying/selling products with the amount reaches $100 million or 20% or more of paid-in capital:

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Transactions with terms Account/note receivable
Transaction details different from others (payable)
Percentage of
Percentage total accounts/
of total notes
Name of Name of Purchase/ purchases/ receivable
company Counter-party |Relationship|  Sale Amount sales | Credit period | Unit price | Credit period Balance (payable) | Notes
The Company _[Excelsior Renal _ |Associates Sales (765.409) | (16.44)% [Net 30-60 days B 156,865 12.51% [Note 1
Service Co.,
[Limited
" [Bestchain " ” (2,061,533) [ (44.29)% [Net 30-90 days - 592,714 47.36%|Note 1
[Healthtaiwan Co.,
[Ltd.

Note 1:The unit price of cost of goods sold for the Company is based on cost-plus pricing approach by product that is lower than average; because, the
expense of goods sold for related parties is lower than average price as well.
Note 2: The aforementioned inter-company transactions have been eli d in the lidated financial

8. Accounts receivable from related parties for which the amount reaches $100 million or 20% or
more of paid-in capital:

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Subsequently
Balance of received amount
receivables Past-due receivables from of receivables
Name of from related | Turnover related party from related Allowances
related party Counter-party | Relationship |  party rate Amount | Action taken party for bad debts
[The Company Excelsior Renal A iat 156,865 4.81 - - 157,194 -
[Service Co.,
[Limited
- Bestchain ” 592,714 3.83 - - 395,106 -
Healthtaiwan Co.,
ILtd.
Note: The aforementioned inter-company transactions have been elimi in the lidated financial

9. Derivative transactions:
Please refer to Note (6)(b) and (6)(ac) for related information.

10. Business relationships and significant inter-company transactions:

Transaction details during 2022
Existing Percentage of the
relationship total consolidated
Name of Name of the with the revenue
Number the company counter-party | counter-party | Account name Amount Terms of trading or total assets
1 [IDynamic Medical  |CYJ International 3 Sales 71,826 [Base on cost-plus 1.00%
[Technologies Inc. ~ [Taiwan Inc. |pricing
” 4 7 3 |Account Receivable 28,337 The same as the term 0.17%
ffor other general
frading partners

Note 1:The numbers denote the following:
1. 0 represents the Company.
2. Subsidi: re listed by names and numbered starting with 1.
Note 2:Relationship with the listed companies:
1. The Company to subsidiary
2. Subsidiary to the Company
3. Subsidiary to subsidiary
Note 3: The transaction amount is calculated as a proportion of the consolidated revenue or assets. If categorized as an asset or liability, the calculation is
compared with the consolidated assets; if categorized as income or loss, the calcul; is with the lid:

Note 4: The aforementioned inter-company transactions have been i d in the i financial

d income or loss.
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(b) Information on investees:

For the year ended December

investees in Mainland china):

31, 2022, the following is the information of investees (excluding

(Amounts Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except for Share Data)

Initial investment amount Ending balance Peak Net income Investment
Name of the Ending Beginning Ratio of Holding (loss) of the income
investor Name of investee | Location | Major operations balance balance Shares shares | Book value | Percentage investee (losses) Notes
[The Jiate Excesior Co., |[New Taipei [Sale, maintenance N 5279 B T % R 49.00% (799) (392) [Associates
Company ~ [Ltd. ICity land lease of medical (Note 4)
lequipment, and
imedical management|
lconsultancy service
- [Bestchain lew Taipei [Sale of medical 277,647 277,647| 49,162,513 44.68% 732,468 44.68% 221,827 99,034 |Associates
Co., [City lequipment and (Note 1)
[Ltd. medicines,
linteragation of
fwarchousing and
finformation
- [Arich Enterprise Co.,[New Taipei [Sale of medicines, 380,856 380,856 29,829,742 40.00% 750,666 40.00% 62,617 25,011 [Subsidiary
ILtd. City land logistics service (Notes 2 - 8)
” [Dynamic Medical lew Taipei [Sale, maintenance 180,300 180,300| 11,550,425 38.50% 547,074 38.50% 137,111 52,626 [Subsidiary
[Technologies Inc.  [City land lease of laser (Note 8)
Imedical equipment
ffor beauty treatment,
jand sale o
consumables of
Ibeauty treatment and|
lcosmetic products
” [Excelsior Healthcare [British Investment business 1,244,687 1,244,687 39,411,623 100.00% 1,944,685 100.00% 101,978 101,978 [Subsidiary
0., Limited [Virgin (Note 8)
lIslands
” IBestsmile Co., Ltd. [New Taipei [Sale of medical - 32,003 - - % - 99.67% (5.311) (5.285)|Associates
lcity lequipment, and (Notes 5 + 8)
lmedical management|
lconsultancy service
4 Visionfront lew Taipei [Sale of medical 44,069 44069 2434870 44.47% 21,440 44.47% (3.216) (1,430) [Associates
Corporation lCity lequipment, and
lmedical management|
lconsultancy service
- [Sunrise Health Care [New Taipei [Sale of medical 18,806 18,806 2,085,547 23.97% 28,672 23.97% 1,489 357 |Associates
‘ompany ICity lequipment, and
Imedical management|
lconsultancy service
" [Excelsior Medical ~ |Hong Kong business 1,588,746 1,588,746| 53,154,741 64.36% 1,782,684 64.36% 122,105 78,587 [Subsidiary
HK) Co., Limited (Note 8)
- [Excelsior Beauty lew Taipei [Sale of aesthetic 91,984 91,984 11,534,804| 41.02% 138,729 41.02% 9,140 3,826 [Sub-subsidiar
o., Lid. ity lmedical and (Note 8)
lcosmetic health-care
products
. [Excelsior Asset (ew Taipei [Sales of medical 780,525 780,525 82,292,300( 100.00% 640,911 100.00% 18,045 18,045 [Subsidiary
Co., [City lequipment, precision (Note 8)
lLtd. linstrument and real
lestate
” Medifly Co., Ltd. [Taichung [Sale of medical 31,899 31,899 3,615,976 28.66% 92,075 28.66% 40,423 11,585 |Associates
lequipment and
medicines
[Excelsior [EG Healthcare, Inc. [Philippines [Sale and lease of 19,256 19,256 9,427,489  99.99% 75,500 99.99% (2,995) - [Sub-subsidiar
[Healtheare Imedical equipment, ly (Note 8)

(Co., Limited

jand medical
management
lconsultancy service
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E SPECIFIED)

Initial investment amount Ending balance Peak Net income | Investment
Name of the Ending Beginning Ratio of Holding (loss) of the income
investor Name of investee | Location | Major operations balance balance Shares shares | Book value | Percentage investee (losses) Notes
ExcelsioflExcelsior Renal Hong Kong [Sale, maintenance 312,505 312,505| 73,375,728 49.00% 392,204 49.00% 137,441 - [Associates
[Healthcare ~ [Service Co., Limited jand lease of medical
(Co., Limited lequipment, and
lmedical management|
lconsultancy service
” [Excelsior Medical ~ [Hong Kong [Investment business 862,529 862,529| 29,439,829( 35.64% 987,179 35.64% 122,105 - [Subsidiary
HK) Co., Limited (Note 8)
” [Excelsior Investment [British business 222,547 192,814 7,341,416| 100.00% 194,195 100.00% (7,291) - ISub-subsidiar
(Malaysia) Co., Ltd [Virgin ly (Note 8)
Islands
[Dynamic [Dynamic Medical ~ [Hong Kong [Sale and 382,278 382,278 79,021,783 100.00% 295,790 100.00% 6,913 - [Subsidiary
Medical  [Technologies (Fong lmaintenance of (Note 8)
[Technologies [Kong) Ltd. Imedical equipment
linc.
” [Excelsior Beauty lew Taipei [Sale of aesthetic 138,745 138,745| 15,154,496 53.89% 166,428 53.89% 9,140 - [Subsidiary
ICo., Ltd. ICity Imedical and (Note 1 +'8)
cosmetic health-care
Iproducts
” Medytox Taiwan Inc.[New Taipei [Sale of cosmetic 18,000 18,000 1,800,000  40.00% (526) 40.00% 880 - |Associates
lCity Ihealth-care products
- [Touce Biotech Co., [New Taipei [Sale of cosmetic 45,000 - 420,000{  35.00% 43,739 35.00% 3,964 - |Associates
ILtd. ICity Ihealth-care products (Note 6)
- "Y]J International  [New Taipei [Sale and treatment o 11,073 - 1,224,020  10.00% 10,950 10.00% (9,073) - [Sub-subsidiar
[Taiwan Inc. ity lhair protecting and lv (Note 7 ~ 8)|
lconditioning
[Dynamic CYJ [Hong Kong [Sale and treatment of] 66,547 66,547 2,150,000  50.00% 10,778 50.00% (2,504) - Associates
Medical [INTERNATIONAL lhair regrowth and
[Technologics [COMPANY lconditioning
|(Hong Kong) [LIMITED
ILtd.
[Excelsior [CYJ International lew Taipei [Sale and treatment of 97,920 97,920 9,792,000  80.00% 90,356 80.00% (9,073) - [Sub-subsidiar
[Beauty Co., [Taiwan Inc. ICity lhair protecting and (Note 8)
ILtd. lconditioning
[Excelsior [Asia Best Healthcare Cayman  [Long-term care 1,395,079 1,395,079 338,800 49.38% 1,522,853 49.38% 191,612 - |Associates
Medical (Co., Ltd. [[slands usiness
(HK) Co.,
Limited
- [Cardinal Medical [British [Sale of medical 106,121 - 9,800  49.00% 112,176 49.00% 13,371 - |Associates
IServices Ltd irgin lequipment, and
lIslands  medical management|
lconsultancy service
- INephroCare Limited [Hong Kong [Sale of medical 688,755 - 151,801,188  49.00% 715,600 49.00% 30,961 - [Associates
lequipment, and
lmedical management|
lconsultancy service
[Excelsior [Renal Laboratories  [Malaysia ~ [Manufacture of 169,502 145,264| 16,773,586  70.00% 160,937 70.00% (9.547) - [Sub-subsidiar
ISdn. Bhd. Imedical equipment (Note 8)
(Malaysia)
(Co., Ltd
- Medi-Chem Systems [Malaysia ~ [Sale of medical 44,052 44,052 350,000(  70.00% 37,346 70.00% 247 - [Sub-subsidiar
ISdn. Bhd. lequipment lv (Note 8)
Medi-Chem [Renal Management [Malaysia [Lease business 1,315 1,315 200,000 100.00% 8,273 100.00% 149 - [Sub-subsidiar
[Systems Sdn. [Sdn. Bhd. (Note 8)
[Bhd.

Note 1:Including the adjustment made from the unrealized gain/loss with subsidiaries and associates.

Note 2:Including the amortization listed by the book value of net identified assets.

Note 3:According to the regulations, the Company are required to disclose the share of income/loss of investees.

Note 4: The dissolution of Jiate Excelsior Co., Ltd. had been approved during the shareholders’  meeting held on October 24, 2022.
Note 5:Bestsmile Co.,Ltd. was no longer a subsidiary beginning on July 20, 2022.

Note 6:The Group acquired 35% equity of Touce Biotech Co., Ltd. on October 2022.

Note 7:Dynamic Medical Technologies Inc. acquired 10% equity of CY]J International Taiwan Inc. from CYJ INTERNATIONAL COMPANY LIMITED,

the associate, in November 2022.
Note 8:The aforementioned inter-company transactions have been elimi d in the lid:

d financial
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(c) Information on investment in Mainland China:

1. Information on investment in Mainland China:

(Amounts Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

‘Accumulated ‘Accumulated
low of w of Direct
investment investment Current Accumulated
Method of | from Taiwan Investment flows from Taiwan | Netincome | sharcholding Peak investment Inward
Name of the [Main Businesses and{Total amount offinvestment | as of January as of December| (loss) of the | (%) bythe |  Holding gains and Carrying | Remittance
investee products pain-in capital | (Note 1) 1,2022 Outflow | Inflow 31,2022 investee Company | Percentage Tosses Amount | of Earnings
[Excelsior [Sale and lease of - @ 30.240 - 30240 - T % % -
[Healthcare Imedical equipment,
\(Shanghai) ind medical
[Corporation  |management
INote 3) onsultancy service
[Shanghai Lintech [Sale and maintenance - @ 29213 - - 20213 - - % % -
Medicare C £ medical cquipment
INote 4)
[Pacific Beijing [Investment business 84187 (@) 80.327 - - 80327 (18.001) 7.80% 7.80% 8.536 -
[Bo-Ai Medical fund medical
[Consulting Co., ~ consultancy service
[SinoExcelsior  [Investment business, 29159 @ 947,845 - - 947.845 2,126 100.00% 100.00% 2,126 137,195 -
linvestment Inc. ~ fale and lease of
INote 5) Imedical equipment,
fand medical
Imanagement
consultancy service
suangzhou  [Sale and maintenance 44346) @ 119,574 - 119,574 (1,040 100.00% 100.00% (1.040) 10,181 -
[Dynamic Inc.  Jof medical equipment
[Beijing Dynamic [Sale and maintenance - @ 34424 - - 34424 - % - % - -
linc. (Note 6)  {of medical equipment
ational [Medical logistics 370493 (3) 66603 - 66,603 109,291 17.65% 17.65% 335,597 74715
[Pharmaceutical
[Logisties Corp.
lLid
2. Limitation on investment in Mainland China:
Accumulated Investment Investment Amounts
in Mainland China as of Authorized by Upper Limit on
Company December 31, 2022 Investment Commission, MOEA Investment (Note 7)
[The Company 1,087,625 1,289,640 4,920,259
[Dynamic 153,998 153,998 832,635
|Arich 66,603 66,603 1,129,107
Note 1: in Mainland China are diffc i by the following four methods:

(1) Direct investment in Mainland China with remittance through a third region.

(2) Indirect investment in Mainland China through an existing investee company in a third region.

(3) Other methods (i.e. entrusted Investment)

Note 2: Recognition of investment gain or loss during current period is pursuant to the following:
(1) If the corporation is in the set-up phase, notes are required.

(2) Recognition basis of investment gains or losses is determined by the following three types, and related notes are required.

1) Financial statements of the investee company were audited and certified by an international firm in cooperation with an R.0.C. accounting

firm.

2) Financial statements of the investee company were audited and certified by the external accountant of the parent company.

3) Others

Note 3: The liquidation procedure of Excelsior Healthcare (Shanghai) Corporation was completed in March 2016, and the investment had remitted to
Excelsior Healthcare Co., Limited in the third place. As of December 31, 2022, the accumulated amount of investment from Taiwan has not been

repatriated yet.

Note 4: The disposal of Shanghai Lintech Medicare Co. was completed in December 2015. As of December 31, 2021, the original investment amount
0f$29,213 thousand from Taiwan has not been repatriated yet.

Note 5: The current investment outflow is not included the direct investment amount of $207,380
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Note 6: The liquidation procedure of Beijing Dynamic Inc. was completed in November 2018, and the investment had remitted to Dynamic Medical
Technologies (Hong Kong) Ltd. in the third place. As of December 31, 2022, the accumulated amount of investment from Taiwan has not been
repatriated yet.

Note 7: (1)The upper limit on investment of the Company and Dynamic is the 60% of net value.

(2)The upper limit on investment of Arich is the higher of $80,000 thousand or 60% of net value.

Note 8: All amounts listed are disclosed in NTD.

Note 9: The aforementioned inter-company ions have been elimi; in the lidated financial

3. Significant transactions :
The significant inter-company transactions with the subsidiary in Mainland China, which were
eliminated in the preparation of consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in ~ “Information
of significant transactions” .

(d) Major shareholders:

Shareholder’ s Name Sharcholding Shares Percentage

Excelsior Investment Co., Ltd. 16,562,126 11.17%
IExcelsior Group Holdings Co., Ltd. 15,664,676 10.56%
Bestchain Healthtaiwan Co., Ltd. (Bestchain) 14,588,507 9.82%

(14) Segment Information
(a) General information

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on the types of company. Specifically, the Group’ s
reportable segments were as follows:

1.Excelsior segment - the Company.

2.Dynamic segment - Dynamic, Hong Kong Dynamic, Excelsior Beauty, Guangzhou Dynamic, and
CYJ International Taiwan Inc..

3.Arich segment - Arich.

4.0Other segment - Bestsmile, Excelsior Healthcare, EG Healthcare, Excelsior Investment (Malaysia),
RENAL LABORATORIES SDN. BHD., MEDI-CHEM SYSTEMS SDN. BHD., RENAL
MANAGEMENT SDN. BHD., Excelsior Asset, Hong Kong Excelsior and SinoExcelsior
Investment.

(b) Information about reportable segments and their measurement and reconciliations

The Group uses the internal management report that the chief operating decision maker reviews as the
basis to determine resource allocation and make a performance evaluation. The internal management
report includes profit before taxation, but not including any extraordinary activity and foreign exchange
gain or losses because taxation, extraordinary activity, and foreign exchange gain or losses are managed
on a group basis, and hence they are not able to be allocated to each reportable segment. In addition,
not all reportable segments include depreciation and amortization of significant non-cash items. The
reportable amount is similar to that in the report used by the chief operating decision maker.

237



(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUDED IN CHINESE)
EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED)

The operating segment accounting policies are similar to those described in  Note (4) “significant
accounting policies”  except for the recognition and measurement of pension cost, which is on a cash
basis.

The Group™ s operating segment information and reconciliation are as follows:

Adjustment
For the Years Ended Excelsior Dynamic Arich and
December 31, 2022 seg seg seg Others Elimination Total
Revenue
Revenue from external $ 4,610,222 1,288,327 1,017,974 270,305 - 7,186,828
customers
Inter-segment revenue 44,197 3,365 49 35,200 (82,811) -
Interest revenue 2.296 10,251 1,764 11,500 (908) 24,903
Total $ 4656715 1,301,943 1,019,787 317,005 (83,719) 7,211,731
Interest expense $ 1,392 1,325 3,383 4,902 (553) 10,449
Depreciation and
amortization 31,371 115,406 42,747 42,888 (9,974) 222,438
Reportable segment profit  § 786,783 178,162 79,498 200,903 (281,646) 963,700
(loss)
For the Years Ended
December 31, 2021
Revenue
Revenue from external $ 4,306,026 1,024,576 945,600 296,950 - 6,573,152
customers
Inter-segment revenue 67,168 3,607 61 26,638 (97,474) -
Interest revenue 624 4,008 855 6,192 (987) 10,692
Total $ 4373818 1,032,191 946,516 329,780 (98,461) 6,583,844
Interest expense $ 572 872 4,502 3,397 (582) 8,761
Depreciation and
amortization 28,469 96,193 41,829 46,463 (10,000) 202,954
Reportable segment profit § 716,069 173,821 68,115 177,296 (261,565) 873,736
(loss)
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(c) Product and service information

Revenue from the external customers of the Group was as follows:

Name of products and services

Product revenue

Medical equipment and supplies

Medicines

Aesthetic medical equipment and supplies

Household appliances
Others
Repair and maintenance revenue
Rental revenue
Other operating revenue
Total

(d) Geographical information

By region
Revenue from external customers:

Taiwan

Hong Kong
Philippines

Malaysia
Total

By region
Non-current assets *

Taiwan

Hong Kong

China

Philippines

Malaysia

British Virgin Islands
Total

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021

$ 4,196,269 3,947,348
767,924 720,218

993,186 790,900

202,742 160,457

69,724 74,440

437,491 380,318

52,690 54,534

466,802 444,937

s 7,186,828 6,573,152

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
N 6,943,718 6,273,083
16,044 46,695
135,453 148,917
91,613 104.457
s 7,186,828 6,573,152

December 31,

December 31,

2022 2021
$ 1,946,674 1,763,581
1,536 232
25 7
32,733 32,102
210,727 201,362
11.402 10.277
$ 2,203,097 2,007,561

Non-current assets include property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, investment properties,
intangible assets, and other assets, but do not include financial instruments, deferred tax assets, pension
assets, and rights from insurance contracts.
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(e) Revenue from main customers

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Bestchain $ 2,071,694 1,952,623
Excelsior Renal Service 871,674 878.400
$ 2,943,368 2,831,023
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd.:
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd.( “the Company” ), which comprise the
balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of other auditors (please refer to Other Matter paragraph), the
accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company
as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Norm
of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirement. Based on our audits and the reports of other
auditors, we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of
our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. Based on our judgment, the key audit matter that should be disclosed in this report is as follows:

1. Impairment Assessment on Receivables
Please refer to Note (4)(f) for accounting policies of account receivable allowance provision.
Description of key audit matter:

The management of the Company performed its assessment based on the default risk of accounts receivable
and the rate of expected loss. Because the assessment of impairment loss of receivables involves critical
accounting estimates, which are subject to the judgment of the management, the assessment of the
impairment loss of receivables is deemed to be a key audit matter.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Our main audit procedures in response to the assessment of the impairment of receivables were assessing the
reasonableness of the methodology and assumptions used by the management for the impairment assessment
of receivables and whether the methodology was adopted consistently, testing the reasonableness of the
information used by the management for assessing the impairment of receivables, reviewing the accuracy of
the calculation of the allowance for receivables, and evaluating the adequacy of the Company’ s disclosure
for impairment of receivables.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements of certain subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, which represented
investment in other entities accounted for using the equity method of the Company. Those statements were
audited by other auditors, whose reports has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included for such entities, is based solely on the report of other auditors. The investments in such
entities accounted for using the equity method were NT$948,523 thousand and NT$138,000 thousand,
constituting 10% and 2% of the total assets at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and the related share
of profit of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method amounted to
NT$33,664 thousand and NT$14,488 thousand, constituting 4% and 2% of total profit before tax for the years
then ended, respectively.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’ s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including the Audit Committee) are responsible for overseeing the Company’
s financial reporting process.

Auditor’ s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’ s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

242



As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise
professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’ s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’ s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,

and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the investment in

other entities accounted for using the equity method to express an opinion on this financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Tsao-Jen Wu and
Jun-Guang Chen.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
March 16, 2023

Notes to Readers

The accompanying parent company only financial statements are intended only to present the statement of financial position, financial
performance and its cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China
and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such parent company only financial statements
are those generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The independent auditors’ report and the accompanying parent company only financial statements are the English translation of the
Chinese version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the
English and Chinese language independent auditors’ report and parent company only financial statements, the Chinese version shall
prevail.

244



T 0LTTL06 0T 9LF 596 3
S8 GSCRELL S8 Cer00cs
@ ©0TTrD T 06rL6
SE Te8'T6I'E SE 8EpHPEE
9 LOI9LTE vE o OpPOLTE
9L 06K LKL SU p90Ter'l
ST ISSEEET ST HROEHT
T OSESSI T L0
=991 =991
- 016 - b68'9
T LSl T LSE9IT
€7 TESSpIT €7 06T
= 96IIT —BIPOT
- st - 600
1 1o'sy 1 e
T 6898l T 606l
8 £66PEL 8 T68€08
- 86t - 86t
- - -
T 0000S1 T 000051 H
% unowry % Junoury

1202 ‘1€ #oquiadoq

TT0T 1€ 12quddq

izd

ALINDH ANV SALLITIEVITIVLIOL T 0LTTL06 T 9LF 596 3
Aynba fejo,
fimba 1oy 00vE
sfunues poureiy 00€€
sndins [ende) 00z€ L LI6TLLY PL9TI0SIL
[ended areys 001€ =TSl = 0891
#((b)(9) 0N) Zymby - 6EE0L - 8991
- 068 - 089'02
sanmqul (B0, 1 s8r'oot 9ISy
- ossLe - bErT
SI0U10 ‘SONIIGU 1UDLNI-UOU YO 0L9T - Se8'TL - uLs
((w)(9) 210N) sanIqe1] ISEI] JUILNO-UON 08T T £0L°E8T T LST'SSI
((d)(9) 210N) samIqEL] XE) PRLIJOCL 0LST 89 1SL°L9T'9 69 £0¥'6L99
SIMIAEN JUDLIND-UON € eLrIT T psLTS
((£) pue (1)(9) SAON) SIYIO “SABI[IGEI] JUALIND JYIO 66T 9T 6S€66TT 9T 0SEE0ST
((w)(9) 210N) sonilIqey] ase3] L) 08T = S8TST = 995sT
SoUI[Iqel] Xe) 1uaLn) 0z L 00619 8 90IIsL
(1) 210N) salqeAd 19430 002z - os6l'l G
(1) 210N) 21qeAed syunosy oLlz 8 86TTL 6 peTEIs
21qeked sdloN 0sIz v 60€'8zE € L6TSIE
((a)(9) 210N $50] 10 1J01d YFnOI) ANJEA 116} 12 SHIGEI] [EIURUL JUALIND 0Tiz 1 T6H'8Y T see8
((1)(9) 210N) sBumowi0q ULd}-HOYS ] ) LL6'LOS S 8IE'€0S $

1] 2D

ALINDI ANV SALLITIVIT % unoury % Junowy
1207 1€ 22quaddq T20T 1€ 22quddg

(SAVTTIOA NVMIVL MAN 40 SANVSNOH.L NI AaSSAddXd)
1207 ANV 720T ‘1€ YAdIWADAd
SLATAHS HONVIVI

‘AL 0D TVOIAAIN OIS TAOXE
(ISANIHD NI AFANSST ATTYNIDRIO SINTWILY.LS TVIDNVNIS 40 NOLLVISNVHLL HSITON®)

SLASSY TVLOL

SIYIO ‘SIASSE UALING-UOU JAYIQ)

SI95SE [RIOURUL JUILIND-UOU 1YY

((0)(9) 210N) 19558 1jaUq Pauyap 1N

((d)(9) 210N) s1a558 XE) PaLIAJO(]

((D(9) 210N) s1asse d[qBuEIN]

((1)(9) 210N) s19s5 a8N=J0-FRY

((8) pur (4)(9) sa10N) 1wauidmba pue yuejd ‘Auadoig

(()(9) 910N) 10u “poypous Kb Fuisn 1oy PANNODE SHUSUSIAU

((2)(9) 210N AUOII AISLIGDIALOD 110 YFNOIY) ANLA 1L} TE SIDSSE [PIDUEUL UILINI-UON

51955 JUDLIND-UON

SIDY)O 'SI98SE JUILIND 1YI0
((2)(9) 210N) sauiouaAU]
((£) pue (p)(9) SAAON)  $9[qEAIL 11O
((£) pue (p)(9) S910N) saned pajejal wo1y anp AGEAIIIAI SIUN0IDY
((P)(9) 210N) 2[qEAI21 SJUN02IY
((P)(9) 210N) 2[qeAI02I SAON.
((2)1 210N) SIR[EAIND Ysed pue yses)

:s1assE JudLIND

SLASSY

0661
0861
373
081
08L1
ssL1
0091
0ss1
L1s1

(U224}
X0g1
00z1
0811
oLtt
111
0011



(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN CHINESE)
EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD.

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, EXCEPT EARNINGS PER SHARE)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Amount % Amount %
4000 Operating revenue (Notes (6)(s) and (7)) $ 4,654,419 100 4,373,194 100
5000 Operating costs  (Note (6)(e)) 3,867,546 83 3,652,377 84
Gross profit from operations 786,873 17 720,817 16
5910 Less: Unrealized profit from sales 118,433 3 121,722 3
5920 Add: Realized profit from sales 117,508 3 120,315 3
785.948 17 719.410 16
Operating expenses:
6100 Selling expenses 229,586 5 214,653 5
6200 Administrative expenses 176,195 4 163,148 3
6450 Expected credit loss (gain) (Note (6)(d)) 3.000 - (2.625) -
408.781 9 375.176 8
Net operating income 377.167 8 344,234 8
Non-operating income and expenses:
7100 Interest income (Note (6)(u)) 2,296 - 624 -
7010 Other income (Notes (6)(u) and (7)) 4,760 - 4,082 -
7020 Other gains and losses (Notes (6)(u) and (7)) 20,010 - 10,616 -
7050 Finance costs (Note (6)(u)) (1,392) - (572) -
7060 Share of profit of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method
(Note (6)(1) 383.942 8 357.085 8
409.616 8 371.835
7900 Profit before tax 786,783 16 716,069 16
7950 Less: Tax expense (Note (6)(p)) 119.330 2 108.920
Profit 667.453 14 607,149 14
Other comprehensive income (loss):
8310 Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss
8311 Gains (losses) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 10,841 - 2,572 -
8316 Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income 6,716 - 25,284 1
8330 Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures accounted for
using equity method, components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss 121,169 3 5,695 -
8349 Less: Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss 5.826 - 972 -
Total items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss 132,900 3 32579 1
8360 Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
8361 Exchange differences on translation 185,051 4 (73,200) 2)
8380 Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures accounted for
using equity method, components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to
profit or loss 8244 - 2513) -
8399 Less: Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to
profit or loss 37.010 (1 (14.640) -
Total items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss 156,285 3 (61.073) 2)
Other comprehensive income, net 289,185 6 (28.494) 1)
8500 Total comprehensive income for the year s 956,638 20 578,655 13
Earnings per share (Note (6)(r))
9750 Basic earnings per share (NT dollars) s 4.50 4.10
9850 Diluted earnings per share (NT dollars) s 4.48 4.07
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(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN CHINESE)
EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit before tax

Adjustments:

Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss):

Depreciation expense
Amortization expense

Expected credit loss (gain)

Net loss (gain) on financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Interest expense
Interest income

Dividend income

Share of profit of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method

Loss on disposal of investments accounted for using equity method

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

Unrealized profit from sales
Realized profit from sales

Others

Total adjustments to reconcile profit

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Changes in operating assets:
Notes receivable

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable due from related parties

Other receivables

Inventories

Net defined benefit asset

Other current assets

Total changes in operating assets

Changes in operating liabilities:

Notes payable

Accounts payable

Other payables

Other current liabilities

Total changes in operating liabilities

Total changes in operating assets and liabilities

Total adjustments
Cash inflow generated from operations
Interest received
Income taxes paid

Net cash flows from operating activities
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For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
786,783 716,069
28,993 26,201
2379 2,268
3,000 (2,625)
1,759 6,640
1,392 572
(2,296) (624)
(4,760) (4,082)
(383,942) (357,085)

4 -

2,180 -
118,433 121,722
(117,508) (120,315)
(155) a71)
(350,521) (327.499)
(12,846) (7.284)
10,012 (11,362)
(50,996) (115,064)
1,190 2,611
(168,608) (57,644)
(869) (799)
(378) (7.133)
(222.495) (196.675)
) 2
68,899 114,800
5,198 25,398
(778) 17.301
73.319 157,501
(149.176) (39.174)
(499.697) (366.673)
287,086 349,396
2,171 624
(85.156) (71.874)
204,101 278,146




(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN CHINESE)
EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Acquisition of investments accounted for using equity method
Proceeds from disposal of investments accounted for using equity method
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Increase in refundable deposits
Acquisition of intangible assets
Increase in other financial assets
Increase in other non-current assets
Dividends received
Net cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Increase in short-term borrowings
Cash dividends paid
Interest paid
Payment of lease liabilities
Net cash flows use in financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
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For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
130,914 39,818
(2,432) (5.847)

(10,000) -

6,634 -
(2,335) (5,011)

2 -

(4,329) -
- (3.713)
- (1,197)
(3,026) (8,367)
173.878 121,510
289,326 137,193
- 150,000
(494,021) (494,021)
(1,210) (543)
(2.855) (2.403)
(498.086) (346.967)
(4,659) 68,372
507,977 439,605
503,318 507,977




(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUDED IN CHINESE)
EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED)

(1) Company History

2

3)

Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd. (the Company) was incorporated on March 15, 1988 as a company limited by
shares and registered under the Ministry of Economic Affairs, R.O.C. The address of the Company's
registered office is 17F., No.880, Zhongzheng Rd., Zhonghe Dist., New Taipei City 235, Taiwan, R.O.C..
The Company engaged primarily in the sale of medical supplies and equipment, medicines and home
medical devices.

The Company’ s shares were traded on the Taipei Exchange (formerly the GreTai Securities Market) from

June 8, 2001 to December 30, 2007 and have been traded on the Taiwan Stock Exchange since December
31, 2007.

Financial Statements Authorization Date and Authorization Process

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on March 16, 2023.

New Standards, Amendments and Interpretations Adopted:

(a) The impact of the International Financial Reporting Standards ( “IFRSs” ) endorsed by the
Financial Supervisory Commission, R.O.C. which have already been adopted.

The Company has initially adopted the following new amendments, which do not have a significant
impact on its financial statements, from January 1, 2022:

@ Amendments to [AS 16  “Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use”
@ Amendments to IAS 37 “Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract”
@ Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020
@ Amendments to IFRS 3 “Reference to the Conceptual Framework”
(b) The impact of IFRS issued by the FSC but not yet effective

The Company assesses that the adoption of the following new amendments, effective for annual
period beginning on January 1, 2023, would not have a significant impact on its financial statements:

@ Amendments to [AS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”
@ Amendments to IAS 8  “Definition of Accounting Estimates”

@ Amendments to IAS 12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction”
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(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUDED IN CHINESE)
EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED)

(c) The impact of IFRS issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC

The Company does not expect the following new and amended standards, which have yet to be
endorsed by the FSC, to have a significant impact on its financial statements:

@ Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28  “Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor
and Its Associate or Joint Venture”

@ IFRS 17 “ Insurance Contracts” and amendments to IFRS 17 “ Insurance Contracts”

@ Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current”

@ Amendments to IAS 1 “Non-current Liabilities with Covenants”

@ IFRS16 “Requirements for Sale and Leaseback Transactions”

(4) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies presented in the financial statements are summarized below. The
following accounting policies were applied consistently throughout the periods presented in the financial
statements.

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers (hereinafter referred to the Regulations).

(b) Basis of preparation
1. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for the following
material items in the balance sheet:

1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value;
2) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at fair value;

3) The defined benefit liabilities (or assets) are measured at fair value of plan assets, net of
aggregation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation, with a limit based on a
defined benefit asset.

2. Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of each Company operation is determined based on the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates. The financial statements are presented in New Taiwan
Dollars, which is the Company’ s functional currency. All financial information presented in New

Taiwan Dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand.
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(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUDED IN CHINESE)
EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED)

(c) Foreign Currencies

1.Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of
Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each subsequent
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currencies using the exchange rate at that date. Non-monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated into the functional currencies using
the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies that are measured based on historical cost are translated using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences are generally recognized in profit or loss, except for those differences
relating to the following, which are recognized in other comprehensive income:

1) an investment in equity securities designated as at fair value through other comprehensive
income;

2) a financial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation to the
extent that the hedge is effective; or

3) qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are effective.
2.Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition, are translated into the presentation currency at the exchange rates at the
reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency at the average exchange rate. Exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

‘When a foreign operation is disposed of such that control, significant influence, or joint control is
lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation is
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. When the Company disposes of
only part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation while retaining control, the
relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling interests. When the
Company disposes of only part of its investment in an associate or joint venture that includes a
foreign operation while retaining significant or joint control, the relevant proportion of the
cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

When the settlement of a monetary receivable from or payable to a foreign operation is neither
planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future, exchange differences arising from such a
monetary item that are considered to form part of the net investment in the foreign operation are
recognized in other comprehensive income.
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(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUDED IN CHINESE)
EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED)

(d

®

Classification of Current and Non-Current Assets and Liabilities

An asset is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other assets are classified
as non-current.

1.1t is expected to be realized, or intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle;
2.1t is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
3.1t is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

4.The asset is cash or a cash equivalent, unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used
to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

A liability is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other liabilities are
classified as non-current.

1.1t is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
2.1t is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
3.1t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

4.The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by issuing equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Time deposits which meet the above definition and are held for the purpose
of meeting short term cash commitments rather than for investment or other purposes should be
recognized as cash equivalents.

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’ s cash
management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
statement of cash flows.

Financial instruments

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All
other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus,
for an item not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is
initially measured at the transaction price.

1.Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade
date basis.
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(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUDED IN CHINESE)
EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED)

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortized cost; Fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) - equity investment; or FVTPL. Financial assets
are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its business
model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on
the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

1) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated as at FVTPL:

« it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

« its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost, which is the amount at which the
financial asset is measured at initial recognition, plus/minus, the cumulative amortization using
the effective interest method, adjusted for any loss allowance. Interest income, foreign exchange
gains and losses, as well as impairment, are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

2) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’ s fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Equity investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized
as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of
the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income and
are never reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’ s right to
receive payment is established.

3) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified as amortized cost or FVOCI described as above are measured
at FVTPL, including derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may
irrevocably designate a financial asset, which meets the requirements to be measured at
amortized cost or at FVOCI, as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

4) Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial assets
measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents, amortized costs, notes and
trade receivables, other receivables, guarantee deposit paid and other financial assets).
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(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED)

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the
following which are measured as 12-month ECL:

+ debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

« other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring
over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial
recognition.

Loss allowance for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the Company’ s historical
experience and informed credit assessment as well as forward-looking information.

Lifetime ECL are the ECL that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument.

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events that are possible within the
12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is
less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECL is the maximum contractual period over
which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive). ECL are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost
and debt securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is “credit-impaired”
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the
following observable data:

« significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
« a breach of contract such as a default or being past due;

+ the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower” s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the lender would not
otherwise consider;

« it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or

« the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.
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Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to
profit or loss and is recognized in other comprehensive income instead of reducing the carrying
amount of the asset.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. For
corporate customers, the Company individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing
and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The
Company expects no significant recovery from the amount written off. However, financial
assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with
the Company’ s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

5) Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its statement of
balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred
assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

2.Financial liabilities and equity instruments
1) Classification of debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as financial liabilities or
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

2) Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued are recognized as the amount of
consideration received, less the direct cost of issuing.

3) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability
is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated
as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net
gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit
or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.
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(@

()

4) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged
or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are
modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a
new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.

5) Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to
set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

3.Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate
exposures. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately
if the host contract is not a financial asset and certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognized in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventories is
calculated using the weighted average method, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the
inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present
location and condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Investment in Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Company has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over their financial and operating policies.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method and are recognized initially at
cost. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs. The carrying amount of the investment in
associates includes goodwill arising from the acquisition less any accumulated impairment losses.

The financial statements include the Company’ s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of associates, after adjustments to align their accounting policies with those of the Company,
from the date on which significant influence commences until the date on which significant influence
ceases. The Company recognizes any changes of its proportionate share in the investee within capital
surplus, when an associate’ s equity changes due to reasons other than profit and loss or
comprehensive income, which did not result in changes in actual proportionate share.
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®

O

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Company and an associate are recognized
only to the extent of unrelated Company’ s interests in the associate.

When the Company’ s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interests in an associate,
it discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. After the recognized interest is reduced to zero,
additional losses are provided for, and a liability is recognized, only to the extent that the Company
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Investment in subsidiaries

The subsidiaries in which the Company holds their controlling interest are accounted for using
equity method in the parent-company-only financial statements. Under equity method, the net income,
other comprehensive income and equity in the parent-company-only financial statement are the same
as those attributable to the owners of parent in the consolidated financial statements.

The changes in the ownership of the subsidiaries are recognized as equity transaction.
Property, Plant, and Equipment
1.Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost (including capitalized borrowing cost)
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit or
loss.

2.Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

3.Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the cost of an asset less its residual value and is recognized in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each component of an item of
property, plant and equipment.

Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for current and comparative periods
are as follows:

1) Buildings 5 years~55 years
2) Medical equipment 2 years~8 years
3) Other equipment 3 years~7 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.
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(k) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

®

As a leasee

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any
lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the
end of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be reliably determined, the Company’ s incremental borrowing rate. Generally,
the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
—  fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments; and

—  variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when:

— there is a change in future lease payments arising from the change in an index or rate; or

—  there is a change in the Company’ s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee; or

— there is a change in the lease term resulting from a change of its assessment on whether it
will exercise an option to purchase the underlying asset, or

— there is a change of its assessment on whether it will exercise an extension or termination
option; or

— there is any lease modifications
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(i)

When the lease liability is remeasured, other than lease modifications, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or in profit and loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

When the lease liability is remeasured to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease for
lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the Company accounts for the
remeasurement of the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease, and recognize in profit or loss any gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease.

The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment
property and lease liabilities as a separate line item respectively in the statement of financial
position.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term
leases of storage room, and parking space that have a lease of low-value assets. The Company
recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

As a leasor

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease commencement whether each lease
is a finance lease or an operating lease. To classify each lease, the Company makes an overall
assessment of whether the lease transfers to the lessee substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is
a finance lease; if not, then the lease is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the
Company considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the
economic life of the asset.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and
the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the
right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. If a head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating
lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies IFRS15 to
allocate the consideration in the contract.

The Company recognizes lease payments received under operating leases as income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term as part of  ‘other income’

(1) Intangible Assets

1.Recognition and measurement

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is measured at cost, less accumulated
impairment losses.
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Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Company and have finite useful lives are measured
at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

2.Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on
internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

3.Amortization

Amortization is calculated over the cost of the asset, less its residual value, and is recognized in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets, other than
goodwill, from the date that they are available for use.

The estimated useful lives for current and comparative periods are as follows:
1) Computer software 3 years
2) Other intangible assets 2 years~5 years

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

(m) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other
than inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.
If any such indication exists, then the asset’ s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested
annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
cash generating units (CGUs). Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or
groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other
assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’ s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized.
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(n) Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probably that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax
rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost.

(o) Revenue
1.Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Company recognizes revenue when
it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control of a good or a service to a customer.
The accounting policies for the Company’ s main types of revenue are explained below.

1) Sale of goods

The Company recognizes revenue when control of the products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to the customer, the customer has full discretion over the channel and
price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’ s
acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer, and either the
customer has accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance
provisions have lapsed, or the Company has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance
have been satisfied.

The Company’ s obligation for the sales of goods components under the standard warranty
terms is recognized as a provision for warranty.

A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the
Company has a right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional.

2) Services

The Company provides maintenance and warranty services. Revenue from providing services is
recognized in the accounting period in which the services are rendered. Under the IFRS 15, the
total consideration in the service contracts will be allocated to all services based on their
stand-alone selling prices. The stand-alone selling prices will be determined based on the list
prices at which the Company sells the services in separate transactions.

3) Financing components

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of
the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year.
As a consequence, the Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value
of money.
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(p) Employee Benefits

1.Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is
provided.

2.Defined benefit plans

The Company’ s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each
the plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and
prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using
the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company,
the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of
any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the
present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding
requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding
interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income, and accumulated in retained
earnings. The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit
liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset). Net
interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in profit or
loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when
the settlement occurs.

3.0ther long-term employee benefits

The Company’ s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. That
benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Remeasurements are recognized in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

4.Termination benefits

Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when the Company can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Company recognizes costs for a restructuring. If benefits are
not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date, then they are discounted.
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5.Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

(qQ) Income Taxes

Income taxes comprise current taxes and deferred taxes. Except for expenses related to business
combinations or recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, all current and
deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss.

Current taxes comprise the expected tax payables or receivables on the taxable profits (losses) for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of
current tax payables or receivables are the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred taxes arise due to temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases. Deferred taxes are
recognized except for the following:

1.temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that is not a
business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profits (losses) at the time of
the transaction;

2.temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to
the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

3.taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the carry forward of unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date,
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realized;
such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Deferred taxes are measured at tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reserve, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if the following criteria are met:

1.the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and

2.the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

1) the same taxable entity; or

2) different taxable entities which intend to settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis, or
to realize the assets and liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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(r) Earnings per Share

The Company discloses the Company’ s basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company. Basic earnings per share is calculated as the profit attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding. Diluted earnings per share is calculated as the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the Company divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding after
adjustment for the effects of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares.

(s) Operating Segments

Please refer to the consolidated financial report of Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd. for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021 for the operating segments information.

(5) Significant Accounting Assumptions and Judgments, and Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In preparing these financial statements in conformity with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, management has made judgments, estimates, and assumptions that
affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income, and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The management continues to monitor the accounting estimates and assumptions. The management
recognizes any changes in accounting estimates during the period and the impact of those changes in
accounting estimates in the next period.

Accounting policies which influence material judgment and has significant impact on prices recognized in
parent-company-only financial statements is as follows:

(a) To identify whether the Company has actual control to investee, please refer to the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment within the next financial year is as follows:

The loss allowance of trade receivable

The Company has estimated the loss allowance of trade receivable that is based on the risk of a default
occurring and the rate of expected credit loss. The Company has considered historical experience, current
economic conditions and forward-looking information at the reporting date to determine the assumptions
to be used in calculating the impairments and the selected inputs. The relevant assumptions and input
values, please refer to note (6)(d).
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(6) Explanation of Significant Accounts

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

~

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Cash on hand, demand deposits and checking accounts $ 503,318 507.977
Cash and cash equivalents in statement of cash flows M 503,318 507,977

The Company interest risk and sensibility analysis of the financial assets and liabilities was disclosed
in Note (6)(w).

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Held-for-trading financial liabilities
Derivative instruments not used for hedging
Forward foreign exchange contracts M - 673

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge the certain foreign exchange and interest
risk the Company is exposed to, arising from its operating, financing and investing activities. The
following derivative instruments, without the application of hedge accounting, were classified as
held-for-trading financial instruments:

Forward foreign exchange contracts:

December 31, 2021
Amount
(in thousands) Currency Maturity period
Foreign exchange forward USD 257,425 JPY to TWD 2022.1~2022.3
purchased
Foreign exchange forward USD 515 USD to TWD 2022.1
purchased

Financial liabilities at fair value through other comprehensive income

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021

Equity investments at fair value through other

comprehensive income

Domestic listed shares $ 1,763 26,512

Foreign listed shares 19,570 98,319

Domestic unlisted shares 131.421 146.648
Total s 152,754 271,479

266



(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUDED IN CHINESE)
EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED)

(d

1.Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

The Company designated the investments shown above as equity securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income because these equity securities represent those investments that the
Company intends to hold for long term for strategic purposes.

The Company has sold its common stocks designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income because of operation strategies for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021. The
shares sold had a fair value of $132,823 thousand and $40,172 thousand, respectively. The
Company realized a gain of gain $36,606 thousand and loss $4,091 thousand, respectively, which
is already included in other comprehensive income, and thereafter, was transferred to retained
earnings from other equity.

2.For credit risk and market risk, please refer to Note (6)(w).
3.As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the aforesaid financial assets were not pledged as collateral.
Notes receivable, accounts receivable and other receivables

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Notes receivable $ 81,338 68,492
Accounts receivable 1,149,618 1,108,644
Other receivables 20,431 1,195
Less: Loss allowance (21.,027) (18.037)
Net $ 1,230,360 1,160,294

The Company applies the simplified approach to provide for its expected credit losses, i.e. the use of
lifetime expected loss provision for all receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due, as
well as incorporated forward looking information, including macroeconomic and relevant industry
information. The loss allowance provision was determined as follows:

December 31, 2022
Weighted-aver

Gross carrying age Loss allowance
amount loss rate provision

Current $ 1,242,996 1.02% (12,692)
1 to 90 days past due 4,855 98.85% (4,799)
91 to 180 days past due 19 100% (19)
181 to 365 days past due - - -
More than 365 days past due 3,517 100% (3.517)

§ 1251387 — (2107
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December 31, 2021
Weighted-aver
Gross carrying age Loss allowance
amount loss rate provision

Current $ 1,174,053 1.59% (13,774)
1 to 90 days past due 616 98.62% (601)
91 to 180 days past due 24 100% (24)
181 to 365 days past due - 100% -
More than 365 days past due 3,638 100% (3.638)

$§ 1178331 — (18.037)

The movement in the allowance for notes and trade receivable was as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Balance as of January 1 $ 18,037 20,850
Impairment losses recognized 3,000 -
Impairment losses reversed - (2,625)
Amounts written off (10) (188)
Balance as of December 31 $ 21,027 18,037
Inventories

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Merchandise $ 712,072 527,777
Inventory in-transit 39,034 85,123
Total $ 751,106 612,900

The details of cost of goods sold were as follows :

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Cost of goods sold $ 3,783,753 3,566,718
(Reversal) losses on inventory valuation and obsolescence (486) 4,514
Repair and maintenance costs 81,041 77,961
Others operating costs 3.238 3.184
Total $ 3,867,546 3,652,377

The factor leading to the net realizable value of inventories is lower than the cost vanished, so that the
reversal gain of inventories is recognized due to the increase in net realizable value for the year ended

December 31, 2022.
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®

(€3]

Investments accounted for using equity method

A summary of the Company’ s financial information for investments accounted for using the equity
method at the reporting date is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Subsidiaries $ 5,804,749 5,366,123
Associates 874,654 801,628
s 6,679.403 6,167,751

1.Subsidiary
Please refer to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended of December 31, 2022.
2.Associates

The Company’ s financial information for investments accounted for using equity method that are
individually insignificant was as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Carrying amount of individually 3 874,654 801,628

insignificant associates’ equity

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Attributable to Company:
Profit $ 109,154 95,714
Other comprehensive income 81,558 23,333
Total comprehensive income $ 190,712 119,047

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries

The Company subscribed the shares issued for cash by its subsidiary Bestsmile Co., Ltd. at a
percentage different from its existing ownership percentage in April 2022. The changes in ownership
interests in subsidiaries were recognized as capital surplus amounting to decrease of $8 thousand for
the year ended December 31, 2022.
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(h) Property, plant and equipment

The cost, depreciation, and impairment loss of the property, plant and equipment of the Company for

the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

Medical Leased Miscellaneous
Land Buildings equipment Improvement equipment Total

Cost or deemed cost: ——
Balance as of January 1, 2022 s 75,758 97,922 106,504 - 14,785 294,969
Additions - 934 116 - 1286 2,336
Disposal and obsolescence - - (754) - (1766) (2,520)
Transfer from inventories - - 29,091 - 1311 30,402
Transfer to inventories - - (1,923) - (1,923)
Reclassification and others - .771) - 1771 - -
Balance as of December 31, 2022 S 8 97,085 133,034 1,771 15,616 323,264
Balance as of January 1, 2021 s 75,758 99,004 84,872 - 12,921 272,645
Additions - 993 2358 - 1660 5011
Disposal and obsolescence - (2.165) 912) - (1.442) (4519)
Transfer from inventories - - 23,487 - 1,646 25,133
Transfer to inventories - - (3301) - (3301
Balance as of December 31, 2021 s 15,158 97,922 106,504 - 14,785 294,969

Depreciation and impairment losses:
Balance as of January 1, 2022 s 4,000 43,300 55,703 - 8,263 111,266
Depreciation for the period - 1,948 21,207 247 2,580 25,982
Impairment loss recognized - - - - 2,180 2,180
Disposal and obsolescence - - (754) - (1744) (2,498)
Transfer to inventories - - (1,923) - (1,923)
Reclassification and others - (112) - 12 - -
Balance as of December 31, 2022 s 4,000 45,136 74233 359 11.279 135,007
Balance as of January 1, 2021 s 4,000 43,369 40,543 - 7,680 95,592
Depreciation for the period - 2,096 19373 - 2,025 23,494
Disposal and obsolescence - (2.165) ©912) - (1.442) (4.519)
Transfer to inventories - - (3301) - (3301
Balance as of December 31, 2021 s 4,000 43.300 55,703 - 8263 111,266

Carrying amount:
Balance as of December 31, 2022 s 1758 1.949 58,801 1412 4337 188,257
Balance as of January 1, 2021 s 1758 55725 44.329 - 241 177,053
Balance as of December 31, 2021 s 1,758 54,622 0,801 - 6,522 183,703
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(i) Right-of-use assets

The Company leases many assets including buildings and other equipment. Information about leases
for which the Company as a lessee is presented below:

Building Other equip t Total
Cost:
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 15,468 - 15,468
Additions 895 - 895
Write-off (1,748) - (1,748)
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 14,615 - 14,615
Balance as of January 1, 2021 $ 11,682 1,440 13,122
Additions 10,174 - 10,174
Write-off (6.388) (1.440) (7.828)
Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ 15,468 - 15,468
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses:
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 3,573 - 3,573
Additions 3,011 - 3,011
Write-off (1.681) - (1.681)
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 4,903 - 4,903
Balance as of January 1, 2021 $ 6,978 1,440 8,418
Additions 2,707 - 2,707
Write-off (6.112) (1.440) (7.552)
Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ 3,573 - 3,573
Carrying amount:
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 9,712 - 9,712
Balance as of January 1, 2021 s 4,704 - 4,704
Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ 11.895 - 11,895

The Company added and modified parts of the lease contract, resulting in a increase in right of use
assets of $828 thousand and an increase of $9,868 thousand to be recognized for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company leased storage room and parking
space under operating lease, please refer to Note (6)(n).
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(j) Intangible assets

The costs, amortization, and impairment of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2022 and
2021, were as follows:

Other intangible
Software assets Total
Cost:
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 2.278 21,442 23,720
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 2,278 21,442 23,720
Balance as of January 1, 2021 $ 3,573 18,442 22,015
Acquisition 713 3,000 3,713
Disposal (2,008) - (2,008)
Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ 2,278 21,442 23,720
Amortization and impairment loss:
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 1,123 18,842 19,965
Amortization 721 600 1,321
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 1,844 19,442 21,286
Balance as of January 1, 2021 $ 2,370 18,442 20,812
Amortization 761 400 1,161
Disposal (2,008) - (2,008)
Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ 1,123 18,842 19,965
Carrying amount:
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 434 2,000 2,434
Balance as of January 1, 2021 s 1,203 - 1,203
Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ 1,155 2,600 3,755

1.Amortization

The amortization of intangible assets is included in the following statement of comprehensive
income items:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Operating costs $ 600 400
Operating expenses 721 761
Total $ 1,321 1,161
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(k) Short-term borrowings

®

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Unsecured bank loans $ 150,000 150,000
Unused short term credit lines $ 1,650,000 1,650,000
Range of interest rates 1.65% 0.7%

Please refer to Note (8) for details of the Company’ s assets pledged as collateral for bank
borrowings.

The Company’ s interest risk and sensitivity analysis of financial assets and liabilities were disclosed
in Note (6)(w).

Provisions
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Warranties s 2,462 2,456
Warranties

Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 2,456
Additions 3,132
Provisions reversed or used (3.126)
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 2,462
Balance as of January 1, 2021 $ 4,221
Additions 2,184
Provisions reversed or used (3.949)
Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ 2,456

The provision for warranty claims represents the present value of management’ s best estimate of
the future outflow of economic benefits that will be required under the Company’ s obligations for
warranties under local sale of goods legislation. The estimate had been made on the basis of historical
warranty trends and may vary as a result of other events affecting product quality.
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(m) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Current b 3,009 2,571
Non-current $ 6,894 9,510

For the maturities analysis, please refer to Note (6)(w).

The Company added and modified parts of the contract, resulting in a increase in lease liabilities of
$828 thousand and an decrease of $9,868 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

The amounts recognized in profit or loss were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Interest on lease liabilities $ 121 80
Income from sub-leasing right-of-use assets $ 69 161
Expenses relating to short-term leases $ 860 597
COVID-19-related rent concessions $ 151 141

The amounts recognized in the statement of cash flows for the Company were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,
2022 2021
Total cash outflow for leases $ 2,976 3,080

1. Building leases

As of December 31, 2022, the Company leases buildings for its office space. The leases of office
space typically run for a period of 2 to 5 years. Some leases include an option to renew the lease
for an additional period of the same duration after the end of the contract term.

The Company sub-leases some of its right-of-use assets under operating leases; please refer to
Note (6)(n).

2. Other leases

The Company leases machinery and other equipment, with lease terms of 3 years. In some cases,
the Company has options to extend the lease at the end of the contract term.

The Company also leases storage room and parking space with contract terms of 1 to 3 years.
These leases are short-term leases. The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for these leases.
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(n) Operating leases

Operating leases relate to leasing and subleasing of real estate and leasing of equipment with lease
terms between 1 to 5 years. The leasees do not have bargain purchase options to acquire the real

estate and equipment at the expiration of the lease periods.

A maturity analysis of lease payments, showing the undiscounted lease payments to be received

after the reporting date are as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021

Within 1 year $ 4,302
1 to 5 years -

$ 4,302

(o) Employee benefits
1.Defined benefit plans

Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation at present value and plan asset at fair value were as

follows:
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Present value of defined benefit obligations $ 75,733 78,776
Fair value of plan assets (96.413) (87.746)
Net defined benefit (assets) liabilities $ (20,680) (8.970)

The Company makes defined benefit plan contributions to the pension fund account with Bank of
Taiwan that provides pensions for employees upon retirement. The plans (covered by the Labor
Standards Law) entitle a retired employee to receive retirement benefits based on years of service

and average salary for the six months prior to retirement.

1) Composition of plan assets

The Company allocates pension funds in accordance with the Regulations for Revenues,
Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilization of the Labor Retirement Fund, and such funds are
managed by the Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor. With regard to the utilization of the
funds, minimum earnings shall be no less than the earnings attainable from two-year time

deposits with interest rates offered by local banks.

The Company’ s Bank of Taiwan labor pension reserve account balance amounted to $95,756
thousand as of December 31, 2022. For information on the utilization of the labor pension fund
assets, including the asset allocation and yield of the fund, please refer to the website of the

Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor.
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2) Movements in present value of the defined benefit obligations

The movements in present value of defined benefit obligations for the Company were as

follows:
For the Years Ended December 31,
2022 2021
Defined benefit obligation as of January 1 $ 78,776 79,383
Current service costs and interest 1,076 758
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit obligation
— Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments (340) (2,626)
— Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in
demographic assumptions - 3,807
— Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in
financial assumptions (3.779) (2,546)
Defined benefit obligation as of December 31 s 75,733 78,776

3) Movements of defined benefit plan assets

The movements in the present value of the defined benefit plan assets for the Company were as

follows:
For the Years Ended December 31,
2022 2021
Fair value of plan assets as of January 1 $ 87,746 84,982
Interest income 663 300
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit obligation
—Return on plan assets (excluding current interest) 6,722 1,207
Contribution paid by the employer 1,282 1,257
Fair value of plan assets as of December 31 $ 96,413 87,746

4) Expenses recognized in profit or loss
The expenses recognized in profit or loss for the Company were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Current service costs $ 485 480
Net interest of net liabilities for defined benefit
obligations (72) (22)
$ 413 458
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For the Years Ended December 31,
2022 2021
Operating costs and expenses s 413 458

5) Actuarial assumptions
The principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Discount rate 1.400%% 0.750%%
Future salary increasing rate 3.000%% 3.000%%

The expected allocation payment to be made by the Company to the defined benefit plans for
the one-year period after the reporting date is $1,282 thousand.

The weighted average lifetime of the defined benefits plans is 11 years.
6) Sensitivity analysis

If the actuarial assumptions had changed, the impact on the present value of the defined benefit
obligation shall be as follows:

Influences on defined benefit obligations

Increased 0.25% Decreased 0.25%
December 31, 2022
Discount rate S (1,484) 1,530
Future salary increasing rate 1.474 (1,438)
December 31, 2021
Discount rate $ (1,622) 1,675
Future salary increasing rate 1.599 (1,557)

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions,
holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the
amounts shown above. The method used in the sensitivity analysis is consistent with the
calculation of the pension liabilities in the balance sheets.

There is no change in the method and assumptions used in the preparation of sensitivity analysis
for 2022 and 2021.

2.Defined contribution plans

The Company allocates 6% of each employee’ s monthly wages to the labor pension personal
account at the Bureau of Labor Insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Labor Pension
Act. Under these defined contribution plans, the Company allocates a fixed amount to the Bureau
of Labor Insurance without additional legal or constructive obligation.
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The pension costs incurred from the contributions to the Bureau of the Labor Insurance amounted
to $7,499 thousand and $7,105 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

(p) Income taxes

1.Income tax expense
The components of income tax in the years 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Current tax expense
Current period $ 91,828 78,182
Adjustment for prior periods 558 (255)
92,386 77.927
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 26.944 30.993
Income tax expense from continuing operations s 119,330 108,920

The amount of income tax recognized directly in equity for 2022 was as follows; and no income
tax was recognized directly in equity for 2021.

For the Years
Ended December
31,2022

Gain on disposal of foreign listed shares $ 6,272

The amount of income tax recognized in other comprehensive income for 2022 and 2021 were as
follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss:
Remeasurement from defined benefit plans $ (2,168) (514)
Unrealized gains (losses) on equity instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income (3,117) (578)
Share of other comprehensive income of associates and
joint ventures accounted for using equity method,
components of other comprehensive income (541) 120
$ (5,826) 972)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation s (37,010) 14,640
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Reconciliation of income tax and profit before tax for 2022 and 2021 was as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021

Profit before imcome tax $ 786.783 716,069
Income tax using the Company’ s statutory tax rate $ 157,356 143,214
Permanent differences (38,415) (33,761)
Tax-exempt income (667) (278)
Undistributed earnings additional tax 498 -

Adjustments for prior periods 558 (255)
Income tax expense 3 119,330 108,920

2.Deferred tax assets and liabilities
1) Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

Changes in the amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021 were as follows:

Deferred
sales Unrealized Unrealized
returns and  losses on gains on
allowance  inventories investment _ Others Total

Deferred tax assets:

Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 5,449 6,974 - 87,762 100,185
Recognized in profit or loss 1,496 97) - 1,806 3,205
Recognized in other comprehensive income - - - (37.974) (37.974)
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 6,945 6,877 - 51,594 65,416
Balance as of January 1, 2021 $ 4,022 6,761 - 72,895 83,678
Recognized in profit or loss 1,427 213 - 621 2,261
Recognized in other comprehensive income - - - 14,246 14,246
Balance as of December 31, 2021 s 5,449 6,974 = 87,762 100,185
Deferred tax liabilities:

Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ - - 172,417 3,257 175,674
Recognized in profit and loss - - 36,113 (5,964) 30,149
Recognized in equity - - - 6,272 6,272
Recognized in other comprehensive income - - - 4.862 4.862
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ - - 208,530 8,427 216,957
Balance as of January 1, 2021 $ - - 139,085 2,757 141,842
Recognized in profit or loss - - 33,332 (78) 33,254
Recognized in other comprehensive income - - - 578 578
Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ - - 172,417 3,257 175,674
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3.Assessment of tax

The Company’ s income tax returns for the year through 2020 were assessed by the Tax
Administration.

(q) Capital and other equity

The Company issued 7,057 thousand common shares amounting to $70,574 thousand, with the date
of capital increase set on September 5, 2022, based on the resolution decided during the
shareholder’ s meeting held on June 21, 2022, and the approval of the Financial Supervisory
Commission, R.O.C. on August 4, 2022. All relevant statutory registration procedures had been
completed as of the reporting date.

1.Share capital
December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Number of shares authorized (in thousands) 200,000 200,000
Shares authorized $ 2,000,000 2,000.000
Number of shares issued and fully paid (in thousands) 148,206 141,149
Shares issued $ 1,482,064 1.411.490

A total of 10,000 thousand shares of the Company’ s authorized shares are reserved for the
issuance of employee share options, convertible bonds with warrants and preferred shares with
warrants.

2.Capital surplus
December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Additional paid-in capital arising from ordinary share $ 1,822,584 1,822,584
Additional paid-in capital arising from bond conversion 1,072,079 1,072,079
Difference between consideration and carrying amount of 98,181 98,181
subsidiaries acquired or disposed
Changes in ownership interest in subsidiaries 238,938 238,946
Changes in equity of associates accounted for using equity 798 457
method
Others 43.860 43.860
$ 3,276,440 3.276.107
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3.Retained earnings

The Company’ s article of incorporation stipulates that Company’ s profit after tax should first
be used to offset the prior years’ deficits, including unappropriated retained earnings. Of the
remaining balance, 10% is to be appropriated as legal reserve, then the special surplus reserve shall
be distributed or reversed according to the Laws acts and regulations approved by the Competent
authority. The remainder, together with any undistributed retained earnings, including amount of
adjusted retained earnings, shall be distributed by the Board of Directors and submitted to the
stockholders’ meeting for approval. The distribution of dividends, bonus, legal reserve and
capital surplus, distributed by way of cash, shall be decided during the Board meeting, approved
by more than half of the directors, with two thirds of directors in attendance; thereafter, to be
submitted in the shareholders’  meeting of the Company.

The Company’ s Articles also stipulate a dividend policy which is as follows: According to the
present and future development plans, the investment environment, capital requirements, domestic
and overseas competition, and the benefit of shareholders, the Company should distribute
dividends and bonuses to shareholders at no less than 20% of the remaining profit (which is the
current net profit less losses of previous years, less the adjustment to retained earnings, and less the
appropriation of earnings to the legal reserve). Dividends could be distributed in cash or shares,
where cash dividends should not be less than 20% of the total dividends distributed.

According to the amendment of the R.O.C. Company Act in January 2012, the Company must
retain 10% of its after-tax annual earnings as legal reserve until such retention equals the amount
of total capital. When a company incurs no loss, it may, pursuant to a resolution by a
shareholders’  meeting, distribute its legal reserve by issuing new shares or by distributing cash,
and only the portion of legal reserve which exceeds 25% of capital may be distributed.

The distribution of the 2021 and 2020 earnings had been approved during the meetings of the
shareholders and the board held on June 21, 2022 and March 12, 2021, respectively, as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2021 2020
Dividend Dividend
per share ($) Amount per share ($) Amount

Dividends distributed to common
shareholders

Cash $ 3.50 494,021 3.50 494,021

Stock 0.50 70.574 - -
Total $ 564,595 494,021
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The amount of cash dividends on the appropriations of earnings for 2022, and the amount of shares

dividends of appropriation of earnings for 2022, had been approved and proprosed, respectively
during the Board meeting on March 16, 2023, as follows:

2022
Dividend per
share ($) Amount
Dividends distributed to common shareholders
Cash $ 3.65 540,953
Stock 0.50 74,103

Total $ 615,056

4.0ther equity interest after tax
Unrealized
gains (losses)
from financial

assets
Exchange measured at
differences on fair value
translation of through other
foreign financial ~ comprehensive
statements income Total

Balance as of January 1, 2022 S (260,442) 118,342 (142,100)

Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statement 148,041 - 148,041

Exchange differences on subsidiaries accounted for using equity method 8,244 - 8,244
Unrealized gains (losses) from financial assets measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income - 119,911 119911
Unrealized gains (losses) from financial assets measured at fair value through other

p ive income, associ d for using equity method - (36.606) (36.606)

Balance as of December 31, 2022 h (104,157) 201,647 97,490

Balance as of January 1, 2021 $ (199.369) 85,289 (114,080)

Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statement (58,560) - (58,560)

Exchange differences on subsidiaries accounted for using equity method (2,513) - (2,513)
Unrealized gains (losses) from financial assets measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income - 24,706 24,706
Unrealized gains (losses) from financial assets measured at fair value through other

ive income, it for using equity method - 4,256 4,256
Disposal of investments in equity instruments designated at fair value through other

comprehensive income - 4.091 4,091

Balance as of December 31, 2021 p (260,442) 118,342 (142,100)
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(r) Earnings per share

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the basic and diluted earnings per share were
calculated as follows:

1.Basic earnings per share

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company s 667,453 607,149
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic) (retroactive 148.206 148,206

adjustments)

2.Diluted earnings per share

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company s 667,453 607,149
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic) (retroactive 148,206 148,206
adjustments)
Effect of employee stock compensation 752 796
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) (retroactive 148,958 149,002
adjustments)

(s) Revenue from contracts with customers
1.Disaggregation of revenue

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Primary geographical markets
Taiwan $ 4,654,419 4,373,194
Major products:
Product revenue
Medical equipment and Supplies $ 4,077,894 3,844,441
Medicines 90,523 88,079
Household appliances 202,742 160,457
Other 69,724 74,440
Repair and maintenance revenue 180,197 176,173
Other operating revenue 33,339 29.604
s 4,654,419 4,373,194
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(t) Employee compensation and directors’  remuneration

In accordance with the Articles of Incorporation, the Company should contribute no less than 1% of
the profit as employee compensation and no higher than 5% as directors’ remuneration when there
is profit for the year. However, if the Company has accumulated deficits, the profit should be
reserved to offset the deficits. The amount of compensation for employees may be paid by shares or
cash, and the recipients may include the employees of the Company’ s affiliated companies. The
amount of remuneration to directors may only be paid in cash. Both the employee compensation and
directors’ remuneration should be approved by the Board of Directors and reported during the
shareholders’  meeting.

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company estimated its employee
compensation amounting to $42,529 thousand and $38,706 thousand, and directors’ remuneration
amounting to $21,264 thousand and $19,353 thousand, respectively. The estimated amounts
mentioned above are calculated based on the net profit before tax, excluding the compensation to
employees and remuneration to directors of each period, multiplied by the percentage specified in the
Company’ s articles. These remunerations were expensed under operating costs or operating
expenses during 2022 and 2021. Related information would be available at the Market Observation
Post System website. The aforesaid amounts are identical to those stated in parent-company-only
financial statements.

(u) Non-operating income and expenses

1.Interest income
The details of interest income were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Interest income from bank deposits $ 1,541 130
Other interest income 755 494
Total $ 2,296 624

2.0ther income
The details of other income were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,
2022 2021
Dividend income s 4,760 4,082

3.Financial costs
The details of financial costs were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Interest expenses
Bank borrowings $ 1,271 492
Others 121 80
S 1,392 572
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4.0Other gains and losses
The details of other gains and losses were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021

Foreign exchange gains (losses) $ 3,939 1,116
Net gains or losses on financial assets (liabilities) measured at fair

value through profit or loss (1,759) (6,640)
Revenue from customs duty refunds 13,777 11,609
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment (2,180) -
Others 6.233 4,531
Total $ 20,010 10,616

(v) Reclassification adjustments of components of other comprehensive income
The details of reclassification of other comprehensive income were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
Net changes in fair value $ 43,322 29,375
Net changes of fair value reclassified to retained earnings (36.606) (4.091)
Net gains or losses recognized in other comprehensive income $ 6,716 25,284

(w) Financial instruments
1. Credit risks
1) Credit risk exposure
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum amount exposed to credit risk.
2) Concentration of credit risk

To minimize credit risks of receivables, the Company periodically evaluates the customers’
financial positions and the possibility of collecting trade receivables. And, the impairment losses
are always within the management’ s expectation. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, 65.36%
and 64.86%, respectively, of notes receivable and accounts receivable were three major
customers. Thus, credit risk is significantly centralized.
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2.Liquidity risks

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities of the Company, excluding the
impact of netting arrangements:

On Demand
Carrying  Contractual or Less than 1-3 3-6 6-12 More than
amount cash flow 1 month months months months 1-2 years 2 years
December 31, 2022
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Short-term borrowings $ 150,000 150,000 - 150,000 - - - -
Payables 997,329 997,329 686,512 251,901 36,389 22,527 - -
Lease liabilities 9.903 9.903 366 383 751 1.509 1.484 5.410
$ 1,157,232 1,157,232 686,878 402,284 37,140 24,036 1,484 5,410
December 31, 2021
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Short-term borrowings $ 150,000 150,000 - 150,000 - - - -
Payables 923,050 923,050 729,201 163,487 9,778 20,584 - -
Lease liabilities 12,081 12,081 338 317 637 1,279 2,578 6,932
Derivative financial liabilities
Foreign exchange forward
contract
Outflows 76.813 76,813 45,716 31,097 - - - -
Inflows (76.140) (76.140) (45.187) (30.953) -
$ 1,085,804 1,085,804 730,068 313,948 10,415 21,863 2,578 6,932

The Company is not expecting that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur
significantly earlier or at significantly different amounts.

3.Market risks
1) Currency risks

The Company’ s significant exposure to foreign currency risk of financial assets and liabilities
were as follows:

December 31, 2022
Foreign
Functional Exchange currency Carrying amount
currency rate Currency (in thousands) (TWD)
Financial assets

Monetary items
TWD 30.710 USD $ 2,970 91,206
TWD 0.232 JPY 217,995 50,662
TWD 32.720 EUR 375 12,280
Non-Monetary items
TWD 0.232 JPY 84,207 19,570
TWD 30.710 UsD 121,166 3,721,010
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December 31, 2022
Foreign
Functional Exchange currency Carrying amount
currency rate Currency (in thousands) (TWD)

Financial liabilities

Monetary items

USD 32.720 EUR 1,894 61,969

TWD 0.232 JPY 386,569 89,839

TWD 30.710 USD 993 30,485

December 31, 2021
Foreign
Functional Exchange currency Carrying amount
currency rate Currency (in thousands) (TWD)

Financial assets

Monetary items

TWD 27.680 USD $ 2,785 77,089

TWD 0.241 JPY 144,757 34,814

TWD 31.320 EUR 962 30,142

Non-Monetary items

TWD 0.241 JPY 151,122 36,345

TWD 0.024 KRW 2,637,191 61,974

TWD 27.680 USD 122,292 3,385,047
Financial liabilities

Monetary items

TWD 31.320 EUR 295 9,225

TWD 0.241 JPY 285,780 68,730

TWD 27.680 USD 916 25,354

Since the Company has many kinds of currency, the information on foreign exchange gains or
losses on monetary items is disclosed by total amount. For the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021, foreign exchange gains or losses amounted to gains of $3,939 thousand and
gains of $1,116 thousand, respectively.
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2) Sensitivity analysis

The Company’ s foreign exchange exposure to foreign currency risk arises from foreign
currency exchange fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivables and accounts
payables.

Assuming other variables remain the same, a 1% depreciation or appreciation of the TWD
against foreign currency for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 would have increased
or decreased the net profit after tax by $225 thousand and $310 thousand, respectively. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for both periods.

3) Interest rate risk

The Company’ s financial assets and financial liabilities with interest rate exposure risk were
noted in the liquidity risk section.

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the exposure to the interest rate risk of derivative
and non-derivative financial instruments on the reporting date. Regarding liabilities with
variable interest rates, the analysis is based on the assumption that the amount of liabilities
outstanding at the reporting date was outstanding throughout the year.

If interest had been 1% higher/lower, other variable remain the same, profit after tax in 2022
and 2021 would have increased/decreased by $4,025 thousand and $4,062 thousand,
respectively, and it’s mainly because of variable interest rate deposit of the company.

4) Other price risks

Assuming that the analysis is performed on the same basis for both periods, if equity prices had
been 1% higher/lower, pre-tax other comprehensive income for the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021 would have increased/decreased by $1,528 thousand and $2,715 thousand,
respectively, as a result of the changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

4.Fair value information
1) The categories and fair values of financial instruments

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income are measured on a recurring basis. The carrying amount and fair
value of the Company’ s financial assets and liabilities, including the information on fair value
hierarchy were as follows; however, except as described in the following paragraphs, for
financial instruments not measured at fair value whose carrying amount is reasonably close to
the fair value and lease liabilities, disclosure of fair value information is not required:
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December 31, 2022
Fair value
Book value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income
Domestic listed shares $ 1,763 1,763 - - 1,763
Foreign listed shares 19,570 19,570 - - 19,570
Domestic unlisted shares 131,421 - - 131,421 131,421
Sub-total 152,754 21,333 - 131,421 152,754
Financial assets at amortized
cost
Cash and cash equivalents 503,318 - - - -
Receivables 1,230,360 - - - -
Other financial assets 14,668 - - - -
Sub-total 1,748,346 - - - -
Total $ 1,901,100 21,333 - 131,421 152,754
Financial liabilities at
amortized cost
Payables $ 997,329 - - - -
Lease liabilities 9.903 - - - -
Total $ 1,007,232 - - - -
December 31, 2021
Fair value
Book value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income
Domestic listed shares $ 26,512 26,512 - - 26,512
Foreign listed shares 98,319 98,319 - - 98,319
Domestic unlisted shares 146,648 - - 146,648 146,648
Sub-total 271.479 124.831 - 146,648 271479
Financial assets at amortized
cost
Cash and cash equivalents 507,977 - - - -
Receivables 1,160,294 - - - -
Other financial assets 10,339 - - - -
Sub-total 1,678.610 - - - -
Total $ 1,950,089 124,831 - 146,648 271,479
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December 31, 2021
Fair value
Book value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial liabilities $ 673 - 673 - 673

Financial liabilities at
amortized cost

Payables 923,050 - - - -

Lease liabilities 12,081 - - - -
Sub-total 935.131 - - - -

Total $ 935,804 - 673 - 673

2) Valuation techniques for financial instruments not measured at fair value

The Company’ s valuation techniques and assumptions used for financial instruments not
measured at fair value are as follows:

A.Financial assets measured at amortized cost

If the quoted prices in active markets are available, the market price is established as the fair
value. However, if quoted prices in active markets are not available, the estimated valuation
or prices used by competitors are adopted.

B.Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

If there is quoted price generated by transactions, the recent transaction price and quoted
price data is used as the basis for fair value measurement. However, if no quoted prices are
available, the discounted cash flows are used to estimated fair values.

3) Valuation techniques for financial instruments measured at fair value

The Company considers the financial status, operating analysis, most recent transaction price,
non-active market quoted price of related equity instrument, and active-market quoted price of
similar instrument, and other information, in determining the input value of its investee
companies. Periodically updates of information and input value for the valuation model and any
necessary adjustments of fair value are required to ensure that the results of estimation are
reasonable.

A Non-derivative financial instruments

If quoted prices in active markets are available, the prices are established as fair values, such
as public quoted company stock.

For the Company’ s financial instruments that have no active markets, the measurement of
fair values is listed as follows:
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Equity instrument that has no quoted price: The method of comparable Listed Company
approach is used to estimate the fair value. The main assumption for the method is to
determine the fair value by using the transaction price paid for an identical or a similar

instrument of an investee.

B.Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are measured by using the common valuation models such

as discounted cash flow model and Black-Scholes model.

4) Changes in Level 3 fair values

Balance as of January 1, 2022
Total gains and losses recognized
In other comprehensive income
Disposal
Balance as of December 31, 2022

Balance as of January 1, 2021
Total gains and losses recognized
In other comprehensive income
Disposal
Balance as of December 31, 2021

Fair value through
other comprehensive

income
unquoted equity
instruments

$ 146,648
(1,542)

(13.685)

$ 131,421
N 126,813
38,615

(18.780)

$ 146,648

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, total gains and losses included in  “other

gains and losses” , and “unrealized gains and losses from financial assets at fair value

through other comprehensive income”

Total gains and losses recognized

In other comprehensive income, and presented in
“unrealized gains and losses from financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income”

291

were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2021

5,842 38,615



(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUDED IN CHINESE)
EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED)

5) Quantified information for significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) used in fair value
measurement

The Company’ s financial instruments that use Level 3 inputs to measure  “fair value through
other comprehensive income — equity investments without active market” .

Quantified information of significant unobservable inputs was as follows:

The relationship

Significant between significant
non-observable Non-observable
Item Valuation techniques inputs inputs and fair value
Financial assets at fair Comparable Listed « EV/EBITDA Value -+ The estimated
value through other Companies Method Multiple (8 on fair value would
comprehensive income December 31, 2021) increase (decrease) if
— equity instruments + P/B Value Multiple the value multiple is
investments without an (0.98~2.11 and higher (lower) and
active market 1.14~2.19 on the marketability
December 31,2022 discount is lower
and 2021) (higher)
» Discount due to
Lack of Market
liquidity
(16.40%~22.14%
and

15.36%~30.00% on
December 31, 2022
and 2021)

6) Sensitivity analysis for fair values of financial instruments using Level 3 Inputs

The Company’ s fair value measurement on financial instruments is reasonable. However, the
measurement would differ if different valuation models or valuation parameters are used. For
financial instruments using Level 3 inputs, if the valuation parameters are changed, the impact
on net income or loss and other comprehensive income or loss will be as follows:

Impact on Fair Value Change

on Other Comprehensive
income or loss

Favorable Unfavorable
Input Variation Change Change
December 31, 2022
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Equity instruments without an Value Multiple 5% $ 6,073 (6,073)
active
market
Equity instruments without an active ~ Discount due to 5% 7,451 (7.451)
market Lack of Market
liquidity
$ 13,524 (13.524)
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Impact on Fair Value Change
on Other Comprehensive
income or loss

Favorable Unfavorable
Input Variation Change Change

December 31, 2021
Financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income

Equity instruments without an active ~ Value Multiple 5% $ 8,201 (8,201)
market

Equity instruments without an active ~ Discount due to 5% 10,136 (10,136)
market Lack of Market

liquidity
$ 18,337 (18,337)

(x) Financial risk management
1.Overview
The Company has exposures to the following risks from its financial instruments:
1) credit risk
2) liquidity risk
3) market risk

The following likewise discusses the Company’ s objectives, policies and processes for
measuring and managing the above mentioned risks. For more disclosures about the quantitative
effects of these risks exposures, please refer to the respective notes in the accompanying financial
statements.

2.Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’ s risk management framework. The general manager, which reports to the Board of
Directors, is responsible for the development of the Company-wide risk management policy and
related systems and reports regularly to the Board of Directors.

The Company’ s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced
by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to
limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and changes in operation of the Company. The Company, through its training and
management standards and procedures, aim to develop a disciplined and constructive control
environment, in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Company’ s Board of Directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the
Company’ s risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Company’ s Board of
Directors is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. The internal audit undertakes both
regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are
reported to the Board of Directors.
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3.Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty would default on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the Company. As at the end of the reporting period, the Company’ s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Company due to failure
of counterparties to discharge an obligation and financial guarantees provided by the Company
could arise from:

1) The carrying amount of the respective recognized financial assets as stated in the balance sheets;
and

2) The amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantee issued by the Company.

In order to minimize credit risk, the management of the Company has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Company reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

Please refer to Note (13)(a) for the information of guarantees and endorsements as of December 31,
2022.

4.Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
The Company’ s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it always has

sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’ s reputation.

5.Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices, and credit spreads will affect the Company’ s income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return on risk.

The Company buys and sells derivatives, and also incurs financial liabilities, in order to manage
market risks. All such transactions are carried out within the guidelines set by the Board of
Directors and shareholder’ s meeting with the supervision of the internal audit department.
Information concerning all market risks of the Company was as follows:

1) Currency risk

The Company had foreign currency sales and purchases, which exposed the Company to foreign
currency risk. Exchange rate exposures were managed within approved policy parameters
utilizing forward foreign exchange contracts.
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2) Interest rate risk

The Company was exposed to interest rate risk because entities in the Company borrowed funds
at both fixed and floating interest rates. The Company pays attention to changes in market
interest rates in order to make plans to manage interest rate risk.

3) Other price risk

The Company was exposed to price risk through its investments in listed securities. The
Company has appointed a special team to monitor and evaluate the price risk.

(y) Capital Management

@

The Company’ s objectives for managing capital to safeguard the capacity to continue to operate, to
continue to provide a return on shareholders, to maintain the interest of other related parties, and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to
the shareholders, reduce the capital for redistribution to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets
to settle any liabilities.

The Company use the debt-to-equity ratio to manage capital. This ratio is the total net debt divided by
the total capital. The net debt from the balance sheet is derived from the total liabilities less cash and
cash equivalents. The total capital and equity include share capital, capital surplus, retained earnings,
and other equity plus net debt.

Investing and financing activities not affecting current cash flow

The Company’ s investing and financing activities which did not affect the current cash flow in the
year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, were as follows:

For acquisitions of right-of-use assets by leasing, please refer to note 6(i).

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities were as follows:

Non-cash changes

January 1, December 31,
2022 Cash flows Acquisition Others 2022
Short-term borrowings $ 150,000 - - - 150,000
Lease liabilities 12.081 (2.855) 828 (151) 9.903
Total liabilities from financing activities $ 162,081 (2,855) 828 (151) 159,903

Non-cash changes

January 1, December 31,
2021 Cash flows Acquisiti Others 2022
Short-term borrowings $ - 150,000 - - 150,000
Lease liabilities 4.757 (2.403) 10.174 (447) 12,081
Total liabilities from financing activities $ 4,757 147,597 10,174 (447) 162,081
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(7) Related Party Transactions

(a) Names and relationship with related parties

The followings are entities that have had transactions with related party during the periods covered in
the financial statements.

Name of related party Relationship with the Company
Excelsior Investment Co., Ltd. Entities with significant influence over the
Company

Excelsior Group Holdings Co., Ltd.
Dynamic Medical Technologies Inc. Subsidiary

Dynamic Medical Technologies (Hong Kong)
Ltd.

Guangzhou Dynamic Inc.

Excelsior Beauty Co., Ltd.

Arich Enterprise Co., Ltd. ”
Bestsmile Co., Ltd. Associate(Subsidiary before July 20, 2022)
Excelsior Healthcare Co., Ltd. Subsidiary

Excelsior Investment (Malaysia) Co., Ltd. ”
Renal Laboratories Sdn. Bhd. 7
Medi-Chem Systems Sdn.Bhd ”
Renal Management Sdn. Bhd. ”
Excelsior Medical (HK) Co., Limited ”
SinoExcelsior Investment Inc. ”
EG Healthcare Inc. ”
Excelsior Asset Management Co., Ltd. ”
(Excelsior Asset)

”

CY]J International Taiwan Inc.
Jiate Excesior Co., Ltd. (Jiate) Associate before October 24, 2022(Note)
Bestchain Healthtaiwan Co., Ltd. (Bestchain)  Associate

Visionfront Corporation

Excelsior Renal Service Co., Limited (ERS) 7
Asia Best Healthcare Co., Limited (ABH) 7
Medifly Co., Ltd. ”

Asia Best Life Care Co., Ltd. (Former name:
Asia Best Life Care Technology Co., Ltd.)

Arich Best Chain Co., Ltd. 7
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Name of related party
Exceed Healthcare Co., Ltd.

Excelsior Long Term Care Corporation Entity
Anxin Nice Care Co., Ltd.

NephroCare Limited

Cardinal Medical Services Ltd.

Hung Shun Chen Investment Co., Ltd.
SciVision Biotech Inc.

Excelsior Health Foundation

Relationship with the Company
Associate

”

”

Associate after April 29, 2022

”

Other related parties before May 31, 2021
Other related parties

Note: The dissolution of Jiate Excelsior Co., Ltd. had been approved during the shareholders’

meeting held on October 24, 2022.

(b) Significant transactions with related parties

1.Operating revenue
1) Sales revenue

The amounts of significant sales by the Company to related parties were as follows:

Subsidiaries
Associates — Bestchain
Associates —ERS
Associates — Others

Other related parties

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
$ 39,764 63,023
2,061,533 1,946,276
765,409 776,954
104,036 24,132
8 -
3 2,970,750 2,810,385

The aforementioned transactions, except the sales to Bestchain and ERS that were priced on a
cost-plus basis, were conducted on normal commercial terms.

2) Repair and maintenance revenue

The amounts of significant repair and maintenance revenue by the Company to related parties

were as follows:

Subsidiaries
Associates —ERS

Associates — Bestchain
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1.146 1,539
$ 95,295 90,891




(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUDED IN CHINESE)
EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED)

3) Other operating revenue-rental revenue

The amounts of significant other operating revenue-rental revenue by the Company to related
parties were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Entities with significant influence over the Company $ 72 72
Subsidiaries 348 421
Associates — ERS 1,918 2,483
Associates — Others 1,903 1,987
Other related parties 16 40
$ 4,257 5,003

4) Other operating revenue-service revenue

The amounts of significant other operating revenue-service revenue by the Company to related
parties were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021

Subsidiaries — Dynamic Medical Technologies Inc. $ 2,491 2,516
Subsidiaries — Others 1,344 1,181
Associates —ERS 7,692 7,470
Associates — ABH 834 1,086
Associates — Bestchain 1,105 2,135
Associates — Others 2,002 1,829
Other related parties 287 132

$ 15,755 16,349

2.Purchases from related parties
The amounts of purchases by the Company from related parties were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,
2022 2021
Associates $ 6,581 17,179

There is no significant difference in terms and conditions of the purchases from associates between
those provided to the third parties.
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3.Receivables from related parties

Receivables from related parties were as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

Accounted for as Category of related party 2022 2021
Accounts receivable Subsidiaries $ 23,701 29,469
Accounts receivable Associates — Bestchain 592,714 562,276
Accounts receivable Associates — ERS 156,865 161,552
Accounts receivable Associates — Others 40,012 9,001
Accounts receivable Other related parties 2 -

Other receivables Subsidiaries - 64
Other receivables Associates - 327
Other receivables Other related parties - 2

$ 813,294 762,691

4 Payables to related parties

Payables to related parties were as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

Accounted for as Category of related party 2022 2021
Accounts payable Associates $ 1,928 6,319
Accounts payable Subsidiaries 210 97
Other payables Associates 8,929 8,365
Other payables Subsidiaries 31 15

M 11,098 14,796
5.Property transactions
1) Disposals of financial assets
The disposals of financial assets to related parties were summarized as follows:
For the Years Ended December 31,
2022 2021
Gain Gain
Number Disposal (loss) on Number Disposal (loss) on
Relationship Account of shares Purpose price

Associates — Bestchain Investments

accounted for
using equity
method

1,194,526 Ordinary
shares of
Bestsmile

$ 6,634
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6.Guarantee

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company provided its subsidiaries guarantees for loans,
with the credit limits of $1,140,055 thousand and $1,119,805 thousand, wherein the amounts

utilized were $85,147 thousand and $94,985 thousand, respectively.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company also provided its associates guarantees for loans,
with the credit limits of $600,000 thousand and $800,000 thousand, wherein the amounts utilized

were both $0 thousand.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company provided its subsidiaries guarantees for
investment project, with the credit limits of $9,848 thousand and $801,420 thousand, respectively,

which were not yet utilized.

7.Lease

1) In 2018, the Company rent the office with Excelsior Renal Service Co., Limited. A four-year
lease contract was signed, in which the rental fee is determined based on nearby office rental
rates. The total value of the contract was $480 thousand. For the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021, the Company recognized the amount of $0 thousand and $1 thousand as interest
expense. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the balance of lease liabilities amounted to $0

thousand and $20 thousand, respectively.

8.0thers
For the Years Ended December 31,
2022 2021
Associates and Other related parties
Fright and warehousing expenses s (41,797) (49.182)

The aforementioned rentals collected or paid quarterly or monthly were based on prevailing

market rates.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company had received collections in advance from

associates for $165 thousand and $220 thousand as of 2022, respectively.

The outstanding receivables from related parties are unsecured. For the years ended December 31,

2022 and 2021, no impairment loss was recognized for receivables from related parties.
The outstanding payables to related parties are unsecured.
(c) Key management personnel compensation
Key management personnel compensation comprised:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
Short-term employee benefits $ 41,656 42,980
Post-employment benefit 324 369
$ 41,980 43,349
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(8) Pledged Assets : None.
(9) Significant Commitments and Contingencies

(a) Unrecognized contractual commitments

1.As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the unused letters of credit were $53,860 thousand and
$53,228 thousand, respectively. The guarantee letters issued by banks for sales contract guarantee

were all $0 thousands and $36,000 thousands.

2.In April 2022, the Company entered into a supply agreement with the Hong Kong-based company.
Pursuant to the agreement, the Company shall purchase certain products from the Hong
Kong-based company in agreed quantities at agreed prices annually.

(10) Losses due to major disasters : None.
(11) Subsequent events : None.

(12) Other

(a) The employee benefits, depreciation, depletion and amortization expenses categorized by function

were as follows:

By function| For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 For the Years Ended December 31, 2021
By item Operating Operating Operating Operating
cost expense Total cost expense Total
[Employee benefits
Salary 38,984 171,665 210,649 37,791 159,975 197,766
Labor and health 3,892 12,467 16,359 3,791 11,779 15,570
insurance
Pension 2,139 5,773 7912 2,078 5,485 7,563
Remuneration of - 25,401 25,401 - 24,752 24,752
directors
Others 1,565 7,433 8,998 1,527 7,028 8,555
[Depreciation 3,343 25,650 28,993 3,201 23,000 26,201
|Amortization 675 1,704 2,379 500 1,768 2,268

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the numbers of employees and their benefit
expenses were as follows:

Numbers of employees

Numbers of directors who were non-employees
The average employee benefits

The average salaries and wages

Average adjustment rate of employee salaries

Remuneration received by supervisors
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2022 2021
209 206
8 8
$ 1.214 1,159
$ 1,048 999
4.90% 1.83%
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The Company’ s salary and remuneration policy (including directors, managers, and employees) is
as follows:

The salary and remuneration of employee was agreed upon by labor and management, was adjusted
in accordance with employee’ s operating status, price level, contributions, abilities, and
performance appraisal. The aforesaid salary and compensation shall not lower than the minimum
wage approved by central competent authorities.

Wage means the remuneration which a worker receives for his/her services rendered, including
wages, salaries and bonuses, allowances and any other regular payments regardless of the name
which may be computed on an hourly, daily, monthly and piecework basis, whether payable in cash
or in kind. Non-salary are non-regular payments in Article 10 of Enforcement Rules of the Labor
Standards Act.

The salary and remuneration which the Company paid to directors and managers shall refer to their
participation and contribution to the Company. The aforesaid salary and remuneration includes fixed
salary, professional practice fee, pension, remuneration, and any bonus.

(13) Other disclosures

(a) Information on significant transactions

The following is the information on significant transactions required by the “Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers”  for the Company for the year
ended December 31, 2022:

1. Fund financing to other parties:

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)
[Highest balanc Purposes of | Transaction
of financing to Range of un amount for | Reasons Maximum
other party Actualusage | interest [financing for| business | for short |Allowance limitation on
Num-| Nameof | Nameof | Account |Related | during the Ending | amount during | rates during [the borrower| between | -term | forbad | _Collateral ing fund
ber Tender borrower | name | party |  period balance the period | theperiod | (Note2) | two parties | financing | debt [ Name| Value | loanlimits | financing
T [SinoExcelsior [Excelsior  [Other Yes 2163 2116 - 1.00% 2 ~ [Operating - None | - 54878 54878
linvestment Inc. [Healthcare  freceivables-R (Capital
“o., Limited |elated parties

Note 1: The numbers denote the following:
1. 0 is issuer.
2. Investees are listed by names and numbered starting with 1.
Note 2: Purpose of fund financing for the borrower:
1. For those companies with business contact, please fill in 1.
2. For those companies with short-term financing needs, please fill in 2.
Note 3: Maximum limitation on fund financing:
1. The lender's each and total fund financial amount cannot exceed 40% of its net asset value that from the most recent reviewed report.
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arantees and endorsements for other parties:

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

7. Companies in the same type of business providing guarantees of pre-sale contracts according to the regulation.
Note 3:For guarantee and endorsement to those companies with business contact, the maximum amount cannot exceed the trading amount between two

parties for the current year.

Counter-party Amountof Masimam
endorsement/ | Rati of accumulted | endorsement Guarantee
Endorsement! Nature of ount suaranee Guarantee Guarantee provided to
suarantee relationship | provided to each ~ [Maximum balance| o netequity pes allowance v providedby | subsidiaries in
No. | provider Name Cote2) for the year | _Ending bt drawn properties i company asubsidiary _| Mainland Chis
0 [The Company [Excetsior Medieal 7 1640056 T02% B B B % 8200432 Y N
HK) Co. Limited
Note4)
o . [Excelsior Investment 2 1640086 32026 9848 012% 8200432 ¥ N N
Malaysia) Co. Lid
o . Jxcesior Asse 2 1640086 990,000 990,000 75350 - o7 8200432 v N N
[Management CO.,
Jtud. Note 4)
o . [EG Healheare, Inc. 2 1640086 59,600 57925 9797 0n% 8200432 Y N N
(Note )
o . IMedi-Chem System 2 1640086 16108 15355 019% 8200432 Y N N
Jan Bh. (Note 4
o . [Renal Laboratorics 2 1640086 80537 76775 0sa 5200432 Y N N
Jan. Bha. (Note 4
o . [Excesir Renal 1 765409 - - - 5200432 N N N
ervice Cor. Limited
Note3)
o . [Besichain 1 2061533 500000 600000 - - 732% 8200432 N N N
Iealtaivan Co. Lt
3
1 [Excelsior Beauty[Dynamic Medical 3 67469 100 100 003 168673 N ¥ N
0. Lid [rechnologics Inc.
(Note )
2 [avich Enterprise [Taivan Shiono Ine 1 155126 % S92 N N N
o Lud 5
Note 1: the description of number column:
1.0 is issuer.
2. Investees are listed by name and numbered starting with 1.
Note 2: Relationship with the Company
1. The companies with which it has business relations.
2. Subsidiaries in which the Company directly or indirectly holds more than 50% of its total outstanding common shares.
3.The parent company which directly or indirectly holds more than 50% of its voting rights.
4. Subsidiaries in which the Company directly or indirectly holds more than 90% of its voting rights.
5. Companies in the same type of business and providing mutual endorsement: in favor of each other in accordance with the contractual
obligations in order to fulfill the needs of the construction project.
. Shareholders making and/or for their mutually invested company in proportion to their shareholding percentage.

Note 4: The total amount of guarantee and endorsement cannot exceed 20% of the Company’ s net asset value from the most recent audited or reviewed

report.

Note 5:For guarantee and endorsement from Arich to the Company with business contact, the maximum amount cannot exceed the trading amount between

two parties for the most recent 24 months.

Note 6:The total amount of guarantee and endorsement cannot exceed 20% of Excelsior Beauty Co., Ltd." s net asset value from the most recent audited or

reviewed report.

Note 7: The total amount of guarantee and endorsement cannot exceed the Company’ s net asset value from the most recent audited or reviewed report,

Dynamic, Excelsior Beauty and Arich cannot exceed 50% of their net asset value from the most recent audited or reviewed report.
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3. Information regarding securities held at balance sheet date (excluding investment in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures):

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Relationship Ending balance
Name of holder Category and name with the Account title  [Number of shares| Book value | Percentage of | Market value Notes
of security Company shares
[Stock
The Company  [SciVision Biotech Inc. - [Fair value through 32,525 1,763 0.05% 1,763
lother comprehensive
lincome
. 3-D Matrix, Ltd. - - 273.400 19570 0.46% 19.570
. (Gie Cheng Co., Ltd. - . 3,795,000 35,635 17.25% 35,635
” [Rui Guang Healthcare Co., - - 2,423,951 31,802 7.15% 31,802
ILtd.
- [Sunder Biomedical Tech. Co., - 4 2279.578 53,684 3.80% 53,684
[Ltd.
. [Linkon International Golf & - - 1 10300 0.10% 10300
ountry Club
[Excelsior (Chai Tai Bo Ai Investment - 4 10,000 8,536 8.00% 8,536
Healthcare [Limited
(Co.Limited
EG Healthcare, Inc.[The Orchard Golf & Country - ” 1 760 - % 760
Tub
Dynamic Medical [SciVision Biotech Inc. ther related . 1,290,649 69.953 1.95% 69.953
[Technologies Inc. [parties
. “aregen Co., Ltd ’ ’ 34,500 116,215 0.32% 116,215
[Stock Warrant
[Dynamic Medical [Viveve Medical Inc. - [Financial assets at fairl 250 - - %
Technologies value through profit
(Hong Kong) Ltd. for loss
Stock
Excelsior Beauty  [loin Fun Co., Ltd - [Fair value through 263,340 2,623 19.00% 2,623
(Co., Ltd. lother comprehensive
income
IStock
[Arich Enterprise  [National Pharmaceutical [Board director of - - 335,597 17.65% 335,597 Note
(Co., Ltd. [Logistics Corp., Ltd. linvestee

Note : Act as limited company, no outstanding share.

4. Accumulated buying/selling of the same marketable securities for which the amount reaches
$300 million or 20% or more of paid-in capital:

(Expressed in thousands of Ne
Beginning balance Purchases Sales
Category and| Name of donshi Disposal

Name of name of | Account [counter-p| with the Shares/ Shares/ Shares/ gain Shares/

Company security name arty | Company Units Amount Units Amount Units Price Cost (loss) Units Amount
[Excelsior MedicalNephrocare _[nvestments | - B B B 151,801,588 688,755 B B B B 151,801,588 688.755
(HK) Co., imited Jaccounted for|
Limited Jusing equity

Imethod

5. Acquisition of real estate for which the amount reaches $300 million or 20% or more of paid-in
capital : None.

6. Disposition of real estate for which the amount reaches $300 million or 20% or more of paid-in
capital: None.
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7. Buying/selling products with the amount reaches $100 million or 20% or more of paid-in capital:

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Name of Name of
company Counter-party
The Company _[Excelsior Renal
Service Co.,
[Limited
" [Bestchain

Healthtaiwan Co.,
ILtd.

Transactions with terms

Account/note receivable

T details different from others (payable)
Percentage of
Percentage total accounts/
of total notes
Purchase/ purchases/ receivable

Relationship| _ Sale Amount sales | Credit period | Unit price | Credit period Balance (payable) | Notes
Associates Sales (765.409) | (16.44)% [Net 30-60 days E 156,365 12.51%Note 1
- - (2.061,533)|  (44.29)% Net 30-90 days - 592,714 47.36% Note 1

Note 1:The unit price of cost of goods sold for the Company is based on cost-plus pricing approach by product that is lower than average; because, the
expense of goods sold for related parties is lower than average price as well.

8. Accounts receivable from related parties for which the amount reaches $100 million or 20% or
more of paid-in capital:

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Balance of Subsequently
receivables Past-duc receivables from | reccived amount of|
Name of from Turnover related party receivables from | Allowances
related party Counter-party | Relationship | related party rate Amount Action taken related party | for bad debts
[The Company [Excelsior Renal Service[Associates 156,865 4381 B 157,194
(Co., Limited
- [Bestchain Healthtaiwan - 592,714 3.83 395,106
(Co., Lid.

9. Derivative transactions:

Please refer to Note (6)(b) and (6)(x) for related information.

(b) Information on investees:

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the following is the information of investees (excluding
investees in Mainland china):

(Amounts Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except for Share Data)

Initial investment amount Ending balance Net income | Investment
Name of the Ending Beginning Ratio of (loss) of the income
investor Name of investee Location | Major operations balance balance Shares shares Book value investee (losses) Notes
The Company iiate Excesior Co., ew Taipei [Sale, maintenance and| N 5279 =% (799) (392) [Associate
ILtd. ity lease of medical Note 4)
lequipment, and
Imedical management
feonsultancy service
- [Bestchain ew Taipei [Sale of medical 277,647 277,647 49,162,513 44.68% 732,468 221,827 99,034 [Associate
Healthtaiwan Co.,  [City lequipment and Note 1)
ILtd. Imedicines,
linteragation of
ing and
linformation
- [Arich Enterprise Co., [New Taipei [Sale of medicines, 380,856 380,856 29,829,742 40.00% 750,666 62,617 25,011 [Subsidiary
ILtd. City jand logistics service Notes 2)
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Initial investment amount Ending balance Net income Investment
Name of the Ending Beginning Ratio of (loss) of the income
investor Name of investee Location | Major operations balance balance Shares shares Book value investee (losses) Notes
[The Company [Dynamic Medical ew Taipei [Sale, maintenance and| 180,300 180,300 11,550,425 38.50% 547,074 137,111 52,626 [Subsidiary
[Technologies Inc. ~~ [City llease of laser medical
equipment for beauty
reatment, and sale of
fconsumables of
beauty treatment and
osmetic products
- [Excelsior Healthcare [British Investment business 1,244,687 1,244,687 39,411,623 100.00% 1,944,685 101,978 101,978 [Subsidiary
[Co., Limited Virgin
lIslands
” [Bestsmile Co., Ltd.  [New Taipei [Sale of medical - 32,093 - - % - (5.311) (5,285) |Associate
ity lequipment, and Note 5)
Imedical management
[consultancy service
v isionfront ew Taipei [Sale of medical 44,069 44,069 2,434,870 44.47% 21,440 (3,216) (1,430) |Associate
Corporation ity lequipment, and
Imedical management
[consultancy service
- Sunrise Health Care  [New Taipei [Sale of medical 18,806 18,806 2,085,547 23.97% 28,672 1,489 357 |Associate
“ompany City lequipment, and
Imedical management
[consultancy service
- [Excelsior Medical [Hong Kong [Investment business 1,588,746 1,588,746 53,154,741 64.36% 1,782,684 122,105 78,587 [Subsidiary
HK) Co., Limited
- [Excelsior Beauty Co., [New Taipei [Sale of aesthetic 91,984 91,984 11,534,804 41.02% 138,729 9,140 3,826 [Sub-subsidiary|
lLtd. City imedical and cosmetic
Ihealth-care products
- [Excelsior Asset ew Taipei [Sales of medical 780,525 780,525 82,292,300 100.00% 640,911 18,045 18,045 [Subsidiary
Management Co., Ltd.(City lequipment, precision
jinstrument and real
festate
- edifly Co.,Ltd. [Taichung [Sale of medical 31,899 31,899 3,615,976 28.66% 92,075 40,423 11,585 [Associate
lequipment and
Imedicines
[Excelsior [EG Healthcare, Inc.  [Philippines [Sale and lease of 19,256 19,256 9,427,489 99.99% 75,500 (2,995) - [Sub-subsidiary|
[Healthcare Imedical equipment,
[Co., Limited fand medical
[management
lonsultancy service
- [Excelsior Renal [Hong Kong [Sale, maintenance and| 312,505 312,505 73,375,728 49.00% 392,204 137,441 - [Associate
[Service Co., Limited lease of medical
lequipment, and
imedical management
lconsultancy service
- [Excelsior Medical [Hong Kong [Investment business 862,529 862,529 29,439,829 35.64% 987,179 122,105 - [Subsidiary
HK) Co., Limited
” [Excelsior Investment [British [[nvestment business 222,547 192,814 7,341,416 100.00% 194,195 (7,291) - [Sub-subsidiary|
Malaysia) Co., Ltd  [Virgin
lIslands.
IDynamic IDynamic Medical [Hong Kong [Sale and maintenance 382,278 382,278 79,021,783|  100.00% 295,790 6,913 - Subsidiary
edical Technologies (Hong f medical equipment
Technologies [Kong) Ltd.
nc.
- [Excelsior Beauty Co., [New Taipei [Sale of aesthetic 138,745 138,745 15,154,496 53.89% 166,428 9,140 - Subsidiary
[Ltd. [City imedical and cosmetic Note 1)
Ihealth-care products
- IMedytox Taiwan Inc. [New Taipei [Sale of cosmetic 18,000 18,000 1,800,000 40.00% (526) 880 - |Associate
ity Ihealth-care products
- [Touce Biotech Co.,  [New Taipei [Sale of cosmetic 45,000 - 420,000 35.00% 43,739 3,964 - [Associate
ity Ihealth-care products Note 6)
- [CY] International ew Taipei [Sale and treatment of 11,073 - 1,224,020 10.00% 10,950 (9,073) - [Sub-subsidiary|
Taiwan Inc. ity Ihair protecting and Note 7)

conditioning
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Initial investment amount Ending balance Netincome | Investment
Name of the Ending Beginning Ratio of (loss) of the income
investor | Name of investee | Location | Major operations | balance balance Shares shares | Book value investee (losses) Notes
Dynamic Y] [Hong Kong_[Sale and treatment of 66,547 66,547 2,150,000  50.00% 10,778 (2,504) B ssociate
edical INTERNATIONAL lhair regrowth and
[Technologies [COMPANY lconditioning
Hong Kong) [LIMITED
LLtd.
Excelsior  [CYJ International ew Taipei [Sale and treatment of 97,920 97,920 9,792,000  80.00% 90,356 (9.073) - [Sub-subsidiary|
Beauty Co.,  [Taiwan Inc. ity lhair protecting and
ILtd. lconditioning
[Excelsior |Asia Best Healthcare [Cayman  [Long-term care 1,395,079 1,395,079 338,800  49.38% 1,522,853 191,612 - Associate
edical (HK) [Co., Ltd. Islinds ~ [business
“o., Limited
- ardinal Medical — [British ISale of medical 106,121 - 9.800|  49.00% 112,176 13371 - associate
Services Ltd. [Virgin lequipment, and
Islnds | medical management
fconsultancy service
- NephroCare Limited [Hong Kong [Sale of medical 688,755 - 151,801,188 | 49.00% 715,600 30,961 - lAssociate
lequipment, and
Imedical management
service
[Excelsior  [Renal Laboratories  [Malaysia of 169,502 145264 16,773,586|  70.00% 160,937 (9,547) - [Sub-subsidiary|
nvestment ~ (Sdn. Bhd. Imedical equipment
Malaysia)
0., Ltd
- edi-Chem Systems  [Malaysia  [Sale of medical 44,052 44,052 350,000 70.00% 37,346 247 - [Sub-subsidiary|
Sdn.Bhd lequipment
edi-Chem  [Renal Management  [Malaysia ~ [Lease business 1315 1315 200,000{ 100.00% 8273 149 - [Sub-subsidiary
Systems Sdn. Bhd.
Sdn.Bhd

Note 1:Including the adjustment made from the unrealized gain/loss with subsidiaries and associates.

Note 2:Including the amortization listed by the book value of net identified assets.

Note 3:According to the regulations, the Company are required to disclose the share of income/loss of investees.

Note 4: The dissolution of Jiate Excelsior Co., Ltd. had been approved during the shareholders’

Note 5:Bestsmile Co.,Ltd. was no longer a subsidiary beginning on July 20, 2022.

Note 6:The Group acquired 35% equity of Touce Biotech Co., Ltd on October 2022.

Note 7:Dynamic Medical Technologies Inc. acquired 10% equity of CYJ International Taiwan Inc. from CYJ INTERNATIONAL COMPANY LIMITED,
the associate, in November 2022.

(c) Information on investment in Mainland China:

L.

Information on investment in Mainland China:

meeting held on October 24, 2022,

(Amounts Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Accumulated

Accumulated

[Bo-Ai Medical ~ fand medical

Consulting Co.,

onsultancy service

outflow of outflow of Direct
investment from investment from Jindirect Current Accumulated
Method of | Taiwan as of Investment flows Taiwan Netincome | shareholding | investment Inward
Name of the | Main Businesses and investment | January 1, as of December | (loss) of the (%) by the gains and Carrying Remittance
investee products (Note 1) 2022 Out-flow Inflow 31,2022 investee Company losses Amount of Earnings
[Excelsior [Sale and Tease of @ 30,240 B - 30240 B B B B -
[Healthcare medical equipment,
|(Shanghai) land medical
‘orporation (Note fmanagement
onsultancy service
[Shanghai Lintech  [Sale and maintenance @ 29213 - 29213 - - % - -
[Medicare Co. f medical equipment
INote 4)
[Pacific Beijing ~ [Investment business 84187 @ 80,327 - 80,327 (18,001) 7.80% - 8,536
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‘Accumulated Accumulated
outflow of outflow of Direct
investment from investment from /indirect Current Accumulated
Method of | Taiwan as of Investment flows Taiwan Netincome | sharcholding | investment Inward
Name of the | Main Businesses and [ Total amount of | investment | January 1 as of December | (loss) of the (%) by the gains and Carrying Remittance
investee products pain-in capital | _(Note 1) 2022 Out-flow Inflow 31,2022 investee Company losses Amount of Earnings
[SinoExcelsior _[Investment business, 21599 @) 947,835 - - 947,845 2,126 100.00% 2,126 137,195 -
investment Inc. ~ fale and lease of
INote 5) Imedi
land medical
Imanagement
leonsultancy service
(Guangzhou ISale and maintenance 443460 () 119,574 - - 119,574 (1,040) 100.00% (1,040) 10,181
[Dynamic Inc. f medical equipment
[Beijing Dynamic ~[Sale and maintenance - @ 34424 - - 34424 - - %
inc. (Note 6) f medical equipment
INational Medical logistics 370493 () 66,603 - - 66,603 109,291 17.65% - 335,597 74715
[Pharmaceutical
[Logistics Corp.,
lLed.

2. Limitation on investment in Mainland China:

A Amounts
in Mainland China as of Authorized by Upper Limit on
C i

Company December 31, 2022 MOEA Investment(Note 7)

[The Company 1,087,625 1,289,640 4,920,259
IDynamic Medical Technologies Inc. 153,998 153,998 832,635
rich Enterprise Co., Ltd. 66,603 66,603 1,129,107

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

Note 7:

Note 8:

in Mai China are dif i by the following four methods:
(1) Direct investment in Mainland China with remittance through a third region.
(2) Indirect investment in Mainland China through an existing investee company in a third region.
(3) Other methods (i.e. entrusted Investment)
Recognition of investment gain or loss during current period is pursuant to the following:
(1) If the corporation is in the set-up phase, notes are required.
(2) Recognition basis of investment gains or losses is determined by the following three types, and related notes are required.
1) Financial statements of the investee company were audited and certified by an international firm in cooperation with an R.O.C. accounting
firm.
2) Financial statements of the investee company were audited and certified by the external accountant of the parent company.
3) Others
The liquidation procedure of Excelsior Healthcare (Shanghai) Corporation was completed in March 2016, and the investment had remitted to
Excelsior Healthcare Co., Limited in the third place. As of December 31, 2022, the accumulated amount of investment from Taiwan has not been
repatriated yet.
The disposal of Shanghai Lintech Medicare Co. was completed in December 2015. As of December 31, 2020, the original investment
amount of $29,213 thousand from Taiwan has not been repatriated yet.
The current investment outflow is not included the direct investment amount of $207,380 thousand through the third region.
The liquidation procedure of Beijing Dynamic Inc. was completed in November 2018, and the investment had remitted to Dynamic Medical
Technologies (Hong Kong) Ltd. in the third place. As of December 31, 2022, the accumulated amount of investment from Taiwan has not been
repatriated yet.
(1)The upper limit on investment of the Company and Dynamic Medical Technologies Inc. is the 60% of net value.
(2)The upper limit on investment of Arich Enterprise Co., Ltd. is the higher of $80,000 thousand or 60% of net value.
All amounts listed are disclosed in NTD.

3. Significant transactions:
The significant inter-company transactions with the subsidiary in Mainland China, which were
eliminated in the preparation of consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
“Information of significant transactions”
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(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUDED IN CHINESE)
EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED)

(d) Major shareholders:

Shareholder’ s Name Sharcholding Shares Percentage

[Excelsior Investment Co., Ltd. 16,562,126 11.17%
[Excelsior Group Holdings Co., Ltd. 15,664,676 10.56%
IBestchain Healthtaiwan Co., Ltd. (Bestchain) 14,558,507 9.82%

(14) Segment Information

Please refer the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022.
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EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD.

STATEMENT OF CASH AN
EQUIVALENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Description Amount
Cash Petty cash $ 83
Cash in bank Checking accounts 204
Demand deposits 369.397
Foreign deposits
USD 2,302 thousand 70,688
JPY 217,995 thousand 50,662
EUR 375  thousand 12,280
CNY 1 thousand 4
133,634
Total $ 503318

STATEMENT OF NOTES RECEIVABLE

Client Name Description Amount Note
Grant River Co., Ltd. $ 6,944
Youlin Industrial Ltd. 8,602
Jianlin Internal Medicine Clinic 5,425

The year-end balance of each
client does not exceed 5% of the
Other 60,367 account balance.

Total $ 81338

310



EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD.
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

DECEMBER 31, 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Client Name Description Amount Note
Related Parties:
Bestchain Healthtaiwan Co., Ltd.  Payment for goods $ 592,714
Excelsior Renal Service Co., ” 156,865

Limited

Other

Subtotal
Non-related Parties:

Ikko Corporation

Hi-Clearance Inc.

Other

Subtotal

Total

Less: Allowance for Impairment
Net Amount

”

”

”

311

63,715

813.294

17,935
16,114

302,275

336,324

1,149,618
(21.027)
$ 1,128,591

The year-end balance of
each client does not exceed
5% of the account balance.

The year-end balance of
each client does not exceed
5% of the account balance.



EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD.
STATEMENT OF OTHER RECEIVABLES
DECEMBER 31, 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Description Amount Note
Non-related Parties:
Interest receivable $ 130
Other 20,301
Subtotal 20,431
Total $ 20,431

STATEMENT OF INVENTORIES

Amount
Item Cost Net realized value Note
Merchandise $ 712,073 746,277
Inventory in-transit 39,033 46.572
Total $ 751,106 792,849
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EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD.

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

DECEMBER 31, 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Client Name Description Amount Note
Related Parties:
Medifly Co., Ltd. $ 889
Bestchain Healthtaiwan Co., Ltd. 1,039
Arich Investment Co., Ltd. 210
Subtotal 2,138
Non-related Parties:
Medtronic (Taiwan) Ltd. 230,011
Asahi Kasei Kuraray Medical Co., Ltd. 68,772
Chi Sheng Pharma & Biotech Co., Ltd. 64,654
Sunder Biomedical Tech. Co., Ltd. 71,686
Fresenius Medical Care Taiwan Co., Ltd. 51,317
Fresenius Medical Care Hongkong Co.,
Ltd. 60,990
The year-end balance of
each client does not exceed
Other 254,324 5% of the account balance.
Subtotal 801,754
Total $ 803,892
STATEMENT OF OTHER PAYABLES
Item Description Amount
Other payables Employee wages and bonuses payable $ 81,235
Salaries and bonuses payable 31,067
Remuneration payable of directors 21,264
Compensated absence payable 8,959
Insurance payable 3,721
Professional fees payable 5,758
Other 41,035
Total $ 193,039
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EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD.
STATEMENT OF OPERATING REVENUE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Quantity Amount Note
Sales revenue
Surgical supplies 2,273,633 pieces $ 1,711,717
Artificial kidneys, blood tubing 11,877,856 pieces /pairs 1,175,397
sets, lumbar puncture needles
Erythropoietin, liquid medicines, 3,850,072 doses/buckets/ packs 741,360
powder medicines
Blood bags 653,038 bags 234,458
Medical supplies 3,665,661 packs/pieces 153,333
Medical equipment 278 sets 61,629
Medicines 2,114,463 pills 90,523
Household appliances 41,747 sets 202,742
Other 69,724
Subtotal 4,440,883
Repair and maintenance revenue 180,197
Other operating revenue 33.339
Net $ 4,654,419
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EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD.
STATEMENT OF OPERATING COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item

Cost of Goods Sold
Inventory, January 1
Add: Purchase
Less: transfer to property, plant and equipment
Inventory, December 31
Other
Cost of Goods Sold
Repair and maintenance costs
Other operating costs
Reversal on invnetory valuation and obsolescence
Operating costs

317

Amount

$ 647,918
3,956,595
(30,402)
(785,638)
(4.720)
3,783,753
81,041
3,238
486
$§  3.867.546



EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD.
STATEMENT OF SELLING EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Description Amount Note
Salary and wages expense $ 67,464
Freight expense 42,644
Depreciation expense 19,155
Entertainment expense 12,293

The year-end balance of
each account does not
exceed 5% of the account

Other 88,030 balance.
$ 229,586
STATEMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Item Description Amount Note

Salary and wages expense $ 129,722
The year-end balance of
each account does not
exceed 5% of the account

Other 46,474 balance.

$ 176,196
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6. Up to the Publication Date of this Annual Report, Has the Group

Experienced Financial Turnover Difficulties:
None.
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VII. Review and Analysis of
Financial Status,
Financial Performance,
and Risk Management
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1. Financial Status

(1) Comparative analysis of financial status

Unit: NT$ thousands

Year Difference
Item 2022 2021 Amount %

Current assets 9,528,417 9,307,543 220,874 2.4

Property, plant and 760,310 636,488 123,822 195

equipment

Intangible assets 31,622 33,004 (1,382) (4.2)

Other assets 6,162,157 5,127,965 1,034,192 20.2)

Total assets 16,482,506 15,105,000 1,377,506 9.1

Current liabilities 5,752,045 4,955,029 797,016 16.1

Non-current liabilities 433,152 404,259 28,893 7.1

Total liabilities 6,185,197 5,359,288/ 825,909 154

Equity attributable to 8,200,432 7,738,389 462,043 6.

owners of parent

Share capital 1,482,064 1,411,490 70,574 5.0

Capital surplus 3,276,440 3,276,107 333 0.0

Retained earnings 3,344,438 3,192,892 151,546 4.7

Other equity 97,490 (142,100)| 239,590 168.6

Treasury stock — - — —

Non-controlling 2,096,877 2,007,323 89,554 45

interests

Total equity 10,297,309 9,745,712 551,597 5.7

Note:

1. Other assets in 2022 increased mainly due to the increase in investments
accounted for using equity method.

2. Other equity in 2022 increased mainly due to the increase in exchang
differences on transaction of foreign financial statements and unrealized
gains from financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

(2) Future plan shall be described in the case of material impacts: No material impacts have
been affected to the Company finance and business.
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2. Financial Performance

(1) Comparative analysis of financial performance

Unit: NT$ thousands

Financial Information for the

Year last 2 years Difference

Item 2022 2021 Amount | (%)
Operating revenue 7,186,828 6,573,152 613,676 9.3
Gross profit 1,513,112 1,372,619 140,493 10.2
Net operating income 606,612 595,026 11,586 1.9
Non-operating income and 357,088 278,710 78,378  28.1
expenses
Profit before tax 963,700 873,736 89,964 10.3]
Profit from continuing 785301 722,289 63,012 8.7
operations
Loss from discontinuing _ _ _ _
operations
Profit 785,301 722,289 63,012 8.7]
Sj‘er comprehensive income, 364,266 (35162) 399,428 1,136.0
Total comprehensive income 1,149,567 687,127 462,440 67.3
Profit attributable to owners of 667,453 607,149 60,304 9.9
parent
Profit at.trlb.utable to non- 117,848 115,140 2708 24
controlling interests
Comprehensive income 956,638 578,655 377,983 653
attributable to owners of parent
Comprehensive income
attributable to non-controlling 192,929 108,472 84,457 77.9
interests
Earnings per share 4.50 4.10 0.40 9.8

equity method.

Analysis of deviation over 20% and amounts exceeding NT$10 million:
1. Non-operating income and expenses in 2022 increased mainly due to the
increase in share of profit of associates and joint ventures accounted for using

2. Other comprehensive income, net and total comprehensive income in 2022
increased mainly due to the increase in exchang differences on transaction of
foreign financial statements and unrealized gains from financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

(2) Analysis of gross profit deviation: Gross profit increase (decrease) didn’t reach 20%.

(3) Provide a sales volume forecast and the basis therefor, and describe the effect upon the
Company’s financial operations as well as measures to be taken in response: Please

refer to the “Report to Shareholders.”
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3. Cash Flows
(1) Analysis of cash flows in the most recent year

Unit: NT$ thousands

Cash Net cash flows N‘};Siﬁ’};ggy\ls Cagzlzﬁggg Remedy for cash deficit
ll)a iggé??;% frgcrgvoiltgii?gg)lg operating (deficit) Investment | Financing
activities (C) | (A)+(B)+(C) plan plan
$3,072,264 $637,126 ($1,202,395) $2,506,995 - —

Analysis of cash flows in 2022

method.

1.0Operating activities: Mainly due to profit from operations.
2 Investing activities: Mainly due to acquisition of investments accounted for using equity

3.Financing activities: Mainly due to cash dividends paid.

(2) Remedy for liquidity shortfall: No liquidity shortfall is expected.

(3) Analysis of cash flows for the coming year

Unit: NT$ thousands

Cash Expected net Ezfsftggv\r:t Expected Cash | Remedy for cash deficit
beginnin cash flows from non- ending balance - -
balgnce (E) from operating | L (deficit) Investment | Financing
activities (B) ac tIi)VitiES (%:) (A)+B)+(C) plan plan
$2,506,995 $573,006 ($449,179) $2,630,822 - —

Analysis of cash flows in the coming year

borrowings.

4.Remedy for cash deficit: None.

1.0Operating activities: Mainly due to profit from operation.
2.Investing activities: Mainly due to acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
3.Financing activities: Mainly due to cash dividends paid and increase in short-term

4. Effect upon Financial Operations of Major Capital Expenditures from Recent

Years : None.
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5. Investment Policies, Main Reasons for Profit or Loss and Improvement Plans
from Recent Years, and Investment Plans for the Coming Year

Information of investees

Unit: NT$ thousands

Remarks . . Other Future
. Main Reasons for Profit or .
Item Policy . Action Plan Investment
Loss in 2020
Plan
g;(:r]ﬁgceutical This company sells medicines
Arich E . distributionand | O™ Well-known
rich Enterprise logistics services in pharmaceutical principals and None None
Co., Ltd. Taiwan fo reduce Excelsior recognized
channel and investment income of
inventory costs NT$25,011 in thousands.
Expand the This company has positive
Dynamic Medical aesthetic medical fiaelsisclersl ;r?cslt?s:;ur?nzcgfeasl and
Y . industry with high ) . ’ None None
Technologies Inc. self-pav potential Excelsior recognized
marll:e ty p investment income of
. NT$52,626 in thousands.
This company mainly invests
in Excelsior Renal Service Co.,
Limited, EG Healthcare Inc.,
Establish Excelsior Investment
Excelsior investments and (Malaysia) Co., Ltd. and
Healthcare Co., operations in Excelsior Medical (HK) Co., None None
Limited overseas medical  |Limited and has sound
industry. investment performance,
leading Excelsior to recognize
investment income of
NT$101,978 in thousands.
This company mainly invests
in Asia Best Healthcare Co.,
Establish Ltd., SinoExcelsior Investment
. . investments and Inc. ,NephroCare Limited and
Excelsior Medical . . . . .
(HK) Co., Limited operations in long- [Cardinal Medical Services Ltd. None None
v term care and and has sound investment
medical business.  |performance. Excelsior
recognized investment income
of NT$78,587 in thousands.
Actively promote
sales of products
and treatments,
. . . , . while strictly
Operating aesthetic [This company’s aesthetic controllin
medical and body |medical business was operatin 8
Excelsior Beauty |shaping services  |impacted by COVID-19 P &
R R . expenses, and None
Co., Ltd. and sales of epidemic, and Excelsior help investees
aesthetic medical  |recognized investment income con}:inues to erow
consumables. of NT$3,826 in thousands. g
through the
integration of
channel operating
resources.
Excelsior Asset . . This company provides leasing
Leasing services of . -
Management Co., real estate business for affiliate company, None None
Ltd. i and Excelsior recognized
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Remarks . . Other Future
. Main Reasons for Profit or .
Item Policy . Action Plan Investment
Loss in 2020
Plan
investment income of
NT$18,045 in thousands.
This company has sound
business development at the
Provide Philippines, however AR Strengthening
EG Healtheare Inc. hem.odlallysls didn’t 'COHECt as exp?CFed and ACCO}lntS None
services in recognized the provision of Receivable
Philippines. bad debt loss, and Excelsior Collection
recognized investment loss of
NT$2,995 in thousands.
Provide medical This company is in the
supplies sale, lease, trans1thn period of Qperatlon
. . . conversion, so there is no
SinoExcelsior and medical ) .
substantial operation, and None None
Investment Inc. management . .
. |Excelsior recognized
consultancy service |. X ¢
in China investment income o
mn : NT$2,126 in thousands.
. This company mainly invests
. Establish pany y ist i i
Excelsior Cstabis in Renal Laboratories Sdn. Assist in p.l anning
investments and R the operational
Investment . . Bhd. and Medi-Chem Systems . X
. operations in . strategies for its None
(Malaysia) Co., L. . |Sdn. Bhd., Excelsior .
medical industry in U investee
Ltd. Malavsi recognized investment loss of .
alaysia. NT$7,291 in thousands. companes.
Provide medical This company produces. Improve '
device hemodialysis products in manufacturing
Renal Laboratories . Malaysia. Due to COVID-19  |process, produce
manufacturing . L. - None
Sdn. Bhd. . epidemic impact, Excelsior new products and
sevice in Southeast . .
Asia recognized investment loss of |expand export
. NT$6,683 in thousands. channels.
This company sells
hemodialysis and wound and |Compete for new
Medi-Chem Provide ostomy products in Malaysia. |products agency
hemodialysis sales [Due to COVID-19 epidemic and expand None
Systems Sdn. Bhd. .. .. . . .
service in Malaysia. |impact, Excelsior recognized |domestic
investment income of NT$173 [channels.
in thousands.
Provide leasing and This company provides of.fice
Renal management lease to affiliate company in
Management Sdn. & . |[Malaysia and Excelsior None None
consultancy service . R .
Bhd. in Malavsi recognized investment income
n Malaysia. of NT$104 in thousands.
Actively develo i
vely dev .p This company is affected by Actively promote
. . sales of aesthetic . . product sales to
Dynamic Medical . . COVID-19 epidemic and Hong .
X medical devices , o . provide more
Technologies Kong’s political economic None

(Hong Kong) Ltd.

and consumables
in Hong Kong and
to invest in China.

impacted on revenue and
profit after tax decrease.

choices for the
aesthetics medical
market.
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Remarks . - Other Future
. Main Reasons for Profit or .
Ttem Policy Loss in 2020 Action Plan Investment
Plan
Actively develop This company is in the '
. transition period of operation .
sales of aesthetic . . Strictly control
Guangzhou . . conversion, so there is no .
. medical devices ) . operating None
Dynamic Inc. substantial operation, and the
and consumables . expenses.
. . current period has loss after
market in China.
tax.
This company opened 13 ?:;gfgggmom
Sales of treatments |StOTeS in 2022 and gxperlenced treatment, while
and products significant growth in revenue. adjusting the Expected to
CY]J International P . However, due to higher jusng
; related to hair operational open 7 new
Taiwan Inc. personnel expenses and .
growth and body establishment costs associated |STTUcture and stores in 2023.
shaping. . . .. |tightly controlling
with the new store openings, it onerational
resulted in a loss. P
expenses.

Note: There are subsidiaries as of December 31, 2022.
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6. Risk Management and Assessment from Last Year up to the Time of Report
Publication

(1) Effect of changes in interest rate, exchange rate and inflation on corporate finance, and
future countermeasures

A. Interest rate
The Group’s interest expenses are mostly caused by short-term borrowings. The
short-term borrowings from banks are at relatively low levels, and obtain market
preferential interest rates regularly by assessing the interest rate levels and transaction
credit with banks. Therefore, changes in interest rate have no significant impact on
corporate finance.

B. Exchange rate

The Group reduces risks from exchange rate fluctuations by continuing to focus
on fluctuations in the international financial market and to timely utilize foreign
exchange forward contracts. For instance, for supplier contracts that denote prices in
USD, the Group would purchase timely USD forward contracts and deposits in
comprehensive consideration of the trends of USD and the purchase amounts. For
denoted prices in Euro, the Group negotiates prices for the subsequent year using NTD
in each year, and purchases timely Euro forward contracts and deposits in
comprehensive consideration of the trends of Euro and the purchase amounts. Since
the recent correlation between the Japanese Yen and the NTD is relatively low, and the
Yen has adopted a quantitative easing policy, it is also considered a hedging currency.
The Group also keeps a close eye on the exchange trends on the Yen and our actual
needs, and in case of large appreciations, the Group will purchase timely forward
contracts to hedge against possible risks based on actual needs.

C. Inflation

For the Group’s products that belong to health insurance reimbursement in
accordance with the National Health Insurance Administration, inflation has no
significant impact on corporate finance. But products that are categorized as sales of
aesthetic medical devices and consumables, and healthcare home appliances are prone
to be impacted by market and inflation. Therefore, the Group keeps a close eye on the
consumer price index (CPI) in the consumer market and adjusts product portfolio to
encourage consumers to spend and to reduce the risk of inflation.

(2) Policies of high-risk, high-leverage investments, fund financing to other parties,
endorsement guarantee and derivative commodity trading, and its main reasons for
profit or loss and future countermeasures

The Group does not engage in high-risk, high-leverage investments.

The Group only loans funds to companies with inter-company business
transaction or with necessary short-term financing need, and is carried out with
“Regulations Governing Loaning of Funds.” As of December 31, 2022, the Group’s
balance of loaning of funds was NT$2,116 in thousands. As of March 31, 2023, the
Group has not loaned funds to others.

327



The Group only makes guarantees and endorsements to the parent company,
subsidiaries and companies with inter-company business transaction, and is carried
out with “Regulations Governing Making of Endorsements/Guarantees.” As of
December 31, 2022, the Group’s endorsements/ guarantees balance was NT$1,750,003
in thousands. As of March 31, 2023, the Group’s endorsements/ guarantees balance is
NT$1,129,638 in thousands.

The Group’s derivative transactions are all hedging in nature, and does not deal
in transactive or speculative transactions.

(3) Future research & development projects and corresponding budget: The Group is non-
manufacturing, so it is not applicable.

(4) Effects of and response to changes in policies and regulations relating to corporate
finance and sales

To target the increasingly active global pharmaceutical market, and seeing that
the International has extended the quality management of medicines from
manufacturing processes to logistics and distribution, the Ministry of Health and
Welfare in Taiwan has also set the reinforced control over pharmaceutical distribution
and logistics as a key implementation policy, and phased implementation has
commenced since July 2016. Full enactment has come into effect since December 31,
2018. Due to strict requirements for quality and safety, the entry barriers in this
industry is extremely high. Only a few companies that continue to focus and invest in
comprehensive PIC/S GMP and GDP facilities, can become competitive enterprises
with global counterparts. Moreover, the Group continues to acquire GMP and GDP
accreditations for medicines approved by the government, and has obtained Good
Distribution Practice (GDP) certification for medical devices in 2023. Enter into
medical device sector, and cooperate with medical principals to increase market share.
Also, we continue to introduce new products related medical and healthcare,
strengthen interaction with each customer, and provide more comprehensive and
complete professional services.

In response of the enactment of the “Long-term Care Services Act” in June 2017,
various services that integrate medical, caring, housing, prevention and daily life
support were in favor of Asia Best Healthcare Co., Ltd. to expand long-term care
services to satisfy the needs of the aging population.

(5) Effects of and response to changes in technology and the industry relating to corporate
finance and sales
The Group is an integrated channel provider in medical device industry, aesthetic
medical industry, and pharmaceutical sales promotion and distribution logistics
industry. Changes in technology and the industry will help to strengthen our supply
chain relationship and help the Group to provide new products to satisfy customer
needs. By focusing on relevant technological development trends in industries and
investing capital and personnel to develop new businesses and new products, the
Group hopes to enhance service quality and to lower operating costs.

(6) The impact of changes in corporate image on corporate risk management, and the
Company’s response measures: The Group continues to develop business by
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maintaining a positive corporate image in providing medical and healthcare services.

(7) Expected benefits from, risks relating to and response to merger and acquisition plans:

Not applicable.

(8) Expected benefits from, risks relating to and response to factory expansion plans: Not

applicable.

(9) Risks relating to and response to excessive concentration of purchasing sources and

A.

excessive customer concentration

Purchase

In terms of the purchases of medical devices and healthcare home appliances, the
company adopt a dual-brand marketing strategy by both importing from overseas
brands and also outsource our own brand to OEMs. This helps the Company to
appropriately disperse sources of purchase, and we maintain an adequate purchasing
ratio for each supplier and product, and therefore, we do not have risks associated
with concentration of purchases.

In terms of the purchases of aesthetic medical industry, the Group mainly acts as
an agent of various aesthetic medical devices and consumables, and we actively
pursue the latest aesthetic medical technologies and related products. We maintain an
adequate purchasing ratio for each supplier and product, so we do not have risks
associated with concentration of purchases.

In terms of the purchases of medicines, since the Group sells medicine from well-
known pharmaceutical principals with high market shares and revenues, it is not
possible to avoid concentration of purchases. To reduce the risk of concentrated
purchases, the Group is already actively developing businesses from other
pharmaceutical principals, and continue to develop new customers and to increase
channel coverage ratio. Concurrently, we are also strengthening customer relationship
and marketing strategies to consolidate our agency.

B. Sale

In terms of the sales of medical devices, the Company’s sales to Bestchain
Healthtaiwan Co., Ltd. (“Bestchain”) accounts for approximately 33%. The Company
sells surgical consumables from its agency brand Medtronic to Bestchain, and
Bestchain’s sales team would then sell and distribute the products to various medical
institutions. The Company’s sales to Excelsior Renal Service Co., Limited (“ERS”)
accounts for approximately 12%. Nevertheless, this sales strategy of hemodialysis
products is for ERS to compete for dialysis management service from various public
and private medical institutions, and for the Company to provide relevant product
sales. For hemodialysis center independently operated by medical institutions, the
Company would directly sell to each medical institution and provide relevant after-
sale services.

Most of the Group’s aesthetic medical devices and consumables are sold to
dermatology departments and plastic surgery departments in major public and
military hospitals, private dermatology clinics, private plastic surgery clinics,
obstetrics and gynecology clinics, family medicine clinics, and pharmacies and chain
drugstores in Taiwan. There are many counterparties, so there is no risk associated
with concentration of sales.
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In terms of the sales of medicine, most of which are sold to domestic medical
institutions and pharmacies. There are many counterparties, so there is no risk
associated with concentration of sales.

In recent years, the Group has been committed to diversifying operating risks
through continuing to introduce products from international principals and by
developing the product sales in each medical field. Presently, there is no clear
indication of concentration of sales.

(10)Effects of, risks relating to and response to large shares transfers or changes in
shareholdings by directors, supervisors, or shareholders with shareholdings of over
10%: None.

(11)Effects of, risks relating to and response to the changes in management rights: Not
applicable.

(12)Litigious or non-litigious matters. List major litigious, non-litigious or administrative
disputes that: (1) involve the company and/or any company director, any company
supervisor, president, any person with actual responsibility for the firm, any major
shareholder holding a stake of greater than 10 percent, and/or any company or
companies controlled by the company; and (2) have been concluded by means of a
final and unappealable judgment, or are still under litigation, where such a dispute
could materially affect shareholders” equity or the prices of the company’s securities,
the company should disclose the facts of the dispute, related amounts, date, main
parties involved and current status of the case up to the publication date of this annual
report: None.

(13) Other major risks and measures: None.
(14) The organizational structure of risk management

The Group’s risk management of various activities is managed by each respective
management unit, and the internal auditing unit will propose and implement risk-
oriented audit plans and review the existing or potential risks at each business. Below
are descriptions of each risk management unit:

A.General Manager’s Office: Responsible for management decision-making and supervising
and coordinating related matters from each department to reduce strategic risks.

B.Each business unit: Separately responsible for proposing operating strategies for their
respective businesses and to seize market trends to reduce risk of business operations.

C.Finance and accounting division: Responsible for fund transfer and to stay on top of
fluctuations in interest rates and exchange rates at all times to reduce risks of finance,
exchange rates, and interest rates. The finance and accounting division has established a
credit control mechanism to review credit limit, thereby reducing ratios of bad debt in
account receivables.

D.IT Division: Responsible for the safety and management of physical assets and the safety
protective measures of the internet to reduce cyber security risks.
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7. Other Important Matters

Key Performance Indicator (KPI) of the Group

Since the Group is a relatively large-scale integrated channel provider in the
domestic medical device industry, aesthetic medical industry, and pharmaceutical sales
promotion and distribution logistics industry, our products encompass various sites
ranging from medical institutions, department stores, and chain drugstores in Taiwan.
Therefore, “accounts receivable turnover” and “inventory turnover” are key indicators
that will affect the funds. The Group’s accounts receivable turnover was 4.3, with
average collection period of 85 days in 2022. The inventory turnover in 2022 was 5.5,
with average days in sales of 67 days. In addition, our market shares of the new
products agency and distribution are non-financial KPI.
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VIII. Special Disclosure
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1. Information on Affiliated Enterprises
(1) 2022 consolidated business report from affiliated enterprises

A. Organizational chart of affiliated enterprises

Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd.

40% 100% 38.50% 41.02% 100% 64.36%
. Excelsior Dynamic . o Excelsior
E ArlCh. Asset Medical Excelsior 35.64% | Medical
nterprise Management Technologies HealtAhC-aIe "] (HK) Co.,
Co,, Ltd. Co., Ltd. Inc. Co., Limited Limited
100% 53.890;:1 99.99%| 100% 100%
Dynamic Medical Excelsior EG Excelsior SinoExcelsior
Technologies Beauty Co.,| [Healthcare, Investment Investment
(Hong Kong) Ltd. Ltd. Inc. (Malaysia) Co., Ltd. Inc.
100% 80% 70%]| 70%
CY i-
Guangzhou | |_| ] Renal ) Medi-Chem
D el 109 International Laboratories Systems Sdn.
ynamic Inc. Taiwan Inc. Sdn. Bhd. Bhd.
[100%
Renal
Management
Sdn. Bhd.

B. Information of affiliated enterprises

Unit: unless otherwise stated,
NT$ thousands

Total
Enterprise Name | Startup Date Address Agl;;;r;;()f Major Operations
Capital
Arich Enterprise June 2,1980 |14F.-5, No. 880, Zhongzheng 745,744 |Sales promotion and
Co., Ltd. Rd., Zhonghe Dist., New distribution logistics
Taipei City 235, Taiwan service of medicines.
(RO.C)
Dynamic Medical | October 9, 2003 |14F., No. 880, Zhongzheng 300,000 |Sales, lease and
Technologies Rd., Zhonghe Dist., New maintenance of
Inc. Taipei City 235, Taiwan aesthetic medical
(RO.C) devices and
consumables, and
sales of beauty
products
Excelsior December 24, |4th Floor Ellen Skelton USD$ 39,412 |Investment business
Healthcare Co., 2002 Building, 3076 Sir Francis | in thousands
Limited Drake Highway, Road
Town, Tortola, British
Virgin Islands
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C.

Total
Amount of

Enterprise Name | Startup Date Address Paid in Major Operations
Capital
Excelsior Medical |June 1, 2010 Room 13, 4F, Block A, Focal USD$ 82,595|Investment business
(HK) Co., Limited Industrial Center, 21 Man | in thousands
Lok Street, Hung Hom,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
Excelsior Beauty |August 15,1979 |14F.-1, No. 880, Zhongzheng 281,210 |Sales of body shaping
Co., Ltd. Rd., Zhonghe Dist., New treatments and
Taipei City 235, Taiwan aesthetic medical
(RO.C) products and
consumables
Excelsior Asset October 27, 17F.-6, No. 880, Zhongzheng 822,923 |Leasing services of
Management 2015 Rd., Zhonghe Dist., New medical real estate
Co., Ltd. Taipei City 235, Taiwan
(RO.C)
EG Healthcare, July 31, 2003 14/F, Ramon Magsaysay PHP$94,275|Sales and lease of
Inc. Center, Roxas Boulevard, | inthousands| medical devices, and
Manila, Philippines medical management
consultancy service
SinoExcelsior January 13, 2011{Room 301-2, No.1089, Kang | CNY$60,000|Investment business,
Investment Inc. Ning Lu, Shanghai Shi, in thousands| sales and lease of
China medical devices, and
medical management
Consultancy service
Excelsior February 12, 4th Floor Ellen Skelton USD$ 7,341|Investment business
Investment 2018 Building, 3076 Sir Francis | in thousands
(Malaysia) Co., Drake Highway, Road
Ltd. Town, Tortola, British
Virgin Islands
Renal July 20, 1996 PT42, Lengkuk Teknologi 4, MYR$28,700
Laboratories Persiaran Teknologi 4, in thousands|Manufacture of
Sdn. Bhd. Techpark@Enstek, 71760 hemodialysis products
Negeri Sembilan, Malaysia. in Southeast Asia
Medi-Chem October 22, No. 5 Lorong Perusahaan 3 | MYR $500 in . X
Systems Sdn. 1985 Taman Industri Kimpal, thousands Sa‘1e5 of med}cal devices
Bhd. Batu Caves, 68100 Malaysia in Malaysia
Renal June 5, 1992 No. 5 Lorong Perusahaan 3 MYR $200 in|ease and management
Management Taman Industri Kimpal, thousands|  consultancy service in
Sdn. Bhd. Batu Caves, 68100 Malaysia Malaysia
Dynamic Medical |January 25, 2007|Room 13, 4F, Block A, Focal HKD|Sales and maintenance
Technologies Industrial Center, 21 Man $79,022 in| of medical devices
(Hong Kong) Lok Street, Hung Hom, thousands,
Ltd. Kowloon, Hong Kong
Guangzhou May 22, 2009 Room 1301,1310, No.363, CNY$|Sales and maintenance
Dynamic Inc. Dongfeng Zhong Road, 10,400 in| of medical devices
Yuexiu District, thousands
Guangzhou, China
CY]J International |December 8, 14F.-2, No. 880, Zhongzheng 122,400|Sales of treatments and
Taiwan Inc. 2014 Rd., Zhonghe Dist., New products related to
Taipei City 235, Taiwan hair care and body
(RO.C) shaping

Information on shareholders who are the same as the controlled and affiliated entities:

None.
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D. Description of overall business scope of affiliates enterprises

The Company’s primary businesses are medical and healthcare products and

related services, and major agency products include:

Hemodialysis machine and dialyzers: Hemodialysis products from Fresenius,

Nikkiso and AsahiKasei.

Solutions and powders: Hemodialysis products from own-brand Renabio which

outsource manufacturing to well-known domestic
pharmaceutical factories(OEM).

Air purifiers and healthcare home appliances: Own-brand ULTRACLEAN and

distribution brand Electrolux, etc.

Colostomy products: Hollister wound and ostomy medical products.

Blood bags: Japan’s JMS blood bag products.

Surgical products: Medtronic surgical products.

Aesthetic medical laser devices: Sale and lease of aesthetic medical devices and

medical management consultancy services.

Besides supplying the above products, we also provide comprehensive repair and

maintenance support system and IT service repair and consultancy system.

Businesses of affiliates enterprises:

a.

Arich Enterprise Co., Ltd. : This company is a subsidiary invested by Excelsior to
expand medicine business, and its major businesses include pharmaceutical sales
promotion and distribution logistics services.

Dynamic Medical Technologies Inc. : This company is a subsidiary invested by
Excelsior to expand aesthetic medical devices sales, and owns agency or
distribution rights for products from various well-known European, American, or
Korean aesthetic medical brands. Its major businesses include sale, lease and
maintenance of asthetic medical laser devices, and sale of aesthetic medical
consumables and beauty products.

Excelsior Healthcare Co., Limited : This company is a subsidiary invested by
Excelsior to expand to foreign medical and healthcare industries. Its major business
is investment.

Excelsior Medical (HK) Co., Limited : This company is an indirect subsidiary
invested by Excelsior to expand to foreign medical and healthcare industries. Its
major business is investment.

Excelsior Beauty Co., Ltd. : This is an indirect subsidiary invested by Excelsior for
cosmetic beauty products. Its major businesses include sales of cosmetic beauty
products and aesthetic medical consumables.

Excelsior Asset Management Co., Ltd. : This is a subsidiary invested by Excelsior
to expand physical channels for medical and healthcare industries. Its major
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businesses include sale, acquisition and lease real estate.

. EG Healthcare, Inc. : This is an indirect subsidiary invested by Excelsior to expand
to the medical and healthcare industry in the Philippines. Its major businesses
include sale and lease of medical devices, and medical management consultancy
service.

. SinoExcelsior Investment Inc. : This is an indirect subsidiary invested by Excelsior
to expand to the medical and healthcare industry in China. Its major businesses
include investment, sales and lease of medical devices and medical management
consultancy service.

Excelsior Investment (Malaysia) Co., Ltd. : This is an indirect subsidiary invested
by Excelsior to expand to medical and healthcare industry in Malaysia. Its major
business is investment.

Renal Laboratories Sdn. Bhd. : This is an indirect subsidiary invested by Excelsior
to expand to hemodialysis product manufacturing and related businesses in
Malaysia. Its major businesses include medical devices and consumables
manufacturing and sales in Southeast Asia.

. Medi-Chem Systems Sdn. Bhd. : This is an indirect subsidiary invested by Excelsior
to expand to medical device sales and related businesses in Malaysia. Its major
businesses include local medical devices and consumables sales.

Renal Management Sdn. Bhd. : This is an indirect subsidiary invested by Excelsior
to expand to the medical and healthcare industry in Malaysia. Its major businesses
include real estate leasing and management consultancy service.

. Dynamic Medical Technologies (Hong Kong) Ltd. : This is an indirect subsidiary
invested by Excelsior to expand to the medical and healthcare industry in Hong
Kong. Its major businesses include sales and maintenance of medical devices.

. Guangzhou Dynamic Inc. : This is an indirect subsidiary invested by Excelsior to
expand to the medical and healthcare industry in China. Its major businesses
include sales and maintenance of medical devices.

CY]J International Taiwan Inc. : This is an indirect subsidiary invested by Excelsior
to set up in Taiwan for hair growth and professional body shaping treatments. Its
major businesses include sales of products and treatments related hair growth and
body shaping.
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. Directors, supervisors, and general managers of affiliated enterprises

Unit: unless otherwise stated, shares; %

Shareholding
Enterprise Name Title Name or Representative Investment
Shares .
holding %
Arich Enterprise Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd. 29,829,742 40.00%
Co., Ltd. Chairman Representative: Fu Hui-Tung 2,000 0.00%
Director Chang Hsien-Cheng - -
Director Chang Ming-Cheng - -
[Excelsior Investment Co., Ltd. 1,538 0.00%
Director Representative: Xue Fu-Quan 30,768 0.04%
Lin Feng Co., Ltd. 1,260,000 1.69%
Director Representative: Dang Tian-Jian - -
Xuan Hui Investment Co., Ltd. 2,000 0.00%
Director Representative: Su Wen-Lynn - -
Independent director |Wang Chang-Sheng - -
Independent director [Hsu Shui-Sheng - -
Independent director |Dong De-Tai - -
General manager Biao Shih-Wei 2,000 0.00%
Dynamic Medical |Chairman Fu Hui-Tung - -
Technologies Director Wang Ming-Ting - -
Inc. Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd. 11,550,425 38.5%
Director Representative: Chang Ming-Cheng 3,000 0.01%
Director Huang Jie-Qing 15,034 0.05%
Director Xue Fu-Quan - -
Director Fu Jo-Hsuan - -
Independent director |Shi Mei-Hui - -
Independent director |Yang Yu-Ming - -
Independent director |Liao Yi-Hsing - -
General manager Wu Guo-Long - -
Excelsior Director Fu Hui-Tung - -
Healthcare Co., Excelsior | 100.00%
Limited Medical Co.,
Ltd. holds
39,411,623
shares.
Excelsior Medical |Director Fu Hui-Tung - -
(HK) Co., Limited Excelsior 64.36%
Medical Co.,
Ltd. holds
53,154,741
shares.
Excelsior| 35.64%
Healthcare
Co., Limited
holds
29,439,829
shares.
Excelsior Beauty Dynamic Medical Technologies Inc. | 15,154,496 53.89%
Co., Ltd. Chairman Representative: Wu Guo-Long - -
Director Fu Hui-Tung - -
Director Fu Jo-Hsuan - -
Supervisor Wang Ming-Ting - -
General manager Wu Guo-Long - -
Excelsior Asset Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd. 82,292,300 | 100.00%
Management Chairman Representative: Chang Hsien-Cheng - -
Co., Ltd. Director Wang Ming-Ting - -
Director Fu Jo-Hsuan - -
Supervisor Chou Cheng-Hsiao - -
General manager Wang Ming-Ting - -
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Shareholding

Enterprise Name Title Name or Representative Investment
Shares A
holding %

EG Healthcare, Inc. |Chairman Kao Shen 1 -

Director Pan Cong-Ren 1 -
Director Romarico I. Gatchalian 1 -
Director Addison B. Castro 1 -
Director Marianne Jezelle Jem T.Macarilay 1 -
General manager Pan Cong-Ren 1 -
Excelsior 99.99%
Healthcare
Co., Limited
holds
9,427,489
shares.

SinoExcelsior Chairman Kao Shen - -

Investment Inc. |Director Fu Hui-Tung - -
Director Fu Jo-Hsuan - -
Supervisor Chou Cheng-Hsiao - -
General manager Kao Shen - -

Excelsior | 100.00%
Medical
(HK) Co.,
Limited
invested
CNY$60,000
in thousands.

Excelsior Director Fu Hui-Tung - -
Investment Excelsior | 100.00%
(Malaysia) Co., Healthcare
Ltd. Co., Limited

holds
7,341,416
shares.

Renal Laboratories |Chairman Yong Tuan Heng - -
Sdn. Bhd. Managing Jason Nien - -

Director
Director Stanley Chang - -
Director Kao-Shen - -
Director Fu Jou-Hsuen - -
Director Wong Huey Miin - -
Director Beh Seok Koon - -
Excelsior 70%
Investment
(Malaysia)
Co., Ltd.
holds
16,773,586
shares
Renal 30%
Resources
Sdn. Bhd.
holds
7,188,679
shares.
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Shareholding

General manager

Fu Jo-Hsuan

Enterprise Name Title Name or Representative Investment
Shares A
holding %
Medi-Chem Chairman Yong Tuan Heng - -
Systems Sdn. Managing Jason Nien - -
Bhd. Director
Director Stanley Chang - -
Director Kao-Shen - -
Director Fu Jou-Hsuen - -
Director Wong Huey Miin - -
Director Beh Seok Koon - -
Excelsior 70%
Investment
(Malaysia)
Co., Ltd.
holds
350,000
shares
Renal 30%
Resources
Sdn. Bhd.
holds
150,000
shares.
Renal Management|Chairman Yong Tuan Heng - -
Sdn. Bhd. Managing Jason Nien - -
Director
Director Kao-Shen - -
Medi-Chem 100%
Systems Sdn.
Bhd. holds
200,000
shares.

Dynamic Medical |Director Fu Jo-Hsuan - -
Technologies Director Wu Guo-Long - -
(Hong Kong) Dynamic | 100.00%
Ltd. Medical

Technologies
Inc. holds
79,021,783

shares.

Guangzhou Director Wu Guo-Long - -
Dynamic Inc. Supervisor Jiang Zhi-Hao - -

Dynamic | 100.00%
Medical

Technologies

(Hong Kong)

Ltd. invested

CNY$10,400

in thousands.

CYJ International Excelsior Beauty Co., Ltd. 9,792,000 80.00%
Taiwan Inc. Chairman Representative: Fu Jo-Hsuan - -

Director Tsai Liang-Jia - -
Supervisor Wang Ming-Ting - -

339



F. Operation results of affiliated enterprises

Unit: NT$ thousands, except earnings/ (loss) per share

Enterprise Name Capital | Total Assets | 1O | Networtn | Operating |Netoperating| /o) | Earnings/ (loss)
Liabilities revenue  [income/ (loss) per share

Arich Enterprise Co,, Ltd. 745744]  4943105]  3,061260] 1881845 1,018,023 64,123 62,617 0.84
E‘z“am“ Medical Technologies 300,000) 1,949,695 561,969 1,387,726 995,855 144,476 137,111 457
Excelsior Healthcare Co, Limited | 1,244,687 1,968,250 687) 1,967,563 0 (170) 101,978 259
Excelsior Medical (HK) Co,, Limited| 2,451,275 2,770,076 22| 2769864 0 (249) 122105 148
Excelsior Beauty Co, Ltd. 281,210 528,527 191,181 337,346 136,675 17272 9,140 033
Ei‘gdﬂ"‘ Asset Management Co., 82,03 1234621 385,788 848,833 51,118 25,330 18,045 022
EG Healthcare Inc. 19,256 126,494 50,909 75,585 134,673 (887) (2,995) (059
SinoExcelsior Investment Inc. 291,579 137,284 89 137,195 0 (746) 2,126 Note
gf‘ce}_s:;" Investment (Malaysia) 222,547 204,095 9,899 194,196 0 (697) (7,291) (0.99)
Renal Laboratories Sdn. Bhd. 192,261 168,537 7,813 160,724 65472 (9,950) 9,547) 039)
Medi-Chem Systems Sdn. Bhd. 3,350 26,335 10,381 15,954 50,538 (1,272) 27 0.49
Renal Management Sdn. Bhd. 1,340 8,678 284 8,304 1154 363 149) 0.75
Dynamic Medical Technologies 305,823 305,649 11,076 294,573 2,453 7,574 6,913 0.09
(Hong Kong) Ltd.

Guangzhou Dynamic Inc. 144,346 10,886 705, 10,181 0 (1,073) (1,040) Note
CYJ International Taiwan Inc. 122,400 520,388 410,887 109,501 281,076 (10,434) 9,073) 074)

Note: This company has no shares.

(2) Consolidated financial statements of affiliated enterprises: Same as consolidated
financial statements.

(3) Reports of affiliated enterprises: None.

2.Private Placement Securities from Last Year up to the Time of Report
Publication:None.

3. Subsidiaries Holding or Disposal of the Company’s Stock List from Last Year
up to the Time of Report Publication: None.

4. Other Necessary Supplements

The evaluation method for accounts of balance sheet

(1) Allowance of accounts receivable

The Group has assessed accounts receivables for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Accounts receivables are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the accounts receivables, that the estimated future cash flows
of the accounts receivables have been affected. Such accounts receivables are assessed
for impairment on a collective basis even if they were assessed not to be impaired
individually.

The amount of the impairment loss recognized is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows(after
reflecting effects of collaterals or guarantees), discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. Accounts receivables where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. When accounts receivables are
considered uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
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recognized in bad debt losses.

(2) Allowance of inventory valuation
A. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Inventory write-
downs are made by item, except where it may be appropriate to group similar or
related items. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price of inventories less
selling expenses. Inventories are recorded at the weighted-average cost.

B. The Group policy on allowance of inventory valuation

a. Inventories shall be stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value.

b. Inventory cost shall be compared by each item against its net realizable value.
Loss will be recognized for items with lower net realizable values than their
respective inventory costs, and no recognition will be made for those whose net
realizable values are higher than the inventory costs. For inventories that have
been written-down to the net realizable value, in case net realizable values rises,
it is necessary to write back the increase in the net realizable value of the
inventory within the boundaries of the original write-off, and to recognize
“ Adjustments to Cost of Sales-Losses on inventory valuation.”

c. For items that need to be scrapped in the inventory, 100% of the inventory balance
will be recognized for reserve.

d. In case of special circumstances or changes in industry, the Group may adjust
inventory products based on their actual circumstances.

5. Matters that Have Significantly Affected Shareholders’ Equity and Share Prices Pursuant
to Item 2, Paragraph 3, Article 36 of Securities and Exchange Act from Last Year up to the
Time of Report Publication: None.
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